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Vol.# | Tab# Filing Description Sponsoring
Requirement Witness

1 1 KRS 278.180 30 days’ notice of rates to PSC. Amy B. Spiller

1 2 807 KAR 5:001 The original and 10 copies of application plus Amy B. Spitler
Section 7(1) cony for anvone named as interested party.

1 k! 807 KAR 5:001 {a) Amount and kinds of stock authorized. Thomas T. Heath, Jr.
Section 12(2) {h) Amount and kinds of stock 1ssued and Danielle 1.. Weatherston

outstanding.

(c) Terms of preference of preferred stock
whether cumulative or participating, of on
dividends or assefs or otherwise,

(d) Brief description of each mortgage on
property of applicant, giving date of exccution,
name of mortgagor, name of mortgagee, or trustee,
amount of indebtedness authorized to be secured
thereby, and the amount of indebtedness actually
secured, together with any sinking fund
provisions.

(e) Amount of bonds authorized, and amount
issued, giving the name of the public utitity which
issued the same, describing each class separately,
and giving date of issue, face value, rate of
interest, date of maturity and how secured,
together with amount of interest paid thereon
during the last fiscal ygar.

(f) Each note outstanding, giving date of
issue, amount, date of maturity, rate of interest, in
whose favor, together with amount of interest paid
thereon during the last fiscal year,

(g) Other indebtedness, giving same by
classes and describing security, if any, with a brief’
statement of the devolution orassumption of any
portion of such indebtedness upon or by person or
corporation if the original liability has been
transferred, together with amount of interest paid
thereon during the last fiscal year.

(h) Rate and amount of dividends paid during
the five (5) previous fiscal years, and the amount
of capital stock on which dividends were paid each

year.
(1) Detailed income statement and balance
sheet.
1 4 807 KAR 5:001 Full name, mailing address, and electronic mail Amy B. Spiller
Section 14(1} address of applicant and reference to the patticular
provision of law requiring PSC approval.
I 5 807 KAR 5:001 | If a corporation, the applicant shall identify in the Amy B. Spiller
Section 14(2) application the state in which it is incorporated and

the date of its incorporation, attest that it is
currently in good standing in the state in which.it
is incorporated, and, if it is not a Kentucky
corporation, state if it is authorized to transact
business in Kentucky.
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Section 16(6)(d)

periad is filed, there shall be no revisions to the
farecast, except for the comection of mathematical
etrors, unless the revisions reflect statutory or
reguiatory enactiments that could not, with
reasonable diligence, have been included in the
forecast on the date it was filed, There shall be no
revisions filed within thirty (30) days of a
scheduled hearing on the rate application.

6 807 KAR 5:001 Tf a limited liability company, the applicant shali Amy B. Spilfer

Section 14(3) identify in the application the state in which it is
organized and the date on which it-was organized,
attest that it is in good standing in-the state in
which it is organized, and, if it is not a Kentucky
limited liability company, state if' it is. authorized
to transact business in Kentucky.

7 | 807 KAR 5:001 If the applicant is a Hmited partnership, a certified Amy B. Spiller

Section 14(4) copy of s limited partnership agreement and all
amendments, if any, shall be annexed to the
application, or a written statement attesting that its
partnership agreement and all ameridments have
been filed with the commission in a prior
proceeding and referencing the case number of the
prior proceeding,

8§ i 807 KAR 5:001 Reason adjustment is required. Amy B. Spiller
Section 16 Sarah E. Lawler
Db

o 807 KAR 5:001 Certified copy of certificaie of assumed name Amy B. Spiiler
Section 16 required by KRS 365.015 or siatement that
(DOYD) certificate not necessary,

10 | 807 KAR 5:001 New or revised tariff sheets, if applicable in a Bruce L. Sailers
Section 16 format that complies with 807 KAR 5:011 with an
(1(B)3) effective date not Jess than thirty (30) days from

the date the application is filed
11 | 807 KAR 5:001 Proposed tariff changes shown by present and Bruce. L. Sailers
Section 14 proposed tariffs in comparative form or by
(D(bYd) indicating additions im italics or by underscoring
' and striking over deletions in current tarift.

12 | 807 KAR 5:001 | A statement that notice has been given in Amy B. Spiller
Section 16 compliance with Section 17 of this administrative
(D5) regulation with a copy of the notice;

13 | 307 KAR 3:001 If gross annual revenues exceed $5,000,000, Amy B. Spiller
Section 16(2) written notice of intent filéd at least 30 days, but

' ot more than 60 days prior to application. Notice:
shall state whether application will be supported
by historical or fully forecasted test period.

14 | 807 KAR 5:001 | Notice given pursuant 1o Section 17 of this™ Amy B. Spilier
Section 16(3) administrative regulation shall satisfy the

requirements of 807 KAR 5:051, Section 2.
15 | 807 KAR 5:001 The financial data for the forecasted period shall Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter

Section 16(6)(a) be presented in the form of pro forma adjustments
to the base period,

16 | 807 KAR5:001 Forecasted adjustments shall be limited to the Lisa D. Steinkuhl
Section 16(6)(b) | twelve (12) months immediately following the Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter

suspension period. Sharif S. Mitchell
’ Jacob S, Colley

17 i 807 KAR 5:00! Capitalization and net investment raté base shall Lisa D. Steinkuhi

Section 16{8)(c) be based on a thirteen (13) month average for the
forecasted period.
18 | 807 KAR 5:001 After an application based on a forecasted test Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter




19

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(6)(€)

The commission may require the utility to prepare
an alternative forecast based on a reasonable
number of changes in the variables, assumptions,
and other factors used as the basis for the utility's
forecast.

Grady “Tripp” S. Catpenter

20

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(6)(f)

The utility shall provide areconciliation of the rate
base and capital used to determine its revenue
requirements,

Lisa D. Steinkuhl

21

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(a)

Prepared testimony of each witmess supporting its
application including testimony from chief officer
in charge of Kentucky operations on the e%isting
prograins to achieve improvements in efficiency
and productivity, including an explanation of the
purpose of the program:

All Witnesses

22

807 KAR 5:001
" Section 16(7¥(b)

Most recent capital construction budget containing
at minimum 3 yéar forecast of construction
expenditures.

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
William C. Luke
Marc W. Amold

23

807 KAR 5:001
‘Section 16(7)(c)

Complete description, which may be in prefiled
‘testimony form, of ali factors used to prepare
forecast period. All economeiric models,
variables, assumptions, escalation factors,
contingency provisions, and changes-in activity
levels shall be quantified, explained, and properly
supported,

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter

24

807 KAR 5:001

Section 16(7)(d)

Annual and monthly budget for the 12 menths
preceding filing date, base period and forecasted
period.

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter

25

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)e)

Attestation signed by utility’s chief officer in

charge of Kentucky operations providing:

[. That forecast is reasonable, reliable, made in
good faith and that all basic-assumptions used
have been identified and justified; and

2. That forecast contains same assumptions and
methodologies used in forecast prepared for use
by management, or.an identification and
explanation for any differences; and

3. That productivity and efficiency gains are
included in the forecast.

Amy B. Spiller

26

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(f)

For each major construction project constituting
5% or more of annual construction budget within 3
year forecast; following information shall be filed:

1. Date project began or estimated starting date;

2. Estimated completion date;

3. Total estimated. cost of construction by year
exclusive and inclusive of Allowance for Funds
Used During construction (“AFUDC”) or
Interest During construction Credit; and

-4, Most recent available total costs incurred
exclusive and inclusive of AFUDC or Inierest
During Construction Credit.

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
William C. Luke
Marc W. Arnold

27

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(g)

For all construction projects constituting less than
5% of annual construction budget within 3 year
forecast, file aggregate of information requested in
paragraph () 3 and 4 of this subsection.

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
William C. Luke
Marc W. Arnold
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807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(h)

Financial forecast for each of 3 forecasted years

included in capital construction budget supported

by underlying assumptions ade in projecting

results of gperations and including the following

information:

1. Operating income statement (exclusive of
dividends per share or eamings per share);

2. Balance sheet;

3. Statement of cash flows;

4. Revenue requirements necessary to support the
forecasted rate of retum;

‘5. Load forecast including energy and demand
{electric);

6. Access line forecast (telephone);

7. Mix of generation {(electric};

8. Mix of gas supply (gas);

9, Employee level;

10.Labor cost changes;

11.Capital structure requirements;

12.Rate base;

13.Gallons of water projectedto be sold (water);

14.Customer forecast (gas, water);

15.MCF sales forecasts (gas);

16.Toll and access forecast of number of calls and
-number of minutes (telephone); and

17.A detailed explanation of any other information.
provided.

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
John D. Swez
Ibrar A. Khera

29

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(1)

Most recent FERC or FCC audit reports.

Danielle L. Weatherston

30

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(i)

Prospectuses of most recent stock or bond
offerings.

Thoinas 3. Heath, Jr.

31

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(k)

Mostrecent FERC Form 1 (electric), FERC Form
2 (gas), or PSC Form T (telephone}.

Danielle L. Weatherston

32

807 KAR 5:001
Section. 16(7)(1)

Annual report to shareholders or members and
statistical supplements for the most recent 2 years
prior'to application filing date.

Thomas J, Heath, Ir..

33

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7){(m)

Current chart of accounts if more detailed than
Uniform System of Accounts charts.

Danielle L. Weatherston

34

807 KAR 5:001

Section 16{7)(n)

Latest 12 months of the monthly managerial
reports providing financial results of operations in
comparison to forecast.

Danielle L. Weatherston

335

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7X0)

Complete monthly budget variance reports, with
narrative explanations, for the 12 months prior to
base period, each month of base period, and
subsequent months, as available,

Danielle L. Weatherston
Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter

36

807 KAR 5:001

‘Section 16(7)(p)

SEC*s annual report for most recent 2 years, Form
10-Ks and any Form 8-Ks'issued during prior 2
years and any Form 10-Qs issued during past 6
quarters.

Danielle L. Weatherston

37

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(q)

Independent auditor’s annual opinion report, with
any-written communication which indicates-the
existence of a material weakness in internal
controls.

Danielle L. Weatherston

38

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7¥1)

Quarterly reports to the stockholders for the most
recent 5 quarters,

Thomas.J. Heath, Ir.
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807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(s)

Summary of latest depreciation study with
schedules itemized by major plant accounts,
except that telecommunications utifities adopting
PSC’s average depreciation rates shall identify
current and base period depreciation rates used by
major plant accounts. If information has been
filed in another PSC case, refer to that case’s
number and style.

John J. Spanos

40

807 KAR 5:001

Section 16(7)(t)

List all commercial or in-house computet
software; programs, and models used to develop
schedules and work papers associated with
application. Include each software, program, or
model; its use; identify the supplier of cach; briefly
describe software, program, or model;
specifications for computer hardware and
operating system required fo rim programt

Lisa D. Steinkuhl

41

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(u)

If utility had any amounts charged or allocated to
it by affiliate or general or home office.or paid any
monies to affiliate or general or home office
during the baseé period or during previous 3
calendar years, file:

1. Detailed description of method of calculation
and amounts allocated or charged to utility by
affiliate or general or home office for each
allocation or payment;

2. method and amounts allocated during base
period and method and estimated amounits to be
allocated during forecasted test period;

3. Explain how allocatcr for hoth hase and
forecasted test period was determined; and

4. All facts relied upon, including other regulatory
approval, to demonstrate that each amount
charged, allocated or paid during base period is
reasonable,

Rebekah E. Buck

10

42

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(7)(v)

If gas, electric or water utility with annual gross
revenues greater than $3,000,000, cost of service
study based on methodology generally accepted in
industry and based on current arid reliable data
from single time period,

James E. Ziolkowski

10

43

807 KAR 3:001
Section 16{7)(w)

Local exchange carriers with fewer than 50,000
access lines néed not file cost of service studies,
except as specifically directed by PSC. Local
exchangeé carriers with more than 50,000 access
lines shall file:
1. Jurisdictional separations study consistent with
Part 36 of the FCC’3 rules and regulations; and
2. Service specific cost studies supporting pricing
of services generating annual revenue greater
than $1,000,000 except local exchange access:
a.  Based on current and reliable data from
single time period; and
b:  Using generally recognized fully
allocated, embedded, or incremental cost
principles.

N/A

10

44

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(8)(a)

Jurisdictional financial summary for both base and
forecasted periods detailing how utility derived
amount of requested revenue increase.

Lisa D. Steinkuhl




10 45 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional rate base summary for both base and Lisa D. Steinkuhl
Section 16(8)(b) | forecasted periods with supporting schedules Sharif 8. Mitchell
which include detailed analyses of each Grady “Tripp” 5. Carpentetr
component of the rate base. John R. Panizza
James E. Ziolkowski
Danielle L. Weatherston
10 46 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional operating income summary for both Lisa D, Steinkuhl
Section 16(8)(c) | base and forecasted periods with supporting
schiedules which provide breakdowns by major
account group and by individual account.
10 47 | 807 KAR 5:001 Summary of jurisdictional adjustments to Lisa D. Steinkuh!
Section 16(8}d) | operating income by major account with Sharif 8. Mitchell
supporting schedules for individual adjustients Grady “Tripp” S, Carpenter
and jurisdictional factors. Jacob S. Colley
James E. Ziolkowski
10 48 | 807 KAR 5:001 Jurisdictional federal and state income tax John R. Panizza
Section 16(8)(¢) summary for both base and forecasted periods with
' all supporting schedules of the various components
of jurisdictional income taxes.
10 49 1 807 KAR 5:001 Summary schedules for both base and forecasted Lisa D. Steinkuhl
Section 16(8)(f) periods (utility may also provide summary
segregating items it proposes (o recover in rates) of
organization membership dues; initiation fees;
expenditures for couniry club; charitable
contributions; marketing, sales, and advertising;
professional services; civic and political activities;
employee parties and outings; employee gifts; and
rate cases.
10 50 | 807 KAR 5:001 Analyses of payroll costs including schedules for Lisa D. Steinkuhl
Section 16(8)(g) | wages and salaries, employee benefits, payroll Shannon A, Caldwell
taxes, straight time and overtime hours, and
executive compensation by title,
10 51 | B07KARS5:001 | Computation of gross revenue conversion factor Lisa D. Steinkuhl
Section 16(8)(h) | for forecasted period.
10 52. | 807 KAR 5:001 Comparative income statements (exclusive of Danielle I.. Weathersion
Section 16(3)(i) dividends per share or earnings per share), revenue | Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
statistics and sales statistics for 5 calendar years
prior to application filing daite, base period,
forecasted period, and 2 calendar years bieyond
forecast period.
10 53 | 807 KAR 5:001 Cost of capital summary for both base and Thomas J. Heath, Jr.
Section 16(8)(3) forecasted periods with supporting schedules
providing details on each component of the capital
structure.
10 54 | 807 KAR 5:001 Comparative financial data and earnihgs measures Sharif 8. Mitchell
Section 16(8)(K) | forthe 10 most recent calendar years, base period, | Grady “Tripp” 5. Carpenter
and forecast period. ' Thomas J. Heath, Jr.
Danielle L. Weatherston
10 55 | 807 KAR 5:001 Narrative description and explanation of all Bruce L. Sailers
Séction 16(8) 1} proposed tariff changes.
10 56 | 807 KAR 5:001 Reyenue summary for both base and forecasted Bruce L. Sailers
Section 16(8)(m) | periods with suppoiting schedules which provide
detailed billing analyses for all customer classes.
10 57 | 807 KAR 5:001 Typical bill comparison undér present and Bruce L. Sailers
Section 16(8){(n) | proposed rates for all customer classes.
10 58 | 807 KAR 5:001 The commission shall notify the applicant of any Sarah E. Lawler

Section 16(9)

deficiencies in-the application within thirty (30)
days of the application’s submission. An
application shall not be accepted for filing until the
utility has cured all noted deficiencies.

-6~




10

59

807 KAR 5:001

Seotion 16(10)

Request for waivers from the requirements of this
section shall include the specific reasons for the
request. The commission shall grant the request
upon good cause shown by the utility,

Legal

10

60

807 KAR 5:001
Section (17)(1)

(1) Public postings.

(a) A utility shall post at its place of business a
copy of the notice no later than the date the
application is submitted to the commission.

(h) A utility that maintains a Web site shall,
within five (5) business days of the date the
application is submitted to the commission, post
on its Web sites;

1. A copy of the public notice; and

2. A hyperlink to the location on the
commission’s Web site where the case docunients
are available.

(c) The information required in paragraphs {a)
and (b) of this subsection shall not be rermoved
until the commission issues a final decision on the
application,

Amy B. Spiller

10

61

807 KAR 5:001

Section 17(2)

(2) Customer Notice.

(a) If a utility has twenty (2G) or fewer
customers, the utility shall mail a written noticeto
each customer no later than the date on which the
application is submitted to the commission.

(b) If a utility has more than twenty (20)
customers, it shall provide natice by:

1. Including notice with customer bills mailed
no later than the date the application is submitted
to the commission;

2. Mailing a written notice to each. customer no
later than the date the application is submitted to

the commission;

3. Publishing notice once a week for three (3)
consécutive weeks in a prominent manner in a
newspaper of general circulation in the utility’s

service area, the first publication to be made no

later than the date the application is submitted to
the commission; or

4. Publishing notice in a trade publication or
newsletter delivered to all customers no later than
the date the application is submitted to the
commission.

(¢) A utility that provides service in'more than
ong (1) county. may use a combination of the
notice methods listed in paragraph (b) of this
subsection,

Amy B. Spiller




10

62

807 KAR 5:001
Section 17(3)

(3) Proof of Notice. A utility shall file with the
commission no later than forty-five (45} days from
the date the application was initially submitied to
the commission:

(2) If notice is mailed to its customers, an
affidavit from an authorized representative of the
utility verifying the contents of the notice, that
notice was mailed to all customers, and the date of

the mailing;

(b) If notice is published in a newspaper of
general circulation in the utility’s seryice area, an
affidavit from the publisher verifying the contents
of the notice, that the notice was published, and
the dates of the notice’s publication; or

(c) If notice is published in a trade publication
or newsletier delivered to all customers, an
affidavit from an authorized representative of the
utility verifying the contents of' the notice, the
mailing of the trade publication or newsletter, that
notice was included in the publication or
newsletter, and the date of mailing,.

Amy B. Spiller




10

63

807 KAR 5:001
Section 17(4)

(4) Notice Content. Each notice issued in accordance
with this section shall contain:

(a) The proposed effective date and the.date the
proposed rates are expected fo be filed with the
commission;;

(b) The present rates and proposed rates for each
customer classification to which the proposed rates
will apply;

(¢) The amount of the change requested in both
dollar amounts and percentage change for each
customer classification to which the proposed rates
will apply;

(d) The amount of the average usage and the
effect upon the average bilt foreach customer
classification to which the proposed rates witl apply,
except for local exchange companies, which shail
include the effect upon the average bill for each
customer classification for the proposed rate change
in basic focal service;

(e} A statement that a person may examine this
application at the offices of (utility name) focated at
(utility address);

(f) A statement that a person may examine this
application at the commission’s offices located at 211
Sower Boulevard, Frankfort, Kentucky, Monday
through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., or through the

-commission’s Web site at http://psc.ky.gpv;,

() A statement that comments regarding the
application may be submittad to the Public Service
Commission through its Web site or by mail to Public
Service Commission, Post Office Box 615, Frankfort,
Kentucky 40602;

(h) A statement that the rates contained in this
notice are the rates. proposed by (utility name) but

that the Public Service Comniission may order tates

to be charged that differ frorh the proposed rates
contained in this notice;

{1} A statement that a person may submit a timely
written request for intervention to the Public Service
Commission, Post Office Box 615, Frankfort,
Kentucky 40602, establishing the grounds for the
request including the status and interest of the party;
and

(i) A statement that if the commission does not
receive a written request for intetvention within thirty
(30) days of initial publication or mailing of the
notice, the commission may take tinal action on the

application.

Bruce L. Sailers

10

64

807 KAR 5:001
Section 17(5)

(5) Abbreviated form of notice, Upon written
request, the commission may grant a utility
permission to use an abbreviated form of
published notice of the proposed rates, provided
the notice includes a coupon that may be used ta
obtain all the required information.

N/A




11

807 KAR 5:001
Section 16(8)(a)

Schedule Book (Schedules A-K)

Various

through (k)

12 807 KAR 5:001 Schedule Book (Schedules 1-N) Bruce L. Sailers
Section 16(8)(1)
through (n)

13 - Work Papers Various

14 807 KAR 5:001 Testimony (Volume 1 of 4) Various
Section 16(7)a)

15 807 KAR 5:001 Testimony (Volume 2 of 4) Various
Section 16(7)a)

16 807 KAR 5:001 Testimony (Volume 3 of 4) Various
Section 16(7)(a)

17 807 KAR 5;001 Testimony (Volume 4 .of 4) Various
Section 16(N(a) '

18-19 KRS 278.2265(6) | Cost Allocation Manual Legal

-10-




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR KRS 278.180

KRS 278.180

Description of Filing Requirement:

Provide thirty (30) days” notice of rate change to Kentucky Public Service Commission.

Response:

See-attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR KRS 278,180 Attachment
Page 1 of 3

Amy B. Spiller
President
Duke Energy Kentucky

139 E. 4™ Sireet
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL Room 1409-M
Cincinnati, OH 45202

November 1, 2024 513.287.4359
amy.spiller@duke-energy.com

Ms. Linda Bridwell

Executive Director ..—C_.VED

Kentucky Public Service Commission

211 Sower Boulevard NOV 01 2024

Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615 PUBLIC SERVICE
COMRISSION

RE: Case No. 2024- 00354
The Electronic Application of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc., for: 1) An
Adjustment of the Electric Rates: 2) Approval of New Tanffs; 3) Approval of
Accounting Practices to Establish Regulatory Assets and Liabilities; and 4) All
Other Required Approvals and Relief.

Dear Ms. Bridwell:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke Energy Kentucky or the Company) notifies the Commission
that it will file a general electric rate case in thirty days or reasonably soon thereafter.! Duke
Energy Kentucky will use a forward-looking test period for this case.

Duke Energy Kentucky is contemporancously filing a Notice of Election of use of Electronic
Filing Procedures for this proceeding. Please assign this matter a case number and style and
advise us of same so that it can be incorporated in the application and supporting testimony
before filing with the Commission,

Duke Energy Kentucky is providing a copy of this notice to the Attorney General's Ultility
Intervention and Rate Division. We will work diligently with the Commission and our other

stakeholders to seek a constructive resolution. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerelv.

B Il

cc: Hon. John G. Homne, I {via email

! Duke Energy Kentucky provides this notice pursuant to Commissior regulation 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(2).







KyPSC Case No, 2024-00354
FR KRS 278.180 Attachment
Page3of 3

Case No. 202400354 otice of Electon 10 Use Eisctronic Filng Procedures
Revisad June 2074

NOTICE OF ELECTION OF USE OF ELECTRONIC FILING PROCEDURES
(Complete Afl Shaded Areas and Check Applicable Boxes)

n-accordance with 807 KARS:001; Seclion “gives notice of its
intent to file an appizcatmn for sadjtistment.of the Electric Rate with the Public Service Commission
no later than and to use the ejectronic f Emg procedures setforth in that regulatian.

ﬁﬁk?‘lﬁnerg}z&Kenm :

Yes No
1. It requests that the Public Service Commission aésigna case number to the intended ]
application and advise’it of that number assocn as possible;

2. It orits authorized representatives have registered with the Public Service Commission and |
are authorized to make electronic filings with the Public Service Commission;

3. Neither it nor its authorized representatives have registered with the Public Service ||
Commission far authorization to make electronic filings but will do so no {ater than seven
days before the date of its filing of its application for rate adjustment;

4. ltorits authorized agents possess the facilities to receive electronic transmissions; O

5. The faliowing persons are autharized to make filings on its behalf and to receive electronic.
service of Public Service Commission orders and any pleadings filed by any party or the
Public Service Commission Staff:

Name T Efecironic Mall Address

ebbicpates@dukeensrayicom

6. Itand its autharized representatives listed above have read and understand the procedures O
for electranic filing setforth in 807 KAR 5:001 and will fully comply with those procedures
unfess the Public Service Commission directs otherwise.

Signed _/s/Rocco D'Ascenzo
Name:




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR7(1)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 7(1)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Unless the Commission orders otherwise or the electronic filing procedures -established in
Section 8 of this administrative regulation are used, if a paper is filed with the commission, an

original unbound and ten (10} additional copies in paper medium shall be filed.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky elected, and was approved for, the use of electronic filing procedures in
this matter. As such, in accordance with 807 KAR 5:001, Section 8(3) and the permanent
deviation granted in Case No. 2020-00085,! the Company will retain the original filing in paper

medium.

Witness Responsible:

Amy B. Spiller

" In the Matter of Electronic Emergency Docket Related 1o the Novel Coronavirus COVID-19, Order, Case No.
2020-00085 (Ky. P.S.C. July 22, 2021).



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 12(2)(a) through (i)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTIONS 12(2)(a) through 12(2)(i

Description of Filing Requirements:
Section 12(2)(a)
o Amount and kinds of stock authorized.
Section 12(2)(b)
e  Amount and kinds of stock issued and outstanding.
Section 12(2)(c)

o Terms of preference of preferred stock, cumulative or participating, or on dividends or
assets or otherwise.

Section 12(2)(d)

e A brief description of each mortgage on property of applicant, giving date of execution,
name of mortgagor, name of mortgagee or trustee, amount of indebtedness authorized to
be secured, and the amount of indebtedness actually secured, together with sinking fund
provisions, if applicable.

Section 12(2)(c)

s The amount of bonds authorized and amount issned, giving the name of the public utility
that issued the same, describing each class separately and giving the date of issue, face
value, rate of interest, date of maturity, and how secured, together with amount of interest
paid during the last fiscal year,

Section 12(2)(f)

o FEach note outstanding, giving date of issue, amount, date of maturity, rate of interest, in
whose favor, together with amount of interest paid during the last fiscal year.



Section 12(2)(g)

o Other indebtedness, giving same by classes and describing security, if any, with a brief
statement of the devolution or assumption of a portion of the indebiedness upon or by
person or corporation if the original liability has been transferred, together with amount of
interest paid during the last fiscal year.

Section 12(2}(h)

o The rate and amount of dividends paid during the five (5) previous fiscal years, and the
amount of capital stock on which dividends were paid each year.

Section 12(2)(i)

¢ A detailed Income Statement and Balance Sheet

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Themas J. Heath, Jr. — Sections 12(2)(a)-(h)
Danielle L. Weatherston — Section 12(2)(i)
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FINANCIAL EXHIBIT

4 )] Section 12(2)(a) Amount and kinds of stock authorized.

1,000,000 shares of Capital Stock $15 par value amounting to $15,000,000 par value.

2) Section 12(2)(b} Amount and kinds of stock issued and outstanding,

585,333 shares of Capita! Stock $15 par value amounting to $8,779,995 total par value. Total
Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital as of September 30, 2024:

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital
As of September 30, 2024
($ per 1,000)

Capital Stock $8,780
Premiums thereon 18,839
Total Capital Contributions from Parent (since 2006) 353,150
Contribution from Parent Company for Purchase of Generation Assets 140.061
Total Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in-Capital $520,830

3 Section 12(2)(c) Terms of preference or preferred stock, cumulative or
participating, or on dividends or assets or otherwise,

There isno preferred stock authorized, issued or outstanding.

{4) Section 12(2){d) Brief description of each mortgage on property of applicant,
giving date of execution, name of mortgagor, name or mortgagee, or trustee,
amount of indebtedness authorized to be secured, and the amount of
indebtedness actually secured, together with any sinking fund provision.

Duke Energy Kentucky does not have any liabilities secured by a mortgagé.
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(5 Section 12(2)(e) Amount of bonds authorized, and amount issued, giving the

name of the public utility which issued the same, describing each class

separately, and giving the date of issue, face value, rate of interest, date of
maturity and how secured, together with the amount of interest paid.thereon

during thé last fiscal year.

The Company has 16 outstanding issues of unsecured senior debentures issued under an
Indenture dated December 1, 2004, between itself and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as Trustee, as supplemented by eight Supplemental Indentures. The Indenture
allows the Company to issue debt securities in an unlimited amount from time to time. The
Debentures issued and outstanding under the [ndenture are the following:

(©)

Section 12(2

Each note outstandin

Principal
Amount Principal Interest
Supplemental Date of  Authorized Amount Rate of  Date of Paid

Indenture [ssue and Issued Outstanding Interest Maturity  Year 2023

1* Supplemental 3/7/2006 65,000,000 65,000,000 6.200%  3/10/2036 4,030,000
3 Supplemental 1/5/2016 45,000,000 45,000,000 3.420%  1/15/2026 1,539,000
3" Supplemental 1/5/2026 50,000,000 50,000,000 4450%  1/15/2046 2,225,000
4% Supplemental 9/7/2027 30,000,000 30,000,000 3.350%  9/15/2029 1,005,000.
4™ Supplemental 9/7/2017 30,000,000 30,000,000 4.110%  9/15/2047 1,233,000
4" Supplemental 9/7/2017 30,000,000 30,000,000 4.260%  9/15/2057 1,278,000
5% Supplemental  10/3/2018 40,000,000 40,000,000 4.180%  10/15/2028 1,672,000
5% Sypplemental  12/12/2018 35,000,000 35,000,000 4.620%  12/15/2048 1,617,000
6% Supplemental  7/17/2019 40,000,000 40,000,000 4.320%  7/15/2049 1,728,000
7% Supplemental ~ 9/26/2019 95,000,000 95,000,000 3.230%  10/01/2025 3,068,500
7% Supplemental ~ 9/26/2019 75,000,000 75,000,000 3.560% 10/01/2029 2,670,000
8% Supplemental ~ 9/15/2020 35,000,000 35,000,000 2.650%  9/15/2030 927,500
8" Supplemental  9/15/2020 35,000,000 35,000,000 3.660%  9/15/2050 1,281,000
0% Supplemental  6/28/2024 80,000,000 80,000,000 5.900%  7/15/203] -
9% Supplemental ~ 6/28/2024 95,000,000 95,000,000 6.000%  7/15/2034. -
9" Supplemental  6/28/2024 50,000,000 50,000,000 6.170%  7/15/2039 -
830,000,000 24,274,000

iving date of issue, amount, date of

‘maturity, rate of interest, in whose favor, together with amonnt of interest paid

‘thereon during the last fiscal vear.

Not applicable.
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N Section 12(2 Other indebtedness, giving same by classes and describing
security, if any. with a brief statement of the devolution or assumption of any
portion of such indebtedness upon or by person or corporation if the original
liability has been transferred, together with amount of interest paid thereon
during the last fiscal year.

The Company has two series of Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds issued under a
Trust [ndenture dated as of August 1, 2006 and a Trust Indenture dated as of December 1,
2008, between the County of Boone, Kentucky and Deutsche Bank National Trust Company
as Trustee. The Company’s obligation to make payments equal to debt service on the Bonds
is evidenced by a Loan Agreement dated as of August 1, 2006 and December 1, 2008
between the County of Boone, Kentucky and Duke Energy Kentucky. The Bonds issued
under the Indentures are below. On November 1, 2021, the Company bought in the Series
2008A bond, and remarketed the bond in June 2022.

Principal
Amount Principal Interest
Date of  Authorized Amount Rateof  Date of Paid
Indenture Issue and [ssued  Qutstanding Interest  Maturity  Year 2023
Series 2010 2/1/2012 26,720,000 26,720,000 3.86% Y 8/1/2027 1,031,392
Series 2008A 6/27/2022 50,000,000 50,000,000 3.70% 8/17/2027 1,850,000

76,720,000 2,881,392

() The bonds were issued at a variable-rate and were swapped to a fixed rate of 3.86% for
the life of the debt. The average floating-rate of interest on the bonds for 2023. was 3.41%,

The Company has no outstanding financing leases as of September 30, 2024.

The Company alsc has $25,000,000 of money pool borrowings outstanding as of September
30, 2024, $25,000,000 of which is classified as Long-Term Debt payable to affiliated
companies. This obligation, which is short-term by nature, is classified as long-term due to
Duke Energy Kentucky’s intent and ability to utilize such borrowings as long-term financing.









DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 14(1)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 14(1)

Description of Filing Requirement;

Each application shall state the full name, mailing address, and electronic mail address of the
applicant, and shall contain fully the facts on which the application is based, with a request for the
order, authorization, permission, or certificate desired and a reference to the particular law requiring

or providing for the information.

Response:

See application submitted in this proceeding.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 14(2)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 14(2)

Description of Filing Requirement:

If a corporation, the applicant shall identify in the application the state in which it is incorporated and
the date of its incorporation, attest that it is currently in good standing in the state in which it is
incorporated, and, if it is not a Kentucky corporation, state if it is authorized to transact business in

Kentucky.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 14(3)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 14(3)

Description of Filing Requirement:

If a limited liability company, the applicant shall identify in the application the state in which it is
organized and the date on which it was organized, attest that it s in good standing in the state in
which it is organized, and, if it is not a Kentucky limited liability company, state if it is authorized to

transact business in Kentucky.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky is a corporation; therefore, this requirement does not apply.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 14(4)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 14(4)

Deseription of Filing Requirement:

If the applicant is a limited partnership; a certified copy of its limited partnership agreement and all
amendments, if any, shall be annexed to the application, or a written statement attesting that its
partnership agreement and all ainendments have been filed with the commission in a prior proceeding

and referencing the case mumber of the prior proceeding.

Response:

Duke Energy Kentucky is a corporation; therefore, this requirement does not apply.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(1)(b)(1)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(D(b)(1)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Statement of the reason the adjustment is required.

Response:

1) Duke Energy Kentucky’s current base rates reflect its cost of service as prepared in 2022.
At current rates, the Company’s calculated rate of return on rate base for the test period is
3.886% which is not sufficient to enable the Company to furnish safe, efficient and reliable
service and to have the opportunity to earn a fair rate of return on its investments.

2) Duke Energy Kentucky needs to adjust its current costs of service to reflect its capital
investments and operations and maintenance of its electric operations that have changed
since its 2022 case.

a. The thirteen-month average of gross plant in the forecasted test period for this case
is $2.430 billion, as compared to approximately $2.180 billion approved in the 2022
tate case. The depreciation, property taxes, and return on this increased investment
are the primary drivers of the need for new rates.

3} Other drivers include:

a. The alignment of depreciation rates with the estimated useful life of the East Bend

generating station;



b. The in¢lusion of terminal net salvage in dépreciation expense for East Bend and
Woodsdale generating stations;

c. The need to commence recovery of authorized deferrals (e.g., Planned Outage
0&M, and Forced Qutage Purchased Power); and

d. Increases in Network Integration Transmission Service costs.

Please refer to the direct testimony of Duke Energy Kentucky witnesses Amy B. Spiller and Sarah.

E. Lawler.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller
Sarah E. Lawler



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(1)(b)(2)

507 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(1)(b)(2)

Description of Filing Requirement:
A certified copy of a certificate of assumed name as required by KRS 365.015 or a statement that a

certificate is not necessary.

Response:
Duke Energy Kentucky transacts business using the following assumed name: Duke Energy.

A certified copy of the Company’s certificate of assumed name is attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller
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Michael G. Adams
Secretary of State

Certificate

I, Michael G. Adams, Secretary of State for the Commonwealth of
Kentucky, do hereby certify that the foregoing writing has been carefully
compared by me with the original thereof, now in my official custody as
Secretary of State and remaining on file in my office, and found to be a true
and correct copy of

RENEWAL OF CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMED NAME OF DUKE ENERGY FOR DUKE
ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC. FILED FEBRUARY 10, 2021.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 2nd day of December, 2024.

Michael G. Adams

Secretary of State

Commonwealth of Kentucky
kdcoleman/ 0052929 - Certificate 1D 323712
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C227
0052929.04
Michael G. Adams
Commonwealth of Kentucky kv secretary of state

Received and Filed

Michael G. Adams, Secretary of Sti 21012021 2:15:11 pm
Fee receipt: $20.00

Michael G. Adams

Secretary of State .
P. O. Box 718 Renewal Certificate of REN

Frankfort, KY 40602-0718 Assumed Name
(502) 564-3490

http://www.sos.ky.gov

This certifies that the assumed name of
DUKE ENERGY
is hereby renewed by
DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

a business entity organized and existing in the state of Kentucky.

Signatures
Signature Kenna C. Jordan
Title Assistant Corporate Secretary

Date 2/10/2021 2:15:11 PM



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(1)(b)(3)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(1)(b)(3)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

New or revised tariff sheets, if applicable in a format that complies with 807 KAR 5:011 with an

effective date not less than thirty (30) days from the date the application is filed.

Response:

The proposed tariffs are at Schedule L-1.

Sponsoring Witness:

Bruce L, Sailers



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(1)(b)(4)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(1){b}4)

Description of Filing Requirement:
New or revised tariff sheets, if applicable, identified in compliance with 807 KAR 5:011, shown either
by providing:
a. The present and proposed tariffs in comparative form on the same sheet side by side or on facing
sheets side by side; or
b. A copy of the present tariff indicating proposed additions by italicized inserts or underscoring

and striking over proposed deletions.

Response:

See Schedules L-2.1 and L-2.2.

Sponsoring Witness:

Bruce L. Sailers



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(1)(b)(5)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(1){b}{5)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A statement that notice has been given in compliance with Section 17 of this administrative

regulation with a copy of the notice.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
In the Matter of:

THE ELECTRONIC APPLICATION OF DUKE
ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC., FOR: 1) AN
ADJUSTMENT OF THE ELECTRIC RATES; 2
APPROVAL OF NEW TARIFFS; 3) APPROVAL
OF ACCOUNTING PRACTICES TO ESTABLISH
REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
AND 4) ALL OTHER REQUIRED APPROVALS
AND RELIEF.

CASE NO.
2024-00354

CERTIFICATE OF NOTICE

Pursuant to the Kentucky Public Service Commission’s Regulation 807 KAR 5:001,
Section 1 6{1)(b)(5), | hereby certify that I am Amy B. Spiller, President of Duke Energy Keitucky,
Inc. (Duke Energy Kentucky or Company), a utility furnishing retail electric and gas service within
the Commonwealth of Kentucky, which, on the 2™ day of December 2024, filed an application
with the Kentucky Public Service Commission for the approval of an adjustment of the electric
rates, terims, conditions, and tariffs of Duke Energy Kentucky and that notice to the public of the
issuing of the same is being given in all respects as required by 807 KAR 5:001, Section 17 and
807 KAR 5:001, Section 8(2), as follows:

On the.2™ day of December 2024, the notice to the public was delivered for exhibition and
public inspection at 1262 Cox Road, Erlanger, Kentucky 41018 and the same will be kept open to
public inspection at said office in conformity with the requirements of 807 KAR 5:001, Section
17(1)(@) and 807 KAR 5:011, Section 8(1).

1 further certify that more than twenty (20) customers will be affected by said change by

way of an increase in their rates or charges and that on the 13™ day of November 2024, there was



KyPSC Case No. 2021-00190
FR 16(1)}(b}5) Attachment
Page 2 of 2

delivered to the Kentucky Press Association, an agency that acts on behalf of newspapers of
general circulation throughout the Commonwealth of Kentucky in which customers affected
reside. for publication therein once a week for three consccutive weeks beginning on or before
December 2. 2024, a notice of the filing of Dukc Energy Kentucky’s application, including its
proposed rates, a copy of said notice being attached hereto as Exhibit A, and a list of newspapers
of general circulation throughout the Commonwealth of Kentucky in which customers affected
reside. a copy of said list being attached hereto as Exhibit B. A certificate of publication of said
notice will be furnished to the Kentucky Public Service Commission upon completion of same
pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 17(3)(b).

Also beginning on December 2, 2024, Duke Energy Kentucky posted on its websitc a
complete copy of the Company’s notice and a hyperlink to the Jocation on the Kentucky Public
Service Commission’s website where the case documents and tariff filings are available.

Given under my hand this 2™ day of December 2024.

President. Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
139 E. 4" Street
Cincinnati, Qhio 45202

Subscribed and sworn to before me. a Notary Public, in and before said County and State.

this 2™ day of December 2024,

I R R R A

My Commission expires:

EMILIE SUMDERMAMN
Notary Public
State of Ohio

My Comm, Expires
July 8, 2027
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NOTICE

Duke Energy Kentucky, Ine, (“Duke Energy Kentucky” or “Company™) hereby gives notice that, in an
application to be filed no sooner than December 2, 2024, Duke Energy Kentucky will be seeking approval
by the Public Service Commission, Frankfort, Kentucky of an adjustinent of efectric rates and charges
proposed to.become effective on and after January 2, 2025. The Commission has docketed this proceeding
as Case No. 2024-00354,

The proposed electric rates are applicable to the following communities:

Alexandria Elsinere Ludiow
Bellevue Erlanger Melbourne
Boone County Fairview Newport
Bromiey Florence Park Hills
Campbell County Fort Mitcheli Pendleton County
Cold Spring Fort Thomas Ryland Heights
Covington Fort Wright Silver Grove
Crescent Park Grant County Southgate
Crescent Springs Highland Heights. Taylor Mili
Crestview: Independence Union
Crestview Hills Kenton County Villa Hills
Crittenden Kenton Vale Waiton

Dayton Lakeside Park Wilder

Dry Ridge Latonia Lakes Woodlawn
Edsewood

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY CURRENT AND PROPOSED ELECTRIC RATES &
SIGNIFICANT TEXT CHANGES

Residential Service - Rate RS
{Electric Tariff Sheet No, 30)

Current Rate Proposed Rate
Customer Charge per month $13.00 $16,00
Energy Charge per kWh
All kWh i'1.16'39¢ 13.0111¢

Service at Seeondary Distribution Yoltage-Rate DS
{Electric Tariff Sheet Nog. 40}

Current Rate Proposed Rate

Customer Charge per month

Single Phase Service $15.00 $15.00

Three Phase Service $30.00 $30.00
Demand Charge per kW

Fizst 15 kW $0.00 $0.00

Additional kilowatts $10.68 $12.36
Energy Charge per kWh

First 6,000 kWh 11.4788¢ 13.2874¢

Next 300 kWh/kW 7.4619¢ 8.6376¢

Additional kWh 6.3056¢ 7.2989¢
Non-Church Cap Rate per kWh 30.7297¢ 35.5714¢

Church Cap Rate per kWh 18.8632¢ 21.83806¢
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Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Distribution Voltage-Rate DT
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 41)

Current Rate Proposed Rate
, Summer  Winter Summer Winter

Custamer Charge per month

‘Bingle Phase Service $63.50 $63.50 $64.00 864.00

Three Phase Service $127.00 $127.00 $128.00 $128.00

Primary Voltage Service $138.00  $138.00 $160.00 $160.00
Demiand Charge per kW

On Peak kW $14.7] 313.92 §10.73 515.83

Off Peak kW $1.32 £1.32 $1.50 $1.50

Distribution kW $6.07 $6.07 $7.77 $7.77
Energy Charge per kWh. ,

On Peak kWh 5.6747¢  5.4640¢ 6.4528¢ 6.2133¢

Off Peak kWh 4.8348¢ 4.8348¢ 5.4976¢ 5.4976¢
Metering per kW

First 1,000 kW On Peak (30.75) (30.75) (%0.85) ($0.85)

Additional kW On Peak (50.58) (50.58) (30.66) ($0.66)

Current Demand:
The Distribution billing demand shall be the kilowaits derived from the Company's demand meter for the
fifteen minute periad of greatest use in the rating period adjusted for power factor as provided herein,

Proposed Demand:

The Distribution billing demand shall be the kilowatts derived from the Company's demand meter for the
fifteen minute period of greatest use in the rating period adjusted for power factor as provided herein. On-
peak, Off-peak, and distribution demand valies are subject to applicable minimum requirements as
established in a service agreement between the Customer and the Company as described below under
Terms and Conditions,

Proposed Addition to Terms and Conditiens:

Customers seeking service of 20 MW or greater at one or more aggregated premises, or whose demand is
reasonably expected to grow to this level, and require significant production and/or transmission
investnients by the Company for the provision of service may be required ta provide the Company
appropriate financial and/or performance and credit assurance. A minimum demand provision equal to
75% of the customer specified load requirement and credit requirements will be specified in a required
service agreement between the Customer and the Company. The service agreement is subject to
Commission approvil.

Optional Rate for Electric Space Heating-Ratc EH
{Electric Tarilf Sheet Ng. 42}

Current Rate Proposed Rate
Winter Period
Customer Charge per month
Single Phase Service $15.00: $15.00
Three Phase Service $30.00 330.00
Primary Voltage Service $117.00 $120.00

Energy Charge per KWh
Al KWh 9.0636¢ 10.4834¢



KyPSC Case Neo. 2024-00354
FR 16(1)(b)(5) Attachment - Exhibit A
Page 3 of 17

Seasonal Sports Service-Rate SP
(Electric Tariff Sheet No. 43}

Current Proposed Rate
Rate
Customer Charge per month $15.00 $15.00
Energy Charge per kWh 14.4519¢ 16.7645¢

QOuptional Unmetered General Service Rate.
For Smal Fixed Loads — Rate GS-FL
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 44}

Current Rate Proposed Rate
For loads based on a range of 540
to 720 hours use per moath of the
rated capacity of the connected

equipment (per kKWh)

11.5594¢ 13.3002¢

Far loads of less than 540 hours
use per month of the rated
capacity of the connected
equipment (per kWh
Minimn per month

13.1566¢ 15.1636¢

$3.79 $4.37

Service at Primary Distribution Voltage Applicabilicy-Rate DP.
(Electric Tariff Sheet No. 45}

Current Rate Proposed Rate

Customer Charge per month

Primary Voltage Service $117.00 $120.00
Demand Charge per kW

AlLkW $9.50 $10.13
Enesgy Charge per kWh

First 300 kWh/kW 7.1562¢ 7.6294¢

Additional kWh 6.2068¢ 6.6112¢
Maximum monthly rate per kKWh 28.9184¢ 30.8166¢

(excluding customer charge and
all applicable riders}

Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Transmission Voltage-Rate TT

{Electric Tariff Sheet No, 51)

Current Rate

Proposed Rate

Summer  Winter Summer Winter
Customer Charge per month ~ $500.00  $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
Demand Charge per kW
On Peak kW $9.41 $7.72 $10.23 $8.39
Off Peak kW $1.43 5143 5155 3155
Energy Charge per kWh
On Peak kWh 6.7652¢  6.5057¢ 7.3558¢ 7.0736¢
Off Peak kWh 5.7296¢  5.729%6¢ 6.2297¢ 6.2297¢
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Current Demand:
In no case shall the Off Peak billing demand be less than zero.

Proposed Demand:
In no case shall the Off Peak billing demand be [ess than zero. On-peak and Off-peak demand values are

subject to applicable minimum requirements as established in a service agreement between the Customer
and the Comnpany as described below under Terms and Conditions.

Proposed Addition to Terms and Conditions: ’
Customers seeking service of 20 MW or greater at one or more aggregated premises, or whose demand is

reasonably expected to grow o this level, and require significant produciion and/or transmission
investments by the Company for the provision of service may be required to provide the Company
appropriate financial and/or performance and credit assurance. A minimum demand provision equal to
75% of the customer specified load requirement and credit requirements will be specified in a required
service agreemént between the Custorner and the Company. The service agreement is subject to
Commission approval.

Rider GSS — Generation Support Service
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 58)

Current Rate Proposed Rate
Administrative.Charge per month
(plus the appropriate Customer $30.00 $50.00
Charge)
Monthly Trangmission and Distribution Reservation Charge (per kW)
Rate DS Secondary Distribution 36.209222 310.036170
Rate DT Distribution Service $7.855088 $13.808205
Rate DP Primary Distribution $8.173019 $7.042203
Rate TT Transmission Service $3.267552 $5.243274
Street Lighting Service-Rate SL,
{Eleciric Tariff Sheet No. 60)
‘ Lamp Annual Current Proposed
Overhéad Distribution Area Watts  kW/Unit kWh Rate/Unit Rate/Unit
Standard Fixture (Cobra Head)
Mercury Vapor
7,000 lumen 175 0.193 803 $11.49 $13.13
7,000 lumen (Open Refractor) 175 0.205 853 $9.77 51k.16
10,000 lumen 250 0.275 1,144 $13.47 $15.39
21,000 lumen 400 0.430 1,789 §$18.27 $20.88
Metal Halide
14,000 lumen 175 0.193. 803 $11.49 $13.13
20,500 lumen 250 0.275 1,144 $13.47 $15.39
36,000 lumen 400 0.430 1,789 $i8.27 $20.88
Sedium Vapor ’
9,500 lumen 100 0.117 487 $12.34 ’S'I4.IO
9,500 lumen (Open Refracior) 100 0117 487 $9.38 510.72
16,000 fumen 150 0.171 711 $15.64 $15.59
22,000 lumen 200 0.228 948 $17.70 $20.22
27,500 lumen 250 0.275 948 $17.70 $20.22
50,000 lumen 400 0471 1,959 $24.43 $27.91

Decorative Fixtures
Sodium Vapor
9,500 lumen (Rectilinear) i00 0.117 487 $15.24 %1741
22,000 lumen (Rectilinear) 200 0.246 1.023 %1922 $21.96
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50,000 lumen (Rectilinear) 400 0.471 1,959 £26.01 §$29.72
50,000 lumen (Setback) 400 0471 1,959 $37.80 $43.19
Spans pfSecondarji Wiring (per month for each jincrement of 50 feet of $0.76 $0.87
secondary wiring beyond the first 150 feet from the pole) ‘ o
Lamp Annual Current  Proposed
Underground Distribution Area Watts  kW/Unit kWh Rate/Unit  Rate/LUnit
Standard Fixture (Cobra Head)
Mercury Vapor
7,000 lumen 175 0.210 874 $11.74 $13.41
7,000 lumen (Open Refractor) 175 0.205 853 $9.77 $11.16
10,000 lumen 250 0.292 1,215 $13.76 $15.72
21,000 lumen 400 0.460 1,914 318.80 $21.48
Metal Halide
14,000 lumen 175 0.210 874 $11.74 $13.41
20,500 lumen 250 0.292 1.215 $13.76 $15.72
36,000 lumen 400 0.460 1,914 $18.80 $21.4%
Sodium Vapar
9,500 jumen 100 0.117 487 $i2.34 $14.10
9,500 lumen {Open Refractor) 100 0.117 487 $9.51 51087
16,000 Jumen 150 0.171 711 $13.60 $15.54
22,000 lumen 200 0.228 948 $17.70 $20.22
27,500 lumen 250 0.318 1,323 $18.04 $20.61
50,000 lumen 400 0.471 1,959 $24.43 $27.91
Decorative Fixtures
Mercury Vapor
7,000 lumen (Town & Country) 175 0.205 853 Ji2.n $13.84
7,000 lumen (Holphane) 173 0.210 874 $15.01 §17.15
7.000 fumen (Gas Replica) 175 0.210 874 $33.30 $38.05
7,000 Iumen (Granville) 175 0.205 8353 $12.23 $13.97
7,000 lumen {Aspen) 175 0.210 874 $21.39 $24.44
Metal Halide
14,000 Jumen (Traditionaire) 175 0.205 833 $12.09 $13.81
14,000 Jumen (Granville Acom) 175 0.210 874 $21.39 $24.44
14,000 lumen (Gas Replica) 175 0.210 874 $33.42 $38.19
14,500 lumen (Gas Replica) 175 0.207 841 $33.41 538.17
Sedium- Vapar
9,500 lumen (Town & Country) 100 0.117 487 $16.97 $19.39
9,500 lumen (Holophane) 100 0.128 532 518.39 $21.01
9,500 lumen (Rectiliinear) 100 0.117 487 $13.96 $15.95
9,500 [uinen (Gas Replica) 100 0.128 532 $35.23 $40.25
9,500 lumen (Aspen) 100 0.128 532 $21.34 $24.38
9,500 lumen (Traditionaire) 100 0117 487 $16.97 $19.39
9,500 lumen (Granville Acorn) 100 0.128 532 $21.34 $24.38
22,000 fumen (Re«tilinear) 200 0.246 1,023 $19.32 $22.08
50,000 lumen (Rectilinear) 400 0.471 1,959 $26.10 $29.82
50,000 lumen (Setback) 400 0.471 1.959 $37.80 £43.19
Current Proposed
Pole Charges Pole Tvpe Rate/Pole Rate/Pole
Wood
17 foat (Wood laminated) W17 $6.25 $7.14
30 foot W30 $6.17 $7.05
35 foot W35 $6.25 $7.14
40 foat w40 $7.48 $8.55
Aluminum

12 foot (decorative) Al2 $16.98 $19.40
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28 foot A28 $9.84 $11.24
28 foot (heavy duly) A28H $9.95 $11.37
30 foot (anchor base) A30 519.66 $22.46
Fiberglass
17 foot F17 $6.25 $7.14
12 foot (decorative) Fi2 $18.26 $20.86
30 foot (bronze) F30 3$11.38 $13.57
35 foot {(bronze) F35 $12.21 $13.95
Steel
27 foat (11 gauge) S27 $156.05 51834
27 foot (3 gauge) S27H $23.69 $27.07
Spansof Secondary Wiring (per month for each increment
of 25 feet of secondary wiring beyond the first 25 feet from g1.10 $1.26
the paole

Traflic Lighting Service -Rate TL
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 61)

Current Rate  Propased Rate
Where the Company supplies energy only (per kWh} 6.7222¢ 7.6809¢

Unmetered Quidoor Lighting Electric Service-Rate UOLS
{Electric Tariif Sheet No. 62)

Carrent Rate Proposed Rate
Energy Charge per kWh
AL kWh 6.6467¢ 7.39406¢

Proposed Addition to Applicability:
This rate schedule is no longer available after June 30, 2025 to new participation of Company-owned

equipment under Rate OL-E. Existing Company-owned systenis under Rate OL-E currently being
provided service under this tariff schedule may continue being provided service under this tariff schedule
until the Company-owned system under Rate OL-E is no longer provided under Rate OL-E.

Ouidoor Lighting Equipment Instaliation— Ratc OL-F

(Electric Tariff Sheet No. 63}

Proposed Addition to Applicabiliiy: ;
‘This rate schedule is no longer available after. June 30, 2025. Customers currently being provided service

under this rate schedute can continue being provided service under this rate schedule forthe remaining
useful life of the facilities, or when this rate schedule terminates, whichever occurs first. This rate
schedule will tetminate on June 38, 2045,

Current Contract for Scrvice:
‘The monthly Maintenance Charge does not cover replacement of the fixture upon failure,

Proposed Contract for Service:
See General Conditions bélow.

Proposed Addition of General Conditions:
When a Company owned street Tighting unit and/or pole reaches the-end of {ife or becomes obsolete and

parts cannot be reasonably obiained, the Company shali replace lighting unit and/or pole wiih an available
similar LED lighting unit and/or pole and the Customer shall commience being billed on Rate LED for the
available simifar lighting unit and/or polé rate and will enteiinto a new lighting agreement within 90 days.
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The terms of service of Rate LED shall commence upon lghting unit and/or pole installation. If within 90
days of replacement the Customer does not enter into a new agreement, the service may be terminated,
LED OQutdogr Lighting Electric Service- Rate LED
{Electric Tariff Shcet No, §4)
Current Rate I'roposed Rate
Energy Charge per kWh
AllkWh ' 6.9217¢ 7.9088¢

Rates (Per Unit Per Month)

Eixtures Initini ‘Lamp Monthiy Current Charge Proposed Charge
Description Lumens Waitage EWh Fixmre Maint, Tixture Naind,

S0W Neighborhoaod 5,000 50 17 $4.15  $290 $4.74 $3.31
50W Neighborhood with Lens 5,000 50 17 $4.20  $2.90  $480  $3.31
SOW Standard LED-BLACK 4,521 50 17 $3.84 %290 8439  33.31
70W Standard LED-BLAGK, 6,261 70 24 $422  £2.90 S4.82  $3.31
1 1OW Standard LED-BLACK. 9,336 110 38 $4.77 %290 5545 $3.31
150W Standard LED-BLACK 12,642 150 52 $4.83  $2.90 $552  $3.31
230W Stgndard LED-BLACK 18,642 220 76 $6.31  $3.54  $7.21  S4.04
280W Standard LED-BLACK 24,191 280 97 $6.36  $3.54  $727  $4.04
50W Acorn LED-BLACK 5,147 50 17 SIL.71 $290 $1338  3$3.31
SOW Deluxe Acom LED-BLACK 5,147 50 17 $13.05 5290 $1491 8331
70W LED Open Deluxe Acorn 6,500 70 24 $13.44 5290 S$1536  §$3.31
SOW Traditional LED-BLACK 3,303 50 17 $631 §290 $7.21 5331
50W Open Fraditional LED-BLACK 3,230 50 17 $6.56 5290 $7.50  $3.31
S0W Mini Bell LED-BLACK 4,500 50 17 $12.01  32.30 $13.72  53.31
SOW Enerprise LED:BLACK 3,880 50 17 $11.53  $2.90 $13.17  $3.31
70W Saritbe! LED-BLACK 5,508 70 24 $14.66  $2.90 1675  $3.31
150% Sanibel 12,500 150 52 $15.28 $290 %1746 $3.31
150% LED Teardrop 12,500 150 52 $18.36 §2.90 $2098 5331
50W LED Teardrop Pedestrion 4,500 50 17 $I15.01 %290 $17.15  $3.31
220W LED Shoebox 18,500 220 76 $11.39 §$3.54  $13.01 $4.04
420W LED Shoebax 39,078 420 146 $16.92 $3.54 $1933 54.04
530W LED Shoebox 57,000 330 184. $19.49 $3.54 §222 $4.04
F30W Clermont LED 12,500 150 52 2004 52900 $22.90 $3.31
130W Flood LED 14,715 130 45 $7.20 5290 $8.23  §3.5t
260W Flood LED 32,779 260 920 311.24 33‘.54 $12.84 $4.04
50W Monticello LED 4,157 50 17 $1349 3250 $1541  $3.31
50W Mitchell Finial 5,678 30 7 $12.85 $2.90 %1468 $3.31
50w Mitchzli Ribs, Bands, and Medaliions LED 5.678 30 17 S$14.04 $2.9¢ 51604 $3.3)
50W Miiche!l Top Hat LED 5,678 30 17 51285 8290 $]4.68 $3.31
50W Mitchell Top Hat with Ribs; Bands, & Medallions LED 5,678 50 17 $1404 $2.90 §16.04 $3.31
50W Open Monticella LED 4,157 30 17 $13.44 $2.90 §i5.3¢ $3.3 I
150W LED Shoebox 19,000 150 52 $10,48 $2.90 511.97 $3.31
50W Sanibel LED 6,000 50 17 $13.90 $2.90 51588 §3.31
40W Acom No Finial LED 5,000 40 i4 S1120 5$2.90 .%12.80 $3.31
50W Ocala Acorn LED 6,382 50 17 $6.71 $2.90 $7.67 5331
S0W Deluxe Traditional LED 5,057 30 17 $12.82 %290 $14.65 $3.31
30W Town & Country LED 3,000 30 10 $535 5290 %ol $3.31
30W Open Town & Country LED 3,000 30 i0 $5.09 3290 §5.82 3313
130W Enterprise LED ' 16,500 150 52 $11.45 $2.90 $13.08 $3.31
220W Enterprise LED 24,000 220 76 411,78 3.54 51346 5404
50W Clermont LED 6,300 50 17 518.6% 32.90 $21.34 5331
30W Gaslight Replica LED 3,107 30 10 $2130 52.90 52434 $331
50W Cobra LED 5,500 50 17 $4.17 5290 $4.76  $3.31
70W- Cobra LED 8,600 70 24 3433  $290 3195 3331

30W Granville Acorn LED 4,100 30 10 N/A N/A O B1L75 0 B33



30W Style B Bollard LED

30W Style C Bollard LED

30W Style D Bollard LED

30W Style E Bollard LED

40W Colonial Bollard LED

40W Washingtor Bollard LED

26W Holiday Riser Receptacle LED

26W Holiday Bracket Top Receptacle LED

26W Heliday Festoon Receptacie LED

26W Holiday Post Top Receptacle LED

26W Holiday Post Top with Adapter Receptacle LED
26W Dual Post Top Receptacie LED.

26W Dual Post Top with Adapter Receptacle LED
26W Dual Bracket Top Receptacie LED

50W Senoia LED

50W Halo LED

30W Standard LED

40W Standard LED

30W Gray Open Bottom LED

Poles

Description
Styie A 12 FrLong Anchor-Base Top Tenon-Aluminum
Style A 15 Ft Long Direct Buried Top Tenen Alwninum
Style A 15 Fu1Long Anchor Base Top Tenon Aluminuim
Style A 18 Ft Long Direct Buried Top Tehon Aluminum
Stvle A {7 Ft Long Anchdr Base Top Tenon Aluminum
Style A 25 Ft Long Direct Duricd Top Tenon Aluminum
Style A-22 Ft Long Anchor Base Top Tenon-Aluminuin
Style A 30 Ft Long Direct Buried Top Tenon Aluminum
Style A 27 Fi Long Ancher Base Top Tenon Aluminum
Style A 35 Fi Long Direct Buried Top Tenon Alunsisum
Style A 32 Fi Long Anchor Base Top Tenon Alaminin-
Styie A 41 Ft Lang Direct Butied Top Tenon Aluminum
Style B 12 Ft Long Anchior Base Post Top Aluminum
Style C 12 Tt Long Anchor Base Post Top Ahumzinum
Style C 12 Fi Long Anchor Base Davit Stecl
Style C 14 1 Long Anchor Base Top Tenon Steel
Style C 21 Tt Long Anchor Base Davit Steel
Style'C 23 Fr Long Anchor Base Boston Harbor Steet
Style D 12 Ft Long Anchor Base Breakawny Aluminum
Style E 12 Ft Long Anchor Base Post Top Aluminum
Style'F 12 Ft Long Anchor Base Past Top Aluminum

Legacy Style 39 Ft Direet Buried Single or Twin Side Mount Alum Satin Finish

2,390
2,146
2.390
1,200
1,107
1,107
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
4,525
4,809
3,720
4,506
4,510

Legacy Sivle 27 Fi Long Anchor Base Side Mnt Alum Satin Finish Breakaway
Legncy Style 33 Ft Long Anchor Byse Side Mut Alum Satin Finish Breakaway

Legacy Style 37 Ft Lang Anchor Base Side Mount Aluntinuin Pole Satin Fiish

¥ Class 7 Waood Pole
35' Class 5 Wood Pole
40 Class 4 Wood Pole
45' Class 4 Wood Pole

15' Style A - Fluted - for Shroud - Afutninum Direct Buried Pole
20 Style A - Fluted - for Shroud - Aluminum Direct Puried Pole
15 Style A ~ Smooth - for Shroud - Alumsinun Direet Buried Poli
20" Style A - Smooth - for Shroud - Aluminum Direct Bueied Pole
21" Style A - Fluted - Direct Buried

30 Siﬂe A - Transformer Base - Anchur Base

30
30
30
30
40
40
26
26
26
26
26
26
26
26
50

50

~
2

40
30

N/A
N/A
N/A
NA
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/a
N/A
N/A

Current Charge

$5.54
58.69
$10.83
$8.90
$11.53
$11.75
514.57
$13.35
$19.48
$15.49
$19.09
$18.98
$10.61
$12.9¢
$15.64
$14.75
§32.96
$38.27
$12.32
$12.91
815.74
$20.92
$20.45
$21.38
$23.61
$6.48
$7.24
$8.21
$8.55
$10.05
$10.54
$8.69

$10.26

$14.37
$21.78
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N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
NA
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
/A
N/A
A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$15.31
31531
$15.31
$15.31
$19.48
$19.48
54.21
$4.96
55.85
$5.32
$5.91
$6.94
$7.53
$6.94
$15.68
$17.64
$3.17
$3.18
$3.006
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$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3,31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.34
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
$3.31
8331
$3.31

Proposed Charge

$10.67

$9.53

$12.37
$10.17
$13.20
$13.43

516.65

$15.25

$22.26

$17.70

$22.84
$21.69

$12.12
$14.75
$17.87
$16.85
$37.66
$43.73
$14.08
$14.75
$17.98
$25.90
$23.37
$24.43
$26.98
$7.40
$8.27
$9.38
$9.77
$11.48
$12.04
$9.93
$11.72
816.42
$24.89



35 Style A - Transformer Base - Anchor Base
19" Siyle A - Breakaway - Diteet Buried
24' Style A - Dreakaway - Direct Buried
27Swyle A - Breakaway-- Direct Buricd
32 Style A - Breakaway - Direct Buried
37 Style A - Breokawny - Direct Buried
42' Style A - Dreakaway - Direct Duried
17 Siyle B - Anchor Base

17 Style C - Post Top - Anchor Base

17 Btyle C - Davit ~ Anchor Dase

17 Style C - Boston Harbor - Anchior Base
25 Style D - Boston Hatbor - Anchor Base
50" Wood ~ Direct Buried

35" Waod ~ Direct Buried

18 Style C - Breskaway - Diréct Duried
17" Wood Laminated

12" Aluminum (decorative)
28" Aluminum

28" Aluminum (heavy duty)

307 Aluminum (anchor base)

17" Fiberglass

12" Fibergiass (decorative)

30° Fiberplass {bronze)

35’ Fiberplass (brenze)
27" Steel (11 gauge)
27’ Steel (3 gauge)

Shroud - Standard Style for anchor base poles.

Shroud - Style B Pole for smooth and. fluted poles.
Shroud ~ Style C Pole for smooth and Tluted poles
Shroud = Siyle D Pole for smooth and floted poies

Shroud - Style B ~ Asscmbly
Shroud - Style C ~ ASsembiy
Shroud-- Style ID - Assembly
Shroud - Style Standard - Assembly 67715
Shroud - Style Standard - Assembly 4"/18"

Pole Foundation

Deseription

Flush - Pre-fabricated - Style A Pole
Flush - Pre-fabricated - Style B Pole
Flush - Pre-fabricated - Style C Pole
Flush - Pre-fabricated - Style D Pole
Flush - Pre-fabricated - Style E Pole
Flush - Pre-fabricated - Style F Pole
Reveal - Pre-fabricated - Style A Pole
Reveal - Prefabricated. - Style B Pole
Reveal - Pre-fabricated - Style C Pole
Reveal - Pre-fabricated - Style D Pole
Reveal - Pre-fabricated - Style E Pole
Reveal - Pre-fabricated - Siyle F Pole
Screw-~in Foundation

Brackets

Description
14 inch bracket --wood pole - side mount

4 foot bracket - wood pole - side mount
6 foot bracket - wood pole - side mount

KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
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$24.53
$19.55
$20.69
$19.79
$20.26
$21.56
$22.29
$15.04
$16.22
$25.65
$25.02
$29.17
$10.64
$11.21
$22.18
$6.25
$16.98
$0.84
$9.95
$19.66
$6.25
$18.26
$11.88
$12.21
$16.05
$23.69
$2.71
$6.44
$8.05
$£9.93
$8.42
$9.89
$12.06
3471
$5.12

Current Charge

$13.30
$12.28
$13.17
$12.28
$12.28
$12.28
$18.73
$14.90
$15 46
$15.46
$15.46
$15.46
$7.96

Current Charge

$1.93

$2.16

$2.13
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$28.03
$22.34
$23.64
$22.61
$23.15
$24.63
$25.47
$17.18
§18.53
$29.31
'$28.50
$33.33
$12.16
$12.81
$25.34
$7.14
$19.40
$11.24
$11.37
$22.46
§7.14
$20.86
$13.57
$13,95
$18.34
$27.07
$3.10
$7.36
$9.20
$11.35
$9.62
$11.30
$13.78
$5.38
$5.85

Proposed Chayge
$15.20

$14.03
$15.05
$14.03
$14.03
$14.03
$21.40
$17.02
$17.66
$17.66
$17.66
$17.66
$9.10

Proposed Charge
$2.21
$2.47
$2.43
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8 foot bracket - wooed pole - side mount $2.89 $3.30
10 foot bracket - wood pote ~ side mount $4.77 $5.45
12 foot bracket - wood pole - side mount $4.34 £4.96
15 foot bracket - wood pole - side mount $5.07 £5.79
4 foot bracket - metal pole - side mount $5.14 $5.87
0 foot bracket - metal pole - side mount $5.24 $5.95
8 foot bracket - mefal pole - side mount. $6.47 $7.39
10 foot bracket - metal pole - side mount $6.82 $7.79
12 foot bracket - metal pole - side mount $6.23 $7.12
15 foot bracket - metal pole - side mount $7.44 $8.50
18 inch bracket - metal pole - double Flood Mount ~ tep mount $2.07 $2.37
14 inch bracket - metal pole - single mount - fop tenon $2.19 $2.50
14 inch bracket - metal pole - double mount - top tenon $2.37 $2.71
14 inch bracket - metal pole - triple mount - top fenon 52,52 $2.88
14 inch bracKet - metal pole - quad mount - top tenon $2.63 $3.01
6 foot ~'metal pole - single - top tenon $4.87 $5.56
6 foot - metal pole:- double - top tenon $6.17 $7.05
4 foot - Boston Harbor - top tenon $7.06 £8.07
6 foot - Boston Harbor - top tenon $7.43 $8.49
12 foot - Boston Harbor Style C pole double mount - top ténon 512.71 $14.52
4 foot - Davil arm - top tenon $6.44 $7.36
18 inch - Cobrahead fixture for wood pole $1.82 $2.08
18 inch - Flood light for wood pole. $2.01 $2.30
18" Metal - Fiood - Bulthorn - Top Tenon $2.48 $2.85
4' Transmission - Top Tenon $9.12 $10.42
10* Transmission ~ Top Tenon 31051 $12.01
5" Transmission - Top Tenon $11.56 $i3.21
18" Transmission - Flood - Top Tenon $4.86 $5.55
3' Shepherds Crook - Singfe - Top Tenon $4.61 . %527
3"Shepherds Crook w/ Scroll - Single - Top Tenon $5.11 $5.84
3* Shepherds Crook - Denble - Top Tenon $6.52 $7.435
3' Shepherds Crook w/ Scroll - Double - Top Tenon $7.33 $8.38
3* Shepherds Crook wf Scroll & Festoon - Single - Top Tenon $5.35 $6.11
3" Shepherds Crook w/ Scroll - Wood - Top Tenon $6.38 $7.29
17" Masterpiece - Top Tenon - Double Post Mount - Top Tenon $5.09 $5.82
Wiring Equipment

Description Current Charge Proposed Charge
Secondary Pedestal (cost per unit) $2.47 $2.82
Handhole (cost per unit} 33.59 §4.04
Pullbox $8.08 $10.26
6AL DUPLEX and Trench (cost per foot) $1.12 $1.28
6AL DUPLEX and Trench with conduit {cost per foot) $1.30 $1.49
6AL DUPLEX with existing conduit (cost per foot) $0.82 $0.94
6AL DUPLEX and Bore with conduit (cost per foot) 52.79 $3.19
6AL DUPLEX OH wire (cost per foot} $2.62 $2.99
Sheilds

Description Current Charge Proposed Charge
Standard N/A $1.83
Decorative N/A $1.71
Additicnal Facilities Charge 0.8292% 0.8642%

Current Wiring Equipment Description:
6AL DUPLEX and Trench (cost per foot)

6AL DUPLEX and Trench with conduit (cost per foot)
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6AL DUPLEX with existing conduit (cost pér foof)
6AL DUPLEX and Bore with conduit {cost per foot)
6AL DUPLEX OH wire (cost per foot)

Proposed Wiring Equipment Description;
6AL DUPLEX and Trench (cost per 10 feet)

6AL DUPLEX and Trench with conduit (cost per 10 feet)
6AL DUPLEX with existing conduit (cost per 10 feet)
6AL DUPLEX and Bore with-conduit {cost per 10 feet)
6AL DUPLEX OH wire (cost per 10 feet)

Current Terms of Service:

13. For available LEDs, the customer may opt to make an initial, one-time payment of 50% of the installed
cost of fixtures rated greater than 200 Watts and poles other than standard wood poles, to reduce the
Company’s installed cost, therefore reducing their monthly rentat rates for such fixtures and poles. If a
customer-chooses this option, the monthly fixture and/or pole charge shall be computed as the reduced
installed cost times the corresponding monthly percentage in 2.1.(a) and/or 2,11 above.

Proposed Terms of Service;

13, The customer may optto make an initial, upfront one-time payment of 50% of the installed cost of the
equipment in the lighting system to reduce the Company’s installed cost, therefore reducing the Customer®s
ongoing monthiy equipment charge by 50% of the current tariff price over the fixed term for the life of the
equipment.

14,  Outage credits do not apply to Rate LED.

15. When a Company owned street lighting unit reaches the end of life or becomes obsolete and parts
cannof be reasonably obtained, the Company shall replace lighiing unit with an available similar lighting unit
on Rate LLED and the Customer shalf coinmence being billed for the available similar lighting unit and will
enter into a new lighting agreement within 90 days. The termis of service of Rate LED shall commence upon
lighting unit installation. If within 90 days of replacement the Customer does not enter-into a new agreement,
the service may be terminated.

Stregt Lighting Service for Non-Standard Units -Rate NSU
{Electric Tariff Sheef No. 66)

Lamp LW/ Annual Cuarrent  Proposed

Company Qwned Watts Unit  kW/unit Rate/Unit Rate/Unit
Boulevard units served underground
a. 2,500 lumen Incandescent — Series 148  0.148 616 $14.51 $16.58
b. 2,500 tumen Incandéscent — Muliiple 189  0.189 786 $11.56 $§13.21

Hoiphane Decorative Fixture on 17 foot fiberglass

pole seirved underground with direct buried cable
a. 10,000 lumen Mercury Vapor 250 0292 1215 $26.51 $30.29

Each increment of 23 feet of secondary wiring beyond the. first 25 feet from the

pole base (added to Rate/unit charge) 51.10 $1.26
Street Light units served overhead distribution
a. 2,500 lumen Incandescent 180 0.i89 786 $11.46 £13.09
b. 2,300 fumen Mercury Vapor 100 0.109 453 $10.58 §12.09
c. 21,000 lumen Mercury Yapor 400  0.460 1,914 $17.87 520.42

Customer Owned

Steel boulevard units served underground with

limited maintenance by Company
a. 2,500 lumen Incandescent - Series 148 0.148 616 58.79 $10.04
b. 2,500 fumen Incandescent ~ Multiple 189 0.189 786 $11.18 $12.77
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Street Lighting Service-Customer Owned - Rate SC
(Electric Tariff Sheet No. 68)

Base Rate Lamp Anpual  Current  Proposed
Fixture Description Watts kW/Unit  kWh  Rate/Unit Rate/Unit
Stapdard Fixture (Cobra Head)
Mercury Vapor .
7,000 lumen 175 0.193 803 $6.80 $1.77
10,000 lumer 250 0275 1,144 $8.80 $10.05
21,000 lumen 400 0.430 1,789 $12.41 $14.18
Metal Halide
14,000 Jumen 175 0.193 803 $6:80 $7.77
20,500 lumen 250 0.275 1,144 $8.80 $10.05
36,000 lumen 400 0.430 1.789 $12.41 $14.18
Sodium Vapor
9,500 tumen 100 0.117 487 $7.67 $8.76
16,000 lumen 150 0.171 711 $R.73 $9.97
22,000 lumen 200 0.228 948 $%.77 $1L.16
27,500 fumen 250 0228 948  $9.77 $11.16
50,000 lumen. 400 0.471 1,959 $13.96 $15.95
Decorative Fixture
‘Mercury Vapor
7,000 lumen (Holophane) 175 0.210 874 $8.49 $9.70
7,000 lumen (Town & Country) 175 0.205 853 $8.40 $9.60
7,000 lumen (Gas Replica) 175 0210 874 $8.49 $9.70
7,000 lumen (Aspen) 175 0.210 874 $8.49 $9.70
Metal Halide
14,000 lumen (Traditionaire) 175 0,205 853 $8.40 $9.60
14,000 lumen {Granville Acom) 175 0210 874 $8.56 $9.78
14,000 lumen (Gas Replica) 175 0.210 374 $8.56 $9.78
Sodium Vapor
9,500 lumen (Town & Country) 100 0.{17 487  §$7.56 $8.64
9,500 lumen (Traditionaire) 1on 0.117 487 $7.56 $8.64
9,500 lumen (Granville Acom) 100 0.128 532 $7.91 $9.04
9,500 lumen (Rectilinear) 100 0.117 487 $7.56 58.64
9,500 lumen (Aspen} 100 0.128 532 $7.91 $9.04
9,500 fumen (Holophane) 100 0,128 532 $7.91 $9.04
9,500 lumen ((Gas Replica) 100 0.128 532 $7.91 $9.04
22,000 lumen (Rectilinear) | 200 0.246 1,023 $10.36 $11.84
50,000 lumen (Rectilinear) 400 0471 1,959 $14.38 $16.43
Pole Description Pole Type Current Rate/Pole Proposed Rate/Pole
Wood
30 foot W30 $a.17 $7.05
35 foot w3s $6.25 $7.14
40 foot W40 $748 $8.55
Custamer Qwned and Maintained Units Current  Proposed

per kWh per kWh
The monthly kilowatt-hour usage will be mutually agreed upon between the

Company and the customer. Where the average monthly usage is less than 150
kWh per point of delivery, the customer shall pay the Company, in addition to the
monthly charge, the cost of providing electric service on the basis of time and
material plus overhead charges. An estimate of the cost will be submitted for
approval before work is carried out.

6.6038¢  7.5456¢
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Street-lighting Service-Overhead Equivalent-Rate SE
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 69}
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Lamp Annual Current Proposed
Fixture Description Watt  kW/Unit _kWh Rate/Unit Rate/Unit
Digcorative Fixtures
Mercury Vapor
7,000 lumen (Town & Country) 175 0.205 833 %11.78 $13.46
7,000 lumen (Holophane) 175 0.210 874 $11.83 81352
7,000 tumen (Gas Replica) 175 0.210 874 $11.83 $13.52
7,000 lumen {Aspen) 175 0.210 874 $11.83 $13.52
Metal Halide
14,000 lumen (Traditionaire) 175 0.205 853 %$11.78 $13.46
14,000 lumen (Granville Acorn) 175, 0.210 874 311.83 §13.52
14,000 lumen (Gas Replica) 175 0.210 874 $11.83 $13.52
Sodium Vapor ’
9,500 fumen (Town & Country) 100 0117 487 $12.41 514.18
9,500 lumen {Holophane) 160 0.128 532 $12.63 $14.43
9,500 Jumen (Rectitinear) 100 0.117 487 $12.41 $14.18
9.500 lumen (Gas Replica) 100 0.128 532 $12.62 $14.42
9,560 Jumen (Aspen) 100 0.128 532 $12.62 $14.42
9,500 lumen (Traditionaire) 100 0,117 487 F12.4 $14.18
9,500 lumen (Granville Acorn) 100 0.128 532 312.62 $14.42
22,000 iumen (Rectilinear) 200 0.246 1,023 $18.14 $20.73
50,000 lumen (Rectilingar) 400 0471 1,959 $24.58 $28.09
50,000 lumen {Setback) 400 0.47% 1,959 $24.58 $28.09

Deémand Side Management Cost Recovery Rider
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 75)

Current Applicability:
Applicable to service rendered under the provisions of Rates RS and RS-TOU-CPP (residential ¢lass), DS,
DP, DT, EH, GS-FL, SP, and TT (non-residential class).

Proposed Applicability: ;
Applicable to service rendered under the provisions of Rate RS (residential elass), DS, DP, DT, EH, GS-

FL, SP, and TT (non-residential class).

Fuel Adjustment Clause Rider
{Flectric Tariff Sheet No, 80}

Current Availability of Service Item {e):
(e) The native portion of fuel-related costs charged to the Company by PIM Interconnection LLC
includes those costs identified in the following Billing Line Ttems, as. may be-amended from time
to time by PIM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line Ttems 1210, 2210, 1215, 1218,2217, 2218,
1230, 1250,1260, 2260, 1370, 2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420, 1430, 1478, 1340, 2340,
1460, 1350, 2350, 1360, 2360, 1470, 1377, 2377, 1480, 1378, 2378, 1490, 1500, 2420, 2220,
1200, 1205, 1220, 1225, 2500, 2510, 1930, 2211, 2215, 2415 and 2930. ’

The Company proposes to revise the list of PIM Intercannection LLC Billing Line Iems as follows.
Proposed Availability of Service 1tem (g):
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fe) The native portion of TUe1~related ‘costs charged to the Company by PIM Interconnection LLC
includes thase costs identified in the following Billing Line items, as may be amended from fime
to time by PIM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line Items 1210, 1215, 1216, 121§, 2217, 2218,
1230, 1250, 1260, 2260, 1370, 2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420, 1430, 1478, 1340, 2340,
1460, 1350, 2350, 1360, 2360, 2366, 1470, 1377, 2377, 1480, 1378, 2378, 1490, 1300, 2420,
2220, 1200, 1205, 1220, 1225, 2500, 2510, 1930, 2211, 2215, 2415, 2930, 1980, 2980 and 1999.

Prefit Sharing Mechanism Rider
{Electric Tariff Sheet No. 8§2)

Current Profit Sharing Rider Factors: ,
On.a quarterly basis, the applicable energy charges for electric service shall be increased or decreased to
the nearest $0.000001 per kWh to reflect the sharing of net proceeds as outlined in the formula below,

Rider PSM Factor = ({{0SS + NF + CAP+REC) x 0.90)+ R}/ S
where:
088= Net proceeds from off-system power sales.

Inclades the non-native portion of fuel-related casts charged to the Company by
PIM Interconnection LLC including but nat limited to those costs identified in the
following Billing Line Items, as may be amended from timé to time by PIM
Interconnection LLC: Billing Line Tterns 1210, 2210, 1215, 1218, 2217, 2218,
1230, 1250, 1260, 2260, 1_370§ 2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420, 1430, 1478,
1340, 2340, 1460, 1350, 2350, 1360, 2360, 1470, 1377, 2377, 1480, 1378, 2378,
1490, 1500, 2420, 2220, 1200, 1205, 1220, 1225, 2500, 2510, 1930, 2211, 2215,
2415 and 2930.

NF = Net proceeds front non-fuel related Regional Transmission Organization charges
and credits not recovered via nther mechanisms.

Includes non-fuel related casts charged to the Company by PJM Interconnettion
LLC including but not limited to those costs identified in the following Billing.
Line Items, as may amended from time to time by PJM Imterconnection LLC:
Billing Line Jtems 1240, 2240, 1241, 2241, 1242, 1243, 1245, 2245, 1330, 2330,
1362,2362, 1472, 1365, 2365, 1475, 1371, 2371, 1376, 2376, 1380 and 2380,

CAP= Net proceeds fram: PIM charges and credits as provided for in the Commission’s
Order in Case No. 2014-00207, dated December 4, 2014; capacity sales; capacity
purchases; capacity performance credits; and capacity performance assessments,

REC= Net proceeds from the sales of renewable energy credits

R = Reconciliation of prior period Rider PSM actual revenue to amount calculated for
the periad.
8§ = Current period sales in kWh as used in the Rider FAC calculation.

The Company propases to revise the list of PIM Interconnection LLC Billing Line ltems and the formula to
calculate the Rider PSM Factor,

Proposed Profit Sharing Rider Factors:

On a quarterly basis, the applicable energy charges for electric service shall be increased or decreased to
the nearest $0.000001 per kWh to reflect the sharing of net proceeds as outlined in the formula below.

Rider PSM Factor = (((0SS + NF+ CAP + CPI + GS + REC) x 0.90) +R) /S
where:
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REC=
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Net proceeds from off-sy stem power sales.

Includes the non-native portion of fuel-related costs charged to the Company by PIM
Interconnection LLC including but not limited to those costs identified in the following
Billing Line ltems, as may be amended from time to time by PIM Interconnection LLC:
Billing Line Ttems 1210, 1215, 1216, 1218, 2217, 2218, 1230, 1250, 260, 2260, 1370,
2370, 1375, 2375, 1400, 1410, 1420, 1430, 1478, 1340, 2340, 1460, 1350, 2350, 1360,
2360, 2366, 1470, 1377, 2377, 1480, 1578, 2378, 1490, 1500, 2420, 2220, {200, 1205,
1220, 1225, 2500, 2510, 1930, 2211, 2215, 2415, 2930,1980, 2980 and 1999.

Net proceeds from non-fuel related Regional Transmissjon Orpanization charges and
credits not recovered via other mechanisms.

Includes non-fuel felated costs charged to the Company by PIM [nterconnection LLC
including but not limited to those costs identified in the following Billing Line Items, as
may amendéd trom time to time by PJM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line ltems 2240,
2241, 1242, 1243, 1245, 2245, 1246, 2246, 1330, 2330, 1361, 2361, 2367, 1471, 1362,
2362, 2368, 1472, 1475, 1371, 2371, 1376, 2376, 1380, 2380, 1360, 2390, 1980, 2980,
and 1999,

Net proceeds from: PIM charges and credits as provided for in the Commission’s. Order
in Case No. 2017-00321, dated April 13, 2018, capacity sales; capacity purchases;
capacity performance credits; and capacity performance assessments.

Includes FRR capacity costs charged to the Company by PTM Intercannéction LLC
including but not limited to those costs identified in the following Biiling Line Items, as
may amended from time to time by PIM Interconnection LLC: Billing Line Items 1600,
2600, 1666, 2666, 1667, 2667, 1669, 2669, 1670, 2670, 1681, 2681, 1980, 2980, 1985,
and 1999,

Net proceeds of capacity performance insurance,

Net proceeds from the sale of surplus gas on the pipelines.

Net proceeds from the sales of renewable energy credits.

Reconciliation of prior period Rider PSM actual revenue to amount calculated for the
period.

‘Current period sales in kWh as used in the Rider FAC calculation.

Charge for Reconnection of Service
{Electric Tarifl Shect No. 91}

Current Rate Proposed Rafe

Reconnections that can be accomplished rémately $5.60 $6.50
Reconnections that cannot be accomplished remotely 54.25 $5.80
Reconnections where service was disconnected at pole $18.00 $16.50
Afier hours reconnection charge $40.00 N/A

Distribution Pole Attachments - Rate DPA
{Electric Tariff Sheel No. 92)

Current Rate Proposed Rate

Two-user pole annual rental per foot $8.59 $7.50
Three-user pole annual rental per foot £7.26 $7.50
Conduit fee per linear foot $0.27 $0.67
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Real Time Pricing Program- Rate RTP
{Electric Tarilf Sheet No. 99}

Cnrrent Rate Proposed Rate
Energy Delivery Charge (Credit} per kWh from Customer Base Load
Secondary Service 2.0034¢ 3.3518¢
Primary Service 1.6479¢ 2.8504¢
Transmission Service 0.6915¢ 1.0568¢
Program Charge per billing period $183.00 $183.60

The foregoing rates reflect a proposed increase in electric revenues of approximately $70,008,476 or 14.69%
over current total electric revenues to Duke Enersy Kentucky. The estimated amount of increase per
customer clags is as follows:

Total Total
Increase Increase
(5) (%)

Rate RS - Residential Service: $33.271,203 162%
Rate DS - Service at Distribution Voltage $19,167.181 14.1%
Rate DT~ Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Distribution Valtage 515,314,005 14.1%
Rate EH — Optional Rate for Electric Space Heating $272,03% 13.9%
Rate SF — Seasonal Sports Service $7.566 14.2%
Rate GS-FL — General Service Rate for Small Fixed Loads $119,01¢1 14.2%
Rate DP ~ Service at Primary Distribution Volitage $53,265 5.9%
Rate TT - Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Transmission Voltage $1,240,683 8.0%
Rate SL. - Street Lighting Service $158,711 13.8%
Rate TIL — Traffic Lighting Service $13,791 13.1%
Rate UOLS — Unmetered Outdoor Lighting Electric Service §81,072 13.1%
Rate NSU ~ Street Lighting Service for Non-Standard Units $13,460 13.8%
Rate SC - Street Lighting Service - Customer. Qwned %861 13.1%
Rate SE — Street Lighting Service — Overhead Equivalent $35,981 13.8%
Rate LED — Street Lighting Service - LED Outdoor Lightirig $2.807  14.0%
Rate RTP —Experimental Real Time Pricing Pragram $60,394 9.8%
Triterdepartmental $4,994 14.9%
Special Contracts $135,535 13.7%
Reconnection Charges $8.3213 15.1%

Rate DPA ~ Pole and Line: Attachments $7.594 1.1%
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The average monthly bill for each customer class to which the proposed rates will apply will increase
approximately as follows:
Average Monthly Percent
kWh/Bill Increase Increase

%) {%5)
Rate RS Residential Service: 904 52147 16.1%
Rate DS - Service at Distribution Voltage 7.079 $168.98 14.2%
Rate DT - Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Distribution Voltage 611,498  $6,030.34 13.9%
Rate EH - Optional Rate for Electric Space Heating 19.031 $133.46 13.7%
Rate SP - Seasonal Sports Service 1,971 §3566 15.0%
Rate GS-FL - General Service Rate for Small Fixed Loads 537 51092 15.3%
Rate DP - Service at Primary Distribution Voltage 64,391 §1.597.25 6.0%
Rate TT - Time-of-Day Rate for Service at Transmission Yoltage 1.188.866  $8.442.80 8.1%
Rate SL - Street Lighting Service * 66 51,92 13.7%
Rate TL - Traffic Lighting Service 921 $8.8:4 13.1%
Rate UOLS — Unmetered Outdoor Lighting Electric Service 279 $2.64 13.0%
Rate NSU - Street Lighting Service for Non-Standard Units* 49 $1.67 13.9%
Rate SC - Street Lighting Service — Customer Owned * 44 $0.41 12.8%
Rate SE - Street Lighting Service — Overhead Equivalent * 59 $1.75 13.8%
Rate LED — Street Lighting Service - Led Outdoor Lighting * 18 §1.23 14.0%
Rate RTP — Experimental Real Time Pricing Program 275766 §1,233.48 15.9%
Interdepartmental N/A $416.17 14.9%
Reconnection Charge (per remote reconnection) N/A $0.90 16.1%
Recaonnection Charge {at meter per reconnection) N/A ($2.45)  -29.7%
Reconnection Charge (at pole per reconnection) N/A ($1.50) -8.3%
Rate DPA - Pole and Line Attachments (2-user attachment per foot) N/A (81.09y  -12.7%
Rate DPA — Pole and Line Artachments (3-user attachment per foot) N/A $0.24 3.3%
Rate DPA — Conduit Fee N/A $0.40  148.1%

*Far these lighting schedules, values represent average monthly kWh usage per fixture.

The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Duke Energy Kentucky; however, the
Kentucky Public Service Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from the proposed rates
contained in this notice. Such action may result in rates for consumers other than the rates in this notice.

Any corporation, association, body politic or person with a substantial interest in the matter may,
by written request within thirty {30) days after publication of this notice of the proposed rate changes, request
leave to intervene; intervention may be granted beyond the thirty {30) day period for good cause shown.
Such motion shall be submitted to the Kentucky Public Service Commission, P. O, Box 615, 211 Sower
Boulevard, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615, and shall set forth the grounds for the request including the
status and interest of the party. 1f the Commission does not receive a written request for intervention within
thirty (30) days of the initial publication the Commission may take final action on the application.

Intervenors may obtain ~nniac of the annlicatinn and other filings made by the Company by
requesting same through email a or by telephone at (513} 287-4366. A
copy of the application and other tnngs waue vy we Company 1> avarllable for public inspection through the
Commission’s website at http://psc.ky . gov, at the Commission’s office at 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort,
Kentucky. Monday through Friday. 8:00 am. To 4:30 p.m.. and at the following Company offices: 1262 Cox
Road, Erlanger, Kentucky 41018. Comments regarding the application may be submitted to the Public
Service Commission through its website, or by mail at the following Commission address.

For further information contact:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 1262 COX ROAD

P.O. BOX 613 ERLANGER, KENTUCKY 41018
211 SOWER BOULEVARD (513) 287-130606

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40602-0615
(502) 564-3940
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List of Newspapers in Duke Energy Kentucky Territory

Falmouth Outlook
Kentucky Enquirer
Gallatin County News
Grant County News
Link NKY



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(2)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(2}

Description of Filing Requir¢ment:

Notice of intent. A utility with gross annual revenues. greater than $5,000,000 shall notify the
commission in writing of its intent to ﬁlema rate application at least thirty (30) days, but not more
than sixty (60) days, prior to filing its application.

(a) The notice of intent shall state if the rate application will be supported by a
historical test period or a fully forecasted test period.

(by  Upon filing the notice of intent, an application may be made to the commission
for permission to use an abbreviated form of newspaper notice of proposed rate increases
provided the notice includes a coupon that may be used to obtain a copy from the applicant of the
full schedule of increases or rate changes.

(c) Upon filing the notice of intent with the commission, the applicant shall mail to
the Attorney General's Office of Rate Intervention a copy of the notice of intent or send by

electronic mail in a portable document format, to rateixitervention@,ag.ky,_gov.

Response:

See Duke Energy Kentucky’s response to Filing Requirement KRS 278.180 [Tab 1].

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(3)

807 KAR 3:001, SECTION 16(3)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Notice pgiven pursuant to Section 17 of this administrative regulation shall satisfy the

requirements of 807 KAR 5:051, Section 2.

Response:
Notice. given pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 17 satisfies the requitements of §07 KAR
5:051, Section 2. A copy of the customer notice is attached in response to Filing Requirement,

807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(1)(b)(5) [Tab 12].

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(6)(a)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(6)(a)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The financial data for the forecasted period shall be presented in the form of pro forma adjustments

to the base period.

Response:

See Schedules D-2.1 through D-2.15 located in Schedule Book..

Witness Responsible:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(6)(b)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(6)(b)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

Forecasted adjustments shall be limited to the twelve (12) months immediately following the

suspension period.

Response:
See Schedules D-2.16 through D-2.30 for adjustments to the forecasted period located in Schedule
Book. These adjustrents are limited to the twelve (12) months immediately following the

suspension period.

Witness Responsible:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter — Schedule D-2.16

Lisa D. Steinkuhl - Schedules D-2.17 thru D-2.23, D-2.25, D-2.27 thru D-2.30
Sharif S. Mitchell — Schedule D-2.24

Jacob S. Colley — Schedule D-2.26



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(6)(c)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(6)(c)

Description of Filing Requirement:

Capitalization and net investment rate base shall be based on a thirteen (13) month average for the

forecasted period.

Response:

Capitalization and Net Investment Rate Base for the Forecasted Period are based on a thirteen-

month average.

Witness Responsible:
Lisa D. Steinkuhl



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(6)(d)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(6)(d)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

After an application based on a forecasted test period is filed, there shall be no revisions to the
forecast, except for the correction of mathematical errors, unless the revisions reflect statutory or
regulatory enactments that could not, with reasonable diligence, have been included in the forecast
on the date it was filed. There shall be no revisions filed within thirty (30) days of a scheduled

hearing on the rate application.

Response:

The Company will comply with this requirement.

Witness Responsible:

Grady “Tnpp” S. Carpenter



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(6)(e)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(6)(e)

Description of Filing Requirement:
The commission may require the utility to prepare an alternative forecast based on a reasonable

number of changes in the variables, assumptions, and other factors used as the basis for the utility's

forecast.

Response:

The Company will prepare an alternative forecast if requested by the Commission.

Witness Responsible:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(6)()

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(6)(h)

Description of Filing Requirement:
‘The utility shall provide a reconciliation of the rate base and capital use to determine its revenue

requirements.

Response:

See attached.

Witness Responsible:

Lisa D. Steinkuhl
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DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, iNC.
CASE NO. 2024-00354

RECONCILIATION OF CAPITALIZATION AND RATE BASE
THIRTEEN MONTH AVERAGE BALANCE ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

Description

Capitalization Allocated to Electric Operations
Adjustments to Plant in Service

Assets per Books not inciuded in Rate Base:
Other Property and investments
CWIP
Cash
Other Current Assets
Other Requiatory Assels
Other Deferred Debils
Subtotat

Liabilities per Books Tiot inciuded in Rate Base;
Other Current liabilities

Other Non-current liabiliies
AROQ Liabilities
Deferred Credits

Subtotal

ltems Included in Rate Base:

Cash Working Capitai Formula
Depreciation adjustment not.included in capitalization
Capitalization / Rate Base Differefices

Subtotal

Total Variance

Electric Rate Base

-‘Source

Page2 of 3

Sch. B-2.2 & B-31

Schedule B-&
Sch. B4
Schedule B-8
Scheduie B-8
Schedule B-8
Schedule B-8

Schedule B-8
Schedule B-8
Schedule B-8
Schedule B-8

Sch.B-5
Sch. D-2.24

‘Scheduie B-1

KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(6)(f) Attachment

Page 1 of3

FR16(6)(f) Foracast Period
PAGE 1 OF 3

WITNESS RESFONSIBLE:
L. D. STEINKUHL

Amount:

1.453,712,477

{114,609,302)

(12,751,684}
(135,182,298)
(9,509,031}
(71,189,682)
(57,346,623)
37,107,187

(248,872,129}

92,127,737
24,058,156
56,149,620
14,125,051

186,460,563

4,507,797
6,398,497
{13,506, 364)

{2,600,070)
{179,920,938)

1,273,791,539
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DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

CASE NO. 2024-00354

RECONCILIATION OF CAPITALIZATION AND RATE BASE
THIRTEEN MONTH AVERAGE BALANCE ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

Description

Total Forecasted Period Capitalization

Less: Gas Nen-jurisdictional Rate Base
Electric Non-jurisdictional Rate Base
Non-jurisdictional Rate Base

Jurigdictional Capitalization

Electric Jurisdictional Rate Base Allocation %

Pius: Jurisdictional Electric ITC

Total Allocated Capitalization

Notes:

{1) Schedule J-1, page 2 of 2.
(2) Page 3 of 3.

(3} Schedule B-8, page 1.

@)
2)
2)

@)

FR 16(6)(f) Forecast Period
PAGE 2 OF 3

WITNESS RESPONSIBLE:
L. D. STEINKUHL

Capitalization

Total Electric

165,651
(4,593,952)
(31,881,050
2,227,517,296

65.031% 1,448,576,773

1453712477






DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(a)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)(a)

Description of Filing Requirement;

The written testimony of each witness the utility proposes to use to support its application, which
shall include testimony from the utility's chief officer in charge of Kentucky operations on the
existing programs to achieve improvements in efficiency and productivity, including an

explanation of the purpose of the program.

Response:
All testimony is provided under separate cover. Also, please see the Direct Testimony -of Amy B.
Spiller, Duke Energy Kentucky’s chief officer in charge of operatioms, for an overview

discussion of efficiency and productivity improvements.

Sponsoring Witness:

All witnesses



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(b)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)b)

Description of Filing Requirement:

The utility's most recent capital construction budget containing at minimum a.three (3) year

forecast of construction expenditures.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witnesses:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
Marc W. Ameld
William C. Luke



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354

FR 16(7)(b) Attachment
Page 1 0f1
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No. 2024-00354
Capital Expenditure Budget
Years 2024-2026
includes AFUDC
CWIP
Line Balance Projected Expenditures
No, Project ID/Description @ 12/31/23 2024 2025 2026
1 NORMAL RECURRING CONSTRUCTION 52,659,220 122,294,047 137,349,719 111,089,118
2
3 WD401206 - Woodsdale CT Unit 4 Major Inspection 0 13,993,908 0 0
4 WD501205 - Woodsdalé CT Unit 5 Major inspection 0 0 15,908,201 0
5 WD201206 - Woodsdale CT Unit 2 Major Inspection 0 0 514,812 15,368,144
6 East Bend Limestone Conversion 0 5,500,000 34,000,000 66,000,000
7 Woodsdale Solar Generation 0 0 1,756,708 14,308,931
8
9 TOTAL 52,659,220 141,787,955 189,527 439 206,786,193




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(c)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)(c)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

A complete deseription, which may be filed in written testimony form, of all factors used in
preparing the utility's forecast period. All econometric models, variables, assumptions, escalation
factors, contingency provisions, and changes in activity levels shall be quantified, explained, and

properly supported.

Response:

Attached is a copy of the Confidential Budget Guidelines for 2024 and a summary of the
assumptions that were used in developing the projected data in the base and forecasted fest
periods. Descriptions of the factors used in preparing the forecasted test period are also
incorporated in each witness’ pre-filed testimony.

All confidential information is being provided under seal pursuant to a Petition for Confidential

Treatment that is being filed sinultaneously with this Application.

Sponsoring Witness:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter



CONFIDENTIAL PROPRIETARY TRADE SECRET
FR 16(7)(c) CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENT

BEING FILED UNDER SEAL



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
: CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(d)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)(d)

Description of Filing Reguirement:

The utility’s annual and monthly budget for the twelve (12) months preceding the Filing Date,

the Base Period, and Forecasted Period.

Response:

Sce the attached for the Company’s official 2023, 2024 and 2025 operating budgets which
include the 12 months preceding the Filing Date (December 2023 - November 2024) and the
Base Period (March 2024 - February 2025). The requested annual budget for the 12 meonths of
the Forecasted Test Period is provided in Schedule C-1. The monthly revenue and monthly
O&M amounts are shown in Work Papers WPC-2d and WPC-2.1a, respectively. This data is
comprised of Duke Energy Kentucky’s 2024 annual budget and extended through June 2026 as

described in the testimony of Mr. Carpenter.

Sponsoring Witness: Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter













DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(e)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)e)

Description of Filing Requirement:
A statement of attestation signed by the utility’s chief officer in charge of Kentucky operations
which shall provide:

(1) that the forecast is reasonable, reliable, made in good faith and that all basic
assumptions used in the forecast have been identified and justified;

(2) that the forecast contains the same assumptions and methodologies as used in
the forecast prepared for use by management, or an identification and
explanation for any differences that exist; and

(3) that productivity and efficiency gains are included in the forecast.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Amy B. Spiller



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(e) Attachment
Page 1 of 1

AFFIDAVIT OF AMY B. SPILLER

STATE OF OHIO )
COUNTY OF HAMILTON ;
Now comes Amy B. Spiller, President of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc., and as required by
807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(7)e). hereby attests as follows:
. The forecast used in this rate application is reasonable. reliable, made in good {aith,
and that all basic assumptions used in the forecast have been identified and justified;
2. The forecast contains the same assumptions and methodologies as used in the forecast
prepared for use by management, or an identification and explanation for any
differences that exist. if applicable; and

3. Productivity and efficiency gains are included in the forecast.

Further affiant sayeth naught.

Sworn and subscribed before me by Amy B. Spiller on thi: ay of November 2024.

EMILIE SUNDERMAN
Motary Public
State of Chio

My Comm. Expires
July 8, 2027




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(f)(1) through (4)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7){(H)(1) through (4)

Description of Filing Requirement:

For each major construction project which constitutes five (5) percent or more of the annual
construction budget within the three (3) year forecast the following information shall be filed:

(1) The date the project was started or estimated starting date;

(2) The estimated completion date;

(3) The total estimated cost of construction by year exclusive and inclusive of

allowance for funds used during construction ("AFUDC") or interest during
construction credit; and,

(4) The most recent available total costs incurred exclusive and inclusive of
AFUDC or interest during construction credit.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness;

Grady “Tripp™ S. Carpenter
Marc W. Amold
William C. Luke



KyPSC Cusg Noc 202 400554
FR 16£75(N Attachment

Poge laf )
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.
Case No. 2024-00354
Major Canstruction Projects.
Constituting 5% cr More of Annuai Budaet
Achual.or Projected Actual Costs Actial Cosis:
Projectad Gompiation Estimated Cosis inchuding AFUDC . Eclimated Cosls Erxcluding AFLDE . To Date Ta Data,
Mo, Profect [D/Ceseriplion Sian Date Dalg 2024° 2035 2020 2024 2025 026 it AFUDC “excl AFUDE
1 WDM01206 - Waodsdale &7 Unit 4 Majar Inspociion a/1/2024 11/30/2024 13,593,908 ] B - 13,520,684 - - i} a
2 WD501205 - Woodsdale GT Unit 5 Major Inspectinn 1142025 10/31/2025 " 158,908,201 - - 15,821,335 . ] a
3 WD204205 - Woodsdale T Unit 2 Majer Inspectioh 54/2025 513172028 - 514,812 15,383,144 - 468,203 15,165,855 0 n
4 East Bend Limestone Conversion 72024 10172026 5,500,000 34,000,000 66 20,000 5,500,000 34,000,000 63,700,000 D a
5 Waodsdale Solar Generatan tiE2025 121142028 - 1,756,708 14,308,831 - 1,700,000 13,500,000 0 0



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(g)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)(g)

Description of Filing Requirement:

For all construction projects which constitute less than five (5) percent of the annual construction
budget within the three (3) year forecast, the utility shall file an aggregate of the information

requested in paragraph (f) 3 and 4 of this subsection.

Response:

See attached.

Sponsoring Witness:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter
Marc W. Arnold
William C. Luke



KyPSC Case No, 202400354

FR 16{T{g} Attachownt
Page t nf |
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.
Cage No. 2024-00354
Major Construction Frojects
Congtituting Less than §% of Annual Budget

Aguat or Projectad ) Actual Casts Actuel Costs

Ling’ Projected Gompletion Estimated Costs indluding AFUDC: Estimated Costs Excluding AFUDC To Date To Data
No. Frojeci i0/Deecription Slart Date Date 2024 2025 2025 2024 2025 2026 indd AELDC excl AFUDC
1 Bum of all orojecls not inciuded on 7{f Variows Varioys 122,284,047 137,343,718 111,083,418 119,174,747 133,032,673 109,929,582 52 £59,220 50,858,120



DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(h)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)(h)

Description of Filing Requirement:

A financial forecast corresponding to each of the three (3) forecasted years included in the
capital construction budget. The financial forecast shall be supported by the underlying
assumptions made in projecting the results of operations and shall include the following
information:

(I} Operating income statement (exclusive of dividends per share or eamings
per share),

(2) Balance sheet;

3) * Statement of cash flows;

{4) Revenue requirements necessary to support the forecasted rate of return;
(5) Load forecast including energy-and demand (electric);
(6) Access line forecast (telephone);

(7) Mix of generation (electric);

(8) Mix of gas supply (gas);

(9) Employee level;

(10) Labor cost changes;

(11) Capital structure requirements;

(12) Raie base;

(13) Gallons of water projected to be sold (water);

(14) Customer forecast (gas, water);



(15) MCF sales forecasts (gas);

(16) Toll and access forecast of number of calls and number of minutes
(telephone); and

(17) A detailed explanation of any other information provided, if applicable.

Response;

Items 6, 13, 16, and 17 are not applicable. For all other items, see attached.

Sponsoring Witnesses:

Grady “Tripp” S. Carpenter ~ Items 1,2, 3,4, 8,9, 10, 11, 12
Ibrar A. Khera—Item 5, 14, 15
John D. Swez —Item 7









KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16{7)}{h) Attachment
Page 30f 13

FR 16(7)(h)(3)
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No. 2024-00354
Projected Cash Flow Statement 2024-2026

Line
No. | [ Description | | 2024 || 2025 | ] 2026 |
1 Net Income $ Tt § 81404302 8 ne =74 nEa
2 Other Operating Activities _
3 Cash from Operating Activities $ cou,u09, 109 5  cuu,cuw,uue 5 214,000,110
4 Financing Activities
5 Change in contribuled capital
6 Change in shor-term debt
7 Issuance of long-term debt
8 Change in non-current capital leases
9 Redemption of long-term debt
10 Dividends on common stock _
11 Cash from Financing Aclitivies $ {9,697,925) & 72,266,979 5 76,667,910
12 Investing Activities
13 Construction Expenditures {net of AFUDC)
14 Acquisitions and other investments .
16 Cash from Investing Aclitivies P VPNV S B RS VT ETRVEVS B B VYR WY S Py

16 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash $ (2,067,383 % - 3 16,873,962




KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(h) Attachment
Page 4 of 13

FR 16(7}h)}4)
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No, 2024-00354
Revenue Requirements 2024-2026

Line

No. | [ Description ] 2024 BRI 2025 | [ 2026 ]
1 Rate Base $ 1,388,222,133  § 1487,002191 $ 1,613,843,078
2 Operating Income

3 Earned Rate of Return (Line 2 / Line 1) 6.400% 5.700% 6.000%

4 Rate of Return

5 Required Operating Income (Line 1 x Line 4) $ 111,210,475 $ 118,484,335 3 128,591,016
6 Operating Income Deficiency (Line 5 - Line 2) b 22,738,594 $ 33,626,106 $ 31,791,549
7 Gross Revenue Conversion Factor

8 Revenue Deficiency (Line 6 x Line 7) % 30,617,449 $ 45,277 450 $ 42 807,226




Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

Case No. 2024-00354
Load Forecast 2024-2026

KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(h) Attachment
Page 5 of 13

FR 16{7)(h)(5)

Line

Description

1

2024

| L

2025

]| 2026 |

N NRNRMRAM 2 A @A m A a A a A
RN 0N BRRND 20 @0 N R W =

NN NN N
© @~ WO,

KW Demand - Coincident Peak

January
February
March
April

May

June

July
August
September
Octaber
November
December

KWH Sales

January
February
March
April

May

June

July
August
September
October
November
December



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7){(h) Attachment
Page 6 of 13

FR 16(7)(h)(7
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (7Xh(7)

Case No. 2024-00354
Mix of Generation 2024-2026

Line

No. | | Description [ | 2024 | | 2025 | | 2026 |
1 Coal

2 Natural Gas

3 Qil - - -
4 Total Generation (MWH) 1,798,279 1,609,204 1,573,363



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(h) Attachment
Page 7 of 13

FR 16(7)(h}8)
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

Case No. 2024-00354
Mix of Gas Supply 2024-2026

Line
No. | | Description | ] 2024 i 2025 | 2026 |
1 Columbia Gas Trans - No Notice
2 Undetermined
3 Propane - Air _
4 Total Supply - MCF 10,194,845 10,180,618 10,207,343
S Columbia Gas Trans - No Notice
B Undetermined
7 Propane - Air
8 Demand Costs _
9

Total Cost 9 o<, 194,200 $ ruvouoaro $ reusauas



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(h) Attachment
Page 8 of 13

FR 16(7)(h)(@
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (7)0)(9)

Case No. 2024-00354
Number of Employees 2024-2026

Line
No. | | Description 11 2024 | | 2025 | [ 2026 |
1 Number of employees

This count includes only direct employees of Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.



Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc,

Case No. 2024-00354
Labor Cost Changes 2024-2026

KyPSC Case No, 2024-00354
FR 16{7)(h} Attachment

Page 9.of 13

FR 16(7)(h}(10)

Line |
No. | | Description 1 2024 | | 2025 | 2026 !
1 Total Labor Costs:
2
3  Gas O&M Expense $ 7,511,455 § 7,774,356 $ 8,046,459
4 Electric O&M Expense 18,240,336 16,631,024 17,213,110
5 Tolal O&M § 23,751,791  $ 24,405,380  § 25,259,568
g
7 Gas Capital $ 7993256 § 8273020 § 8562576
8  Electric Capital 18,063,129 18,108,530 18,742,328
9 Non-jurisdictional Capital - - -
10 Total Capital $ 26,056,385  § 26,381,550  § 27,304,904
11
12 Total $ 49,808,176  $ 50,786,930  $ 52,564,472

Includes incentives {direct & allocated).




Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.
Case No. 2024-00354

Capital Structure Requirements 2024-2026

KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7}(h) Attachment

Page 10 of 13

FR 18(7)(h}{11)

Line

No. Description [ 2024 | [ 2025 ] [ 2026 |
1 Common Equity $ 1,268,596,572  58.229% $ 1,320,080.874  56.589% $ 1,418,665832  56.560%
2 Long-term Debt 808,956,53¢  37.131% 914,252,276  39.192% 1,012,758,006  4C.377%
3 Shortterm Debt 4.640% 4.219% 3,063%
4 Total Capital $ 2178635468  100.00% § 2,332,767,066  100.00% $ 2,508,255680  100.00%







KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 18(7)(h) Attachment
Page 12 of 13

FR 16(7)(h)(14
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (T))(14)

Case No. 2024-00354
Customer Forecast 2024-2026

Line

No. | [ Description [ { 2024 || 2025 | | 2026 |
1 Residential

2 Commercial

3 Industrial

4 Other o - -

5 Total Electric Retail 153,300 104, 04U 100, 109
6 Residential

7 Commercial

8 Industrial

9 Other ‘

10 Total Full Requirements 104,119 104,581 105,U4/
11

12 Transportation

13 Commercial

14 Industrial

15 Other

16 Total Transportation 148 147 147
17

18 Total Gas Retail {(Line 10 + Line 16) 104,266 104,729 105,194




KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)h) Attachment
Page 13 of 13

FR 18(7)h)(15
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (7)(h)(15)

Case No. 2024-00354
MCF Sales Forecast 2024-2026

Line

No. | | Description || 2024 |[ 2025 [ 1 2026 |
1 Residential

2 Commercial

3 Industrial

4 Other

5 Interdepartmental _ — .

& Total Retail Y,662,109 9,648,673 4,673,933
7 Transportation

8 Commercial

9 Industrial

10 Other _ . _

11 Total Transportation 4,5/, 1ob 4,0U1,UD3 4,044,025

12 Total MCF Sales 14,238,275 14,249,726 14,303,461




DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY
CASE NO. 2024-00354
FORECASTED TEST PERIOD FILING REQUIREMENTS
FR 16(7)(i)

807 KAR 5:001, SECTION 16(7)(i)

Description of Filing Requirement:
The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or Federal Communication Commission

audit reports.

Response:

See attached.

Witness Responsible:

Danielle L. Weatherston



KyPSC Case No, 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(i) Attachment
Page 1 of 69

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20426

In Reply Refer To:
Office of Enforcement
Docket No. PA14-2-000
April 1, 2016

Duke Energy Corporation

Attention: Mr. Brian D..Savoy

Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting
Officer and Controlfer

550 South Tryon St.

Charlotte, NC 28202

Dear Mr. Savoy:

1. The Division of Audits and Accounting (DAA) within the Office of Enforcement
{OE) of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (Commission) has completed an
audit of Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy) and its public utility subsidiaries. The
audit covered the period from January 1, 2011 through January 31, 2016.

2. The audit evaluated Duke Energy’s compliance with conditions and requirements
established in Commission orders authorizing the merger of Duke Energy and Progress
Energy, Inc. The audit also evaluated each Duke Energy public-utility subsidiary’s
compliance with: (1) tariff requirements governing its transmission formula

rate; (2) accounting regulations in 18 C.F.R. Part 101, Uniform System of Accounts
Prescribed for Public Utilities and Licensees Subject to the Provisions of the Federal
Power Act; and (3) financial reporting regulations in 18 C.F.R. Part 141, Statements-and
Reports. The enclosed audit report contains eight findings and 37 recommendations that
require Duke Energy to take corrective action.

3. On March 30, 2016, you notified DAA that Duke Energy does not contest the
audit report or any of its recommendations. A copy of your verbatim response is
included as an appendix to this report. I hereby approve the audit report.

4, Duke Energy should submit its implementation plan to comply with the
recommendations within 30 days of this letter order. Duke Energy should make quarterly
submissions to. DAA describing the progress made to comply with the recommendations,
including the completion date for each corrective action. As directed by the audit report,
these submissions should be made no later than 30 days after the e¢nd of each calendar
quarter, beginning with the first quarter after this audit report is issued, and continuing
until all the correetive actions are completed.



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7X1) Attachment
Page 2 of 69

5. The Commission delepated authority to act on this matter to the Director of OE
under 18 C.F.R. § 375.311 (2015). This letter order constitutes final agency action.
Duke Energy may file a request for rehearing with the Commission within 30 days of the
date of this order under 18 C.F.R. §385.713 (2015).

6. This letter order is without prejudice to the Commission’s right to require hereafter
any adjustments it may consider proper from additional information that may come to its
attention. In addition, any instance of noncompliance not addressed herein or that may
occur in‘the future may also be subject to investigation and appropriate remedies.

7. I appreciate the courtesies extended to the auditors. If you have any questions,
please contact Mr. Bryan K. Craig, Director and Chief Accountant, Division of Audits
and Accounting at (202) 502-8741.

Sincerely,

Larry R. Parkinson
Director
Office of Enforcement

Enclosure



KyP5C Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(i) Attachment
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Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Office of Enforcement
Division of Audits and Accounting

AUDIT REPORT

Audit of Duke Energy Corporation
and its Public Utility Subsidiaries’
Compliance with:

o Conditions in Commission Merger

Authorization Orders;

e Transmission Formula Rate Tariff
Requirements; and

e Accounting and Financial Reporting
Regulations.

Docket No. PA14-2-000
March 29, 2016
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I. Executive Summary
A.  Overview

The Division of Audits and Accounting (DAA) in the Office of Enforcement has
completed an audit of Duke Energy Caorporation (Duke Energy) and its public utility
subsidiaries’! (collectively, Duke Companies) compliance with conditions and
requirements established in Commission orders authorizing the merger of Duke Energy
and Progress Energy, Inc. (Progress Energy).? The audit also evaluated each Duke
Energy public utility subsidiary’s compliance with: (1) tariff requirements governing its
transmission formula rate; (2) accounting regulations in 18 C.E.R. Part 101, Uniform
System of Accounts (USofA) Prescribed for Public Utilities and Licensees Subject to the
Provisions of the Federal Power Act; and (3) financial reporting regulations in
18 C.F.R. Part 14], Statements and Reports. The audit covered the period
January 1, 2011 through January 31, 2016.

B. Duke Encrgy Corporation

Duke Energy is a public utility holding company headquartered in Charlotte, NC.
It 1s engaged in energy production, trade, transmission, and distribution through its six
public utility subsidiaries that operate in the Southeast and Midwest regions of the. United
States. In 2014, Duke Energy was the largest electric utility in the nation. The company
had 7.3 million retail electric and 500,000 natural gas customers, 32,400 miles of
transmission lines, 57,500 MW of generating capacity, and total operating revenue of
$23.9 billion. Its service area covered about 95,000 square miles and had an estimated
population of 23 million. Regulated operations accounted for over 90 percent of the
company’s total revenue, and commercial power generation and international operations
provided most of the remainder.

! The Duke Energy public utility subsidiaries are: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC
(DEC), Duke Energy Progress, LLC (DEP), Duke Energy Florida, LLC (DEF), Duke
Energy Indiana, LLC (DEI), Duke Energy Chio, Inc. (DEQY), and Duke Energy
Kentucky, Inc. (DEK).

* Duke Energy Corp. and Progress.Energy, Inc., 136 FERC 9 61,245 (2011)
(Merger Order), order on compliance, 137 FERC Y 61,210 (2011), order on compliance,
139 FERC % 61,194 (2012) (June 8 Compliance Order), order an compliance, 149 FERC
61,078 (2014) (October 29 Compliance Order).
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C. Summary of Compliance Findings

Audit staff identified eight findings of noncompliance. Below is a summary of
audit staff’s compliance findings. Details are in section IV of this report.

e Accounting for Merger Transaction Costs — Duke Companies did not file
merger transaction accounting entries with the Commission as required by
the Merger Order, and the companies recorded merger transaction costs in
operating accounts, contrary to the Comunission’s long-standing policy that
such costs be recorded in nonoperatmg accounts. By not filing the
accounting entries, Duke Companies prevented Commission review of the
merger accounting and correction of any entries that were not in accordance
with Commission accounting requirements.

o Merger Transaction Internal Labor Costs — Duke Companies improperly
included approximately $31.4 million of merger transaction internal labor
costs in wholesale power and transmission formula rate service cost
determinations without first submitting a section 205 filing demonstrating
that the costs were offset by quantified savings produced by the merger. As
a result, the wholesale power and transmission customers” revenue
requirements were inappropriately overstated by an estimated $17.5 million.

e  Merger Transaction Qutside Services and Related Costs — Duke Companies
incorrectly included $1.5 million of merger transaction outside services and
related costs in wholesale power and transmission formula rate service cost
determinations without first submitting a section 205 filing demonstrating
the costs were offset by quantified savings produced by the merger. In
addition, the companies recorded the merger transaction costs In operating
accounts, contrary to the Commission’s long-standing policy that such costs.
be recorded in nonoperating accounts. As a result, the wholesale power and
transmission customers’ revenue requirements were inappropriately
overstated by an estimated $745,000. '

e Use of the Consolidation Method of Accounting — DEC and DEP accounted
for investments in subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in their FERC Form
No. 1, Anmual Reports (Form No. 1), contrary to the Commission’s long-
standing accounting policy.

o Accounting for Sales of Accounts Receivable — DEC, DEP, and DEF
misclassified an estimated $94.7 million of noneperating expenses and
receivables arising from transactions with their subsidiaries during the audit
period. As a result, the wholesale power and transmission customers’
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revenue requirements were inappropriately overstated by an estimated $61
million.

s Accounting for Lobbying Expenses: Duke Companies recorded
approximately $2.4 million of lobbying expenses in above-the-line
operating accounts from 2011 through 2013. As a consequence, Duke
Companies improperly included these costs in wholesale power and
transmission formula rate service cost determinations.

o Allocation of Lobhyist Labor Costs: Duke Companies accounted for the
labor costs of internal lobbyists and their support staff in operating accounts
that lacked support for inclusion in the accounts. Improper accounting for
the costs can lead to inappropriate recovery of the costs through rates
charged and billed to customers.

e Nonutility Expenses in Operating Accounts: Duke Compames recorded
approximately $490,000 of nonutility expenses in operating accounts in
2014. As aresult, inappropriate costs were included in wholesale power and
transmission formula rate service cost determinations and charged to
customers.

D. Summary of Recommendations

Audit staff’s recommendations to remedy the findings are suunmarized below with
details in section IV of this report. Audit staff recommends that Duke Companies:

Accounting for Merger Transaction Costs

1.

Revise accounting policies and procedures to appropriately account for merger
transactions consistent with Commission accounting requirements.

. Develop written policies and procedures to timely identify propesed accounting

transactions that would trigger a notification to the Commission.

. Develop written policies and procedures to submit accounting questions of

doubtful interpretation to the Commission.

Provide training to employees on compliance with the merger cost accounting
conditions and the revised policies, procedures, and controls for complying with
the conditions. Also, develop a training program that supports the provision of
periodic training in this area.
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Merger Transaction Internal Labor Costs

5. Revise all policies and procedures for tracking, accounting, and excluding
merger transaction costs from wholesale power and transmission formula rates,
including amounts previously charged to utility plant, accumulated deferred
incomme taxes, construction work in progress with the associated capitalized
cost of funds used during construction (AFUDC), and maintenance and
operating expense accounts, and future charges to such accounts for any
transaction to which a FERC hold harmless obligation applies. The revised
procedures should hold customers harmless from all merger transaction costs
consistent with requirements of the Merger Order. Among other things, the
revised policies and procedures should include an annual review of each
subsidiary’s merger transaction cost adjustments as well as periodic evaluations
within the year, as needed and appropriate.

6. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to
DAA for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of
refunds that include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from
the inclusion of merger transaction internal labor and related costs in wholesale
power and transmission formula rates during the audit period, plus interest on
the costs; (2) determinative components of the refund; (3) refund method; and
(4) period(s) refunds will be made.

7. File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of
the refund analysis.

8. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section
35.1%9a of Commission regulations.

Merger Transaction Outside Services and Related Costs

9. Revise accounting policies and procedures to appropriately account for merger
transaction costs consistent with Commission accounting requirements.

10. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to
DAA for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of
refunds that include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from
the inclusion of merger transaction outside services and related costs in
wholesale power and transmission formula rate charges during the audit
period, plus interest on the costs; (2) determinative components of the refund;
(3) refund method; and (4} period(s) refunds will be made.
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11.File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of
the refund analysis.

12, Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section
35.19a of Commission regulations.

Use of the Consolidation Method of Accounting

13.Review and, as needed, revise accounting policies, practices, and procedures to
ensure that investments in subsidiaries are accounted for consistent with the
‘Commission’s equity method accounting requirements.

14, Evaluate the accounting applied to Duke Companies’ existing subsidiaries and
notify DAA of any areas of noncompliance with Commission accounting
requirements,

15. Revise documented policies, procedures and processes to ensure timnely notice
is provided to relevant regulators regarding instances of noncompliance with
regulations, rules, and orders,

16. Provide training to staff on procedures, practices, and available tools to
transparently or anonymously report instances of noncompliance to senior
management, the Board of Directors, and relevant regulators,

Accounting for Sales of Accounts Receivable

17. Revise procedures to ensure that all costs and account balances associated with
the sale of accounts receivable are accounted for in accordance with
Commission accounting regulations. Among other things, the corrected
accounting should ensure that all losses associated with receivable sales are
recorded in Account 426.5.

18. Provide the revised procedures to DAA for review within 60 days of receiving
the final audit report.

19. Recalculate charges to wholesale power and transmission customers of DEC,
DEP, and DEF and submit the recalculations m a refund analysis to DAA for
review within 60 days of receiving the final audit report. The refund analysis
should explain and detail the: (1) return of collection service billings charged in
2014; (2) retumn of losses on the sales included in rates; (3) determinative
components of the refund; (4) refund method; (5) period(s) refunds will be
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made; and (6) intetest calculated in accordance with section 35.19 of
‘Commission regulations.

20.File a refund repost with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of
the refund analysis.

21. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section
35.19a of Commission regulations.

Accounting for Lobbying Expenses

22. Establish and implement written procedures governing the methods used to
account for, track, report, and review lobbying costs incurred.

23. Provide training on Commission accounting requirements and the impact of
accounting on cost-of-service rate determinations to employees involved in
lobbying and lobbying-related work, and those with eversight responsibility for
lobbying cost allocations. -Also, develop a training program that supports the
provision of periodic training in this area. |

24. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to
DAA for review that explains and details the following: (1} calculation of
refunds that include the amount of\inappropriate recoveries that resulted from
the improper inclusion of lobbying cost in operating accounts during the audit
period, plus interest on the costs; (2) determinative components of the refund,
(3) refund method; and (4) period(s) refunds will be made.

25.File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of
the refund analysis.

26.Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section
35.19a of Commission regulations.

Allocation of Lobbyist Labor Costs
27. Revise written policies and procedures to create a process to document and.
verify appropriate allocation of lobbying and lobbying-related costs, and

maintain anditable support for the cost included in rate determinations.

28. Retain an independent third-party entity to conduct a representative labor time
study to determine an appropriate allocation of internal lobbyist labor, support
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staff, and associated costs that should be accounted for in operating and
nonoperating accounts based on time spent by employees. engaged in the
activities. Provide the study results to audit staff within 180 days of the date of
the final audit report.

29. Include the results of the labor time study in the determination of lobbying-
related labor cost allocations as of January 1, 2016.

30. Implement policies and procedures to perform a labor time study biennially
using an independent third-party or internal company resources that are able to
attest to the results of the study. Revise the lobbying-related labor cost
allocations based on the results of the study.

Nonutility Expenses in Operating Accounts

31. Develop and implement written policies, procedures, and controls to ensure
proper accounting and reporting of nonutility expenses.

32. Provide training for employees involved in the inveicing process on
Commission accounting requirements and the impact of the accounting on cost-
of-service rate determinations.

33. Within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, provide documentation
supporting the analysis performed of invoiced expenses recorded to
administrative and general (A&QG) accounts in 2014 that identified misclassified
nonutility expenses included in A&G accounts. Develop an estimate of
misclassified nonutility expenses accounted for in operating accounts in 2011
through 2013 and 2015.

34, Implement policies and procedures to provide periodic audits or reviews of
A&AQG transactions by external or internal auditors.

35. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to
DAA for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of
refunds that include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from
the improper inclusion of identified and estimated nonutility expenses in
charges to wholesale power and transmission customers during the audit period,
plus interest on the costs; (2) determinative components of the refund;

(3) refund method; and (4) period(s) refunds will be made. Include the results
of the invoice analysis in the refund analysis.

36. File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of
the refund analysis.
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37. Refund amounts disclosed in the refind report to wholesale power and
transmission custoiners, with interest calculated in accordance with section
35.19a of Commission regulations.

E. Implementation of Recommendations

Audit staff further recommends that Duke Companies submit the following for
audit staff’s review:

e A plan for implementing the audit recommendations within 30 days afier the
final audit report is issued;

o Quarterly reports describing progress in completing each corrective action
recommended in the final audit report. Quarterly nonpublic submissions
should be made no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter,
beginning with the first quarter after the final audit report is issued, and
continuing until all recommended corrective actions are completed; and

o Copies of any written policies and procedures developed in response to
recommendations in the audit report. These documents should be submitted
in the first quarterly filing after Duke Companies complete such policies and
procedures.
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II. Background
A. Merger of Duke Energy and Progress Energy

On January 10, 2011, Duke Energy and Progress Energy announced their intention
to merge in a stock-for-stock transaction under which Progress Energy would become a
wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy, and the shareholders of Progress Energy
would become shareholders of Duke Energy. At the time, the transaction was valued at
over $31 billion. The merger was poised to create the largest U.S. electric utility in
history with over seven million electric customers and operations in six states.

Following the announcement, on April 4, 2011, Duke Energy, Progress Energy,
and their public utility subsidiaries (collectively, Duke Companies) filed an application
with'the Commission secking autharization for the merger transaction under section 203
of the Federal Power Act G?PA,)3' and Part 33 of Commission reg7tlla.ti<)1ls.'.4 To receive
authorization for the transaction, the companies committed to hold transmission and
wholesale requirements customers harmless from the costs of the transaction for five
years. The companies also contended that the transaction would not adversely affect
competition, and thus there were ne market power concerns associated with the
transaction.

On September 30, 2011, the Commission found that the transaction, as proposed
in the application, would result in significant screen failures in the horizontal market
power analysis and have an adverse effect on competition.” As such, the Commission
authorized the transaction subject to conditions, Among other things, the transaction was
conditioned on Duke Companies holding transmission and wholesale requirements
customers harmless from the costs of the transaction, and submitting proposed market
power mitigation measures that the Commission approves. The Commission advised
Duke Companies that sufficient mitigation measures could include membership in a
regional transmission organization, implementing an independent coordinator of
tranismission arrangement, actual or virtual divestiture of generation, and/or transmission
upgrades to provide greater market access to third-party energy suppliers.

Further, the Commission stated that the hold harmnless commitment included all
merger transaction costs, not only costs related to consummating the transaction.® To
recover merger transaction costs through whoelesale requirement or transmission rates, the

316 US.C. § 824b (2012).

“18 C.F.R. Part 33.

® Merger Order, 136 FERC § 61,245 at PP 145-146.
S1d. P 169.
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companies wete required to submit a filing to the Commission that identified merget
costs to be recovered and demonsirated that the costs were exceeded by savings produced
by the transaction.” Duke Companies did not submit a filing to recover merger
transaction costs during the audit period. However, as discussed in detail below, the
companies recovered merger transaction costs through rates charged.

Consistent with the Commission’s merger authorization condition that required
Duke Companies to submit proposed market power mitigation measures for approval, the
coinpanies submitted an initial compliance filing on October 17, 2011, which proposed to
mitigate market power through virtual divestiture of generation. The filing proposed a
must-offer obligation under which Duke Companies would sell specified quantities of
energy at cost-hased rates to entities directly or indirectly serving load in the DEC and
DEP Balancing Authority Areas (BAAs). The Commission rejected the filing on the
grounds that the market power mitigation proposals did not remedy the market power
concerns identified in the Merger Order.?

A revised compliance filing was submitted by Duke Companies on
March 26, 2012 that proposed permanent and interim market power mitigation measures.
To permanently mitigate market power, Duke Companies proposed to build seven
transmission expansion projects (TEPs), expedite completion of an eighth project that
was already planned, and set aside 25 MW of transfer capacity on their transmission
systems for use by third parties (Stub Mitigation). During construction of the TEPs, as an
interim measure to protect apainst potential market power concerns, Duke Companies
proposed to enter into power sale agreements with three unaffiliated firms — Cargill
Power Marketing, EDF Trading, and Morgan Stanley Capital Markets — to which the
companies would sell power during all periods requiring mitigation. The companies also
proposed to hire an independent monitor, Potomac Economics Ltd. (Potomac
Economics), to verify compliance with the provisions of the power sale agreements.

The Commission accepted the revised compliance filing on June 8, 2012, subject
to certain revisions and conditions, which included, among other things, requirements to
hold customers harmless from the cost of the mitigation actions and to expand Potomac
Economics” duties to verify that the TEPs were completed within the prescribed scope
and timeline,” The merger was consummated on July 2, 2012,

On December 6, 2013, after the merger was consummated, Duke Companies
submitted a motion to supplement its March 26, 2012 compliance filing, due to newly
identified information that affected calculation of the impact of the market power

7Id. P 170.
% Duke Energy Corp., 137 FERC 161,210 (2011).
? See June & Compliance Order, 139 FERC 761,194 at P 113,
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mitigation measures. In the filing, Duke Companies offered to increase the-Stub
Mitigation by 104 MW (thereby raising the total amount of the transmission set-aside to
12% MW), repair out of service phase-shifting transformers at DEC’s Rockingham
substation and return them to service, and operate the transformers so as to create
additional import capability on the transmission system. The Commission granted the
motion and accepted the supplementary compliance filing subjéct to conditions on
October 29, 2014." Moreover, the Commission reiterated its requirement that
transmission and wholesale requirements customers be held harmless from costs
associated with repairing the transformers and returning them to service.

B.  Duke Energy’s Public Utility Subsidiaries

During the audit period, the Duke Companies provided electricity service in
portions of North Carolina, South Carolina, Flerida, Indiana, Ohjo, and Kentucky. DEO
and DEK also provided natural gas service in portions of Ohio and Kentucky. The
following describes the services provided by each company, its open access transmission
tariff (OATT), membership in an independent system operator (ISO) or regional
transmission organization (RTO), transmission formula rate, and market-based rate
authority:.

Duke Energy Carolinas, LL.C

DEC is a vertically integrated public utility that generates, transmits, distributes,
and sells electrieity to 2.5 million customers in a 24,000 square mile service area in North
and South Carolina. DEC owns 8,302 miles of transmission lines and 19,600 MW of
generating capacity..

DEC provided open access transmission service under a Commission-approved
OATT at cost-based stated rates from 1995 through 20 11." In 2011, DEC began
recovery of its transmisston service cost pursuant to a formula rate that became effective
June 1, 2011."* However, on March 26, 2012, in connection with the merger transaction,
DEC, DEP, and DEF filed for approval of a Joint QOATT under section 205 of the FPA
and Part 35 of the Commission’s regulations. The filing was conditionally accepted by
the Commission on Junc 8,2012."

'® October 29 Compliance Order, 149 FERC 961,078 (2014).

" Duke Power Co., 73 FERC 1 61,309 (1995) (Duke Power Order).
2 Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, 137 FERC § 61,058 (2011).

B Duke Energy Corp., 139 FERC 7 61,193 (2012).
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The Joint OATT provided for transmission service at non pancaked rates for
transactions involving the combined transmission systems of the companics. DEC’s
transmission formula rate is incorporated as Schedule 10-B of the Joint OATT. DEC’s
formula rate implementation protocols are incorporated as Exhibit A of the Joint OATT,
and the formula rate ternplate and formula rate principles are contained in Exhibit B.
DEC does not belong to an ISO or RTO.

DEC has wholesale power sale agreements with cost-based rates determined under
a formula, and it has Commission authorization to make wholesale sales at market-based
rates outside its and DEP’s BAAs and Peninsular Florida.

Duke Energy Progress, LL.C

DEP is a vertically integrated public utility that generates, transmits, distributes,
and sells electricity to 1.5 million customers in a 32,000 square mile service area in North
and South Carolina. DEP owns 6,981 miles of transmission lines and 12,200 MW of
generating capacity.

DEP provided open access transmission service under a Commission-approved
OATT at cost-based stated rates from 1996 through 2008. In 2008, DEP began recovery
of ils transmission service cost pursuant to a formula rate that became effective July 1,
2008." Since the merger, DEP has provided transinission service under the Joint OATT
with DEC and DEF. DEP’s transmission formula rate is incorporated in Atiachment H of
the Joint OATT. The fermula rate template is incorporated as Attachment H-1 of the
Joint OATT, and the implementation protocols as Attachment H-2. DEP does not belong
to an ISO or RTO.

DEP has wholesale power sale agreements with cost-based rates determined under
a formula, and it has Commission authorization to sell energy and capacity at market-

based rates outside its and DEC’s BAAs and Peninsular Florida.

Duke Energy Florida, LLC

DEF is a vertically integrated public utility that generates, transmits, and delivers
electricity to 1.7 million customers in a 13,000 square mile area.in central and southern
Florida. DEF owns 4,424 miles of transmission lines and 1,200 MW of génerating
capacity.

14 Carolin’cz Power and Light Co., Docket No. ER08-889-000 (]une 27, 2008)
(delegated letter order).
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DEF provided open access transmission service under a Commission-approved
OATT at cost-based stated rates from 1996 through 2008. In 2008, DEF began recovery
of its transmission service cost pursuant to a formula rate that became effective
January 1, 2008." Since the merger, DEF has provided transmission service under the
Joint OATT with DEC and DEP. DEF’s transmission formula rate is incorporated as
Schedule 10-A of the Joint OATT. The implementation protocols are designated as
Schedule 10-A.1 of the Joint OATT, and the formula rate template as Schedule 10-A.2.
DEF does not belong to an ISO or RTO. Additionally, DEF has Commission
authorization to sell energy and capacity outside the DEC and DEP BAAs and Peninsular
Florida.

Duke Energy Indiana, L1.C

DEI is a vertically integrated utility that generates, transimits, distributes, and sells
electricity to §10,000 customers within a 23,000 square mile service territory in central,
north central, and southern Indiana. DEI owns 7,500 MW of generating capacity and
4,815 miles of transmission lines.

DEI became a member of the Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc.,
(MISO) in 1997 and recovered its cost of transmission service pursuant to cost-based
stated rates. In 1998, DEI began to recover its transmission service cost pursuant to a
transmission formula rate. DEI’s transmission formula rate template is included at
Attachment O of the MISO Open Access Transmission, Energy, and Operating Reserve
Markets Tariff. Additionally, DEI has Commission authorization to sell power at market-
based rates outside the DEC and DEP BAAs and Peninsular Florida.

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

DEQ is the direct parent of DEK. The companies are combination electric and gas
utilities that transmit, distribute, and sell electricity at retail and wholesale, and distribute
and sell natural gas at retail in southwestern Ohio and northern Kentucky, respectively.
DEO owns 1,879 miles of transmission lines. The company divested its generating assets
pursuant to Ohio’s electric restructuring program and received Commission authorization
for the divestiture.'® DEK owns 102 miles of transmission lines and about 1,200 MW of
generating capacity.

% Florida Power Corp., Docket No. ER08-105-000 (Dec. 17, 2007) (delegated
letter order). ‘

'8 See Dynegy Resource I, LLC, 150 FERC 61,232 (2015).
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DEO and DEK were members of MISO until January 1, 2012, when they
withdrew their membership and joined PIM Interconnection, L.L.C. (PTM).'” The
companies recover transmission service costs pursuant to a transmission formula rate
under the PJIM OATT. DEQ and DEK’s transmission formula rate is incorporated as
Attachment H-22 of the PJM OATT. The formula rate template is incorporated as
Attachment H-22A of the OATT, and the implementation protocols as Attachment H-
22B. Additionally, DEQ and DEK have Commission authorization to sell power at
market-based rates outside the DEC and DEP BAAs and Peninsular Florida.

1 The Commission conditionally authorized the move in an order issued October
21, 2010. See Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., 133 FERC q 61,058 (2010).
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ITI. Introduction
A.  Objectives

The audit evaluated Duke Companies’ compliance with conditions established in
the Merger Order and associated orders on compliance, requirements of each company’s
transmission formula rate tariff, and accounting and financial reporting regulations. The
audit covered the period January 1, 2011 through January 31, 2016,

B.  Scope and Methodology

Audit staff performed specific actions to facilitate the audit and evaluate
compliance with the audit objectives. Audit staff also reviewed the effectiveness of Duke
Companies’ compliance program in relation to the audit objectives and other key factors.
To address overall audit objectives, audit staff;

e Conducted an extensive review of publicly available materials to understand
the companies’ corporate structure and organization, operations, financial
accounting and reporting activities, and other key regulatory and business
activities, both before and after the merger. Examples of materials and
documentation reviewed include Commission rules;,reg;ul,ationjsg and orders,
Form No. 1 reports, FERC Form No. 65, Notification of Holding Company
Status, formula rate filings, the Commission’s enforcement hotline calls and
company self-reports, company-related web sites, and relevant media sources.
This also included a review of filings with other government agencies, such as
the Securities and Exchange Commission Forms 10-K and 10-Q, Annual and
Quarterly Reports;

e Evaluated the companies’ internal policies and procedures relevant to the audit
objectives;

e Conferred with other Commission staff on various compliance issues to ensure
-audit findings were consistent with Commission precedent and policy. For
example, audit staff communicated with staff from other divisions within the
Office of Enforcement and staff from the Office of Energy Market Regulation
and Office of General Counsel;

o Conducted two site visits to Duke Energy’s headquarters in Charlotte, NC.
The visits enabled audit staff to further understand the company’s corporate
structure, functions, operations, accounting systems and practices, transmission
planning and cost-estimating procedures, formula rate, internal audit function,
and regulatory and corporate compliance programs. While on site, audit staff
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interviewed employees and managers responsible for performing tasks within
the audit scope, sampled and tested documents to verify compliance with
Commiission orders related to merger conditions, accounting regulations,
financial reporting, transmission formula rates, and related matters.
Additionally, audit staff also interviewed compliance program staff, senior
officials, internal auditors, and employees who fulfill day-to-day compliance
-activities for the purposes of carrying out regulatory oversight responsibilities;

e (Conducted teleconferences to discuss audit objectives and scope, data requests
-and responses, technical and administrative matters, compliance concerns, and
held a closing conference to discuss the completion of audit fieldwork and
results; and

o Issued data requests to gather information not available through public means.
This information related to internal policies and procedures, business practices,
reporting activities, corporate compliance, internal and external audit reports,
merger order conditions and compliance, transaction and operational data, and
other pertinent information. Audit staff used this information as underlying
support for testing and evaluating compliance with Commission requirements
relevant to the audit scope and objectives.

Further, audit staff performed these specific actions to facilitate the testing and
evaluation of compliance with relevant requirements for the audit scope areas, A
summary of these actions follows.

Compliance with Merger Conditions

To evaluate compliance with the hold harmless and market power mitigation
conditions established in the Merger Order and associated compliance orders, audit staff
performed audit fieldwork applicable to the merger. Audit staff performed the following
steps:

¢ Reviewed the merger application, supporting testimony and exhibits to
understand the context, terms, and conditions of the merger proposal and
commitiment to hold transimission and wholesale requirements customers
harmless from costs of the transaction. Reviewed intervenor comments and
protests, and responses to the comments and protests, and also reviewed Duke
Companies’ compliance filings, intervenor responses, and answers to the
responses;

e Evaluated Duke Companies’ responses to Commission staff’s delegated data
requests that sought information regarding the merger application and
compliance filings;
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» Examined the companies’ policies and procedures associated with tracking and
accounting for merger transaction costs incutred prior to and following,
consummation of the merger;

e Performed a comparative analysis of Duke Energy and Progress Energy’s
accounting for costs of the merger prior to and after its consummation and the
companies’ policies associated with the accounting;

e Reviewed actions taken by the companies to maintain compliance with merger
conditions;

e Analyzed the companies’ procedures to ensure compliance with hold harmless
conditions and to account for merger transaction costs;

¢ Conducted sample-based tests of internal costs and external contracted costs
wcurred by the companies to assess the accounting for the costs and the impact
on wholesale rate determinations:

e Obtained information on staff involved in merger activities, including
employee names, positions, salaries, work performed on merger activities, and
time spent on merger-related activities;

¢ Reviewed documentation and supporting evidence of merger transaction costs
and performed substantive tests of sample data;

e Inspected reports submiitted by Potomac Economics regarding the Rockingham
phase shifters and other relevant Commission filings;

¢ Evaluated expenses incurred to repair the Rockingham phase shifters to assess
the accounting for the costs and impacts on wholesale rate determinations; and

o Examined costs incurred to operate the TEPs - including the Rockingham
phase shifters — from 2012 through Q1 2015 to evaluate the accounting used to
record cost of activity and the resulting impact on wholesale rate
determinations.

Furthermore, audit staff conducted the following additional steps to evaluate Duke
Companies’ compliance with the market power mitigation conditions:

o Reviewed the companies’ contract with Potomac Economics to ascertain
whether the independent monitor had sufficient oversight authority and timely
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access to data needed to monitor compliance with interim and permanent
market power mitigation measures;

Examined the quarterly independent monitoring reports prepared by Potomac
Economics detailing Duke Companies’ compliance with interim and
permanent market power mitigation conditions;

Interviewed personnel responsible for reporting the status of TEP construction
to Potomac Economics, and reviewed a sample of email communications
between the parties;

Interviewed personnel involved with TEP planning, engineering and design,
purchasing and contracting, construction, and project management to verify
that the projects were completed as required and to ascertain the amount of

labor time employees spent on the projects;

Identified scope changes made to the TEP plans and assessed the impact of
changes on project cost and expected performance of the transmission system;

Examined a samplé of information that Potomac Economics relied on to
conclude that the TEPs were placed into service. This information included
data from the supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system on the
operation of the constructed projects and associated work orders;

Analyzed photographs of TEP equipment nameplates for asset identification
and facility ratings for a sample of major equipment installed, and compared
nameplate information to construction work orders and internal company
correspondence related to the TEPs;

Reviewed Duke Companies’ written procedures that governed implementation
of the power sales agreements required by the Commission’s interim market
power mitigation measures. Also, interviewed personnel tesponsible for
developing and implementing the agreeinents, and reviewed Potomac
Economics’ seasonal and event-based reports to the Commission on the
company’s performance under the agreements;

Analyzed a sample of transaction data on power sales DEC and DEP made
under thie power sale agreements and reviewed transmission schedules on the
Open Access Same-time Information System (OASIS) to verify the energy was
scheduled and delivered:
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e Interviewed power marketing personnel to gain information on operating
procedures and processes used to comply with the requirement to set aside firm
transmission capacity on the DEC-DEP interface (i.e., Stub Mitigation
requirement);

e Reviewed Potomac Economics’ reports on the Stub Mitigation requirement
and analyzed a sample of data from OASIS regarding transniissiall offerings
and requests for firm transmission service on the DEC-DEP interface;

» Evaluated the DEC-DEP Joint Dispatch Agreement (JDA) and associated
operating procedures to understand the methods used to forecast load and
determine the mix of generating resources needed to meet load demand on
daily and weekly bases;

¢ Interviewed power marketing employees responsible for scheduling power
between the DEC and DEP.BA As, and examined a sample of transactions that
involved dispatch of generating resources, reserving and scheduling
transmission service consistent with the JDA, and operating the respective
BAASs separately. Also, tested a sample of QASIS transmission reservations

~ and schedules to evaluate DEC and DEP’s reservations of point-to-point and

network transmission service to transmit energy and capacity between the two
BAAs; and

e Identified instances in which DEC and DEP used network transmission to
deliver power to themr respective BAAs, and evaluated these transactions to
assess compliance with conditions that restricted certain transactions in the
BAAs.

Transmission Formula Rates

To evaluate compliance with the requirements of each company’s transmission
formula rate tariff, audit staff:

¢ Reviewed the initial applications filed seeking approval of each company’s
transmission formula rate tariff, intervenor responses to the filings, any
associated settlement agreements with wholesale customers.and interested
parties, and the Commission orders that approved the transmission formula rate
tariffs;

e Examined the transmission formula rate templates and all appendices and
attachments used to compute key inputs to the annual transmission revenue
requirement and associated formula rate protocols;
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Interviewed einployees responsible for populating each public utility’s
transmission formula rate template, verifying data and calculations, and
reviewing and obtaining management approval of the calculated transmission
service rates;

Assessed the adequacy of management oversight and verification controls that
support performance of key activities;

Evaluated data responses and conducted conference calls to understand the
accounting for major items affecting the formula rate, including miscellaneous
deferred debits, income taxes, and others. Also, reviewed these items to
determine compliance with relevant accounting regulations, instructions, and
definitions;

Reviewed annual informational and true-up filings submitted after the initial
rate years and during the audit period. Reeonciled the Form No. 1 data with
formula rate calculations and evaluated discrepancies. Conducted a detailed
analysis of supporting worksheets and attachments to evaluate the calculation
of transmission formula rate inputs;

Analyzed footnotes included in each company’s Form No. I to determine
whether information disclosed provided for a reconciliation of publicly
available data to balances used to calculate the transmission service rates;

Performed procedures to verify that transmission formula rate inputs were
supported by data reported in each company’s Form No. 1;

Evaluated the companies’ accounting for merger transaction costs by assessing
documented policies, operating processes, and procedures, and tested a sample
of inveices and work orders that included merger activities and associated.
costs. Analyzed the accounting for the costs and the impact on transmission
Tate determinations;

Checked plant balances used to calculate transmission revenue requirements,
sampled work order charges included in construetion work in progress and
plant balances, and performed tests on amortized pre-commercial costs;

Tested a sample of depreciation accruals on utility plant to assess the
depreciation rates applied to the plant; and
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¢ Performed substantive tests on a sample of invoices and work orders that
included nonutility expenses, and evaluated the impact of identified
misclassified items on transmission rate determinations.

Accounting and Reporting

To evaluate compliance with the Commission’s accounting and reporting
regulations in the USofA under 18 C.F.R. Parts 101 and 141, audit staff performed the
following with respect to the merger:

e Conducted interviews and teleconferences and met with company staff to
discuss accounting policies, procedures, and practices. These interviews
included discussions with employees involved in the operation of each public
utility subsidiary’s financial accounting systems to assess the adequacy of
accounting and reporting oversight controls related to the merger, and
employees in leadership positions responsible for day-to-day oversight of
merger activities to understand how merger-related labor was reported on
timesheets;

e Examined procedures for preparing, reviewing, and obtaining management
approval of the Form No. 1 reperts. Reviewed disclosures in the reports to
‘understand major accounting policies;

s Reviewed and evaluated the processes, procedures, and controls the companies
used before and after merger consummation to track and account for merger
transaction costs;

o Evaluated the Form No. 1 and Securities and Exchange Commission 10-K
notes and disclosures related to tracking, accounting, and reporting merger
transaction costs;

e Analyzed the companies’ accounting entries that recorded merger-related
labor, goodwill, TEP project costs and impairments, and the income tax effects
of the transaction;

o Reviewed third-party lobbying expenditure disclosures, press articles, meeting
schedules, and agendas of internal lobbyists. Interviewed intermnal lobbyists
and support staff to understand the nature and extent of the companies’
lobbying activities;
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Tested a sample of work orders, invoices, and associated accounting detail
records that support internal lobbyists’ labor costs incurred;

Assessed the impact on wholesale rates of merger and othér costs incurred by
the companies that were reported in the Form No. 1;

Tested a sample of FERC accounts for compliance with the Merger Order as
well as the companies’ internal pelicies and procedures; and

Evaluated certain income statement and balance sheet accounts and balances
reported in the compames” Form No. 1 reports for 2012 through 2014.
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IV. Findings and Recommendations
1. Accounting for Merger Transaction Costs

Duke Companies did not file merger transaction accounting entries with the
Commission as required by the Merger Order, and the companies recorded merger
transaction costs in operating accounts, contrary to the Commission’s.long-standing
policy that such costs be recorded in nonoperating accounts. By iiot filing the accounting
entries, Duke Companies prevented Commission review of the merger accounting and
correction of any entries that were not in accordance with Commission accounting
requirements. ‘

Pertinent Guidance

The Commission’s September 30, 2011 order conditionally authorizing the
Proposed Transaction established the following requirement concerning the submission
of accounting entries related to the merger:

To the extent any applicant that is subject to the Commission’s Uniform
System of Accounts records any aspect of the Proposed Transaction in its
accounts, it is directed to file its accounting entries with the Commission
within six months of the consummation of the Proposed Transaction.
Further, if the accounting entities are recorded six months after the
consummation of the Proposed Transaction, the applicant must file those
accounting entries with the Commission within 60 days from the date they
were recorded. The accounting submission must provide all accounting
entries related to the Proposed Transaction, including narrative ’
explanations describing the basis, and the rate impact, of such entries R

The Commission’s long-standing precedent stipulates that transaction costs
incurred by public utilities associated with a merger are nonoperating in nature and
should be charged to Account 426.5, Other Deductions, to the extent the costs are
not retained by the parent holding company. For example, in Allegheny Energy,
Inc., the Commission stated in part:

The Commission has previously determined that merger transaction costs
arc considered non-operating in nature and should be recorded in

' Merger Order, 136 FERC 9 61,245 at P 190.
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Account 426.5, Other Deductions.
18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 426.5, Other Deductions, states:

This account shall include ather miscellancous expenses which are
nonoperating in nature, but which are properly deductible before
determining total income before interest charges.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, General Instruction No. 5, Submittal of Questions,
states:

To maintain uniformity of accounting, utilities shall submit questions of
doubtful interpretation to the Commission for consideration and decision.

Background

In the Merger Order, the Commission authorized Duke Companies to
inerge, subject to conditions. With respect to accounting, the Merger Order stated
that if any Duke Energy subsidiary subject to the USofA recorded any aspect of
the merger on its books, the subsidiary must file the accounting entries with the
Commission within 60 days of consummation of the transaction. The Commission
noted that such accounting entries include entries related to transaction costs,
merger lzjuremiums? acquisition adjustments, goodwill, or any cost related to the
merger.

Moreover, pursuant to long-standing Commission precedent, merger
transaction costs are considered nonoperating in nature and are required to be
recorded to Account 426.5, Other Deductions. The text of Account 426.5 states
that the account shall include expenses that are honoperating in nature. Audit staff’
evaluated Duke Companies’ accounting for the merger and found that the
companies recorded merger transaction costs on their books. Further, contrary to
the requirements of the Merger Order and Commission accounting rules, Duke
Companies neither filed accounting entries with the Commission that reflected the
recording of the transaction costs on the companies’ books nor accounted for
nonoperating merger transaction costs in Account 426.5.

¥ See Allegheny Energy, Inc., 133 FERC 1 61,222, at P 73 (2010). See also
Midwest Power Systems, Inc. and Iowa-Illinois Gas and Elec. Co., 71 FERC 7 61,386, at
62,509 (1995); MiddAmerican Energy Co. and MidAmerican Energy Holdings Co., 85
FERC 4 61,354, at 62,370 (1998); and Wis. Elec. Power Co., 74 FERC ] 61,069, at
61,192 (1996).

* Merger Order, 136 FERC 9 61,245 at n. 414.
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Duke Companies collectively incurred over $1 billion in merger costs and
recorded the costs on their Form No. 1 reports from 2011 through October 30, 2015. The
costs were accounted for in numerous operating plant and expense accounts, including;
A&G expense; payroll tax; customer account expense; transmission, distribution, and
production operating and maintenance expense; and other accounts.

Duke Energy explained that it interpreted the Merger Order to require submittal of
accounting entries only if a subsidiary used the purchase method of accounting and
increased the book value of assets for goodwill acquired in the transaction. However, the
Merger Order did not require the companies to file accounting entries only if they used
the purchase method of accounting or increased the book value of assets for goodwill. To
the contrary, the Merger Order stated that if any entity subject to the USofA recorded any
aspect of the merger on its books, it must file its accounting entries with the Commission.
The Merger Order further clarified that such accounting entries included entries related to
transaction costs, merger premiums, acquisition adjustments, goodwill, or any cost
related to the merger.

All of Duke Energy’s public utility subsidiaries were subject to the Commission’s
USofA, therefore the companies should have filed accounting entries. By not filing the
accounting entries, Duke Companies prevented Commission review of the merger
accounting and correction of any entries not in accordance with Commission accounting
requirements.

Furthermore, Duke Companies should have recorded merger transaction costs
incurred to effectuate the merger in Account 426.5 rather than in operating accounts
consistent with the text of Account 426.5 and Commission precedent.”” Audit staff found
that prior to March 2012, both Duke Energy and Progress Energy recorded merger
transaction costs in operating accounts. However, in March 2012, Progress Energy
transferred its merger transaction costs to Account 426.5, due to its interpretation of a
Commission merger order that required such accounting. Duke Energy did not
implement a similar reclassification of its merger transaction costs. Duke Energy
explained that it believed costs associated with the merger were appropriately recorded in
operating accounts.

* Post-merger integration cost (i.e., cost incurred following consummation of a
merger, in which the assets, personnel, and business activities of the entities participating
in the merger are combined) are recordable to operating accounts; however, the cost
would be subject to the Commission’s hold harmless commitments and prohibited from
recovery in jurisdictional rates.
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In April 2012, Duke Energy’s external auditors questioned its accounting of the
merger transaction costs. The external auditors informed Duke Energy of the
Commission’s mierger accounting policy, which the auditors interpréted as requiring
merger transaction costs to be recorded below-the-line in Account 426.5. Duke Energy
disagreed with the auditors’ interpretation. Rather than adjusting its accounting, Duke
Energy and its external auditors agreed that Duke Energy’s management representation
letter would be revised. The letter is a signed attestation by Duke Enetgy management of
the accuracy of its financial statements. The letier was revised to include a statement that
Duke Energy was aware of Commission orders that indicated merger transaction costs
should be recorded in Account 426.5, but Duke Energy nonetheless believed that its
classification of merger transaction costs in operating accounts -was appropriate.

The Duke Companies were required to file the accountmg entries with the
Commission as directed in the Merger Order. The companies® improper accounting for
merger transaction costs contributed to the inappropriate recovery of merger-related
internal labor and eutside service costs through charges to Commission-jurisdictional
customers. To the extent Duke Companies was uncertain about the appropriate
accounting for the transaction, the companies should have submitted accounting
questions of doubtful interpretation to the Commission for consideration and decision.
The Commission expects Duke Companies, and all entities that have a reporting
requirement for transactions under FPA section 203, to fully comply with the orders
approving such transactions. Duke Companies’ lack of compliance with the Merger
Order reporting requirement is a very serious matter.

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Compantes:

1. Revise accounting policies and procedures to appropriately account for merger
transactions consistent with Commission accounting requireinents.

2. Develop written policies and procedures to timely identify proposed accounting
transactions that would trigger a notification to (hie Commission.

3. Develop written policies and procedures to submit accounting questions of
doubtful interpretation to the Commission.

4. Provide training to employees on compliance with the merger cost accounting
conditions and the revised policies, procedures, and controls for cornply"ing with
the conditions. Also, develop a training program that supports the provision of
periodic training in this area.



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(i) Attachment
Page 31 of 69

2. Merger Transaction Internal Labor Costs

Duke Companies improperly included approximately $31.4 million of merger
transaction internal labor costs in wholesale power and transmission formula rate service
cost determinations without first submitting a section 205 filing demonstrating that the
costs were offset by quantified savings produced by the merger. As a result, the
wholesale power and transmission customers’ revenue requirements were inappropriately
overstated by an estimated $17.5 million.

Pertinent Guidance
The Commission’s Merger Order states in part:

We accept Applicants’ commitment to hold transmission and wholesale
requirements customers harmless for five years from costs related to the
Proposed Transaction. We interpret Applicants’ held harmless
commitment to include all transaction-related costs, not only costs related
to consummating the transaction.

If Applicants seek to recover transaction-related costs through their
wholesale power or transmission rates within the next five years, they must
submit a compliance filing that details how they are satisfying the hold
harmless requirement. If Applicants seek to recover transaction-related
costs in an existing formula rate that allows for such recovery within the
next five years, then that compliance filing must be filed in the section 205
docket in which the formula rate was approved by the Commission, as well
as in the-instant section 203 docket. In such filings, Applicants must:

(1) specifically identify the transaction-related costs they are seeking to
recover; and (2) demonstrate that those costs are exceeded by quantified
savings resulting from the transaction, in addition to any requirements
agsociated with filings made under section 205.%

The Commission’s June 8, 2012 order accepting Duke Companiés’ revised
compltance filing states in part:

[ T]he Commission will require Applicants to hold transmission and wholesale
requirements customers harmless from the costs of the Transmission Expansion
Projects in accordance with the hold harmless commitment, as set forth in the
Merger Order.?

2 Merger Order, 136 FERC ¥ 61,245 at PP 169-170.
2 Tune 8 Compliauce Order, 139 FERC q 61,194 at P 1.
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The Commission’s October 29, 2014 order denying rehearing and granting a
motion to supplement compliance filing states in part:

[T]he Commission requires Applicants to hold transmission and wholesale

requirements customers harmless for five years from costs related to the Phase
Shifters.

Background

On April 4, 2011, Duke Energy, Progress Energy, and their public utility
subsidiaries (collectively, Duke Companies) filed an application seeking Commission
authorization of a proposal to merge under section 203 of the FPA and Part 33 of
Commission regulations. In the application, Duke Companies committed to exclude
costs related to the merger from transmission and wholesale requirements customers’
rates, except to the extent the companies demonstrated in a section 205 rate filing that
merger-related savings were equal to or in excess of merger costs included in the rate
filing. On September 30, 2011, the Commission issued an order authorizing Duke
Companies to merge subject to conditions. Among other things, the Coimmmission
conditioned authorization on Duke Companies maintaining its cotnmitment o hold
‘merger. Pursuant to this condition, “[a]ll iransaction related costs, not only costs related
to consummating the transaction,” were required to be excluded from rates ‘charged,zs To
determine if Duke Companies complied with the hold harmless requirement, audit staff
examined the companies’ procedures for tracking and accounting for merger costs, and
excluding the costs from rates.

To track costs incurred due to the merger, the companies established special
accounting processes and procedures. Audit staff found that Duke Energy and Progress
Energy did not account for merger-costs using the same accounting treatment prior to
consummation of the merger. Prior to consummation of the merger, Duke Energy
accounted for merger transaction costs in above-the-line operating accounts, whereas
Progress Encrgy accounted for the costs below-the-line in Account 426.5, Other
Deductions.?® However, after consummation of the merger, Progress Energy adopted
Duke Energy’s internal accounting policy for merger transaction costs and thereafter
began accounting for incutred merger transaction costs in operating accounts.

2 October 29 Compliance Order, 149 FERC 61,078 at P 81.
# Merger Order, 136 FERC § 61,245 at P 169.

% Account 426.5, Other Deductions, 18 C.F.R. Part 101 (2015), provides for the
recording of expenses that are nonoperating in nature, but which are properly deductible
before determining total income before interest charges.
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Duke Energy devised and distributed instructions to its public utility subsidiaries
regarding accounting for merger costs, which it characterized as Costs to Achieve (CTA)
the merger. Duke Energy defined CTA as “costs that are incremental and nonrecurring
that would otherwise not have been incurred but for the merger or integration planning
efforts.””” The CTA instructions identified the accounting codes to be used to account
for and track merger costs. The codes included the business and operating unit that
incurred the cost, process, task, project ID, and other details associated with activities that
involved the incurrence of merger costs. The CTA instructions were communicated to
managers and staff assigned to work on the merger, and employees were trained on use of
the accounting codes. Duke Energy’s shared services accounting group retrieved merger
cost data from the general ledgers of the public utility subsidiaries, reviewed charges for
reasonableness, and compared actual and budgeted costs as part of its monthly reporting
process.

Duke Energy’s shared services accounting group developed additional procedures
to exclude certain merger costs from wholesale power and transmission formula rate
determinations of the public utility subsidiaries. The procedures included preparation of
monthly spreadsheets identifying merger costs included in each subsidiary’s operating
accounts as reported in the Form No. 1, The rate staff of each public utility subsidiary
was instructed to subtract the merger costs from operating accounts in the Form No. 1
that were used to compute the company’s transmission formula rate. The procedures
were designed to prevent therger costs reported in operating accounts from being
incorporated in wholesale power and transmission formula rate determinations.

As a result of these procedures under which merger-related internal labor costs
were not treated as CTA, audit staff found that Duke Companies” wholesale power and
transmission customers’ revenue requirements were inappropriately overstated by an
estimated $17.5 million due to the inclusion of merger transaction internal labor costs in
wholesile power and transmission rate determinations without first making a section 205
filing with the Comnission as the Merger Order required. The improper charges
included an estimated $17.2 million through inclusion of internal labor costs incurred in
merger transaction and integration activities, and .over $300,000 through inclusion of

*7 This included costs incurred in developing, executing, and obtaining approvals
for the merger as well as incremental integration costs, but did not include merger-related
internal labor costs Duke Companies considered non-incremental. For example, the costs
included severance payments, employee relocation and retention costs, bonuses paid to
employecs for their work on the merger, investment banking and advisory fees, state and
Federal regulatory expenses, costs for integrating accounting and information technology
systemns, transmission systems, fuel and dispatch systems, as well as transition costs,
mitigation/concession costs, deprematlon expenses for merger projects, and fees paid to
providers of transmission service between the regulated utilities.
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internal labor costs incurred to construct and operate the transmission expansion projects
(TEPs), and repair and operate the Rockingham phase shitters.

Merger Transaction Internal Labor

During fieldwork, audit staff determined that Duke Energy excluded merger
transaction internal labor from its definition of CTA and its CTA coding procedures.
Duke Energy acknowledged that employees spent substantial time on merger activities,
However, the company contended that employees performed merger activities in addition
to their regular responsibilities and, therefore, no incremental internal labor costs were
incurred due to the merger. Based on a belief that the hold harmless obligation applied
only to incremenial merger costs, Duke Energy instructed employees not to use the
special CTA codes to report time devoted to merger activities on their timesheets.
Consequently, public utility subsidiaries did not track all merger transaction internal labor
costs or exclude all such costs from wholesale power and transmission formula rate cost
computations. As a result, the subsidiaries improperly included some merger transaction
internal labor costs in wholesale power and transmission formula rate determinations and
inappropriately charged the costs to customers.

Contrary to Duke Energy’s interpretation, the Merger Order required Duke
Companies to hold customers harmless from “a// merger transaction costs,” and did not
limit this requirement only to costs Duke Energy considered incremental. Duke
Energy’s assertion that its hold harmless obligation extended only to incremental costs
must be made within a section 205 proceeding where it and other interested parties will
have an opportunity to assess all evidence that supports or contradicts such a position.
By excluding internal labor from its CTA tracking and reporting procedures, Duke
‘Energy did not have the ability to determine the proportion of employee labor costs
devoted to merger-related tasks, as opposed to utility-related tasks, the cost of which are
appropriately recovered in rates. Moreover, even in the absence of detailed time
reporting and accounting data, the companies were nonetheless prohibited from including
‘these merger transaction costs in rate determinations without first receiving Commission
authorization to do so in a section 205 proceeding in accordance with Merger Order
requirements. |

Since Duke Companies did not track all merger transaction internal labor costs,
audit staff issued data requests and interviewed company employees during site visits and
conference calls to develop its own estimate of the amount of merger transaction internal
labor costs Duke Companies incurréed and included in transmission formula rate charges.
The information audit staff obtained confirmed that company employees spent substantial
amounts of time working on the merger, as Duke Energy acknowledged. For example,
Duke Energy repoited in data responses that over 2,400 employees were engaged in
merger activities from mid-2010 through present. The total included more than 2,300
employees who participated in over 300 merger integration projects performed to
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upgrade and integrate the companies’ information technology, human resources, finance,
and accounting systems and functions. About 140 employees were engaged in merger
planning and evaluation, preparing and supporting merger applications and post-merger
litigation, and developing and implementing measures to mitigate market power due to
the merger. Audit staff found through assessment of data response information and
interviews of company staff, that certain of these employees worked full time on the
merger for the duration of their projects, while others devoted 50 percent or more of their
time to assigned merger activities. Moreover, detailed analysis of integration projects
with the largest budgets indicated that the assigned employees were heavily engaged in
the projects for prolonged periods of time.

Audit staff used this information, interviews with employees engaged in merger
activities, employees’ salary mformation procured from data responses, and salary
estimates found on publicly available sources to approximate the amount of internal labor
costs incured due to the merger. Audit staff estimated that the Duke Companies incurred
between $55 million and $75 million of internal labor costs related to the merger,
including salaries and benefits.

Audit staff then asked Duke Energy to provide its own estimate of the internal
labor costs associated with each merger activity and a breakdown by FERC account. As
the table below shows, Duke Energy estimated that $78.8 million in merger transaction
internal labor costs were incurred to perform four pnimary merger tasks. Duke Energy’s
estimate exceeded audit staff’s high-range estimate of internal labor costs.

Merger Planning, Evaluation; Due Diligence

Preparation and Support for Reguiatory
Applications and Post-Merger Litigation 3.9 0.2
Development and Implementation of
Measures to Mitigate Market Power 0.6 0.03

Planning, Management, and Execution of
Merget | ratiol je

Of the $78.8 million in merger transaction internal labor costs estimated by Duke
Energy, about $1.6 million of the costs were recorded in distribution operating and
maintenance expense accounts that were not included in Commission-jurisdictional rate
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determinations, and $31.4 million was recorded in production and transmission operating.
and maintenance expense accounts incorporated in wholesale power and transmission
formula rates. Duke Energy estimated that wholesale power and transmission customers’
revenue requirements were inappropriately overstated by an estimated $17.2 million. **

The remaining $45.8 million in merger transaction internal labor costs were charged to
capital work orders for integration projects that are under construction and not yet
completed. Duke Energy represented that these costs have been classified as CTA, and
will be excluded from wholesale power and transmission formula rates when the projects
are completed.

By including these merger-related tasks in its definition of CTA, Duke Energy
acknowledged that the merger activities employees performed would not have been
required in the absence of the merger. Since the work was not related to utility service,
employee time engaged on the merger should have been excluded from transmission
formula rate determinations, In accordance with the hold harmless commitment, to
recover merger costs in their wholesale power or transmission rates, the companies were
required to submit a section 205 filing with the Commission detailing costs to be
recovered and demonstrating that the costs were offset by quantified savings preduced by
the merger. Duke Companies did not submit a section 205 filing; therefore, the
companies should not have recovered the costs in rates charged.

TEP Operating Expenses

Duke Energy’s public utility subsidiaries included an estimated $300,000 of
merger transaction internal labor costs in the transmission customers” formula rate
revenue requirement for costs related to the TEP projects from 2012 through 2015. This
amount was incurred to repair and operate the Rockingham phase shifters. The $300,000
was recorded as transmission maintenance expenses in Account 570, Maintenance of
Station Equipment. In accordance with Duke Companies’ internal accounting policy, the
companies neither characterize the costs as merger-related CTA nor exclude the costs
from transmission formula rate determinations. As a result, the $300,000 was included in
transmission formula rates, and thus a portion of these costs was inappropriately charged
to transmission customers,

In its June 8 and October 29 Compliance Orders, the Commission explicitly
~ directed Duke Companies to hold customers harmless from all costs related to the TEPs

?% During the audit, DEC and DEP had about 20 wholesale power customers under
service contracts with cost-based rates determined under a formula to which merger
transaction internal labor costs were incorporated. As a result, a portion of the merger
transaction labor costs included in the formula was charged to wholesale power
customers.
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and the Rockingham phase shifters, consistent with the hold harmless commitment
established in the Merger Order. Duke Companies should not have included these
internal labor charges in transmission formula rate determinations without first
submitting a section 205 filing to the Commission that demonstrated that the costs were
offset by quantified savings produced by the merger.

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Companies:

5. Revise all policies and procedures for tracking, accounting, and excluding merger
transaction costs from wholesale power and transmission formula rates, including
amounts previously charged to utility plant, accumulated deferred income taxes,
construction work in progress with the associated capitalized cost of funds used
during construction (AFUDC), and maintenance and operating expense accounts,
and future charges to such accounts for any transaction to which a FERC hold
harmless obligation applies. The revised procedures should hold customers
harmless from all merger transactiori costs consistent with requirements of the
Merger Order. Among other things, the revised policies and procedures should
include an annual review of each subsidiary’s merger transaction cost adjustments
as well as periodic evaluations within the year, as needed and appropriate.

6. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to
DAA for review that cxplains and details the following: (1) calculation of refunds
that include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from the inclusion
of merger transaction internal labor and related costs in wholesale power and
transmission formula rates during the audit period, plus interest on the costs;

{2) determinative components of the refund; (3) refund method; and (4) period(s)
refunds will be made.

7. File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.

8. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19a
of Commission regulations.
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3. Merger Transaction Outside Services and Related Costs

Duke Companies incorrectly included $1.5 million of merger transaction outside
services and related costs in wholesale power and transmission formula rate service cost
determinations without first submitting a section 205 application demonstrating the costs
were offset by quantified savings produced by the merger. In addition, the companies
recorded the merger transaction costs in operating accounts, contrary to the
Commission’s long-standing policy that such costs be recorded in nonoperating accounts.
As a result, the wholesale power and transmission customiers’ revenue requirements were
inappropriately overstated by an estimated $745,000.

Pertinent Guidance
The Cominission’s Merger Order states in part:

We accept Applicants’ commitment to hold transiission and wholesale
requirements customers harmless for five years from costs related to the
Proposed Transaction. We interpret Applicants’ hold harmless
commitiment to include all transaction-related costs, not only costs related
to consummating the transaction.

Tf Applicants seek to recover transaction-related costs through their
wholesale power or transmission rates within the next five years, they must
submit a compliance filing that details how they are satisfying the hold
harmless requirement. If Applicants seek to recover transaction-related
costs in an existing formula rate that allows for such recovery within the
next five years, then that compliance filing must be filed in the section 205
docket in which the formula rate was approved by the Commission, as well
as in the instant section 203 docket. In such filings, Applicants must:

(1) specifically identify the transaction-related costs they are seeking to
recover; and (2) demonstrate that those costs are exceeded by quantified
savings resulting from the transaction, in addition to any requirements
associated with filings made under section 205.%

The Commission’s long-standing precedent stipulates that transaction costs
incurred by public utilities associated with a merger are nonoperating in nature and
should be charged to Account 426.5, Other Deductions, to the extent the costs are not
passed on to the parent holding company. For example, in Allegheny Energy, Inc., the
Commission stated in part:

* Merger Order, 136 FERC 9 61,245 at PP 169-170.
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The Commission has previously determined that merger transaction costs are
considered non-operating in nature and should be recorded in Account 426.5,
Other Deductions.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 426.5, Other Deductions, states:

This account shall include other miscellaneous expenses which are nonoperating
in nature, but which are properly deductible before determining total income
before interest charges.

Background

In the process of evaluating Duke Companies’ compliance with the hold harmless
commitment, audit staff issued data requests and interviewed company employees
regarding the accounting and formula rate impact of activities engaged prior to and after
public announcement of the merger, such as outside service costs incurred to facilitate the
merger and associated internal corporate costs. In reviewing materials received, audit
staff found that Duke Energy’s corporate development group incurred over $1.5 million
in merger transaction costs in the second half of 2010 (i.c., prior to the merger
announcement in January 2011) and allocated those costs to its then public utility
subsidiaries ~ DEC, DEIL, DEO, and DEK — prior to consummation of the merger.

The costs included $1.35 million paid to outside consultants, lawyers, and
accountants for financial forecasting, analysis of market power issues and related
services, and $150,000 of inteinal labor and other costs related to this work. The
subsidiary companies improperly recorded the merger transaction outside service costs in
Account 923, Outside Services Employed, and most of the associated internal labor and
other costs in Account 920, Administrative and General Salaries. Account balances
reported in each company’s Form No, 1 were-included in the determination of the
company’s whaolesale power and transmission formula rate service charges.

DEC, DE], DEQ, and DEK reported these costs in their respective 2010
Form No. 1 reports. The companies neither characterized the costs as merger-related
CTA following the merger announcement and issuance of the Merger Order, nor
excluded the costs from wholesale power and transmission formula rate determinations in
2011 or subsequent years.

0 See Allegheny Energy, Inc., 133 FERC § 61,222 at P 73 (2010). See also
Midwest Power Systems, Inc. and Iowa-Illinois Gas and Elec. Co., 71 FERC 761,386, at.
62,509 (1995); MidAdmerican Energy Co. and Middmerican Energy Holdings Co., 85
FERC § 61,354, at 62,370 (1998); and Wis. Elec. Power Co., 74 FERC § 61,069, at
61,192 (1596).
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Pursuant to the hold harmless commitment, the companies should nat have
included the $1.5 million in merger transaction costs in wholesale ratc determinations
without first submitting a section 205 filing to the Commission that demenstrated the
costs were offset by quantified savings produced by the merger. Moreover, pursuant to
long-standing Commission precedent, the merger transaction costs the companies
recorded in Accounts 920 and 923 are considered nonoperating in nature and, as such,
were required to be recorded to Account 426.5. The text of Account 426.5 states that the
account shall include expenses that are nonoperating in nature. Duke Energy estimated
that wholesale power and transimission customers’ revenue requirements were.
inappropriately overstated $745,000.

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Companics:

9. Revise accounting policies and procedures to appropriately account for merger
transaction costs consistent with Comimission accounting requirements.

10. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to
DAA for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of refunds
that include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from the inclusion
of merger transaction outside services and related costs in wholesale power and
transmission formula rate charges during the audit period, plus interest on the
costs; (2) determinative components of the refund; (3) refund method; and
(4) period(s) refunds will be made.

11.File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.

12. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19a
of Cotnmussion regulations.
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Use of the Consolidated Method of Accounting

DEC and DEP accounted for investments in subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in

their Form No. 1 reports, contrary to the Commission’s long-standing accounting policy.

Pertinent Guidance

Order No. 469 revised and amended sections of 18 C.F.R, Parts 101 and 201 to

adopt the equity method of accounting for long-term investments in subsidiaries and add
new balance sheet and income statement accounts, and definitions. Order No. 469 states
in part:

states:

Under the equity method of accounting, the utility’s investment account is
increased or decreased to reflect the utility’s proportionate share of a subsidiary’s
current earnings applicable to common stock regardless of whether the earnings
are actually paid out as dividénds to the utility. When dividends are received, the
investment account is reduced by an equivalent amount.”'

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account No. 123.1, Investment in Subsidiary Companies,

A, This account shall include the cost of Investments in securities issued or
assumed by subsidiary companies and investment advances to such
companies, including interest accrued thereon when such interest is not
subject to current settlement plus the equity in undistributed earnings or
losses of such subsidiary companies since acquisition. This account shall
be credited with any dividends declared by such subsidiaries.

B. This account shall be maintained in such a manner as to show separately
for each subsidiary: the cost of such investments in the securities of the
subsidiary at the time of acquisition; the amount of equity in the
subsidiary's undistributed net earnings or net losses since acquisition;
advances or loans to such subsidiary; and full particulars regarding any
such investments that are pledged.

' Revisions in the Uniform System of Accounts, and Annual Report Forms No.1

and No. 2 to Adopt the Equity Method of Accounting for Long-Term Investments in
Subsidiaries, Order No. 469, 49 FPC 326, reh’g denied, 49 FPC 1028 (1973).
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18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 216.1, Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary
Earnings, states:

This account shall include the balances, either debit or credit, of undistributed
retained earnings of subsidiary companies since their acquisition. When dividends
are received from subsidiary companies relating to amounts included in this
account, this account shall be debited and account 216, Unappropriated Retained
Earnings, credited.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account No. 418.1, Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary
Companies, states:

This account shall include the utility's equity in the earnings or losses of
subsidiary companies for the year.

Background

DEC and DEP formed wholly owned special purpose subsidiaries, Duke
Energy Receivables Finance Company, LLC (DERF) and Duke Energy Progress
Receivables, LLC (DEPR), respectively, in 2003 and 2013. The companies
accounted for their investments in the subsidiaries using the consolidated method
of accounting. Specifically, DEC consolidated DERF in its Form No. 1 reports
from 2003 through 2013; and DEP consolidated DEPR in its Form No. 1 in 2013.
The accounting resulted in the recognition of property, expenses, revenue, debt,
and equity of the subsidiaries in DEC and DEP’s respective Form No. 1 reports.
During the course of the audit, in 2014, the companies ceased accounting for their
investments in the subsidiaries using the consolidation method of accounting and
began using the equity method of accounting,

Prior to 2014, DEC and DEP’s accounting for their investments in the
subsidiaries was not consistent with the Comrnission’s accounting requirerments,
which required the companies to account for the investments using the equity
method of accounting. In accordance with the provisions of Order No. 469, the

_companies were required to account for the subsidiaries as investments in
Account 123.1, Investments in Associated Companies, and record equity in
carnings of the subsidiaries in Account 418.1, Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary
Companies, and undistributed retained earnings of the subsidiaries in
Account216.1, Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings.**

214
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On August 19, 2015, during the course of the audit, Duke Energy submitted
a request to the Commission on hehalf of the companies for retroactive and
prospective waivers of the equity method accounting requirement.” In the filing,
among other things, DEC and DEP acknowledged that they had inappropriately
accounted for investments in their subsidiaries using the consolidation method of
accounting, and improperly included the results of the subsidiaries’ operations in
cost of service formula rate determinations. On December 18, 2015, the
companies submiited a filing to the Commission under section 205 of the FPA
seeking approval of proposed amendments to the formula rates in their Joint
OATT and wholesale power agreements to provide for consolidation of the
subsidiaries for cost of service rate determination purposes.®

Duke Energy did not notify audit staff of the inappropriate consolidation
accounting, or of its request for waiver of the equity accounting requirements.
The company should have disclosed the erroneous accounting to audit staff when
it discovered the matter; which according to its representation occurred in late
2014. However, neither audit staff nor the Commission was notified of the
improper accounting and the associated rate impacts until August 2015. Duke
Energy’s lack of timely disclosure of DEC and DEP’s noncompliance with
Commission regulations is problematic. The company should take necessary steps
to ensure that its corporate compliance culture and program are strengthened to
prevent situations like this on a going forward basis.

3 Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, et al., Request for Waiver, Docket No..
AC15-174-000, (filed Aug. 19, 2015). The filing requested waivers of the equity
accounting requirement on behalf of DEC, DEP, and DEF, which formed a wholly
‘owned subsidiary Duke Energy Florida Receivables, LLC (DEFR) in 2014. The
Chief Accountant issued a delegated letter order on February 12, 2016 that granted
the requested waivers to the companies and directed specific accounting regarding
sales of accounts receivable. Duke Companies filed a request for rehearing of the
letter order on March 14, 2016.

M Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, et al., Docket Nos. ER16-577-000, ER16-578-
000, and ER16-579-000. The Comumission issued delegated letter orders on February 11,
2016, accepting for filing the amendments to the Joint OATT and rate schedules to
provide for DEC, DEP, and DEF’s use of the consolidated method of accounting for
ratemaking purposes.
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Recommendations
We recommend Duke Compantes;

13. Review and, as nceded, revise accounting policies, practices, and procedures to
ensure that investments in subsidiaries are accounted for consistent with the
Commission’s equity method accounting requirements.

14, Evaluate the accounting applied to Duke Companies’ existing subsidiaries and
notify DAA of any areas of noncompliance with Commission accounting
Tequirements.

15. Revise documented policies, procedures and processes to ensure timely notice is
provided to relevant regulators regarding instances of noncompliance with
regulations, rules, and orders. ~

16. Provide training to staff on procedures, practices, and available tools to
transparently or anonymously report instances of noncampliance to senior
management, the Board of Directors, and relevant regulators.
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5. Accounting for Sales of Accounts Receivable

DEC, DEP, and DEF misclassificd an estimated $94.7 million of nonoperating
expenses and receivables arising from transactions with their subsidiaries during the audit
period. As aresult, the wholesale power and transmission custoimers’ revemie
requirements were inappropriately overstated by an estimated $61 million.

Pertinent Guidance

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 930.2, Miscellancous General Expenses, states in
part:

This account shall include the cost of labor and expenses incurred in connection
with the general management of the utility not provided for elsewhere.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 426.5, Other Deductions, states in part:

This account shall include other miscellancous expenses which are nonoperating
in nature, but which are properly deductible before determining total income
before interest charges.

The Commission addressed the appropriate accounting for the sale of accounts
receivable in Opinion No. 375, which stated in part:

From an accounting standpoint, we find that the record supports the staff and
intervenors’ position — which the initial decision adopted — that the loss on the sale
of accounts receivable was erroneously recorded by SERI [System Energy
Resources, Inc.] in Account 930.2. . ..

Background

During audit fieldwork, audit staff analyzed data regarding transactions between
DEC, DEP, and DEF and the companies’ respective nonutility subsidiaries, DERF,
DEPR, and DEFR, and interviewed employees responsible for accounting for the
transactions, The transactions involved the comnpanies’ sales of accounts receivable to
their subsidiaries. The receivables arose from billings on sales of electricity and related
services by the companies. The companies sold the receivables to their subsidiaries at a
loss (or discount), and accounted for the loss as an expense by debiting Account 930.2,
Miscellaneous General Expenses, an account included in wholesale power and
transmission service cost:formula rate deterrainations, for the amount of the loss. DEC,

35 Svstem Energy Resources, Inc., 60 FERC 4 61,131 (1992).
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DEP, and DEF recognized total losses of $149.6 million, $35.1 million, and $23.5
million, respectively, from 2011 through 2014.

Audit staff also discovered that there were similar transactions involving sales of
accounts receivable by DEI, DEQ, and DEK to Cinergy Receivables, a Duke Energy
subsidiary. However, through discussions with audit staff, Duke Energy represented that
instead of recording fosses on sold receivables in Account 930.2, DEIL, DEOQ, and DEK
accounted for the losses in Account 904, Uncollectible Accounts, an account not included
in wholesale power or transmission service cost formula rate determinations.

DEC, DEP, and DEF performed collection services on behalf of their subsidiaries
associated with the sold receivables whereby the companies collected bill payments from
customers and remitted funds received to the subsidiaries. The companies charged the
subsidiaries a fee for performing the collection service, which effectively resulted in a
reimbursement of the collection service cost incurred by the companies. Expenses
incurred by the companies associated with performing the collection service were
accounted for by debiting the costs to Account 903, Customer Records and Collection
Expenses. These expenses were also accounted for as a debit in Account 930.2 that Duke
Energy represented was the fee billed to the subsidiaries for performing the collection
service. Asa result of this accounting, DEC, DEP, and DEF double-counted expenses in
their respective Form No. 1 reports associated with collection services performed.
Furthermore, the companies accounted for the reimbursements of their incurred
collection service expenses that resulted from their billed subsidiaries by crediting
Account 421, Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income.

Duke Companies’ accounting for the loss on the sale of the receivables was not
consistent with the Comumnission’s accounting requirements and precedent. Under the
Uniform System of Accounts (USofA), sales of accounts receivable constitute the
disposition of utility assets. The USofA contemplates that in transactions of this nature, a
company should recognize a gain or loss, measured by the difference between the net
book value of the asset at the date of the sale and the proceeds from the sale, less related
fees and expenses of the sale. Further, the USefA requires a company to record any gains
or losses froin the disposition of assets in nonoperating expense accounts, except with
respect to the sale of future use property.”® The instructions to Account 426.5, Other
Deductions, provide for the recording of nonoperating expenses of this nature.
Additionally, the Commission has previously addressed the matter of the appropriate

% With respect to future use property recorded in Account 105, Electric Plant Held
for Future Use, the USofA requires a company to include a gain on a sale in Account
411.6, Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant, and a loss in Account 411.7, Losses from
Disposition of Utility Plant.
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accounting for sales of receivables in its Opinion No. 375, wherein it was determined that
the loss on the sale of receivables should be accounted for in Account 426.5.%7

In addition, DEC, DEP, and DEF’s accounting for reimbursements of incurred
collection service expenses was not consistent with the Commission’s accounting
requirements. The USofA conteimplates that such reimbursements of collection service
expenses incurred by DEC, DEP, and DEF on behalf of their respective subsidiaries be
recorded as a reduction of the expenses. Accordingly, the companies should have
accounted for the reimbursements through a credit entry to the collection service
expenses recorded in Account 903.

Duke Energy represented that prior to 2014, DEC and DEP’s accounting for the
losses on the sales of receivables and collection service fees billed to the subsidiaries that
were recorded in Account 930.2 had no impact on service rates charged to wholesale
power and transmission formula rate customers due to accounting entries the companies
made associated with consolidation method accounting that offset the items and
neutralized the rate impact. Duke Energy indicated that the ¢companies made the
offsetting entries from the respective dates their subsidiaries were established and
transactions initiated through 2013.** However, in 2014, DEC and DEP ceased their
ptactice of using the consolidation method of accounting.® Cessation of consolidation
method accounting led the companies to end their practice of recording the offsetting
entries. Moreover, DEF established its subsidiary, DEFR, in 2014, and did not record
any accounting entries to offset its losses on the sales and collection service fees billed to
its subsidiary. As a result, rates charged by DEC, DEP, and DEF based on amounts
reported in the comnpanies’ respective 2014 Form No. ] reports included the nonoperating
losses and collection service fees that were misclassified in Account 930.2 and not offset
by other entries. This led to DEC, DEP, and DEF inappropriately including the losses
and fees of $38.1 million, $33.1 million, and $23.5 million, respectively, in rate
‘determinations,

The companies” accounting mistakes led to an estimated $94.7 million of costs
‘being inappropriately included in wholesale power and transmission formula rate service
cost determinations during the audit period. Duke Energy estimated that this resulted in
wholesale power and transmission customers’ revenue requirements being
inappropriately overstated by an estimated $61 million.

*7 System Energy Resources, Inc., 60 FERC 161,131 (1992).

3 DEC’s subsidiary, DERF, was established in 2003, and DEP’s subsidiary,
DEPR, was established in2013.

* See Finding No. 4, Consolidation Method of Accounting.
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On March 14, 2016, Duke Companies filed a request for rehearing of the
Chief Accountant letter order in Docket No. AC15-174-000 challenging the order’s
decision regarding the appropriate accounting for losses on the sale of receivables, which
1s also addressed by this Audit Finding. In light of the current challenge to the Chief
Accountant’s-order and uncertain outcome, as well as, the potential of a contested audit
over the identical issue, in this instance the portions of this Audit Finding that relate to
the losses issues, including Recomunendations 17 and 18, shall be held 1n abeyance and
shall be subject to the outcome of the rehearing request and any subsequent petitions for
court review. Although the recommendations regarding the portion of this Audit Finding
relating to the losses issues are held in abeyance and subject to the outcome of the
rehearing request and. any subsequéent petitions for court review, the requirement to make
refunds in accordance with Recommendation 21 below 1s not impacted by the rehearing
request,

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Companies:

17. Revise procedures to ensure that all costs and account balances associated with the
sale of accounts receivable are accounted for in accordance with Commission
accounting regulations. Among other things, the corrected accounting should

ensure that all losses associated with receivable sales are recorded in Account
426.5.

18. Provide the revised procedures to DAA for review within 60 days of receiving the
final audit report.

19. Recalculate charges to wholesale power and transmission customers of DEC,
DEP, and DEF and submit the recalculations in a refund analysis to DAA for
review within 60 days of receiving the final audit report. The refund analysis
should explain and detail the: (1) réturn of collection service billings charged in
2014; (2) return of losses on the sales included in rates; (3) determinative
components of the refund; (4) refund method; (5) period(s) refunds will be made;
and (6) interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19 of Commission
regulations,

20.File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.

21. Refund ainounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19a
of Commission regulations.
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6.  Accounting for Lobbying Expenses

Duke Companies recorded approximately $2.4 million of lobbying expenses in
above-the-line operating accounts from 2011 to 2013. As a consequence, Duke
Companies improperly included these costs in wholesale power and transmission formula
rate service cost determinations.

Pertinent Guidance

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 426.4, Expenditures for Certain Civic, Political, and
Related Activities, states in part:

This account shall include expenditures for the purpose of influencing
public opinion with respect to the election or appointment of public
officials, referenda, legislation, or ordinances . . . or approval, modification,
or revocation of franchises; or for the purpose of influencing the decisions
of public officials. . . .

Backgreund

Audit staff evaluated costs incurred by Duke Companies associated with civic,
political, and related activities during the audit period. Audit staff reviewed third-party
lobbying expenditure disclosures, press articles, internal lobbyist meeting schedules and
agendas, and interviewed internal lobbyists and support staff to understand the nature
and extent of the companies’ lobbying activities. In addition, audit staff tested a sample
of work orders, invoices, and associated accounting detail records that suppott internal
lobbyists® labor costs incurred. Audit staff discovered that Duke Companies improperly
recorded nearly $2.4 million in lobbying costs to above-the-line operating accounts
rather than to Account 426.4, Expenditures for Certain Civic, Pelitical, and Related
Activities, as required.

Account 426.4 provides for reporting expenditures for the purpose of influencing
public opinion, such as lobbying expenses. Audit staff found that Duke Companies
recorded a portion of these costs associated with wages and salaries of internal lobbyist
and support staff in Account 426.4 as required, but failed to properly charge other related
costs to the account associated with the labor, such as payroll taxes, retirement, health,
and other benefits. Audit staff also found that the companies incorrectly accounted for
amounts paid to outside firms that lobby on behalf of the companies. Duke C_ompanies
improperly included these expenses in wholesale power and transmission formula rate
determinations and recovered a portion of the costs through charges to customers.

Further, audit staff found that Duke Companies lacked formal procedures and
oversight controls to help ensure that lobbying costs were accounted for appropriately.



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(i) Attachment
Page 50 of 69

The companies should implement procedures to reduce the risk that lobbying costs are
nappropriately accounted for and included in jurisdictional rate determinations.

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Companies:

22. Establish and implement written procedures governing the methods used to account
for, track, report, and review lobbying costs incurred.

23. Provide training on Commission accounting requirements and the impact of
accounting on cost-of-service rate determinations to employe,e_s involved in
lobbying and lobbying-related work, and those with oversight résponsibility for
lobbying cost allocations. Also, develop a training program that supports the
pravision of periodic training in this area.

24. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to DAA
for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of refunds that
inciude the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from the improper
inclusion of lobbying costs in operating accounts during the audit period, plus
interest on the costs; (2) determinative components of the refund; (3) refund
method; and (4) period(s) refunds will be made.

25.File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessinent of the
refund analysis.

26.Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19a
of Commission regulations.
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7. Allocation of Lobbyist Labor Costs

Duke Companies accounted for the labor costs of internal lobbyists and their
support staff in operating accounts that lacked support for inclusion in the accounts.
Improper accounting for the costs can lead to inappropriate recovery of the costs through
rates charged and billed to customers. .

Pertinent Guidance

18 C.F.R. Part 101, General Instruction No. 9, Distribution of Pay and Expenses of
Employees, states:

The charges to electric plant, operating expense and other accounts for services
and expenses of employees engaged in activities chargeable to varous accounts,
such as construction, maintenance, and operations, shall be based upon the actual
time engaged in the respective classes of work, or in ¢ase that method is
impracticable, upon the basis of a study of the time actually engaged during a
representative period.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, General Instruction No. 10, Payroll Distribution, states:

Underlying accounting data shall be maintatned so that the distribution of the cost
of labor charged direct to the various accounts will be readily available. Such
underlying data shall permit a reasonably accurate distribution to be made of the
cost of labor charged initially to ¢learing accounts so that the total labor cost may
be classified among construction, cost of removal, electric operating functions
(steam generation, nuclear generation, hydraulic generation, transmission,
distribution, etc.) and nonutility operations.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 426.4, Expenditures for Certain Civic, Political, and
Related Activities, states in part:

This account shall include expenditures for the purpose of influencing
public opinion with respect to the election or appointment of public.
officials, referenda, legislation, or ordinances . . . or approval, modification,,
or revocation of franchises; or for the purpose of influencing the decisions
of public officials . . . .

Background
In connection with the evaluation of Duke Companies’ expcnditurés for lobbying

activities, audit staff discovered that the companies’ allocation of the labor costs of
internal lobbyists and their support staff was based in part on the amount of time that
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statc legislatures and Congress were in session. Duke Energy explained that these
entities were in session on average 180 days a year, and that lobbying activities of its
staff to influence legislation would typically be performed while the legislatures and
Congress were in session. This resulted in the companies using a default allocator that
charged 50 percent of lobbying costs above-the-line to operating accounts and 50 percent
below-the-line to Account 426.4, Expenditures for Certain Civic, Political, and Related
Activities.

Audit staff interviewed internal lobbyists and their support staff to understand
their roles and job assignments, and reviewed lobbyists’ schedules as documnented in
email, itineraries from industry conferences, and other materials. Duke Energy
represented that the companies’ internal lobbyist performed intermal corporate functions
such as (1) budgeting, (2) performance appraisals, (3) training, and (4) other activities.
However, audit staff could not determine based on documentation provided, that the
50/50 labor allocation split between above- and below-the-line accounting for lobbying
and related costs was accurate or reasonable. Moreover, audit staff discovered that the
companies neither had a formal oversight review process to assess the accuracy of the
labor allocations nor maintained documentation to support the allocations.

General Instructions No. 9, Distribution of Pay and Expenses of Employees, and
No. 10, Payroll Distribution, require public utilities to charge lobbying-related labor to
operations based on actual time engaged in utility operations or on a representative time
study, and to maintain data supporting distribution of the labor to operating costs. Audit
staff found that Duke Companies’ charges of lobbying and support staff labor to
operations were neither based on actual time engaged in utility operations nor derived
from representative time studies, as required. The companies also did not maintain data
supporting distribution of the costs to utility operations. Duke Companies” accounting
for lobbying labor time charges was not consistent with Commission accouiting
requirements and could have resulted in the inclusion of inappropriate costs in operating
accounts, and consequently, in charges to transinission service formula rate and
wholesale requirements customers. This could have led to the overcharging of wholesale
ratepayers.

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Companies:
27. Revise written policies and procedures to create a process to document and verify
appropriate allocation of lobbying and lobbying-related costs, and maintain

auditable support for the cost included in rate determinations.

28. Retain an independent third-party entity to conduct a representative labor time
study to determine an appropriate allocation of internal lobbyist labor, support



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(i) Attachment
Page 53 of 69

staff, and associated costs that should be accounted for in operating and
nonoperating accounts based on time spent by employees engaged in the activities.
Provide the study results to audit staff within 180 days of receiving the final audit
report.

29 Include the results of the laber time study in the detenmination of lobbying-related
labor cost allocations as of January 1, 201 6.

30. Implement policies and procedures to perform a labor time study at least
biennially using an independent third-party or internal company resources that are
able to attest to the results of the study. Revise the lobbying-related labor cost
allocations based on the results of the study.
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8. Nonutility Expenses in Operating Accounts

Duke Companies recorded approximately $490,000 of nonutility expenses in
operating accounts in 2014. As a result, inappropriate costs were included in wholesale
power and transmission formula rate service cost determinations and charged to
customers.

Pertinent Guidance
Accounting Release 12, Discriminatory Employment Practices, states in part:

Expenditures resulting from employment practices found to be
discriminatory by a judicial or administrative decree or that were the result
of a compromise settlement or consent decree are not just and reasonable
cost of utility operations and as such must be charged to nonoperating
expense accounts.

18 C.¥.R Part 101, Account 426.1, Donations, states:

This account shall include payments or donations for charitable, social, or
commutity welfare purposes.

18 C.F.R. Part 101, Account 426.5, Other Deductions, states:

This account shall include other miscellaneous expenses for which are non-
operating in nature, but which are properly deductible before determining total
income bhefore interest charges.

Background

Audit staff reviewed a sample of expenses charged to administrative and general
(A&G) accounts to determine whether the charges were accounted for in accordance
with Commission aceounting requirements. The sample included charges to Accounts
920, Administrative and General Salaries, 923, Outside Services Employed, and
926, Employee Pensions and Benefits, in 2012, Audit staff reviewed accounting records
and documentation supporting amounts reported in the accounts, such as invoices, work
orders, and billings. Audit staff also interviewed Duke Companies’ employees with
responsibility for documenting and accounting for costs reported in the accounts.

Audit staff’s review found that Duke Companies accounted for $100,000 of
expenditures resulting from employment practices found to be discriminatory as
operating expenses. However, in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Release 12, Discriminatory Employment Practices, expenses of this natuie should be
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accounted for as nonoperating expenses. Of the $100,000, audit staff found that $40,000
was improperly recorded to Account 923 and inappropriately included in transmission
formula rate determinations. The remaining $60,000 was incorrectly accounted for in
production and distribution operating accounts, including Accounts 519, Coolants and
Water, 524, Miscellaneous Nuclear Power Expenses, and 583, Overhead Line Expenses.
The costs should have been charged to Account 426.5, Other Deductions, consistent with
the instrictions of the account. Account 426.5 provides for recording expenses that are
nonoperating in nature, and are properly deductible before determining total income
before interest charges.

Further, audit staff also found that Duke Companies improperly charged about
$39,000 in costs related to donations and charitable contributions to above-the-line
operating accounts rather than Account 426.1, Donations, as required. Account 426.1
provides for reporting payments or donations for charitable, social, or community
welfare purposes. The sampled invoices that audit staff reviewed included expenditures
for charity-related activities that were improperly charged to operating accounts.

Because audit staff’s review involved a select, small sample of transactions out of
a larger population of transactions that involved expenses charged to Accounts 920, 923,
and 926, audit staff believes that review of a larger number of transactions charged to
these accounts may have revealed additional accounting errors that could have resulted in
inappropriate charges to wholesale power and transmission formula rate customers.
Duke Companies represented that they performed an analysis of all charges to the 300
series expense acconnts for April 2014 through December 2014, and estimated that they
incorrectly accounted for approximately $490,000 of costs in the accounts in 2014.
These errors are the result of Duke Companies’ lack of documented policies and
insufficient training of employees on Commission requirements pertaining to accounting
for nonoperating expenses. Employees with responsibility for recording expenses of this
nature should have knowledge of the importance of appropriate accounting and the
impact of improper accounting on rates charged through transmission formula rates.

Recommendations
We recommend Duke Companies:

31.Develop and implement written policies, procedures, and controls to ensure proper
accounting and reporting of nonutility expenses.

32.Provide training for employees involved in the invoicing process on Commission
accounting requirements and the impact of the accounting on cost-of-service rate
determinations.
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33. Within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, provide documentation
supporting the analysis performed of invoiced expenses recorded to A&G accounts
in 2014 that identified misclassified nonutility expenses included in A&G accounts.
Develop an estimate of misclassified nonutility expenses accounted for in operating
accounts in 2011 through 2013 and 2015.

34. Implement policies and procedures to provide periodic audits or reviews of A&G
transactions by external or internal auditors.

35. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, for
review to DAA that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of refunds
that include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from the improper
inclusion of 1dentified and estimated nonutility expenses in charges to wholesale
power and transmission customers during the audit petiod, plus interest on the
costs; (2) determinative components of the refund; (3) refund method; and
(4) period(s) refunds will be made. Include the results of the invoice analysis in the
refund analysis.

36. File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.

37. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and
transmission customers, with interest calculated in accordance with-section 35.19a
of Commission regulations.
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RESPONSE TO FINDINGS

In accordance with the procedures set forth in 18 C.F.R. 41.1, Duke Energy responds to each of
the findings as follows:

e Finding 1, Accounting for Merger Transaction Costs — Duke Companies did not
fite merger transaction accounling entries with the Commission as required by the
Merger Order, and Lhe companies recorded merger transaction costs in operating
accounts, contrary to the Commission’s long-standing policy that such costs be
recorded in nonoperating accounts. By not filing the accounting entries, Duke
Companies prevented Commission review of the merger accounting-and corrcction
of any entries that were not in accordance with Commission accounting
requircments.

Response: Duke Energy accepts this finding.

o Finding 2, Merger Transaction Internal Labior Costs — Duke Companies
improperly included approximately $31.4 million of merger transaction internal
Inbor cosis in wholesale power and transmission formula rate service cost _
determinations without first submitting a section 205 filing demonstrating that the
-cosls were offset by quantified savings produced by the merger. As a result, the
wholesale power and transmission customers’ revenue requirements were
inappropriately overstated an estimated $17.5 million.

Response: Duke Energy respectfully disagrees with this finding, but will not contest it. For the
purpose of establishing a complete record, Duke Energy explains its position as follows.

Duke Energy acknowladges its obligation to hold transmission and wholesale power customers
harmless for five years from costs related to the merger of Duke Energy and Progress Energy,
Inc. (the “Merger™).

Between the time of the Commission’s Merger Order issued on September 30, 2011 and the
closing of the Merger on July 2, 2012, Duke Energy determined that its hold harmless
commitment is intended to apply to costs caused by the Merger (“Incremental Costs”) and not to
costs that would have been incurred even in the absence of the Merger (*Non-Incremental
Costs™). No Commission orders squarely addressed this issue, and it seemed to be inherent in the
nature of @ hold harmless commitment that it would protect customers only from costs that they
would not have incurred otherwise.

On the basis of this togic, Duke Energy did not treat as transaction-related costs any portion of
the regular compensation that employees would have received in the absence of the Merger even
if the employees spent some of their time working on transaction-related activities. The company
would have paid those same salaries to the employees with or without the Merger. Thus the:
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regular compensation of employees was viewed as Non-Incremental Costs, On the other hand,
Duke l:.ncrgy did treal as transaction-related costs any compensation paid to employees that

would not have been incurred but for the Merger. For example, this included any bonuses paid to -
employees in recognition ol the extended hours many emp!oyees worked to Tulfill their regular
duties and to work on merger activiiies. It also included temporary employees and contraclors
hired to backfill for work that could not be absorbed in this manner, - These-costs were viewed as
Incremenlul Cosls and nccordmgly were cxcludcd irom FERC»Junsd;clionai rates.

Treatment ol"mternal lubor costs in the context ol' a ho!d hurmlcss obhgnhon was certamly not n
settied issue in early 2012 or even today. This uncerlamly was reflected in the Commission’s
natice of proposed Policy Statenieni on Hold Harniless Commumenr.r lssued January 22, 2015 in
Docket No. PL15-3. In this notice of proposcd policy statenient issued lwo nnd a halfl years afier
the closmg of the Mergcr, the Commtsston states as foliows |

.We propose lo cEanfy lhose coslts to whlch hold harmless commllmems wsll
appiy Although the Commission has provnded broad gundancc regarding the
cosls that should be covered under hold harmless -commitments, it has never
defined those eosts with much specificity, leading to inconsistency with respect to
this issve,”

The Commnssnon proposed to clarify that internal fabor costs should be trented as transaction-
relnted costs and stated as follows:

“If the duties of employees are not solely dedicated to activities related to a
transactlon internal labor costs deemed merger-related should be determined in a
manner that is proportionally equal to the amount of time spent on the merger
compared to other activities of the uuhty and lracked accordmgly n2

While thls pmpasal is clear on this issue, it is worth repeatmg that i it was issued two and a half
years ‘afler the Merger closed. It is also impa; ant lo note that it is _|ust a proposal at this tlmc
because the final policy statement has not been issued. In addition, some commenters -
speclﬁcnlly disagreed with this point.* Finally, the COITIITIISSIOH stated in the notice of prOposed
pohcy slatement lhat it would have prospcctwe eITect only

Notwtthstandmg Duke Energy s belief that its fallure to exc[ude from rates Non-lncremenla]
internal labor costs was ot a violation of any settled palicy and in fact was based on the most
reasonable interpretation of its hold harmless commitment, Duke Energy will not expend the
resources necessary to.contest this issue and will comply with all associated recommendations in
the audit report. Duke Energy reserves all rights in the event that the Commission issues an order

! ! Paragraph 16 of the notice of proposed policy statement,
2 Footnou: 4} ofthe notice of proposed policy stalemeat,

3 See the comments of Edison Electric Institute filed on March 30, 2015 at p. 15-16.
! paragraph 20 of the notice of proposed polu:} statement,
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in the proposed pohcy statement proceedmg or any other proceeding that is not consistent with
Finding 2.

Duke Energy estimates lhat lhe iotal refunds lhal wxll be due 1o transmission and wholesale
power customers ansmg lrom this fi ndmg will be upprommately $1.2 million plus interest.

» Fmding 3. Merge; Transachan Om.s'fde Services and Related C'as!s Duke
Compames incorrectly | mc!uded $1.5 million ol merger transaction outside
services and relalcd costs in wholesale power and transmission formula rate
service cosl determinations without first submitiing a section 205 filing -
demonstrating lhe costs were offset by quanllﬁed savings produced by the merger.
In addition, the companies recorded the merger transaction costs in operating
accounts, contrary Lo the Commission’s long-standing pollcy that such costs be
recordcd in nonoperahng accounts. ‘As a result, the wholesale power and
transmission customers revenue requirements were inoppropriately overstated an
esumalcd $745 000

Response; Duke E.ncrgy respeclfully dxsagrees wnth thls finding, but wdl not conlest it. For the
purpose of establishing a complete record, Duke Energy explains its position as follows.

The costs which are the subject of this finding are costs incurred in 2010 to investigate, agree 1o,
and perform prehm!nary due diligence regarding, the Merger prior 1o the announcement of the
Merger. Duke Energy made the determination that its hold harmiess commitment was not
intended to include such costs incurred during the formative stage of a potential transaction
before it was clear that the company would even pursue the transaction. Like most utility holding
compames. Duke Energy has a corporale development group that regularly investigates and
reviews polenual transactions as part of its routine operations. Only a very small percentage of
potentmi transactions reviewed are ever consummated, In order o comply wiih a hold harmless

) ent as interpreted in this Flndlng 3 for a transaction that is eventually consummated the
campany would have to lrack all its costs for each and every potential ransaction it reviews even
though. the vast ‘majority will never be consummated. This would be unwieldy and wasteful.
Because lhcse polential transactions oﬂcn will benefit customers, dlscouragmg mveshgalton of
them is not in the best interests of customers. ,

Treatment of such investigation costs iucurred prior to the announcement of a transaction in the
context of a hold harmless obligation was certainly not a settled issue in early 2012 or even
loday. This uncertainty was reflected in the Commission’s notice of proposed Policy Statement
on Hold Harm{ess Commitments discussed in Duke Energy’s response to Finding 2 above.

In the notice ot' proposed pohcy statement, the Commission pmposed to clarify that such
investigation costs would be subject to the hold harmiess commitment.®

# Parngraph 22 of the notice of proposed policy statement.
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As in Duke Energy’s response to Finding 2 above, we will paint out again that the notice of
proposcd policy statement was issued two and a half years afier the Merger closcd, and is just a
proposal at this time because the final policy statement has not been issued. In addition, somc
commenters speclf' cally disagreed with this point.®

Notwithstanding Duke Energy’s belief that its failure to exclude pre-announcement costs that are
the subject of Finding 3 was not a violation of any scttled policy, Duke Energy will not expend
the resources necessary to contest this issue and will comply with all associated
recommendalions in the audil report.

Duke Energy eslxmales that the total refunds that will be duc to tmnsmissmn and wholesalc
powecr customers arising from this fi nding will be approximately $60,000 plus intcrest.

e Finding 4. Use of ihe Consolidation Method of Accouniing — DEC and DEP
accounted for investments in subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in their FERC
Form No. 1, Annual Reports (Form No. 1), contrary to the Commission’s long-
standing accounting poiicy.

Response: Duke 'E‘nergy acceplts this finding.

o Finding 5. Accounting for Sales of Accounts Receivable - DEC, DEP, and DEF
misclassified an estimated $94.7 million of nonoperating expenses and receivables
arising from transactions with their subsidiaries during the audit period. As a
result, the wholesale power and transmission customers’ revenue requirements
were mappropnatety overstated by an esumated $61 million.

Response: Duke Energy disagrees with the portion uf lhls finding that concerns accounting for
losses on the sale of receivables. However, Duke Energy will not contest this finding under 18
CFR Part 4] because the portion of this finding that relates to accounting for losses on the sale of
receivables, including recommendations 17 and 18, will be held in abeyance and will be subject
to the outcome of Duke Energy’s request for rehearing in Docket No, AC15-174-001 pursuant to
the draft audit report. '

o Finding 6. Accouniing for Lobbying Expenses: Duke Companies recorded
approximately $2.4 million of lobbying expenses in above-the-line operating
accounts from 2011 through 2013. As a consequence, Duke Companies
improperly included these costs in wholesale power and iransmission formula rate
service cost determinations.

Response: Duke Energy accepts this finding.

% See the comments of Edison: Electric Institute filed March 30, 2015 at p. 14-15,
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e Finding 7. Allocation of Lobbyist Labor Costs: Duke Companies accounted for
the Jabor costs ol internal {obbyists and their support staff in operating accounts
that lacked support for inclusion in the accounts. Improper accounting for the
costs can lead to inappropriate recovery of the costs through rates charged and.
billed to customers.

Response: Duke Energy accepts lhisﬁnding.
o Finding 8. Nonutiliry E.rpen.se.s in Operating Accounts: Duke Companies
recorded approximately $490,000 of nonutilily expenses in operating accounts in
2014, Asaresult, mappropnaie costs were included in wholesale power and
transmission formula rate service cost determinations and charged to customers.
Response: Duke Energy nccepts this finding.
RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS
Duke Energy wiil comply with all recommendations except as otherwise stated below. As
requested, Duke Energy proposes target completion dates below for each recommendation
wherever the recommendation does not specify the completion date.

Aceownting for Merger Transaction Cosis

1. Revise accounting policies and procedures to appropriately account for merger
transactions consistent with Commission accounting requirements.

Target Completion Date: September 30, 2016

2. Develop written policies and procedures to timely identify proposed accounting
transactions that would trigger a notification to the Commission.

Target Completion Date: September 30,2016

3. Develop written policies and procedures to submit accounting questions of doubtful
interpretation to the Commission,

Target Completion Darte: September 30, 2016

4. Provide training to employees on compliance with the merger cost accounting
conditions and the revised policies, procedures, and controls for complying with the
conditions. Alsc, develop a training program that supports the provision of periodic
training in this area.
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Targel Completion Date: December 31, 2016

Merger Transuction Imternal Labor Costs

If the Commission issues a policy statement on hald harmless commitments and such policy
statement is incousistent with Finding 2 or Finding 3, then Duke Energy rescrves the right
to seck rehel'frnm comphance with any of recommendahons 5~12as appruprmte.

5. Revise all policies and procedures for tracking, accounting, and cxciudmg merger
transaction costs from wholesale power and transmission formula rates, including
gmounts’ prevrousfy charged to utility plant, accumulated deferred income taxes,
construction work in progress with the associated capitalized cost of ﬁmds used
during construetion (AFUDC), and mamlenance and operating expense accounts, and
future chnrges to such accounts for any transaction to which a FERC hold harmless
obligation applies, The revised procedures should hold customers harmless from all
merger transaction costs consistent with requirements of the Merger Order. Among.
other things, the revised pohczes and procedures should include an annual review.of
each subsidiary’s merger transaction cost adjustments as well as periodic evaluations
within the year, as needed and appropriale.

Target Completion Date: September 3Q, 2016

6. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to DAA
for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of refunds that
include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from the inclusion of
merger transaction internal lnbor and related costs in wholesale power and
transmission formula rates during the audit period, plus interest on the costs;(2)
determjnative components of the refund; (3) reFund method; and (4) period(s) refunds
will be made

7. Filea refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund enalysis..

Target Completion Date: 45 days afier receiving DAA’s assessment of the refund analysis
8. Refund amounis disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and transmission
cuslomers, with interest cnlculaled in accordance with section 35.1%a of Commission

regulations.

Targel Completion Date: 45 days after receiving DAA's assessment of the refund analysis
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Merger Trausaction Ouiside Services und Related Costy.

9. Revise accounting policies and procedures to appropriately account for merger
transaction costs consisient with Commission accounting requirements.

Target Completion Date: Seplember 30, 2016

10. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to DAA
for review that explains and details the following: (1) calculation of refunds that
include the amount of inappropriate recoveries that resulted from the inclusion of
merger transaction outside scrvices ond related costs in wholesale power and
transmission formula rate cherges during the audit period, plus interest on the costs;
(2) determinative components of the refund; (3) refund method; and (4) period(s)
refunds will be made.

1. File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.

Target Comipletion Dale: 45 days after receiving DAA’s assessment of the refund analysis

12. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and transmission
cuslomers, with interest calculated in-accordance with section 35.19a of Commission
regulations.

Target Completion Date: 45 days aler receiving DAA’s assessment of (he refund analysis

Use of the Cansolldation Method of Accounting

13. Review and, as needed, revise accounting policies, practices, and procedures to ensure
that investments in subsidiaries are accounted for consistent with the Commission’s
equity method accounting requirements.

Response and Target Completion Date: Duke Energy will comply with this recommendation, but
notes that the Commission has granted to DEC, DEP, and DEF a waiver from the requirement to
use the equity methed as discussed above, Target Completion date is 60 days afier receiving the
final audit report. :

14. Evaluate the accounting applied to Duke Companies’ existing subsidiaries and notify
DAA of any areas of noncompliance with Commission accounting requirements.

Target Completion Date; 60 days after receiving the final audit report.
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15. Revise documented policies, procedures and processes o ensure timely notice is
provided to relevant regulators regarding instances of noncompliance with regulations,
rules, and orders.

Target Completion Date: Seplember 30,2016

16. Provide training to staff on procedures, practices, and available tools (o transparently
or anonymously report instances of noncompliance to senjor management, the Board
of Directors, and relevant regulators,

Targei Conpletion Date: December 31, 2016
Accounting for Sales of Accounts Receivable

17. Revise procedures lo ensure that all costs, revenues, and account balances associated
with the sale of accounts receivable are accounted for in accordance with Commission
accounting regulations. Amnng other things, the corrected accounting should ensure
thal all discounts, fees, and revenues associated with receivable sales are recorded in
Account 426.5, and that the cosl of performing colléction services on behalf of the
subsidiaries, including employee labor, expenses and an appropriate allocation of
overhead and utility plant, are recorded in Account 426.5. ,

Response and Target Completion Date: In accordance with the draft audit report, the portions of
this recommendation thal relate to accounting for- losses on the sale of receivables are held in
abcyancc and subject to the outcome of the rehearing request and any subsequent petitions for
review proceedings. The target completion dale for portions that do nof relate to accounting for
losses on the salc of receivables is 60 days after receiving the final audit report.

I8, Provide the revised procedures to DAA for review within 60 days of receiving the
final audit report.

Respanse and Target Comp!enan Dare: In accordance with the audit report, the portions of this
recommendation that relate to accounting for losses on the sale of receivables are held in
abeyance and subject to the outcome of the rehearing request and any subsequent petitions for
review proceedings. .

19. Recalculate charges to wholesale power and transmission customers of DEC, DEP,
and DEF and submit the recalculations in a refund analysis to DAA for review within
60 days of receiving the final audit report. The refund analysis should explain and
detail the: (1) return of collection service billings charged in 2014; (2) return of losses
on the sales included in rates; (3) determinative components of the refund; (4) refund
method; (5) period(s) refunds will be made; and (6) interest calculated in accordance
with section 35.19 of Commission regulations.
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20. File a refund reporl with the Commission afler receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.

Target Completion Date: 45 days after receiving DAA’s assessment of the refund analysis

21. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report lo wholesale power and transmission
-customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.1%a of Commission
regulations.

Target Completion Date: 45 days after receiving DAA’s assessment of the refund analysis

Accounting for Lobbying Expenses

22. Establish and implement written procedures goveming the methods used to aceount
for, track, report, and review lobbying costs incurred

Response: Duke Energy has completed this action. Duke Encrgy will update its procedures upon
completion of the labor time study rcfcrenced in recommendation 28.

23. Provide training on Commission accounting requirements and the impact of
accounting on cost-of-service rate determinations to employees involved in lobbying
and lobbying-related work, and those with oversight responsibility for lobbying cost
allocations. Also, develop a training program that supports the provision of periodic
(raining in this arca.

Respanse: Duke Energy has completed this action, Duke Energy will update its procedures upon
compiction of the labor time study referenced in recommendation 28.

24, Submiit a refund analysis, within 60 days of receiving the final audit report, to DAA
for review (hat explains and details the followmg (1) calculation of refunds that
inciude the amount of i lnappropnate recoveries that resulted from the improper
inclusion of lobbying cost in operating accounts during the audit period, plus interest
on the costs; (2) detenminative components of the refund; (3) refund method; and (4)
period(s) refunds will be made.

25. File a refund report with the Commission: aftcr recewlng DAA s assessment of the
refund analysis:

Target Completion Date: 45 days after receiving DAA’s assessmient of the refund analysis

26. Refund amounts disclosed in the refund report to wholesale power and transmission
customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19a of Commission
regulations,
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Target Completion Date: 45 days afier receiving DAA’s assessment of the refund analysis

Allecation of Lobbyfsr Labor Costs

27. Revise written policies and procedures lo creale a process to document and verily
appropriale allocation of lobbying and lobbying-related costs, and maintain auditable
supporl for the cosl included in rate determinations.

Response: Dukc Energy has completed this action. Duke Energy will update its procedures upon
complellon of lhe Iabor I;me sludy rcf'ercnced in recommmdauon 28.

28. Retam an mdependenl third- party cnnty to conduct a representative labor time study to
“detcrmine an appropriate allocation of internal lobbyist labor, support. staﬂ" and
dssocxaled costs that should be accounted for in operating and nonoperaling accounts
based on time spent by employees engaged in the activities. Provide the study results
to audit staff within 180 days of the date of the final audit report. -

29. Include the results of the labor time study in the determination of lobbying-related
labor cost atlocations as of January I, 2016,

Turget Completion Date: 180 days afler the dale of the final audit report
30. Implement policies and procedures to perform a labor time study biennially using an
independent third-party or intemal company resources that are able (o attest to the
resulls of the study. Revise the lobbying-refated iabor cost allocations based on the
results of the study.

Target Campletion Date: 180 days after the date of the final audit report

Nonutility Expenses in Operating Accannts

31. Develop and implement wrilten policies, procedures, and controls to ensure proper
accountmg and reportsng of" nonuhhty expenses.

Respan.re Duke Energy has completed this acllon
32. Provide training for employees involved in the invoicing process on Commission
accounting requirements and the impact of the accounting on cost-of-service rate

determinations.

Response: Duke Energy has completed this action,
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33. Within 60 days of receiving the {inal audit report, provide documentation supporting
the analysis performed ol invoiced expenses rccorded to administrative and general
(A&G) accounts in 2014 that identified misclassified nonutility expenses included in
A&G accounts. Develop an estimate of misclassified nonutility expenses accounted
for in opcraling accounts in 201 1 through 2013 and 2015.

34. Implement policics and procedures (o provide periodic audits or reviews of A&G
transactions by external or internal auditors.

Target Completion Date; 60 days afler the date of the (inal audit report

35. Submit a refund analysis, within 60 days ol receiving the final audit report, to DAA
for review that explains and details the following: (1} calculation of refunds that
inc  de thc amount of inappropriate recoveries (hat resulted from the improper
inclusion of identified and estimated nonutility expenses in charges to wholesale
power and transmission customers during the audit period, plus interest on the costs;
{2) determinative components of the rcfund; (3) refund method; and (4) period(s)
refunds will be made. Include the results of the invoice analysis in the refund analysis.

36. File a refund report with the Commission after receiving DAA’s assessment of the
refund analysis.
Target Completion Date: 45 days aRler receiving DAA’s assessment of the refund analysis

37. Refund amounts disclosed in the re(und report to wholesale power and transmission
customers, with interest calculated in accordance with section 35.19a of Commission
regulations.

Target Completion Date: A4S days aRer receiving DAA’s assessmenl of the refund analysis

Duke Energy acknowledges and appreciates the professionalism and the courtesy with which
DAA staff conducted this audit.

Qinraraly

Brian U, davoy
Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting
Officer and Controller
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THIS NINTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of June 15, 2024 (the “Ninth
Supplemental Indenture”) is between Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (formerly named The Union
Light, Heat and Power Company), a corporation duly organized and existing under the aws of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “Company™), having its principal office at 139 East Fourth
Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (the
“Trustee”) under the Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2004, between the Company and the
Trustee, as heretofore supplemented and -as supplemented by this Ninth Supplemental Indenture
(the “Indenture™).

RECITALS OF THE COMPANY

The Company has executed and delivered the Indenture to the Trustee to provide for the
issuance from time to time of its unsecured debentures, notes or other evidences of indebtedness
(the “Securities™), to be issued in one or more. series as provided in the Indenture,

Pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, the Company desires to provide for the
establishment of three new series of its Securities to be known as its (a) 5.90% Debentures due
2031 (the “2031 Debentures™), (b) 6.00% Debentures due 2034 (the “2034 Debentures”) and (c)
6.17% Debentures due 2039 (the 2039 Debentures”, collectively, the “Debentures™, in this
Supplemental Indenture.

All things necessary to make this Supplemnental Indenture a valid agreemnent of the
Company have been done.

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS NINTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE
‘WITNESSETH:

For and in consideration of the premises and the purchase of the Debentures by the
Purchasers and the Holders thereof, it is mutually agreed, for the equal and proportionate benefit
of all Holders of ihe Debentures, as follows:

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.]
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ARTICLE ONE.

DEFINITIONS
SECTION 101. DEFINITIONS:

(@)  In addition to the words and terms defined elsewhere in this Ninth Supplemental
Indenture, the following defined term used herein shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have
the meaning specificd bélow,

“2031 Debentures” is defined in Section 201.
“2034 Debentures” is defined in Section 201.
#2039 Debentures” is defined id Section 201,

“Affiliate” means, at any time, and with respect to any Person, any other Person that at
such time directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries Controls, or is Controlled by,
or is'under common Control with, such first Person. As used in this definition, “Control” means
the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voling securities, by
conftract or otherwise, Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, any reference to an “Affiliate”
is a reference to an Affiliate of the Company.

*“Basket Lien” is defined in Section 610{c).
“Below Investinent Grade Adjusted Interest Rate™ is defined in Section 204(e)(4).
“Below Investment Grade Event” is defined in Section 204(e}(4).

“Blocked Person” means (a) a Personi whose name appears on the list of Specially
Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons published by OFAC; (b) a Person, entity, organization,
country or regime that is blocked or a target of sanctions that have been imposed under U.S.
Economiic Sanctions Laws or (¢) a Person that is an agent, department or instrumentality of, or is
otherwise beneficially owned by, controlied by or acting on behalf of, directly or indirectly, any
Perscn, entity, organization, country or regime described in clause (a) or (b).

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a day on which banking
institutions in New Yok, New Yoik are autherized or obligated by law or executive order to close:

“Capilal Lease” means, at any timie, a lease with respect to which the lessee is required
concurrently to recognize the acquisition of an asset and the incurrence of a liability in accordance
with GAAP.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the
rulés and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to Gme.
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“Consolidated Capitalization” means the sum, without duplication, of (i) Consolidated
Indebiedness, (i) consolidated common équityholders’ cquity as would appear on a
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, (iii) the aggregate liquidation
preference of preferred or priority equity interests (other than preferred or priority equity
interests subject to mandatory redemption or repurchase) of the Company and its Consolidated
Subsidiaries upon involuntary liquidation, (iv) the aggregate outstanding amount of all Equity
Preferred Sccurities of the Company and (v). minorty interests as would appear on a
consolidated balance shect of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

“Consolidatcd Indebtedness” means, at any date, all Indebtedness of the Company and
its Consolidated Subsidiaries determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with generally
accepted accounting prnciples; provided that Consolidated Indebtedness shall exclude, to the
extent otherwise reflected therein, Equity Preferred Securities of the Company and its
Consolidated Subsidiaries up to a maximium excluded amount equal to 15% of Consolidated
Capitalization.

“Consolidated Subsidiary” means, for any Person, at any date any Subsidiary or other
entity the accounts of which would be consolidated with those of such Person in its consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles if such
statements were prepared as of such date.

“Debt Rating” means the debt rating of the Debentures as determimed from time to time by
any NRSRO.

“Default” means an event or condition the occurrence or existence of which would, with
the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default,

“Default Rate” means a rate per annum from time to time equal to the lesser of (i} the
maximum tate permitted by applicable law, and (ii) 2.00% per annum abaove the rate of interest
stated on the face. of the applicable Debentures.

“EDGAR” means the SEC’s Elcctronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval System or
any successor SEC electronie filing system for such - purposes.

“Environmental Laws” means any and all fcderal, state, local, and foreign statutes, laws,
regulations, ordinances, rules, judgments, orders, decrees, permits, concessions, grants, franchises,
licenses, agreements or governmental restrictions relating to pollution and the protection of the
environment or the release of any materials into the environment, including but not limiited to those
related to Hazardous Materdals.

“Equity Preferred Securities” means, with respect to the Company, any trust preferred
securities or deferrable interest subordinated debt sccurities issued by the Company or any
Subsidiary or other financing vehicle of the Company that (i) have an original maturity of ai least
twenty years and (ii) requiré no repayments or prepaymenis and no mandatory redemptions or
repurchases, in each case, prior to the first anniversary of July 15, 2039,

-3
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“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from
time to time, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to time in effect.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that is treated
as a single employer together with the Cempany under section 414 of the Code.

“GAAP” means penerally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time in
the United States of America.

*Governmental Authority” means
(a) the government of

(1) the United States of America or any state or other paolitical
subdivision thereof, or

(i)  any other jurisdiction in which the Company or any Subsidiary
conducts all or any part of its business, or which asserts jurisdicfion over any
properties of the Company or-any Subsidiary, or

(b} any entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or
administrative functions of, or pertaining to, any such government.

“Guaranty” means, with respect to any Person, any obligation (except the endorsement in
the ordinary course of business of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection) of such Person
guaranteeing or in effect puaranteeing any indebtedness, dividend or other ebligation of any other
Person in any manner, whether directly or indiréctly, including (without limitation) obligations
incurred through an agreement, contingent or otherwise, by such Person:

(@)  to purchase such indebtedness or obligation or any property constituting
security therefor;

(b)  to advance or supply funds (i) for the purchase or payment of such
indebtedness or obligation, or (ii) to maintain any working capital or other balance sheet
condition or-any. income statement condition of any other Person or otherwise to advance
or make available funds for the purchase or payment of such indebtedness or abligation;

(c)  to lease properties or to purchase properties or services primarily for the
purpose of assuring the owner of such indebtedness or obligation of the ability of any other
Person to make payment of the indebtedness or obligation; or

(d) otherwise to assure the owner of such indebtedness or obligation against
loss in respect thereof.

In any eomputation of the indebtedness or other liabilities of the obligor under any Guaranty, the
indebtedness or other obligations that are the subject of such Guaranty shall be assnmed to be
direct obligations of such obligor,
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“Hazardous Materials” mcans any and all pollutants, toxic or hazardous wastes or other
substances that might pose a hazard to bealth and safety, the removal of which may be required or
the generation, manufacture, refining, production, processing, treatmert, storage, handling,
transportation, transfer, use, disposal, release, discharge, spillage, secpage ot filtration of which is
ot shall be restricted, prohibited or penalized by any applicable law including, but not limited to,
asbestos, urca formaldehyde foam insuldtion, polychlorinated biphenyls, petroleum, petroleum
products, lead based paint, radon gas or similar restricted, prohibited or pénalized substances.

“Indebtedness” of any Person means at any date, without duplication,
(i) all obligations of such Person for borrowed mongy,

(i)  ail indebtedness of such Person for the deferred purchase price of property
or services purchased (excluding current accounts payable incurfed in the ordinary
course of business),

(iif)  all indebtedness created or arising under any conditional sale or other title
retention agreement with respect to property acquired,

(iv)  all indebtedness under leases which shall have been or should be, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, recorded as capital leases in
respect of which such Person is liable as lessee,

() the face amount of all outstanding letters of credit issued for the account of
such Person (other than Jetters of credit rélating to indebtedness included in Indebtedness
of such Person pursuant to another clause of this definition) and, without duplication, the
unreimbursed amount of all drafts drawn thereunder,

(vl) indebtedness secured by any Licn on property or assets of such Person,
whether or not assumed (but in any event not exceeding the fair market value of the
property or asset),

(vii) all direct guarantees of Indebtedness referred to above of another Person,

{viii) all amounts payable in connection with mandatory redeinptions or
repurchases of preferred stock or member interests or other preferred or priority equity
inferests and

(ix) any obligations of such Person (in the nature of principal or interest) in
respect of acceptances or similar obligations issued or created for the account of such
Person.

“Institutional Investor” means. (a) any Purchaser of a Debenture, (b) any Holder of a
Debenture holding (together with one or more of its affiliates) more than 5% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Debentures then outstanding, (¢) any bank, trust company, savings and
loan association or other financial institution, any pension plan, any investment company, any
insurance company, any broker or dealer, or any other similar financial institution or entity,
regardtess of legal form, and (d) any Related Fund of any Holder of any Debenture.

,-*5—
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“Interest Payment Date” is defined for each series of Debentures in seetion 204(a), (b} and
(c), respectively.

“Investment Grade” is defined in Section 204(e}(4).
“Investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate” is defined in Section 204(e)(4).
“Investment Grade Event” is defined in Section 204(e}(4).

“lien” means, with respect to any Person, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security
interest or other encumbrange, or any interest ot title of any vendot, lessor; lender or other secured
party to or of such Person under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement or Capital
Lease, upon or with respect to any-property or asset of such Person {including in the case of stock,
stockholder agreemients, voting trust agreements and all similar arrangements).

“Make-Whole Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 208(b) hereof.

“Material” means material in relation to the business, operations, affairs, financial
condition, assets or propetties of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as'a whole.

“Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (a) the business, operations,
affairs, financial condition, assets or propertics of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a
whole, (b) the ability of the Company to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the
Indenture and the Debentures, (¢) the ability of any Subsidiary Guarantor to petform its obligations
under its Subsidiary Guaranty, or {(d) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, the Indenture
or the Debentures,

*Material Credit Facility” means, as to'the Company and its Subsidiaries:

(2) the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of March 18, 2022
(as amended by Amendment No. 1 and Consent dated as of March 17, 2023) (among Duke
Energy Corporation, the Company, ef a/. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Administrative Agent, including any renewals, extensions, amendments, supplements,
restatements, replacements. or refinancing thereof (the “Existing Credit Facility™); and

{b)  any other agreemeni(s) creating ot evidencing indebtedness for borrowed.
morney entered into on or after the date hereof by the Company or any Subsidiary, or in
respect of which the Company or any Subsidiary is an obligor or otherwise provides a
guarantee or other credit support (“Credit Facility™), in a principal amount outstanding or
available for borrowing equal to or greater than $125,000,000 (or the equivalent of such
amount in the relevant currency of payment, determined as of the date of the closing of
such facility based on the exchange rate of such other currency);

provided, however, if neither the Existing Credit Facility nor a Credit Facility that equals or
exceeds the amount set forth in clause (b) of this definition is in effect, theén the largest Credit
Facility shall be deemed to be a Material Credit Facility.
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“MFL Change of Control” mcans any provision, including those which arc cxpressed as
“events of default”, “review events” or mandatory offer or prepayment provisions, that triggers
events, rights or obligations based upon the direct or indirect acquisition of, or change in, ownership
of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company, a change in the majority of the
members of the board of directors of the Company or equivalent governing body, or similar

provisions relating to the control and management of the Company.
“Moody’s™ means Moody’s Investors Service, In¢. and its successors.

“Multiemployer Plan” means any Plan that is a “multiemployer plan” (as such term is
defined in section 4001{a)(3) of ERISA).

“NRSRO” means Moody’s and S&P, so long as, in each case, any such credit rating agency
continues to be a nationally recognized statistical rating organization recognized by the SEC and
is approved as a “Credit Rating Provider” (or other similar designation) by the NAIC.

“QFAC™ means the Office of Foreign Assets Control, United States Department of the
Treasury.

“OFAC Listed Person” means a Person whose name appears on the list of Specially
Designated Nationals and Blocked Persens published by OFAC.

“OFAC Sanctions Program”™ means any economic or trade sanction that OFAC is
resnonsihle for adminictering and enforcine A list of OFAC Sanctions Proorams may be found

a

“Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate of a Senior Financial Officer or of any other
officer of the Company whose responsibilities extend to the subject matter of such certificate.

“PBGC™ means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and defined in
ERISA or any successor thereto.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company,
association, trust, unincorporated organization, business entity or Governmental Authority.

“Plan™ means an “ciployee benefit plan” (as defined in section 3(3) of ERISA) subject to
Title I of ERISA that is or, within the preceding five years, has been established or maintained, or
to which contributions are or, within the preceding five years, have been made or required to be
made, by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate or with respect to which the Company or any
ERISA Affiliate may have any liability,

“Preferred Stock” means any class of capital stock of a Person that is preferred over any
other class of capital stock (or similar equity interests) of such Person as to the payment of
dividends or the payment of any amount upon liquidation or dissolution of such Person.

“Private Placement” mcans a dcbt securities issuance by thc Company to institutional
investors pursuant to Section 4(a)(2} under the Securities Act and exempt from the registration
requirements under the Securities Act. For the avoidance of doubt, the term “Private Placement”

-7-
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shall not include offerings.of debt securities in reliance upon Rule 1444 or Regulation S of the
Securities Act.

“Private Rating Letter” means a letter issued by an NRSRO in connection with any private
debt rating for the Debentures, which (a) sets forth the Debt Rating for the Debentures, (b) refers
to the Private Placement Number issued by PPN CUSIP Unit of CUSIP Global Services (in
cooperation with the SVO)in respect of the Debentures, (¢) addresses the likelihood of payment of
both principal and interest on the Debentures (which requirement shall be deemed satisfied if either
(x) such letter includes confirmation that the rating reflects the NRSRQ’s assessment of the
Company’s ability to make timely payment of principal and interest on the Debentures or a similar
statemerit or (y) such letter is silent as to the NRSRO's assessinent of the likelihood of payment of
both principal and interest and does not include any indication to the contrary), (d) includes such
other information describing the relevant tenns of the Debentures as may be required from time to
time by the SVO or any other regulatory authority having jurisdiction over any liclder of any
Debentures, and (e) shall not be subject to confidentiality provisions which would prevent it from
being shared with the SVO or any other regulatory authority having jurisdiction over.any holder
of any Debentures.

“Private Rating Rationale Report™ means, with respect to any Private Rating Letter, a report
issued by the NRSRO in.connection with such Private Rating Letter setting forth an analytical
review of the Debentures explaining the transaction structure, methodology relied upon, and, as
appropriate, analysis of the credit, legal, and operational risks and mitigants supporting the
assigned Private Rating for the Debentures, in each case, on the letterhead of the NRSRO or its
controlled website and generally consistent with the work product that an NRSRO would produce
for a similar publicly rated security and otherwise in forin and substance generally required by the
SV O or any other regulatory authority having jurisdiction over any holder of any Debentures from
time to time.

“property” or “properties” means, unless otherwise specifically limited, real or personal
property of any kind, tangible or intangible, choate or inchoate.

“Purchase Agreement” means that certain Debenture Purchase Agreement dated June 28,
2024 among the Company and the Purchasers named therein, whereby thie Debentures were or will
be issued and sold, including all schedules attached thereto, as it may be amended, restatéd,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Purchaser” or “Purchasers” means each of the purchasers that has executed and delivered
the Purchase Agreement to the Company and such Purchaser’s successors and assigns (so long as
any such assignment complies with the terms hereof), provided, however, that any Purchaser of a
Debenture that ceases to be the Holder thereof or a beneficial owner (through a nominee) of such
Debenture as the result of a transfer thereof shall cease to be included within the meaning of
“Purchaser” of such Debenture for the purposes hereof upon such transfer.

“Related Fund”™ means, with respect.to any Holder of any Debenture, any fund or entity
that (1) invests in Securities or bank loans, and (ii) is advised or managed by such Holder, the same
investment advisor as such Holder or by an affiliate of such Holder or such investment advisor.
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“Required Holders” means the Holders of more than 50% in principal amount of the
Debentures at the time outstanding (exclusive of Debentures then owned by the Company or any
of its Affiliates).

“Responsible Officer” means any Senior Financial Officer and any other officer of the
Company with responsibility for the administration of the relevant portion of this -Agreeuierit.

“S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC busincss,
or any successor by merger or consolidation to the business thereof.

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United Statés, or any
successor thereto,

“Securities” or “Sccurity” shall have the meaning specified in section 2{1) of the Securities
Act, '

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time, and the
rules-and regulations promulgated thereunder from time to time in effect.

“Senior Financial Officer” means the chief financial officer, the principal accounting
officer, the treasurer, any assistant treasurer, the controller or any assistant controller of the
Company.

“Significant Subsidiary” means at any time any Subsidiary that would at such time
constitute a “significant subsidiary” (as such term is defined in Regulation S-X of the SEC as in
effect on the date hereaf) of the Company.

“Subsidiary” means, as to any Person, any other Person in which such first Petson or one
or more of its Subsidiaries or such first Pérson and one or more of its Subsidiaries owns sufficient
equity or voting interests to enable it or them (as a group) ordinarily, in the absence of
contingencies, to elect a majority of the directors (or Persons performing similar functions) of such.
second Person, and any partnership or joint venture if more than a 50% interest in the profits or
capital thereof is owned by such first Person or one or more of its Subsidiaries or such first Person
and one or more of its Subsidiaries (unless such partnership or joint veriture can and does ordinarily
take major business. actions without the prior approval of such Person or one or more of its
Subsidiaries). Unless the context otherwise cleatly requires, any reference to a “Subsidiary™ is a
reference to a Subsidiary of the Company.

“Subsidiary Guarantor” means cach Subsidiary that has executed and delivered a
Subsidiary Guaranty.

*Subsidiary Guaranty” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 607(a) hereof,

“Swap Contract” means (a) any and all interest rate swap transactions, basis swap
trangactions, basis swaps, credit derivative transactions, forward rate transactions, commodity
swaps, commodity options, forward commodity contracts, equity or equity index swaps or options,
bond or bond priee or bond index swaps or options or forward foreign exchange transactions, cap
transactions, floor transactions, currency options, spot contracts or any other sitnilar transactions

-0.
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or any of the foregoing (including, but without limitation, any options to enter into any of the
foregoing), and (b) any and all transactions of any kind, and the related confirmations, which are
subject to the tenms and conditions of, or governed by, any form. of master agreement published
by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. or any International Foteign
Exchange Master Agreement. '

“Swap Termination Value” means, in respect of any one or more Swap Contracts, after
taking into account the effect of any legally enforceable netting agreement relating to such Swap
Contracts, (a) for any date on or after the date such Swap Contracts hdve been closed out and
termination value(s) determined in accordance therewith, such termination valie(s), and (b) for
any date prior to the date referenced in clause (a), the amounts(s) determined as the mark-to-market
values(s) for such Swap Contracts, as determined based upon one or more mid-market or other
readily available quotations provided by any recognized dealer in'such Swap Contracts,

*Synthetic Leage”™ means, at any time, any lease (including leases that may be terminated
by the lessee at any time) of any property {a) that is accounted for as an operating lease under
GAAP and (b) in respect of which the lessee retains or obtains ownership of thé property so Icased
for U.S. federal income tax purposes, other than any such lease under which such Person is the
lessor.

“U.S. Economic Sanctions Laws™ means those laws, executive orders, enabling legislation
or regulations administered and enforced by the United States pursuant fo which economic
sanctions have been imposed on any Person, entity, organization, country or regime, including the
Trading with the Enemy Act, the Intemational Emergency Economic Powers Act, the Iran
Sanctions Act, the Sudan Accountability and Divestment Act and any other OFAC Sanctions
Program.

“USAPATRIOT Act” means United States Public Law 137-56, Uniting and Strengthening
America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism (USA
PATRIOT ACT) Act of 2001, as amended from time to time, and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder from time to time in effect.

“Wholly-Owned Subsidiary” means, at any time, any Subsidjary one hundred percent of
all of the equity interesis (except directors’ qualifying shares) and voting interests of which are
owned by any one or more of the Company and the Company’s other Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries
at such time,

(b)  Each capitalized term that is used herein and is defined in the Indenture shall have

the meaning specified in the Indenture unless such term is otherwise defined herein, The terms
defined herein include the plural as well as the singular,

~ 10 -



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(j) Attachment
Page 14 of 55

ARTICLE TWO.
TERMS OF THE DEBENTURES

SECTION 201. CREATION AND DESIGNATION OF THE DEBENTURES;
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT; MATURITY DATES.

(a) There is hereby authorized a seriés of Securities designated the “5.90% Debenturcs
due 2031” (such series being, respectively, the “2031 Debentures™). The 2031 Debentures shall
mature and the prineipal shall be due and payable together with all accrued and unpaid interest
thereon on July 15, 2031,

The 2031 Debentures shall be limited in an aggregate principal amount of $80,000,000,
respectively, except as provided in Section 301(2) of the Indenture.

{b) There is hereby authorized a series of Securities designated the “6.00% Debentures
due 2034” (such series being, respectively, the “2034 Debentures™). The 2034 Debentures shall
mature and the principal shall be due and payable together with all accrued and unpaid interest
thereon on July 15, 2034,

The 2034 Debentures shall be limited in an aggregate principal amount of $95,000,000,
respectively, except as provided in Section 301(2) of the Indenture.

(c}  There is hereby authorized a series of Securities designated the “6.17% Debentures
due 2039 (such series being, respectively, the “2039 Debentures™). The 2039 Debentures shall
mature and the principal shall be due and payable together with all accrued and unpaid interest
thereon on July 15, 2039.

The 2039 Debentures shall be limited in an aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000,
respectively, except as provided in Section 301(2) of the Indenture.

SECTION 202. DEBENTURES 1IN REGISTERED FORM; REGISTRATION
GENERALLY.

(a) The Debentures of each series shall be issued only in the form of a separate, single,
authenticated, fully registered debeniure which (i) need not be in the form of a lithographed or
engraved certificate, but may be typewritten or printed on ordinary paper or such paper as the
Trustee may reasonably request, {ii) shall be executed by the Company and authenticated by the
Trustee in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and this Ninth Suypplemental Indenture,
and (iii) shall be registered in the name of the Purchasers thereof as dirceted by the Company.

(b)  The name and address of each Holder of one or more Debentures, each transfer
thereof and the name and address of each transferee of one or more Debentures shall be registered
in the Security Register. 1f any Holder of onc -or more Debentures is a nominee, then (i) the name
and address of the beneficial owner of such Debenture or Debentures shall also be registered. in
the Security Register as an owner ahd Holder thereof and (ii) at any such beneficial owner’s option,
either such beneficial owner or its nominee may execute any mmendment, waiver or consent
pursuant hereto. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer, the Person(s) in whose name

11 -



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(j) Attachment
Page 15 of 55

any Debenture(s) shall be tegistered shall be deemed and treated as the owner and Holder thereof
for all purposes hereof, and the Campany shall not be affected by any notice or knowledge to the
contrary, The Company shall give to any Holder of a Debenture that is an Institutional Investor
promptly upon request therefor, a complete and correct copy of the names and addresses of all
registered Holders of Debéntures.

SECTION 203. TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF DEBENTURES.

(a) Upon surender of any Debenture to the Trustee for registration of transfer or
exchange, within ten Business Days thereafter, the Company shall execute -and deliver, at the
Company’s expense (except as provided in the Indenture), one or more new Debentures of the
same series (as requested by the Holder thereof) in exchange therefor, in an agpregate principal
amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the surrendered Debenture. Each such new
Debentire shall be payable to such Person as such Holder may request. Debentures shall not be
transferred in denominations of less than $100,000, provided that if necessary to enable the
registration of transfer by-a Holder of its entire holding of Debientures, one Debenture may be in a
denomination of less than $100,000. Any transferee, by its acceptance of a Debenture registered
in its name (or the name of its nominee), shall be deemed to have made the representations set

- forth in Sections 6.1(b) and 6.2 of the Purchasc Agreement.

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregomg, the Company shall not effect any requested transfer
of a Debenture unless such transfer is made (i) pursuant to an exemption from registration under
the Securities Act or (i) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act,
in each case in accordance with all applicable state securities laws and the securitics laws of other
jurisdictions, The Company shall not efféct any requested transfer of a Debenture unless it has
received: (x) a written instrument of transfer duly executed by the registered Holder of such
Debenture or such Holder’s attorney duly authorized in writing dnd accompanied by the relevant
name, address and other information for notices of each transferee of such Debenture or part
thereof and (y) unless such requested transfer is to be made pursuant to an effective registration
statement, an opinion of courisel satisfactory to the Coempany that such transfer does not require
registration under the Securities Act and other applicable laws.

SECTION 204. INTEREST RATES, INTEREST PAYMENT DATES AND REGULAR
RECORD DATES; DEFAULT INTEREST.

(a) Interest on each of the 2031 Debentures shall be payable (i) on the principal amount
thereof, semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year (each an Interest Payment Date for
the 2031 Debentures), commencing on January 15, 2025, at the rate of §.90% per annunt, from the
date specified on the face of such 2031 Debenture,- or from the mast recent Interest Payment Date
to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the principal thereof is due and payable,
and (ii) to the extent permitted by law, (A) on any overdue payment of interest, (B) on any overdue
payment of the Redemption Price, and (C) during the continnance of an Event of Default, on any
unpaid principal amount and on any overdue payment of any Make-Whole Amount, at a rate per
annurn equal to the Default Rate, payable semiannually as aforesaid (or, at the option of Holders,
on demand).
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{b)  Interest on cach of the 2034 Debentures shall be payable (i) on the principal amount
thereof, semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year{each an “Interest Payment Date”
for the 2034 Debentures), cortunencing on January 15, 2025, at the rate of 6.00% per annum, from
the date specified on the face of such 2034 Debenture, or from the most recent Interest Payment
Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the principal thereof is due and
payable, and (i) to the exient pernitted by law, (A) on any overdue payment of interest, (B) on
-any overduc payment of the Redemption Price, and (C) during the continuance of an Event of
Default, on any unpaid principal amount and on any overdue payment of any Make-Whole
Amount, at a rate per annum equal to the Default Rate, payable semiannually as aforesaid {or, at
the option of' Holders, on demand),

(¢)  .Intereston each of the 2039 Debentures shall be payable (i) on the principal amount
thereof, semi-apnually on January 15 and July 15 of each year (each an “Interest Payment Date”
for the 2039 Debentures), comunencing on January 15, 2025, at the rate of 6.17% per annum, from
the date specified on the face of such 2039 Debenture, or from the most recent Interest Payment
Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the principal thereof is due and
payable, and (ii) to the extent perrinitted by law, (A) on any overdue payment of interest, (B) on
any overdue payment of the Redemption Price, and (C) during the continuance of an Event of
Default, on any unpaid principal amount and on any overdue payment of any Make-Whole
Amount, At a rate per annum equal to the Default Rate, payable semiannually as aforesaid (or, at
the option of Holders, on demand).

(d)  The intarest so payable, and punctually paid-or duly provided for, on:any Interest
Payment Date will be paid to the Person in whose name such Debenture is registered at the close
of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the fifteenth day
immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date. The amount of interest payable for any period
will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

{¢) Changesin Interest Rate:
(1) If at any time an Investment Grade Event occurs, then:

(i)  as of the date of the occurrence of an Investment Grade Event to and until
the date on which such Investment Grade Event is no longer continuing {as evidenced by
the receipt and delivery to the holders of the Debentures of any Debt Rating necessary to
cure sucl Investiment GGrade Event), the Debentures shall béar interest at the Investment
Grade Adjusted Interest Rate; and

(i)  the Company shall promptly, and in any event within five (5) Business Days
after an Investinent Grade Event has occurred, notify the helders of the Debentures in
writing, sent in the manner provided in ‘Section 18 of the Purchase Agrecment, that (A} an
Investment Grade Event has occurred and confirming the effective date of such Investment
Grade Event and (B) the Investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate will acerue from the date
on which such Investment Grade Event accurred and will be payable on each subsequent
interest payment date until such Investment Grade Event is no longer continuing.
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(2) If atany time a Below Investment Grade Event occurs, then:

(i)  as of the date of the ocourrence of a Below Investment Grade Event to and
untif the date on which such Below Investment Grade Event is no longer continuing (as
evidenced by the receipt and delivery to the holders of the Debentures of any Debt Rating
necessary to cure such Below Investment Grade Event), the Debentures shall bear interest
at the Below Investment Grade Event Adjusted Interest Rate; and

(i) the Company shall promptly, and inany eventwithin five (5) Business Days
after a Below Investment Grade Event has occuired, notify the holders of the Debentures
in writing, sent in the manner provided in Section 18 of the Purchase Agreenient, tHat (A) a
Below Investment Grade Event has occurred and confirming the effective date of such
Below Investment Grade Event and (BB) the Below Investment Grade Event will acerue
from the date on which such Below Investmerit Grade Event occurred and will be payable
on each subsequent interest payment date until such Below Investment Grade Event is no
longer continuing.

(3) For the avoidance of doubt, if a Below Investment Grade Event is continuing, the
Debentures shall bear interest at the Below Investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate; provided that
after such date if the Investment Grade Event shall continue, then the Débentures shall bear interest
at the Investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate.

(4) Asused herein:

{A) “Below Investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate” means the interest rate per
annum which is 0.50% above the stated rate of the Debentures (or 0,50% above the Default
Rate based on the stated interest rate for the Debenture, as the case may be). For the
avoidance of doubt, the Below Investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate shall not apply
unless and until a Below Investment Grade Event has occurred.

(B) “Below Investment Grade Event” shall occur if, at any time after the Company
has incurred, created or assumed a Basket Lien:

(i)  the Debt Rafing fiom any one of the two NRSROs that are in full force and
effect (not having been withdrawn) are less than Investinent Grade; or

(i)  the Company shall have failed to receive and deliver to the holders of the
Debentures a Debt Rating from the two NRSROs as required by Section 612,

(C)  “Investment Grade™ means a rating of “BBB-" or “Baa3™ (or its
equivalent) by an NRSRO. '

)] “Investment Grade Adjusmd Interest Rate” means the interest rate per

-annuit which is 0.25% above the stated rate-of the Debentures (or 0.25% above the Default
Rate based on the stated interest rate for the Debenture, as the case may be). For the
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avoidance of doubt, the investment Grade Adjusted Interest Rate shall not apply unless and
until an Investment Grade Event has occurred.

(E)  “Investment Grade Event” shalt occur if, at any time after the Company
has incurred, created or assumed a Basket Lien, () the Debt Rating from two NRSROs
that are in full force and effect (not having been withdrawn) are Investment Grade or (b)
the Debt Rating from one of the two NRSROs that are in full force and effect (not having
been withdrawn) is Investment Grade and the Debt Rating from the other NRSRO that is
in full force and effect (not having been withdrawn) is greater than Investment Grade.

SECTION 205. PLACE AND MANNER OF PAYMENT OF THE DEBENTURES.

{2)  Subject to Section 205(b) hercof, payments. of interest will be' made by check
‘mailed to the Holder of each Debenture at the address shown in the Security Register; and
‘payments of the principal amount of each Debenture will be made at maturity by check against
presentation of the Debenture at the office or agency of the Trustee. The Company may at.any
time, by notice to each Holder of a Debenture, change the place of payment of the Debentures so
long as such place of payment shall be either the principal office of the Company. in such
jurisdiction or the principal office of a bank or trust conipany in such jurisdiction.

(b) So long as any Purchaser or its nominee shall be the Holder of any Debentures, and
notwithstanding anything contained in the Indenture or in such Debentures to the confrary, the
Company will pay, or will cause the Trustee to pay, all sums becoming due on such Debentures
for principal, Redemption Price, if any, and interest by such other method or at such other address
as such Purchaser shall have from time to time specified to the Trustee and the Company in writing
for such purpose, without the presentation or surrender of such Debentures or the making of any
notation thereon, except that upon written request of the Trustee, in its capacity ‘as the Security
Registrar made concurrently with or reasonably promptly after payment or redemption in full of
any Debentures, such Purchaser shall surrender such Debentures for cancellation, reasonably
promptly after any such request, to the Security Regisirar at its principal executive office or at the
place of payment designated for the Debentures in Section 205¢a) hereof. Prior to any sale or other
disposition of any Debentures held by a Purchaser or its nominee, such Purchaser will, at its
election, either endorse thereon the amount of principal paid thercon and the last date to which
interest has been paid.thereon or surrender such Dcbentures to the Sccurity Registrar in exchange
for new Debentures pursuant to Section 305 of the Indenture. The Security Registrar will afford
the benefits of this Section to any Institutional Investor that is the direct or indirect transferee of
any Debentures purchased by a Purchaser and that has made the same agreement relating to such
Debentures as the Purchasers have made in this Section.

SECTION 206. DENOMINATIONS OF DEBENTURES.

The Debentures shall be issued in denominations of at least $100,000, except as may be
necessary to cnable the registration of transfer by a Holder of its entire holding of Dcbentures.
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SECTION 207. DEFEASANCE AND COVENANT DEFEASANCE SHALL NOT APPLY.

The Debentures shall not be subject to defeasance and covenant defeasance, at the
Company’s option, as provided for in.Sections 1302 and 1303 of the Indenture.

SECTION 208. REDEMPTION PROVISIONS OF THE DEBENTURES.

{(a) The Company has the right to redeem at any time all, or from time to time any pari
of, the Debentures at a Redemption Price equal to (1) 100% of the principal amount of the
Debentures to be redeemed, plus (2) the Make-Whole Amount determined for the redemption date
with respect to such principal amount of the Debentures to be redeemed.

(by  All calculations relating to the Redemption Price will be performed by the
Cotnpany. For purposes of determining the Redemption Price, the following terms have the
following meanings:

“Make-Whole Amount™ means, with respect to any Debenture, an ameunt equial to
the excess, if any, of the Discounted Value of the: Retnaining Scheduled Payments with
respect to the Called Principal of such Debenture over the amount of such Called Pringipal,
provided that the Make-Whole Amount. may in no event be less than zeto.

“Called Principal” means, with respect to aﬁy Debenture, the principal of such
Debenture that is to be redeemed pursuant to this Section 208 or has become or is declared
to be immediately due and payable pursuant to Section 502 of the Indenture, as the context
Tequires.

“Discounted Value” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Debenture,
the amount obtainéd by discounting all Remaining Scheduled Payments with Tespect to
such Called Principal from their réspective scheduled duc dates to the Settlement Date with
respect to such Called Principal, in accordance with accepted financial practice and at a
discount factor (applied on the same periodic basis as that on which intercst on the
Debentures is payable) equal to the Reinvestment Yield with respect to such Called
Principal.

“Reinvestment Yield” means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Debenture,
0.50% over the yield to maturity implicd by the yield(s) reported as of 10:00 a.m. (New
York City time) on the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date with respect to
such Callcd Principal, on the display designated as “Page PX 1" (or such other display as
may replace Page PX1) on Bloomberg Financial Markets for the most tecently issued
actively traded on-the-run U.S. Treasury securities (“Reported™) having a maturity equal
to the Remaining Average Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date. If
there are no such U.S. Treasury securities Reported having a maturity equal to such
Remaining Average Life, then such implied yield to maturity will be determined by (a)
converting U.S. Treasury bill quotations to bond equivalent yields in accordance with
accepted financial practice and (b) interpolating linearly between the yields Reported for
the applicable most recently issued actively traded on-the~run U.S. Treasury securities with
the maturities (1) closest to and greater than such Remaining Average Life and (2) closest
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to and less than such Remaining Average Life. The Reinvestment Yield shall be rounded
to the number of decimal places as appears in the interest rate of the applicable Debenture.

If such vields are not Reported or the yields Reported as of such time are not
ascertainable (including by way of interpolation), then “Reinvestment Yield” mieans, with
respect to the Called Principal of ‘any Debenture, 0.50% over the yield to maturity implied
by the U.S. Treasury constant maturity yields reported, for the latest day for which such
yields have been so reported as of the second Business Day preceding the Settlement Date
with respect to such Called Principal, in Federal Reserve Statistical Release 1115 (or any
comparable successor publication) for the U.S. Treasury constant maturity having a term
equal to the Remaining Average Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date.
If there is no such U.S. Treasury constant maturity having a tenm equal to such Remaining
Average Life; such implied yield to maturity wiil be determined by interpolating linearly
between (1) the U.S, Treasury constant matufity so reported with the tenm closest to and
greater than such Remaining Average Life and (2) the U.S. Treasury constant maturity so
reported with the tenn closest to and less than such Remaining Average Life. The
Reinvestment Yield shall be rounded to the number of decimal places as appears in the
interest ratc of the applicable Debenture.

“Remaining Average Life” means, with respect to any Called Principal, the number
of years obtained by dividing (i) such Called Principal into (ii} the sum of the products
obtained by multiplying (a) the principal component of each Remaining Scheduled
Payment with respect to such Called Principal by (b) the number of years, computed.on the
basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months and calculated to two decimal
places, that will elapse between the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal
and the scheduled due date of such Remaining Scheduled Payment.

“Remaining Scheduled Payments” means, with respect to the Called Principal of
any Debenture, all payments of such Called Principal and interest thereon that would be
due after the Settfemnent Date with respect to such Called Principal if no payment of such
Called Principal were made prior to its'scheduled due date, provided that if such Settlement
Date is not a date on which interest payments are due to be made under the Debentures,
thien the amount of the next succeeding scheduled interest payment will be reduced by the
amount of interest accrued to such. Settlement Date.

“Scitlement Date’ means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Debenture,
the date on which such Called Principal is to be redéemed pursuant to this Section 208 or
has become or is declared to be immediately due and payable pursuant to Section 502 of
the Indenture, as the context reqiires. ’ '

(¢)  Partia]l Redemptions. Any partial redemption of the Debentures pursuant to
Sections 208(a) or (b) hereof shall be for.a principal amount of not less than 10% of the aggregate
-amount tlien outstanding of such Debentures to be redeemed. In the case of each such partial
redeinption of the Debentures and, notwithstanding Section 1103 of the Indenture, the principal
amount of the Debentures to be redecined shall be allecated among all of the Debentures at the
time outstanding in proportion, as nearly as practicable, to the respective unpaid prineipal amounts
thereof not therctefore called for redemption. '
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(d) Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption shall be given, by mail, not less than
30 nor more than 60 days. prior fo the Redemption Date, to each Holder of Debentures to be
redeemed, at his or her address appearing in the Security Register, unless, notwithstanding Section
1104 of the Indenturc, the Company, the Trustee and the Required Holders agree to another time
period or another method of delivery. In addition to the requirements of said Section 1104, each
such notice: shall be accompanied by a certificate of a Senior Financial Officer as to the estimated
Make-Whole Amount due in connection with such redemption (calculated as if the date of such
notice were the date of the redemption), setting forth the details of such computation. Two
Business Days prior to such redemption, the Company shall deliver to-each Holder of Debentures
to be redeemed a certificate of a Senior Financial Officer specifying the calculation of such Make-
‘Whole Amount as of the specified redemption date.

(e) In the case of each optional redemption, the Debentures to be redeemed shall, on
the Redemption Date, become due and payable at the applicable Redenption Price, together with
interest on the principal amount thercof. Unless the Company defaults in payment of the
Redemption Price therefor and accrued interest, on and after any Redemption Date therefor,
interest will cease to accrue on the Debentures or portions thereof called for redemption.

D The Company will not, and will not permit any Affiliate to, purchase, re¢deem,
prepay. or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of the outstanding Debentures except ('1)
upon the payment or redemption of the Debentures in accordance with this Section 208, or (b)
pursuant to an offér to purchase made by the Company or an Affiliate pro-rata to the Holders of
all Debentures at the time outstanding upon the same terms and conditions. Any such offer shall
provide each Holder with sufficient information to enable it to make an informed decision with
respect to such offer, and shall remain open for at least 15 Business Days. If the Halders of more
than 25% of the principal amount of the Debentures then outstanding accept such coffer, the
Company shall promptly notify the remaining Holders of such fact and the expiration date for the
acceptance by Holders of Debentures of such offer shall be extended by the number of, days
necessary to give each such remaining holder at least five Business Days from its receipt of such
notice to accept such offer. The Company will promptly cancel all Debentures acquired by it or
any Affiliate pursuant to any payment, redemption or purchase of Debentures pursuant to this
Section 208 and no Debentures may be issued in substitution or exchange for any such Debentures.

(g  The Company shall indemnify and hold hatmless the Trustee from any and all
losses, costs, damages, expenses, fees (including reasonable attorneys™ fees), court costs,
judgments, penalties; obligations, suits, disbursements and liabilities of any kind or character
whatsoever which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against the Trustee
by reason of or arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by awy act or omission of the Trustee
with respect to this Section 208, except for such that would arise out of the gross negligence,
willful misconduct or bad faith of the Trustee.

SECTION 209, FORM OF DEBENTURES OF EACH SERIES.

The Debentures of each series and the respective Trustee’s certificate to be endorsed
thereon shall be substantially in the following forms:
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(FOrM QF FACE OF 2031 DEBENTURE)

THIS DEBENTURE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED {THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR "THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY
STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT (1) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (2) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UUNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IN EACH CASE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS, AND IN THE CASE OF A
TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION, UNLESS THE COMPANY HAS
RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH MAY BE IN-HOUSE COUNSEL)
SATISFACTORY TO IT THAT SUCH TRANSACTION DOES NOT REQUIRE
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND SUCH OTHER APPLICABLE
LAWS.

No. R~ $
PPN 26442L E@9 20

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.
5.90% DEBENTURE DUE 2031

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC., a corporation duly organized and exijsting under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky (herein called the “Company”, which term includes any
successor Person under the Indeniure hereafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to
pay to , or registered assigns, the principal sum of
Dollars ($ } on July 15, 2031, and to pay interest
(a) thereon from June 28, 2024, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest
has been paid or duly provided. for, semiannually, on January 15 and July 15 in each year,
cominencing January 15, 2025, at the rate of 5.90% per annum, as may be adjusted in accordance
with Section 204 of the the Ninth Suppleniental Indenture, until the principal hereof is due and
payable,-and (b) to'the extent permitted by law, (i) on any overdue payment of interest, (ii) on any
overdue payment of the Redemption Price, and (iii) during the continuance of an Event of Default,
on z2ny unpaid principal amount and on any overdue payment of any Make-Whole Amount, at a
rate per annumn equal to the Default Rate, payable semiannually as aforesaid (or, at the option of
‘the registered holder hereof, on demand). The “Default Rate™ shall mean a rate per annuni from
time to time equal to the lesser of (x) the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, and (y)
7.90%, as may be adjusted in accordance with Section 204 of the the Ninth Supplemental
Indenture.

The amount of interest payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be computed on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. The interest so payable and punctually paid or
duly provided for, on ary Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the
Person in whose name this Security (or one ot more Predecessor Securities) is registered at the
close of business ou the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the fifteenth day
preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such iuterest not so-punctually paid or duly provided
for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either
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be paid to the Person in whose name this Security (or one or more Predecessor Securities) is
registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted
Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice whereof shall be given to Holders of Securities of this
series not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other
lawful manner not inconsistent with the requiréments of any sccurities exchange on which the
Securities of this series may be listed, and upon sucli notice as may be required by such exchange,
all as more fully provided in the Indenture,

Subject to certain exceptions provided in the Indenture, payment of the principal of (and
premiuny, if-any) and interest on this Security will be made :at the corporate trust office of the
Trustee taintained for that putpose in the City of New Yark, in such coin or currency of the United
States of America as at the time of payment is legal tender for payment of public and private debts.

Any payment on this Security due on any day which is not.a Business Day in the City of
New York need not be made on such day, but may be made on the nicxt succeeding Business Day
with the same force and effect as if made on the due date and no interest shall acerue for the period
from and after such date, unless such payment is a payment at maturity or upon redemption, in
which case, notwithstanding Section 113 of the Indenture, interest shall accrue thereon at the stated
rate for such additional days.

‘As used herein, “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a day
on which banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law or
executive order to close.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Security set forth on the reverse
hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this
place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to
on the reverse hereof by manual signature, this Security shall not be entitled to any benefit under
the Indenture or be valid or obligatory fof any purpose.

In Witness Whereof, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly exccuted.

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

By:
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
Dated: , 20

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-
nientioned Indenture.

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY
AMERICAS, Trustee

By:
Authorized Signatory
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(FORM OF REVERSE 0F 2031 DEBENTURE)

This Security-is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (herein called
the “Securities”), issued arid to be issued in one or more series under an Indenture, dated as of
December 1, 2004, as supplemented by the Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 28,
2024 (the “Indenture™), between the Company and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
Trustee (herein called the “Trustee”, which term includes any successor trustee under the
Indenture), and reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a statement of the respective rights,
limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the
Holders of the Securities and of the terms upon ‘which the Securities are, and are to be,
authenticated and delivered. This Security is one of the series designated on the face hereof, which
series is issuable without limitation as to the aggregate principal amount thereof.. ‘

The Company has the right to redeem at any time all, or from time to time any part of, the
Securities of this series at a Redemption Price equal to (1) 100% of the principal amount of the
Securitiés of this series to be redeemed, plus (2) the Make-Whole Amount determined for the
redemption date with respect to such principal amount of the Securities of this series to be
redeemed.

Any partial redemption of the Securities of this series shall be for a principal amount of not
less than 10% of the aggregate amount then outstanding of the Securities of this series to be
fedeeimed. In the case of each such partial redemption of the Securities of this series, the principal
amount of the Securities of this series to be redeemed shall be allocated among all of the Securities
of this series at the time outstanding in proportion, as nearly as practicable, to the respective unpaid
principal amounts thereof not theretofore called for redemption.

In the event of redemption of this Security in part only, a new Security or Securities of this
series and of like tenor for the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued in the name of the Holder
hereof upon the cancellation hereof.

Notice of any redemption by the Company will be mailed at least 3¢ days but not more
than 60 days before any Redemption Date to each Holder of Securities to be redeemed.

Unless. the Company defaults in payment of the Redemption Price, on and after any
Redemiption Date, interest will ceasc to accrue on the Securities or portions thereof called for
redemption.

Ifan Event of Default with respect to Securities of this series shall occur and be continuing,
the principal of the Securities of this series may be declared due and payable in the manner and
with the effect provided in the Indenture.

‘The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof
and the modification of the rights and obligations. of the Company and the rights of the Holders of
the Securities of each series to be.affected under the Indenture at any time by the Company and
the Trustee with the consent of the Holdets of a majority in principal amount of the Securities at
the time Outstanding of each series to be affected. The Indenture also contains provisions

.22 -



KyPSC Case No., 2024-00354
FR 16(7i(j) Attachment
Page 26:0f 55

permitting the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Securities of each series at the time
Qutstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Securities of such series, to waive compliance by the
Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture
and their consequences. Any such consent ‘o waiver by the Holder of this Security shall be
conclusive and binding upon such Halder and upon all future Holders of this. Security and of any
Security issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange: herefor or in lieu hereof,
whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is madé upon this Security.

As provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Holder of this Security
shall not have the right to institute any proceeding with respect to the Indenture or for the
appointment of a receiver or trustee or for any other remedy thereunder, unless such Holder shall
have previously given the Trustee written notice of a continuing Event of Default with respect to
the Securities of this series, the Holders of not less than 35% in principal amount of the Securities.
of this series at the time Qutstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute
proceedings in Tespect of such Event of Default as Trustee and offered the Trustee indemnity
reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, and the Trustee shall not have received from the Holders of
a majority in principal amount of Securities of this series at the time Qutstanding a direction
inconsistent with such request, and shall have failed to institute any such proceeding, for 60 days
after receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity. The foregoing shall not apply to any
suit instituted by the Holder of this Security for the enforcement of any payment of principal hereof
oTany premtum or interest hereon on or after the respective due dates expressed herein.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Security or of the Indenture
shall alter or tmpair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay
the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this Security at the times; place and rate, and
in the coin or cumrency, herein prescribed.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer
of this ‘Security is registrable in the Security Register, upon surrender of this Security for
registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company in any place where the principal of
(and premiun, if any) and interest on this, Security are payable, duly endorsed by,.or accompanied
by a written instrament of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar
duly executed by, the Holder hereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one
or more new Securities of this series and of like tenor, of authorized denominations and for the
same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The Securities of this series are issuable ‘only ‘it registered form without coupons in
denominations of at least $100,000, except as may be necessary to enable the registration of
transtfer by a Holder of its entire holding of the Securities. As provided in the Indenture and subject
to certain limitations therein set forth, Securities of this serics are exchangeable for a like aggregate
principal amount of Securities of this series and of like tenor of a different authorized
denomination, as requested by the Holder surrendering the saine. No service charge shall be made
for any such fegistration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum
sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Security for registration of transfer, the Company, the
Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name this
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Security is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Security be overdue,
and neither the Company, the Trastee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

All terms used in this Security that are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings
assigned to them in the Indenture.

-24-



KyPSC Case No. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(j) Attachment
Page 28 of 55

(Form 0T FACE GF 2034 DEBENTURE)

THIS DEBENTURE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR “THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY
STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT (1) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (2) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IN EACH CASE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS, AND IN THE CASE OF A
TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION, UNLESS THE COMPANY HAS
RECEIVED AN OPINION OF CQOUNSEL (WHICH MAY BE IN-HOUSE COUNSEL)
SATISFACTORY TO IT THAT SUCH TRANSACTION DOES NOT REQUIRE
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND SUCH OTHER APPLICABLE
LAWS.

No. R- $
PPN 264421 E#7 , 20

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.
6.00% DEBENTURE DUE 2034

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC., a corporation duly organized and existing under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Kentueky (herein called the “Company”, which term includes any
successor Person under the Indenture hereafier referred to), for value received, hereby promises to
pay to , or registered assigns, the principai sum of
Dollars (§ } on July 15, 2034, and fo pay interest
(a) thereon from June 28, 2024, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest
‘has been paid or duly provided for, semiannually, on January 15 and July 15 in each year,
commencing Janvary 15, 2025, at the rate of 6.00% per annum, as may be adjusted in accordance
with Section 204 of the the Ninth Supplemental Indenture, until the principal hereof is due and
payable; and (b} to the extent permitted by law, (i) on any overdue payment of interest, (i) on any
overdue payrnent of the Redemption Price, and (iii) during the continnance of an Event of Default,
on any unpaid principal amount and on any overdue payment of any Make-Whole Amount, at a
rate per annum equal to the Default Rate, payable semiannually as aforesaid (or, at the option of
the registered holder hereof, on demand). The “Default Rate” shall mean a rate per annum frosm
time to time ‘equal to the lesser of (X) the maximuin rate pemnitted by applicable law, and (y)
8.00%, as may be adjusted in accordance with Section 204 of the the Ninth Supplemental
Indenture.

The ainount of interest payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be computed on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. The interest-so payable, and punctually paid or
duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the
Person in whose name this Security (or.one or inore Predecessor Securities) is registered at the
cloge of business on the Regular Record Date for such intercst, which shall be the fifteenth day
preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interestnot so punctually paid or duly provided
for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either
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be paid to the Person in whose name this Security (or one or more Predecessor Securities) is
registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted
TInterest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice whereof shall be given to Holders of Securities of this
series not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, or be paid at-any time in any other
lawful manner not inconsistent with the requiremeuts of any securities exchange on which the
Securities of this series may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange,
all as more fully provided in the Indenture. ‘

Subject to certain exceptions provided in the Indenture, payment of the principal of (and
premiuim, if any) and interest on this Security will be made at the corporate trust office of the
Trustee maintained for that purpose in the City of New York, in such coin or currency of the United
States of America as at the time of payment is legal tender for payment of public and private debts.

Any payment on this Sccurity due on any day which is not a Business Day in the City of
New York need not be made on such day, but may be made on the fiext succeeding Business Day
with the same force and effect as if made on the due date and no interest shall accrue for the period
from and after such date, unless such payment is a payment at maturity or upon redemption, in
which case, notwithstanding Section 113 of the Indenture, interest shall accrue thereon at the stated
rate-for such additional days.

As used herein, “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a day
on which banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law ar
executive order to close.

Reference is hereby made to the further proyisions of this Security set forth on the reverse
hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this
place.

Unless the CeﬁiﬁcatC of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to
on the reverse hereof by manual signature, this Secirity shall not be entitled to any benefit under
the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any pumose.

In Witness Whereof, the Company has caused this instrument to be dulyfe‘xecuted,

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

By:
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

20

Dated:

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to m the within-

mentioned Indenture.

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY
AMERICAS, Trustee

By:
Authorized Signatory
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(FORM OF REVERSE OF 2034 DEBENTURE)

This Security is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company (herein called.
the “Securities”), issued and to be issued in one or more series under an Indenture, dated as of
December 1, 2004, as supplemented by the Ninth Supplemnental Indenture dated as of June 28,
2024 (the “Indenture™), between the Company and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
Trustee (herein calied the “Trustee™, which term includes any successor trustee under the
Indenture), and reference is hereby made fo the Indenture for a statement of the respective rights,
limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the
Holders of the Securities and of the terms upon which the Securities are, and are to he,
authenticatéd and delivered. This Security is one of the series designated on the face hereof, which
series is issuable without limitation as to the aggregate principal amount thereof.

The Company has the right to redeetn at any time all, or from time to time any part of, the
Securities of this series at a Redemption Price equal to (1) 100% of the principal amount of the
Securitics of this serfes to be redeemed, plus (2) the Make-Whole Amount deterinined for the.
redemption date with respect to such principal amount of the Securities of this series to be
redeemed.

Any partial redemption 6f the Securities of this series shall be for a principal amount, of not
less than 10% of the aggregate amount then outstanding of the Securities of this series to be
redeemed. In the case of each such partial redemption of the Securities of this series, the principal
amount of the Securities of this series to be redeemed shall be allocated among all of the Securities
of this series at the time outstanding in proportion, as nearly as practicable, to the respective unpaid
principal amounts theréof not theretofore called for redemption.

In the event of redemption of this Security in part only, anew Security or Securities of this
series and of like tenor for the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued in the naine of the Holder
hereof upon the cancellation hercof.

Notice of any rcdemption by the Company will be mailed at least 30 days but not more
than 60 days before:any Redemption Date to each Holder of Securities to be redeemed.

Unless the Company defaults in payment of the Redemption Price, on and after any
Redemption Datc, interest will cease to accrue on the Securities or portions thereof called for
redemption.

Ifan Event of Default with respect to Securities of this series shall occur and be continuing,
the principal of the Securities of this series may be declared due and payable in the manner and
with the effect provided in the Indenture.

The Indenture perinits, with eertain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof
and the modification of the rights and obligations.of the Coinpany ‘and the rights of'the Holders of
the Securities of each series to be affected under the Indenture at any. time by the Company -and
the Trustee with the consent of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Securities at
the time Outstanding of each series to be affected. The Indenture also contains provisions
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permitting the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Securities of each series at the time:
Outstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Securities of such series, to waive compliance by the
Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture
and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holder of this Security shall be
couclusive and binding upon such Holder and upen all future Holders of this Security and of any
Security issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof,
whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Security.

As provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Holder of this Security
shall not have the right to institute any proceeding with respect to the Indenture or for the
appointment of a receiver or trustee ot for any other remedy thereunder, unless such Holder shall
have previously given the Trustee written notice of a continuing Event of Default with respect to
the Securities of this series, the Holders of not less than 35% in principal amount of the Securities
of this scries at the time Qutstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute
proceedings in respect of such Event of Default as Trustee and offered the Trustce indemnity
redsonably satisfactory to the Trustee, and the Trustee shall not have received from the Holders of
a majority in principal amount of Securities cof this series at the time Ouistanding a direction
‘inconsistent with such request, and shall have failed to institute any such proceeding, for 60 days
after receipt of such notice, request and offer of indeimnity. The foregoing shall not apply to any
suit instituted by the Holder of this Security for the enforcement of any payment of principal hereof
or any premium or interest liereon on or after the respective due dates expressed herein.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Security or of the Indenture
shail alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay
the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this Security at the times, place and rate, and
in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer
of this Security is registrable in the Security Register, upon surrender of this Security for
registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company in any place where the principal of
{and premium, if any)} and interest on this Security are payable, duly endorsed by, or accompanied
by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar
duly executed by, the Holder hereof or his attomey duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one
or more new Sccurities of this series and of like tenor, of authorized denominations and for the
same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The Securities. of this serics are issuable only in registered form without coupons in
denominations of at least $100,000, except as may be necessary to enable the registration of
transfer by a Holder of its entire holding of the Securities. As provided in the Indcnture and subject
to certain limitations therein set forth, Securities of this series are exchanpeable for a like aggregate
principal amount of Securities of this series and of like temor of a different authorized
denomination, as.requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge shall be made
for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum
sufficient to cover any tax or other goverrmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Security for registration of transfer, the Company, the
Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustée may treat the Person in whose name this
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Security is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Security be overdue,
and neither the Company, tlie Trustee nor any snch agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

All terms used in this Security that are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings
assigned to them in the Indenture.
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(FoRM OF FACE OF 2039 DERENTURE)

THIS DEBENTURE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR "THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY
STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED. EXCEPT (1) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (2) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IN EACH CASE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS, AND IN THE CASE OF A
TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION, UNLESS THE COMPANY HAS
RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH MAY BE IN-HOUSE COUNSEL)
SATISFACTORY TO IT THAT SUCH TRANSACTION DOES NOT REQUIRE
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND SUCH OTHER APPLICABLE
LAWS.

No. R- 5
PPN 264421 F*0 , 20

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC:
6.17% DEBENTURE DUE 2039

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC., a-corporation duly organized and existing under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky: (herein called the “Company”, which tenn includes any
successor Person under the Indenture hereafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to
pay to , or registered assigns, the principal sum of
Dollars ($ ) on July 15, 2039, and to pay interest
(a) thereon from June 28, 2024, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest
has been paid or duly provided for, semiannually, on January 15 and July 15 in each year,.
‘commencing January 15, 2025, at {he rate of 6.17% per annum, as may be adjusted in accordance
with Section 204 of the the Ninth Supplemental Indenture, until the principal hereof is due and
payable, and (b) to the extent permitted by law, (i) on any overdue payment of interest, (ii) on any
overdue paymeht of the Redemption Price, and {iii) during the continuance of an Event of Default,.
on any unpaid principal amount and on any overdue payment of any Make-Whole Amount, at a
rate per annum equal to the Default Rate, payable semiannually as aforesaid (or, at the option of
the registered holder hereof, on demand). The “Default Rate” shall mean a rate per annum from
time to time equal to the lesser of (x) the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, and (y)
8.17%; as may be adjusted in accordance with Section 204 of the the Ninth Supplemental
Indenture.

‘"The amount of interest payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be computed on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. The interest so payable, and punétually paid or
duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the
Person in whose name this Security (or one- or more Predecessor Securities) is registered at the
close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the fifteenth day
preceding such Inierest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided
for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either
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be paid to the Person in whose name this Security (or one or more Predecessor Securities) is
registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted
Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice whereof shall be given tc Holders of Securities of this
series not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other
lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the
Securities of this series may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange,
all as more fully provided in the Indenture.

Subject to certain exceptions provided in the Indenture, payment of the principal of (and
premium, if any) and interest on this Security will be made at the corporate trust office of the
Trustee maintained for that purpose in the City of New York, in such coin or currency of the United
States of America as at the time of paymnent i3 legal tender for payment of public and private debts.

Any payment on this Security due on any day which is not a Business Day in-the City of
New York need not be made on such day, but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day
with the same force and effect as if made on the due date and no interest shall acerue for the period
from and after such date, unless such payment is a payment at maturity or upon redemption, in
which case, notwithstanding Section 113 of the Indenture, interest shall accrue thereon at the stated
rate for such additional days.

As used herein, “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a day:
on which banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law or
executive crder to close,

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Security set forth on the reverse
hereof, which further provisioris shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this
place.

Unless the certificaté of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to
on the reverse hereof by manual signature, this Security shall not be entitled to any benefit under
the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

In Witness Whereof, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

By:
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Dated: 20
This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-
mentioned Indenture.

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY
AMERICAS, Trustee.

By:

Authorized Signatory
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(FORM OF REVERSE OF 2339 DEBENTURE)

This Security is one of a duly authorized issue of secutities of the Company (herein called
the “Securities™), issued and to be issued in one or more series under an Indenture, dated as of’
December 1, 2004, as supplemented by the Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 28,
2024 (the “Indenture™), between the Company -and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
Trustee .(herein called the “Trustee”, which term includes any successor trustee under the
Indenture), and reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a statermnent of the réspective rights,
limitations of rights, duties and immunities thercunder of the Company, fhe Trustee and the
Holders of the Securitiés and of the terms upon which the Securities are, and are fto be,
authenticated and delivered, This Security is-one of the serics designated on the face hereof, which
series is issuable without limitation as to the aggregate principal amount thereof,

The Company has the right to redeem at any time all, or from time to time any part of, the
Securities of this series at a Redemption Price equal to (1) 100% of the principal amount of the
Securitics of this series to be redeemed, plus (2) the Make-Whole Amount determined for the
redemption date with respect to such principal amount of the Seccurities of this series to be
redecined..

Any partial redemption of the Securities of this series shall be for a principal amount of not
less than 10% of the aggregate amount then outstanding of the Securities of this series to be
redeemed. In the case of each such partial redemption of the Securities of this series, the principal
amount of the Securities of this series to be redeemnéd shall be allocated among all of the Securitics
of this series at the time outstanding in proportion, as nearly as practicable, to the respective unpaid
-principal amounts thereof not theretofore called for redemption.

In the event of redemption of this Security in part only,-a new Security or Securities of this
series and of like tenor for the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued in the name of the Holdér
hereof upon the cancellation hereof.

Notice of any redemption by the Company will he mailed at least 30 days but not more
than 60 days before any Redemption Date to each Holder of Securities to be redeemed.

Unless the Company defaults in payment of the Redemption Price, on and after ‘any
Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Securities or portions thereof called for
redemption.

If an Event of Default with respect to Securities of this series shall oecur and be continuing,
the principal of the Securities of this series may be declared due and payable in the manner and
with the effect provided in the Indenture.

The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thercof
and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of
the Securities of each series to be affected under the Indenture at any time by the Company and
the Trustee with the consent of the Holders of a majority m principal amount of the Securities at
the time Outstanding of each series to be affected. The Indenture also contains provisions
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permitting the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Securities of each series at the time
Outstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Securities of such series, to waive compliance by the
Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture
and their consequences. Any snch consent or waiver by the Holder of this Security shall be
conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Security and of any
Security issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof,
whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Security.

As provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Holder of this Security
shall not have the right to institute any proceeding with respect to the Indenture or for the
'appointnlent of a receiver or trustee or for any other remedy thereunder, unless such Holder shall
have previously given the Trustee written notice of a continuing Event of Default with respect to
the Securities of this series, the Holders of not less than 35% in principal amount of the Securities
of this serics at the time Outstanding shall have made writien request to the Trustee to institute
proceedings m respect of sueh Event of Default as Trustee and offered the Trustee indemnity
reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, and the Trustee shall not have received from the Holders of
‘a majority in principal amount of Securities of this series at the time Outstanding a direction
inconsistent with such request, and shall have failed to institute any such proceeding, for 60 days
afier receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity. The foregoing shall not apply to any
suit instituted by the Holder of this Security for the enforcement of any payment of principal hereof
or any premium or interest hereon on or after the respective due dates expressed herein.

No reference herein to the Indentuie and no provision of this Security or of the Indenture
shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay
the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this Security at the times, place and rate, and
in the cein or currency, herein prescribed.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer
of this Seourity is registrable in the Security Register, upon surrender of this Security for
registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company in any place where tle principal of
(and premium, if any) and interest on this Security are payable, duly endorsed by, or accompanied
by a wriiten instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar
duly executed by, the Holder hereof or his attomey duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one
or more new Securities of this series and of like tenor, of authorized denominations and for the
saine aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The Securities of this series are issuable only in registered form- without coupons in
denominations of at least $100,000, except as may be necessary to enable the registration of
transfer by a Holder of its entire holding of the Securities. As provided in the Indenture and subject
te certain limitations therein set forth, Securities of this series are exchangeable for a like agpregate
principal amount of Sccurities of this series and of like tenor of a different authorized
denomination, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge shall be made
for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company 1nay require payment of a sun
sufficicnt to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentiment of this Security for registration of transfer, the Company, the
Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name this
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Security is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Security be overdue,
and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary,

All terms used in this Security that are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings
assigned to themn in the Indenture.
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ARTICLE THREE,
ORIGINAL ISSUE OF DEBENTURES

An initial issue of the Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $80,000,000 for the
2031 Debentures, $95,000,000 for the 2034 Debenturesand $50,000,000 for the 2039 Debentures
may, upon execution of this Supplemental Indenture, or from time to time hereafier, be executed
by the Company and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall thereupon
authenticate and deliver said Debentures upon receipt of a Company Order, an Officers’ Certificate
-and an Opinion of Counsel, ‘

ARTICLE FOUR..
PAYING AGENT AND SECURITY REGISTRAR

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas will be the Paying Agent and Security Registrar
for the Debentures.

ARTICLE FIVE,

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
SECTION 501. ADDITIONAL EVENTS QF DEFAULT.

In addition to those Events of Default set forth in Section 501 of the Indenture, the
following events shall also be Eveats. of Default with respect to the Debentures:

(a) the Company defaults in the performance of or compliance with any term contained
in Sections 60 1{a)(iv), 608, 609 or 610 hercof; or

(b) (i) any representation or warranty made in writing by or on behalf of the Company
of by any officer of the Company in the Purchase Agreement or any -writing furnished in
connection with the transactions contemplated thereby proves to have been false or incorrect in
any material respect on the date as of which made, or (ii) so long as the obligation or condition
giving rise to the requirement for a Subsidiary Guaranty under Section 607 hereof remains in
effect, any representation or warranty made in writing by or on behalf of any Subsidiary Guarantor
or by any officer of such Subsidiary Guarantor in any Subsidiary Guaranty or any writing furnished
in connection with such Subsidiary Guaranty proves to have been false or incorrect-in any material
respect on the date as of which made; or

{¢} (i) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary is in default {(as principal or as
guarantor or other surety) in the payment of any principal of or premium or make whole amount
or interest on any Indebtedness that is outstanding in an aggregate principal amount of at least
$50,000,000 beyond any period of grace provided with respect thereto, or (ii) the Company or any
Significant Subsidiary is in default in the performance of or compliance with any term of any
evidence of any Indebtedness in an aggregate outstanding principal amount of at least $50,000,000
or of any morigage, indenture or other agreement relating thereto or any other condition exists,
and as a copsequence of such defaulf or condition such Indebtedness has become, or has been
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declared, due and payable before its stated maturity or before its regularly scheduled dates of
paymenl; or

(d) one or more final judgments or orders for the payment of money aggregating in
excess of $50,000,000, including, without limitation, any such final order enforcing a binding
arbitration decision, are rendered agairist one or more of the Company and its Subsidiaries, (i)
which judgments are not, within 60 days after entry thereof, bonded, vacated, satisfied, discharged
or stayed pending appeal, or (ii) which judgmenis are not discharged within 60 days after the
expiration of such stay; or

() if (i) any Plan shall fail to satisfy the.mininmum funding standards of ERISA or the
Code for any plan year or part thereof or a waiver of such standards or extension of any
amortization period is sought or granted under section 412 of the Code, (ii} a notice of intent to
terminate any Plan shall have been or is reasonably expected to be filed with the PBGC or the
PBGC shall have instituted proceedings under ERISA section 4042 to terminate or appoint a
trustee to administer any Plan or the PBGC shall have notified the Company or any ERISA
Affiliate that a Plan may becoine a subject of any suclr proceedings, (iii) the aggregate “amount of
unfuended benefit liabilities™ (within the meaning of section 4001(a)(18) of ERISA) under all Plans,
determined in accordance with Title IV of ERISA, shall exceed an amount that could reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, {iv) the Company or any ERISA Affiliate shall
have incurred or is reasonably expected to incur any liability pursuant to Title T or IV of ERISA
or the penalty or excise. tax provisions of the Code relating to employee benefit plans, (v) the
Company or any ERTISA Affiliate withdraws from any Multiemployer Plan, or (vi) the Company
or any Subsidiary establishes or amends any employee welfare benefit plan that provides past-
employment welfare benefits in a manner that would increase the liability of the Company or any
Subsidiary thereunder; and any such event or events described in clauses (1) through (vi) above,
either individually or together with any other such event or events, would reasonably be expected
to have a Mateérial Adverse Effect. As used in this Section 501(e), the terms “employee benefit
plan” and “employee welfare benefit plan” shall have the respective meanings assigned to such
terms in section 3 of ERISA; or

3] so long as the obligation or condition giving rise to the requirentent for a Subsidiary
guaranty under Section 607 hereof remains in effect, (i) any Subsidiary Guaranty shall cease to be
in full force and effect, (ii) any Subsidiary Guarantor or any Person acting on belalf of any
Subsidiary Guarantor shall contest in any manner the validity, binding nature or enforceability of
any Suhsidiary Guaranty, or (iii) the obligations of any Subsidiary Guarantor under any Subsidiary
Guaranty are not or ceasc to be legal, valid, binding and enforceable in accordance with the terms
of such Subsidiaty Guaranty,

SECTION 502. REMEDY TO ALSO INCLUDE MAKE-WHOLE AMOUNT.

Upon any Debentures becoming due and payable as a result of Section 502 of the Indenture,
-whether automatically or by declaration, such Debentures will forthwith mature and the entire
unpaid principal amount of such Debentures, plus (x) all accrued and unpaid interest thereon and
(y) the Make-Whole Amount, determined pursuant to Section 208(b) hereof, in respect of such
principal amouiit (to the full extent permitted by applicable law), shall all be immediately due and
payable, in each and every case without presentment, demand, protest or further notice, all of
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which are hereby waived. The Company acknowledges that each Holder of a Debenture has the
right to maintain its investment in the Debentures free from repayment by the Company (except
as herein specifically provided for) and that the provision for payment of a Make-Whole Amount
by the Company 1n the event that the Debentures are redeemed or are accelerated as a result of an
Event of Default, is intended to provide compensation for the deprivation of such right under such
circuinstances.

ARTICLE SIX,

COVENANTS

In dddition to the covenants set forth in Article Ten of the Indenture, the Company
covenants that so long as any of the Debentures are outstanding:

SECTION 601. INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY,

(@)  Financial and Business Information. The Company shall deliver to the Trustee and
to each Purchaser and each Holder of a Debentire that is an Institutional Invesior:

() Quarterly Statements. Within 60 days after the end of each quarterly fiscal
period in each fiscal year of the Company (other than the last quarterly fiscal period of each
such fiscal year), copies of:

(A)  aconsolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries as
at the end of such quarter; and

(B)  consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity
and cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries, for such quarter and (in the
case of the second and third quarters) for the portion of the fiscal year ending with
such quarter;

which get forth in each case, in comparative fonn, the figures for the corresponding periods
in the previous fiscal year, all in reasonable detail, prepared in accordance with GAAP
applicable to quarterly financial statements geuenlly, and certified by a Senior Financial
Officer as fairly presenting, in all material respects, the financial position of the companies
being reported on and their results of operations and cash flows, subject to changes
resulting from year-end adjustments;,

()  Annual Statements. Within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year of the
Company, copies of:

(A) a consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries as
at the end of such year, and

(B)  consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity
and cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries for such year,
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which set forth in each case, in comparative form, the figures for the previous fiscal year,
all in reasonable detail, prepared in accordance with GAAP, and accompanied by an
opinion thereon (without a “going concern™ or similar qualification or exception and
without any qualification or exception as to the scope of the audit on which such opinion
is based) of independent public accountants of recognized national standing, which opinion
shall statethat such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the companies being reported upon and their results of operations and cash
fiows and have been prepared in conformity with GAAP, and that the examination of sucl
accountants in conmection with such financial statements has been made in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, and that'such audit provides a reasonable basis for
such opinion in the circumstances,

(ili) SEC and Other Reports. Promptly upon their becoming available, copies
of (A) each financial statement, report, notice or proxy statement sent by the Commpany or
any Subsidiary to its principal lending banks as a whele {excluding information sent to
‘such banks in the ordinary course of administration of a bank facility, such as information
relating to pricing and borrowing availability} or to its public Securities holders generally,
and (B) each regular or periodic report, each registration statement that shall have become
effective (without exhibits except as expressly requested by such Purchaser or Holder), and
each final prospectus and all amendments thereto filed by the Company or any Subsidiary
with the SEC;

(iv)  Netice of Default or Event af Defuult. Promptly, and in any event within
five days after 2 Responsible Officer becoming aware of the existence of any Default or
Event of Default, a written notice specifying the natire and period of existence thereof and
what action the Company is taking or proposes to take with respect thereto;

(\2] ERISA Marters. Promptly, and in any event within five days after a
Responsible Officer becoming aware of any of the following, a written notice sefting forth
the nature thereof and the action, if any, that the Company or an ERISA Affiliate proposes
to take with respect thereto:

(A)  with respect to any Plan, any reportable event, as defined in section
4043(c) of ERISA and the regulations thereunder, for which notice thereof has not
been waived pursuant to such regulations as in effect on the date hereof; or

(B) the taking by the PBGC of steps to institute, or the threatening by
the PBGC of the institution of, proceedings under section 4042 of ERISA for the
termination of, or the appointment of a trustee to administer, any Plan, or the receipt
by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate of a notice from a Multiemployer Plan that
such action has been taken by the PBGC with respect to such Multiemployer Plan;
or

(C) anyevent, transaction or condition that could result in the incurrence
of any liability by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate pursuant to Title I'or IV of
ERISA or the penalty or excise tax provisions of the Code relating to employes
benefit plans, or in the imposition of any lien on any of the righis, properties or
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assets of the Company or any ERISA Affiliate pursuant to Title T or IV of ERISA
or such penalty or exeise tax provisions, if such liability or lien, taken together with
any othier such Habilities or liens then existing, would reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect; and

(vi)  Requested Information. With reasonable promptness, such other data and
information relating to the business, operations, affairs, financial condition, assets or
properties of the Comipany or any of its. Subsidiaries or relating to the ability of the
Company to perform its obligations hereunder and under the Débentures as from time to
time may be reasonably requested by any such Purchaser or Holder of a Debenture.

{(b) Officer’s Certificate. Each set of financial statements delivered to a Purchaser or a
Holder of a Debenture pursuant to Sections 601(a) or (b) hereof shall be accompanied by a
certificate of a Senior Financial Officer certifying that such Senior Financial Officer has reviewed
the relevant. terms hereof and has made, or caused to be made, under his or her supervision, a
review of the transactions and conditions of the Company and its Subsidiaries from the beginning
of the quarterly or annual period covered by the statements then being furnished to the date of the
certificate and that such review shall not have disclosed the existence during such period of any
condition or event that constitutes a Default or an Event of Default or; if any such condition or
event existed or exists, specifying the nature and period of existence thereof and what action the
Company shall have taken or proposes to take with respect thereto.

(©) Electronic Delivery. Financial stateinents, opinions ofindependent certified public
accountants, other information and Officer’s Certificates that are required to be delivered by the
Company pursuant to clauses (i}, (ii) or (iii) of Section 601(a) hereof and Section 601(b) hereof
shall be deemed to have been delivered if the Company satisfies any of the following requirements
with respect thereto:

) such financial statements satisfying the requirements of clauses (i) or (ii) of
Section 601(a) hereof and related Officer’s Certificate satisfying the requirements of
Section 601(b) hereof are delivered to each Purchaser and each Holder of a Debenture by
e~-mail;

(ii)  such financial statements satistying the requirements of clauses (1) or (ii) of
Section 601(a) hereof and related Officer’s Certificate satistying the requirements of
Section 601{b) hereof are timely posted by or on behalf of the Company on Intralinks or
on any other similar website to which each Purcliasei and each Holder of Debentures has
free access; or

(iii)  the Company shall have filed any of the items referred to in clause (iii} of
Section 607(a) hereof with the SEC on EDGAR and shall have made such items available
on its home page on the internet or on Intralinks or on any other similar website ta which
each Purchaser and Holder of Debentures has free access;

provided, however, that in the case of delivery under clauses (i) or (iii) of this Section 601(c); the

Company shall have given each Purchaser and each Holder of a Debenture written notice, which
may be by e-mail, of such posting or filing in connection with each delivery.
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SECTION 602. VISITATION.

The Company shall permit the. representatives of each Purchaser and each Holder of a
Debenture-that is an Institutional Tnvestor:

() No Default. If no Default or Event of Default then exists, at the expense of such
Holder and upon reasonable prior notice to the Company, to visit the principal executive office of
the Company, to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the Company and its Subsidiaries
with the Company’s officers, and (with the consent of the Company, which consent will not be
unreasonably withheld) to visit the other offices and properties of the Company and each
Subsidiary, all at such reasonable tinies as may be reasonably requested in writing; provided that
each Purchaser and each Holder shall be limited to one visit during any twelve-month period; and

(b) Defaulr. 1f a Default or an Event of Default then exists, at the expense of the
Company to visit and inspect any of the offices or properties of the Company or any Subsidiary,
to examine all their respective books of account, records, reports and other papers, to 1nake copies
and extracts therefrom; and to discuss their respective affairs, finances and accounts with their
respective officers and independent public accountants {(and by this provision the Company
anthorizes said accountants to discuss the affairs, fihances and accounts of the Company and its
Subsidiartes), all at such times-and. as often as may be requested. ‘

SECTION 603. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS,

Without limiting Section 609 hereof, the Company will, and will cause each of its
Subsidiaries to, comply with all laws, ordimances or governmental rules or regulations te which
each of them is snbject, including, without limitation, ERISA, Environmental Laws, the USA
PATRIOT Act and the other laws and regulations relating to U.S. Econocinic Sanctions Laws, and
will obtain and maintain in effect all licenses, certificates, permits, franchises and other
governmental authorizations necessary to. the ownership of their respective properties or to the
conduct of their respective businesses, except, in each case, where (i) non-compliance with such
laws, ordinances or governmental rules or regulations or failures to obtain or maintain in effect
such licenses, cettificates, permits, franchuses and other governmental authorizations would not
reasenably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or (i) the necessity of compliance with
such laws, ordinances or governmental rules or regulations are being contested in good faith by
appropriate proceedings.

SECTION 604, INSURANCE.

The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, maintain, with financially
sound and reputable insurers, insurance with respect to their respective properties and businesses
against such casualtics and contingencies, of such types, on such terms and in such amounts
(including deductibles, co-insurance and self-insurance, if adequate reserves are maintained with
respect thereto) as is customary in the case of entities of established reputations engaged in the
same or a similar business and similarly situated. Upon request, the Company will provide written
evidence of its. or its Subsidiaries’ insurance to the Trustee.
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SECTION 605. CORPORATE EXISTENCE, ETC.

Subject to Article Eight of the Indenture, the Company will at all times preserve and keep
in full force and effect, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries (unless merged into the Company
or-a Whelly-Owned Subsidiary) to preserve and keep in fill force and effect, their respective legal
existence and their respective rights and franchises unless, in the good faith judgment of the
Company, the termination of or failure to preserve and keep in full force and effect such legal
existence, right or franchise would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse
Effect.

SECTION 606. BOOKS AND RECORDS.

The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, maintain proper books of
record and account in conformity with GAAP and all applicable requirements of any
Governmental Authority having legal or regulatory jurisdiction over the Company or such
Subsidiary, as the case may be. The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, keep
books, records and accounts which, in réasonable detail, accurately reflect all transactions and
dispositicns of assets. The Company and its Subsidiaries have devised a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that their respective books,
records, and accounts accurately reflect all transactions and dispositions of assets and the Company
will, and will cause each of its Subsidianes to, continue to maintain such system.

SECTION 607. SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS.

The Company will cause each of its Subsidiaries that guarantees or otherwise becomes
liable at any time, whether as a bortower or an additional or co-borrower or otherwise, for or in
respect of any Indebtedness under any Material Credit Facility to concurrenfly therewith:

(a) enter into an agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Trustee and the
Required Holders providing for the guaranty by such Subsidiary, on a joint and several basis with
all other such Subsidiarics, of (i) the prompt payinent in full when due of all amounts payable by
the Company pursuani to the Debentures (whether for principal, interest, the Redemption Price or
otherwise), including, without limitation, all indemnities, fees and expenses payable by the
Company thereunder and (ii) the prompt, full and faithful performance, observance and discharge
by the Company of each and. every covenant, agreement, undertaking and provision required
pursuant to the Debentures be performed, observed or discharged by it (a “Subsidiary Gnaranty™);
and

(b) deliver the following to each Purchaser and each Holder of a Debenture:

(i} an executed countérpart of such Subsidiary Guaranty;

(i)  acertificate signed by an authorized responsible officer of such Subsidiary
contaiping representations and warranties on behalf of such Subsidiary as to organization,

power, authority and compliance with laws with respect to such Subsidiary Guaranty in
form and substance satisfactory to the Trustee and the Required Holders;
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(i) all documents as may be reasonably requested by the Trustee or the
Required Holders to evidence the due organization, continuing existence and good standing
of such Subsidiary and the due. authorization by all requisite action on the part of such
Subsidiary of the execution and delivery of such Subsidiary Guaranty and the performance
by such Subsidiary of its obligations thereunder; and

(iv) an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfaciory to the Trustee and the
Required Holders covering such matters relating to such Subsidiary and such Subsidiary
Guaranty as the Trustee or the Required Holders may reasonably request.

SECTION 608. LINE OF BUSINESS.

‘The Company will not-and will not perniit any Subsidiary to éngage in any business if, as
atesult, the general nature of the business in which the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as 4
whole, would then be engaged would be substantially changed from the general nature of the
business in which the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, are engaged on the date
hereof.

SECTION 609. TERRORISM SANCTIONS REGULATIONS.

The Cornpany will not, and will not permit any Controlled Entity to (a) become (including
by virtue of being owned or controlled by a Blocked Person), ewn or control a Blocked Person or
(b) directly or indirectly have any investment in or engage in any dealing or transaction (including
any investment, dealing or transaction involving the proceeds of the Notes) with any Person if such
investinent, dealing or transaction (i} would cause any holder or any affiliate of such holder to be
in violation of, ot subject to sanctions under, any law or regulation applicable to such holder, or
(i1} is prohibited by or subject to sanctions under any U.S. Economic Sanctions Laws,

SECTION 610. NEGATIVE PLEDGE.

(8  While any of the Debentures remain outstanding, the Company shall not create, or
pemmit to be created or to exist, any mortgage, lien, pledge, security interest or other encunibrance
upon any of its property, ‘whether owned on or acquircd after the date hereof, to secure -any
indebtedness for borrowed money of the Company, unless the Debentures then outstanding are
equally and ratably secured for so long as any such indebtedness is so secured.

(b)  The restrictions of Section §10(a) liereof shall not apply with respect to, among
other thinps:

) ltens ou property that existed when the Company acquired or constructed
the property or were created within one year thereafter;

(ii)  lieus on property that secure payment of all or part of the purchase price or
construction cost of the property, including the extension of any liens to repairs or
iinprovements made on the property;

{iii))  the pledge of any bonds or othet securities at any timme issued under any of
the liens permitted by clauses (i) or (ii) above;
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(iv) - liens for taxes, assessments and other governmental charges or requirements
which are not delinguent or which are being contesied in good faith by appropriate
proceedings or of which at least ten Business Days’ notice has not been given to the general
counsel of the Company or to such other Person designated by the Company to receive
such notices;

W mechanics’, workinen's, repairmen’s, materialmen’s, warehousemen’s, and
carriers’ liens, other liens incident to construction, liens or privileges of any employees of
the Company for salary or wages earned, but not yet payable, and other liens, including
without limitation liens for worker’s compensation awards, arising in the ordinary coiurse
of business for charges or requirements which are not delinquent or which are being
contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings or of which at {east ten Business
Days’ notice has not been given to the general counsel of the Company or to such other
Person designated by the Company to receive such notices;

{vi)  liens in respect of attachmenits, judgments or awards arising out of judicial
or administrative proceedings in an amount not exceeding the greater of (A) Fifty Million
Dollars ($50,000,000) and (B) three percent (3%) of the principal amount of the Securities
then Outstanding;

{vi1) liens in respect of attachments, judgments or awards arising-out of judicial
or administrattve proceedings with respect to which the Company shall (A) in good faith
be prosecuting an appeal or other proceeding for review and with respect to which the
Company shall have secured a stay of execution pending Such appeal or other proceeding
or (B) have the right to prosecute an appeal or other proceeding for review or {C) have not
received at least ten Business Days’ notice given to the general counsel of the Company or
to such othér Person designated by the Company to receive such notices;

{viii) easements, leases, reservations or other rights of others in, on, over and/or
across, and laws, regulations and restrictions affecting, and defects, irregularities,
exceptions and limnitations in title to, the property of the Company or any part thereof;

(ix) liens, defects, irregularities, exceptions and limitations in (A) title to real
property subject to rights-of-way in favor of the Company or ctherwise or used or to be
used by the Company primarily for right-of-way purposes; {B) real property heid under
leage, casement, license or similar right; or {C) the rights-of-way, leases, easements,
licenses or similar rights in favor of the Company; and defects, irregularities, exceptions
and lirpitations in title to floed lands, flooding rights aud/or water rights;

(x)  liens securing indebtedness. or other obligations neither created, assunied
nor guaranteed by the Company nor on account of which it customarily pays intérest upon
real property or rights in or relating to real property acquired by the Company for the
purpose of the generation of electric energy or the transmission or distribution of electric
energy, gas or water, or for the purpose of telephonic, telegraphic, radio, wireless or other
electronic communication, or otherwise for the purpose of obtaining rights-of-way;
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(xi) leases existing at the date hereof affecting properties owned by the
Company at said date and renewals and extensions thereof; and leases affecting such
properties entered into after such date or affecting properties acquired by the Company
afier such date which, in either case, {A) have respective terms of not more than ten years
{including extensions or renewals at the-option of the tenant) or (B) do not materially impair
the use by the Company of such properties for the respective purposes for which they are.
held by the Company;

(xii) liens vested in lessors, licensors, franchisors or perniitters for rent or other
amounts to become due or for other obligations or acts to be performed, the payment of
which rent or the performance of which other obligations or acts is required under leases,
sublecases, licenses, franchises or permits, so long as the payment of such rent or other
amounts or the performance of such other obligations or acts is not delinquent or is being
contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings;

(xiif) liens securing industrial revenue or pollution control bonds issued to finance
any of the Company’s pollution control, sewage or solid waste disposal facilities;

(xl¥) controls, restrictions, obligations, duties and/or other burdens imposed by
federal, state, municipal or other law, or by tules, regulations or orders of the government
of the United Stdtes or of any State or Territory thereof or of the District of Columbia or
of any county, municipality ot other political subdivision of any thereof, or any department,
agency, authority or other instrumentality of any of the foregoing {(collectively,
“Governmental Authorities”), upon the Company’s propetty or any part thereof or the
operation or use thereof or upon the Company with respect to the Company’s property or
any part thereof or the operation or use thereof or with respect to any franchise, grant,
license, permit or public purpose requirement, or any rights reserved to or otherwise vested
in Governmental Authorities to impose any such controls, restrictions, obligations, duties
and/or other burdens;

(xv)  rights which Governmental Authorities may have by virtue of franchises,
grants, licenses, permits or contracts, or by virtue of law, to purchase, recapture or
designate a purchaser of or order the sale of the Company’s property or any part thereof,
to terminate franchises, grants, licenses, pennits, contracts or other rights or to regulate the
property and business of the Company; and any and all obligations of the Company
correlative to any such rights;

(xvi) liens required by law or governmental regulations (A) as a condition to the
transaction of any business or the exercise of any privilege or license, (B) to enable the
Comipany to maintain self-insurance ot to participate in any funds established to cover any
insurance risks, (C) in connection with workimen’s compensation, uuemployment
insuranee, social security, any pension or welfare benefit plan or (D} to share in the
privileges or benefits required for companies participating in one or more of the
arrangements described in sub-clauses (B) and (C) above;
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{xvii) liens on the Company’s propetty or any part thereof which are granted by
the Company to secure duties or public or statutory obligations or to secure, or serve in lisu
of, surety, stay or appeal bonds;

(xviii} rights reserved to or vested in others to take or receive any part of any coal,
orc, gas, oil and other minerals, any timber and/or any electric capacity or energy, gas,
water, steam and any other products, developed, produced, manufactured, generated,
purchased or otherwise acquired by the Company or by others on property of the Company;

{(xix) (A) rights and interests of Persons other than the Company arising out of
confracts, agreements and other instruments io ‘which the Company is a party and which
relate to the common ownership. or joint use of property; and (B} all liens on the interests
of Persons other than the Company in property owned in cammon by such Persons and the
Company if and to the extént that the ¢nforcement of such liens would not adversely affect
the interests of the Company in such property in any material respect;

{xx} any restrictions on assignment and/or requirements of any assignec to
qualify as a permitted assignee and/or public utility or public service corporation; and

(xxi) any liens which Have been bonded for the full amount in dispute or for the
payment of which other adequate security arrangements have been made.

(¢)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the Company is in compliance with
Section 612 and the interest rate adjustments, if applicable, in Section 204(¢) hereof, the Company
may create ot assume any other mortgage, lien, pledge, security interest or other encumbrance not
otherwise excepted under Section 610(b) hereof without equally (in an amount equal to the
aggregate principal amount of the lesser of (x) the indebtedness secured by such newly created or
assmmed mortgage, lien, pledge, security interest or other encumbrance or (y) the Debentures then
outstanding) aud ratably (with tbe same priority as such newly created or assumed mortgage, lien,
pledge, security interest or other encumbrance) securing the Debentures (a “Basket Lien”). Any
such documentation evideneing the securing of the Debentures shall be reasonably acceptable to
the Required Holders in sybstance and in form.

SECTION 611. INDEBTEDNESS TO CAPITALIZATION RATIO.

The Company will not pcrmit the ratio of Consolidated Indebtedness to Consolidated
Capitalization as at the end of any fiscal quarter of the Company to cxceed 65%.

SECTION 612. RATING.

(a)  If the Company has incurred, created or assumed a Basket Lien, the Company shall
promptly {(and, in any event within 30 days after such incurrence, ereation and/or assurmption)
procure and deliver to the holders of the Debentures current Debt Ratings froin the two NRSROs

(b) At any time that the Debt Rating maintained pursuant to clause (a) above is not a

public rating, the Company will provide to each holder of a Debenture (x) at Icast annually (on or
before each anniversary of tbe date of this Agreement} and (y) as soon as available, which in any
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event shall not be later than the next annual anniversary date, upon any change in such Debt Rating,
a Private Rating Leétter evidencing such Debt Rating and a Private Rating Rationale: Report with
respect to such Debt Rating: In addition to the foregoing information, if the. VO of any other
regulatory authority having jurisdiction over any holder of any Debentures from time to time
requires any additional information with respect to the Debt Rating, the Company shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to. procure such information from the NRSRO,

SECTION 613. CHANGE OF CONTROL.

While any series of the Debentures is outstanding, if the Company issues debt securities in a
Private Placement pursuantto a note purchase agreement, debenture purchase agreement, indenture
or suppleimental indenture (or any amendmcnt to any of the foregoing) (each, a “Private Debt
Agreement ™), which Private Debt Agreement contains any MFL Change of Control which is not
otherwise included ‘in this Ninth S‘up‘piemental Indenture, then a Senior Fimancial Officer of the
Company shall prownptly (but in any event within ten Business Days from the occurrence thereof)
provide written notice thereof to the holders of Debentures, which notice shall refer specifically to
this Séction 613 and describe in reasonable: detail the MFL Change of Control and the relevant
triggering events and rights and obligations flowing therefrom. Thereupon, unless waived in writing
by the Required Holders within ten Business Days of the holders’ receipt of such notice, such MFL
Change of Contrel shall be deemed incorporated by reference into this Ninth Supplemental Indenture,
mutaiis mutandis, as if set forth fully herein effective as-of the date when such MFL Change of Control
became effective under the applicable Private Debt Agreement.

ARTICLE SEVEN,
AMENDMENTS TO INDENTURE.
(a) Section 501(1) of the Indenture is replaced in its entirety with the following:

“(1)  default in the payment of any interest upon any Security of that series when
it becomes due and payable, and continuance of such default for a period of 5 days™

For the avoidance of doubt, the above amendment shall only apply to the
Debentures-issued under this Ninth Suppleinental Indenture.

(b)  Section 603 of the Indenture is hereby amended by adding the following new
paragtaphs (8), (9)and (10):

*(8)  inno event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable for special, indirect, or
consequentiat loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, loss of
profit) irrespective of whether the Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss
or damage aud regardless of the form of action.

9) the Trustee shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered, or omitted to

be taken by it in good faith and reasonably believed by it to be authorized or within the
discretion or rights or powers conferred upon it by this Indenture; the rights, privileges,
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protectjons, immunities and benefits given to the Trustee, including, without limitation, its
right to be indemnified, are extended to, and shall be enforeeable by, the Trustee in each
of its capacities hereunder, and each agent, custodian and other Person employed to act
hereunder. ’

(10)  inno event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable for any failure or delay
in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by, directly or
indirectly, forces beyond its control, including, without limitation, strikes, work stoppages,
accidents, acts of war or terrorism, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural
catastrophes or acts of God, and interruptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities,
communications or computer (software and hardware) services; it being understood that
the Trustee shall use feasonable efforts which are consistent with accepted practices in the
banking industry to resurme performance as soon as practicable under the circumstances.™

ARTICLE EIGHT.

MISCELLANEQUS
SECTION-801. INDENTURE RATIFIED AND CONFIRMED.

The Indenture, as amended and supplemented by this Ninth Supplemental Indenture, is in
all respects ratified and confirmed, and this Ninth Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed part of
the Indenture in the manner and to the extent herein and theréin provided. The Trustee shall not
be responsible in any manner whatsocver for or in respect of the validity or sufficiency of this
Ninth Supplemental Indenture or for or in respcet of the recitals contained herein, ali of which
recitals are made solely by the Company. The Trustee accepts the trusts creaied by the Indenture,
as amended and supplemented by this Ninth Supplemental Indenture, and agrecs to perform the
same upon the terms and conditions of the Indenture, as amended and supplemented by this Ninth
Supplemental Indenture. All of the provisions contained in the Indenture in respect of the rights,
privileges, immunities, powers, and duties of the Trustee shal! be applicable in respect of the Ninth
Supplemental Indenture as fully and with like force and effect as though fully set forth in full
herein.

SECTION 802, EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS

This Ninth Supplemental Indenture may be executed in any nurnber of counterparts, each
of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together
constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 803. EFFECT OF HEADINGS AND TABLE OF CONTENTS.

The Article and Section headings in this Ninth Supplemental Indenture and the Table of
Contents are for convenience pnly and shall not afféct the construction hereof.

SECTION 804. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.
All covenants and agreements in this Ninth Supplemental Indenture by the Company and

the Trustee shall bind their respective successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.
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SECTION 805. SEPARABILITY.

In case any provision in this Ninth Supplemental Indenture shall be held to be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall
not in any way be affected or impaiced thereby.

SECTION 806. BENEFITS OF INDENTURE.

Nothing in this Ninth Supplemental Indenture or the Debentures, express or implied, shall
give to any Person, other than the parties liereto, their su¢cessors hereunder and the Holders of any
Debentures, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Ninth
Supplemental Indenture.

SECTION 807. GOVERNING LAW,

This Ninth Supplemental Indenture and the Debentures shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

SECTTON 808. USA PATRIOT ACT.

The parties hereto acknowledge that in accordance with Section 326 of the USA PATRIOT
Act, the Trustee is required to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies each person or
legal entity that establishes a relationship or opens an account. The Company agrees that it will
cause Holders of the Debentures io provide the Trustee with such information as it may request in
order for the Trustee to satisfy the requirements of the USA PATRIOT Act,

SECTION 30%. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES.

The parties agree to electronic contracting and signatures with respect to this Ninth
Supplemental Indenturé and the other dociments delivered in connection herewith (other than the
Debentures). Delivery of an electronic signature.to, or a signed copy of, this Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and such other documents (other than the Debentures) by facsimile, emaii or other
electronic transmission shall be fully binding on the parties to the sameé extent as the delivery of
the signed originals and shall be admissible into evidence for all purposes. The words “execution,”
“execute”’, “signed,” “signature,” and words of like import in or related to any document to be
signed in connection with this Ninth Supplemental Indenture and the other documents {other than
the Debentures) shall be deemed to include electronic signatures, the electronic matching of
assignment terms and contract formations on electronic platforms approved by the Company, or
the keeping of records in electronic form, cach of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity
or enforceability as a manually executed signature or the use of a paper based recordkeeping
system, as the case may be, to the extent and as provided for in any applicable law, including the
Federal Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, the New York State
Electronic Signatures and Records Act, or any other ghmilar state laws based on the Uniform
Electronic Transactions Act. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company shall request
manually signed counterpart signatures to this Ninth Supplemental Indenture or any other
document delivered in connection herewith, the Trustee hereby agrees to use its reasonable
endeavors to provide such manually signed signature pages as soon as reasonably practicable.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Ninth Supplemental
Indenture to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written.

DUKE ENERGY KENTUCKY, INC.

o N O

Name: Chris R. Bauer
Title: Assistant Treasurer

{Supplemental Indenture]
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DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS, as

Trustee
DosuSigned by:
Larol Ny
. T3B039448488420..,
By:
MName:
Title:
GocuSigned by: .
; H
By: '”f‘":z‘t)lj P il /,I&f
Name: N\ B55ECABAERSDAT0. ..
Title:

Irina Golovashchuk
vice President

carol Ny
vice pPresident
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THIS FILING 1S

Item 1: ¥ An Initial (Original} Submission OR ] Resubmission No.

FERC FINANCIAL REPORT
FERC FORM No. 1: Annual Report of
Major Electric Utilities, Licensees
and Others and Supplemental
Form 3-Q: Quarterly Financial Report

[Thase reports ars mandatory under the Federal Power Act, Sections 3, 4{a},
304 and 309, and 18 CFR 141.1 and 141.400. Failure to report may resultin
criminal fines, civil penalties and othar sanctions as provided by law. The
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission does not consider these reports to be
of confidential nature '

Exact Legal Namo of Respondent {Company) Year/Period of Report

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. End of; 2023/ Q4

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV. 02-04)
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING FERC FORM NOS. 1 and 3-Q



GENERAL INFORMATION

Purpose.

‘FERC Form No. 1 {FERC Form 1} Is an annwal requiatory requirement
for Mator electnc utlities, ficensees and othars (38 C:F.R, § 141.1).
FERC Form No, 3-Q { FERC Form 3-Q Is & quarterly regulatory
requirement which supplements tha annual financial reporting
requirement {18 C.F.R. § 141.400), These repofis are designad to
coltect financial and operational jnformation from electric wtilities,
ficensees and athers subjedt to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy
Ragulatory Commission. These reporis are also considerad to be non-
confidential public use forms.

Who Must Submit

Each Major electric.utiiity, licensee, or ather, as classified in the.
Commisslon’s- Uniform System of Accounts Prescribed for Public
Utilities, Licensees, and Gthers Subjact To the Provisions of The
Federal Power Act (18 C.F.R. Fart 101), must submit FERC Form §
{18 C.F.R. § 141.1), and FERC Form 3-Q {13 C.F.R. § 141.400).

Note: Major means having, in each of the three previous calendar
years, sales or transmissian service that exceeds one of the following:

one mijlion megawatt hours of total annual sales,
100 megawati hours of annual sales for resale,
500 megawatt hours of annual power exchanges delivered, or

500 megawatt hours of annual wheeling for others (defiveries
plus losses).

‘What and Where to Submit

Submit FERG Form Nes. 1 and 3-Q electronicalty through the
gColiection portal at htips:{feColléction.farc.goy, and according
to the spadifications in the Form'1-and 3-Q taxonomies,

The Corporaie Officer Certification must be-submitted
glecironically as par of the FERC Formis 1 and 3-Q) filings.

Submit immediately upon publicstion, by either eFiling-ar mail,
two {2} coples to the Sacretary of the Commissian, the latest
Annual Report to Stockholders. Unless eFiling the Annual Repori
10 Stockholders, mail the stockholders repor to the Secretary of
the Commission at: ‘

Sacretary

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 888 First Street, NE
Washington, DC 20426 ‘

‘For the CPA Cerlification Staternent, submit within 30 days after
filing the FERC Form 1, a ietter or report {not applicable to filers
classifiad as Class C.ar Class D prior to January 1, 1984), The
CFA Cartification Statement can be sither eFiied or mailad to the
‘Secretary of the Commission at the address above,

The CPA Certification Statement should:

Altest to the conformity, in ali material aspects, of the
below listed {schedules and. pages} with the Commission’s
applicable Uniform Systemn of Accounts {including
applicable nofes relating thereto and the Chief
Accountant’s pubifished accounting releases), and

Be signed by independent certified public accountants, or
an independent ficensed public accountant certified ar
licensed by a regulatory authorty of a State ar nther
palitical subdivision of the U, 5. {See 18 C.F.R, §§ 41.10-
41.12 for specific: qualifications.)

Schedules Pagas
Comparaltlve Bajance Sheet 110-113
Statement of Income 114417

Statement of Retained Eamings 118-119
Statement of Cash Flows 120-121
Moies o Financial Statemants 122123

The following farmat must be usad for the CPA Certification
-Statement unless unusual circumstances or condilions,

mrentembmnd fo Hho labas me snma st | dednmme Huat 5 e oonefnd Trnmed
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{he Ligt of Schedules, pages 2 and 3.

Enter the manih; day, and yeartor all dates. Use customary
abbreviations, The "Data of Repart® includad in the haader of each
pageis to be completed only far resubmissions (see VIi. below),

Generally, except for certain schedules, all numbers, whether they ara
expected o be debits or credits, must bareporied as positive.
Numbers having a sign that is difierent from the expected sign must
be reporied by enclosing the'numbers in parenthasas,

For any resubmissions, plaase explain the reason for the
resubmissien in a footnote ta the data-field.

Do not make referencas to reporfs of previous periodsiyears ar to
other reports in lieu of required entries, excapt as specifically
authorized. )

Whereyer (schedulej pages refer to figures from a-previgus
period/year, the figures reported must be bassd upon thase shown by
the réport of the previous period/year, or an apptopriate explanation
given as ta why the different igures were used.

Schedule specific instructions are found in the applicable. taxohomy
and on the applicabla blank rendered form.

Definitians for statistical classilications usad for completing schadules for
{ransmission-system reparling ara as follaws:

FNS - Firm Network Transmisston Service far Self. "Firm” means service
{hat can nol be interrupted for economic. reasons and is intended to remain
refiable even under adverse condilions, “Network Service” is Nelwark
Transmission Service as described.in Order No. 838 and the Open Access
‘Transmission Tariff. *Sell” means the respondent,

FNQ - Firm Network Service for Others, "Firm" means that service cannot
bd intsrruptad for economic reasans and is intended to remain reliable even
under adverse-conditions. "Nebtwork Service” is Netwark Transmission
Service as described in Order No. 888 and the Cpen Access Transmission
Taniff,

LFP - for Long-Tetm Fimn Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations. “Long-
Tetm” means cne yéar or longer and” firm" means that service cannot be
inferruptad-for economic-reasons and is Intended to ramain reliable even
under adverse conditions. *Point-io-Foint Transmission Reservations™ are
described in Order No. 888 and the Open Access Transmission Tariff. For ail
transactions {dantified.as LFP, provide in a footnote the termination date of
tha contract defined as the earliast date aitheér buyer or seller can
unflaterally eancel the contract.

OLF - Other Leng-Term Fimm Transmigsion Service. Report service provided
under contracts which do'nat confarm to the terms of the Qpen Access
Transmission Tariff. "Long-Term® means one year or ienger and “firm”
‘means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is
intendad to remain reliable even under adverse conditions. For aif
transactions idsntified as OLF, provide in a-feotnote the termination date of
the coniract defined as the earfiest gate either buyer or seller can
unilaterafly get out of the gontract.

SFP --Short-Term Firm Point-fo-Point Transmission Reservations, Use this
classification for all firm point-to-point transmission reservations, where the
duratian of each period of reservalion is Jess than cne-year.

NF - Non-Firm Transmission Service, where frm means that service cannot
bé interrupied for economic reasons and is'intended to remain refiable even
under adverse eonditions.

05 - Other Transmisslon Service. Use this classification only for those:
services which can not be placed in ihe above-mentioned classifications,
such as all other service regardiess of tha length of the contract and service
FERC Fom. Drescribe the type of service in a footnote for each entry.

AD - Qut-of-Period Adjustments, Use this cade far any accounting
adjustments ar "rye-ups" for service pravided in prior reporting periods.
Provide an axplanation in a footnote for each adjusiment.

DEFINITIONS

Commission Authorization {Gomm. Auth.} — Tha authorization of the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or any other Commission,
Name:the commission whase authorization was obtained and give
date of the autherization. ‘

Respondent - The person, corporation, licensee, agency, authorily, or
olher Legal entity or instrumentality in whose behaif the report is
made. ‘
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parenthetical phrasss only whan axcaptions ara raponted.

“Iri connection with our regular examination of tha financial.
statements of [CDMF‘ANY NAME] for the year ended pn which

reviewed schedutes [NAME OF SCHEDULES] of FERC Form
No. 1 for the year filed with the Federal Energy Reguiatory
Commission, for conformity in all material respects with the
requxremenia of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as
sét forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounis and
published accounting releases. Qur review for this purpose
Included such tests of the accounting records and Such other
auditing pracedures as we considered necessary in the
circumsiances,

Based on ourreview, in our opinion the accompanying

schedules identified in the praceding paragraph (except as noted
below) conform in all matenal respects with the accounting
requifements of the Federal Enargy Regulatory Commission as
set farih in its applicahle Unifarm System of Aczounts and
published accaunting relsases.” The Jeflar or report must state
which, if any, of the pages above do not conform o the
Commission’s requiremenits, Describa:the discrepancies that
exist.

Filers are encouraged to file their Annual Report fo Stockho!ders,
and ihe CPA Ceriification Statement using eFiling. Further
instructions are found on the Commission's website ai

hitps:// c-onlineferc-onfine/frequenty-asked-
gquestions-fags-efilingferc-coling.

Federal, Siale, and Local Governments and other authorized
users may obtain additional blank copies of FERC Form 1 and 3-

Q free of charge fram ittps: fwww. ferc. govfgeneralinformation-
Oelectric-industry-forms.
When to Submit

FERC Foms 1 and 3-Q must be filed by the foliowing schedule:

FERC Forn 1 far each year ending December 31 must be filed
by Aprif 4Bth-of the faliowing year (18 CFR § 141.1}, and

FERC Form 3-Q for each calendar guarter must be fled within
€0 days after the reporling quarter (18 C.F.R..§ 141.400).

Where to Send Commerits on Public Reporting Burden.

The public reporting burden far the FERC Form 1 coliection of
information is estimatad to average 1,168 hours per response,
including the fima-for raviewing instructions, searching existing data
sources; gathering ana maintaining the data-needed, and compieting
and reviewing the collection of information. The public reporting
burden for the FERC Form 3-Q caollection of information is estimated
to average 168 hours par response. )

Send comments regarding these burden estimates or any aspect of
thess collections of infarmation, including suggestions for reducing
burden, fo the Federal Energy Regulatary Commission, 868 First
Street NE, Washington, DC 20426 (Attention; Information Clearance
Officer); and to the Cffice of Information and Regulatery Affaifs, Office
of Management and Budget, Washington, DG 20503 {Attention: Desk
Cfficer for the Federal Energy Ragulatory Commission). No person
shall be subject to any penalty i any colleciion of information does not
display a valid control number {44 U,5.C. § 3512 (a).

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

Prepare’ this report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts
{18 CFR Part 101} {USofA), intarpret all accounting wards and
phrases in accordance with the USofA.

Enter in whole numbers {doiidrs or MWH]} only, except where
athenwise noted. {Enter cents for averages and figures per unit where
cents are Important, The {runcating of cents is allowed except on the
four basic financial statements where rounding is required.} The
.amounis shown on all supporting pages must agree with the amounts
entered on the statements that they support, When applying
thresholds 1o determine significance for repariing purposes, use for
batance sheat accounts the balances at the end of the cumrent
reparting period, and use for staternent.of income accounts the current
year's'year to date amounts,

|
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EXCERPTS FROM THE LAW’
we have reported separately under date of [DATE]; we have also Federal Power Act, 16 U.5.C. § 791a-825r

‘Sec., 3. The words defined in this section shaff have the following meanings-
for purposes of this Act, 1o with:

“Sae.

“Sec.

‘Carporation’ meens.any corporation, joint-siock company,
partnership, asscciation, business trust, organized group of persons,

-whether incorporated ar not, or a receiver or receivers, trustee or

trustees of any-of the faregoing. It shall not include ‘municipafitias, as
hereinaher defined;

'Person’ means anindividual or a corporation;

‘Licenses, maans any person, State, or municipality Licensed under
the provisians of section 4 of lhis Act, and any assignee or:successor
in interest thereof;

‘municipality means = city, county, irigation disirict, drainage district;
or other political subdivisian of agency of & State competent under the:
Laws thereof to carry and the business of devetaping, transmitting,
unitizing, or distributing pawer; .

"project’ means. a complete unit of Impravemant ar development,
consisting of a power house, all water conduits, all dams and
appurtenant works and slructures {including navigation structures)
which are a part of sald unit, and all storage, d;varhng, or fore bay
resenioirs directly connected therewith, the primary fina or lines
transmitting power there from ta the point of 1uncﬁun with the
distribution system or with the interconnecled-primary transmission
sysiem, all miscellaneovs structures used and usefut in connection
with said unit or any part thereof, and aff water rights, righis-of-way,
ditches, dams, ressrvoirs, [Lands, or interest in Lands the use and
occupancy of which are necassary or appropriate in the maintenance
and operation of such unit;

4, Tha Commission is h'eréby authorized and empowered
"To make invesligations and to collect and record data concerning the

utilization of the. water ‘resources-of any region o be devaloped, tha
water-power industry and its relation to other industries and to

nterstate or foreign commerce, and concerning the location, capacity,

development costs, and relalion to markets of power sitas; ..o the
extent the Commission may deasm necessary or useful for the

purposes aof this Act.”

304,

Every Licenses and every public utility shail file wilh the Commissian
such annual and ‘ather peﬁodic or special” reports as the Commission
may by rules and regulations.or other prescribe as necessary or
appmpnale 1o assist the Commission in the proper adminisiration of
this-Act. The Commission may prescribe the manner and FERC Farm
in which such reports shall be made, and require from such persons
specific answers to ail questions upan which the Commission may
need information, The Commission may require that such reporis shail
include, amang othar things, full.information as to assets and
Liabilities, capitatization, net.investmant; and reduction thereof, gross
recaipts, inierest dus and paid, depreciation, and other reserves, cost
of project and other facilifies, cost of maintenance and cperation of the
projact and other facilities, cost of renewals and replacément of the
projact works and other facilities, depreciation, generatien,
transmission, distribution. delivery, use, and sale of elsclic energy,
The Cammission’ may require any such parson o maks adequate
provision for currently datermining such costs and ather facts, Such
reports shall be made under oath unless the Commission otherwise
specifies*. 10

"Sec. 309,

The Commission shail have power to perform any and afl-acts, and to
prescribe, issue, make, and rescind such orders, rules and reguiations
as itmay find nacessary or appropriate (o carry out the provisions of
ihis Act, Among-other things, such rules and regulations may defing
accounting, technical, and trade terms used in this Act; and may
prescribe the FERC Form of FERC Forms of all statemeants,
dectarations, applications, and reports to be flled with the
Commission, the information which thay shall contain, and the ime
within which they shalt be:faid..."
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Complete each question fully and accurately, even if it has been GENERAL PENALTIES
answered in a previous repart, Entsr the word "Nons® where it truly
and completely states the fact. The Commission may assess up to $1 millian per day per violation ofits
For any page(s) thatis not applicable t the respondent; omit the rules and regulations. See FPA § 316(a) (2005), 16 U.5.G.-§ 8250(a).

page(s} and enter "NA," "NOME.” or “Not Applicable” in column {d} on
FERC FORM N©. 1 {ED. 03-07}
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Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.

Page 6 of 201
FERC FORM NO. 1
REPORT OF MAJOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES, LICENSEES AND OTHER
IDENTIFICATION
.01 Exatt Legal Name of Respondent 02 Year/ Period Gf Report

End of: 2023/ Q4

03 Previous Name and Date of Change {If name changed during year}

{

04 Address of Principal Office at End of Period {Street, City, State, Zip Code)
1262 Cax Road, Ertanger, KY 41018

05 Name of Contact Person
Danielle Weatherston

06 Title of Contact Persan

Accounting Manager lf

U7 Address of Contact Person (Street, City, State, Zip Code}
525 S. Tryon Street, Charlotte, NC 28202

08 Telephane of Gontact Person, including Area Code )
(1) [ An Original
980-373-16597.

(2) L1 A Resubmission

09 This Report is' An Qriginal / A Resubmission

10 Date of Repdrt (Mo, Da, ¥r)
04/15/2024

Annual Corporate Officer Certification

The undersigned officar certifies thal:

material respects 1o the Uniform System of Accounts.

{ havg examined this repart and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief all statements of fact contained in this report are correct
statements of the business affairs of the respondent and the financial statements, and ‘other inancial information contained in this report, conform in-all

01 Name 03 Signature
Cynthia S. Lee Cynthia 8. Lec
02 Title

VP, CAQ, and Contralier

04 Date Signed (Mo, Da, Y¥}
04/15i2024

fictitious er fraudulent statements as to any malter within its jurisdiction.

Tille 18, U.5.C. 1001 makKes il a crime for any person to- knowingly and willingly to make to any Agency or Dépariment of the United States any false;

FERC FORM No. t {REV. 02-04)
Page1
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FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC Form 1
Page 7 of 201

This report is:

Name of Respandent: 1) [ an onginal

Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.

{2} [ A Resubmission

Date of Repor:
041542024

Year/Patiod of Report
End of: 2023/ Q4

LIST OF SCHEDULES {Elactric Utility}

Enter irr calumn (c} the tetms “none,” “nat applicable.” or “NA.” as appropriale, where no information or amounts have been reported for certain pages.

Omit pages where the respondents are "none,” "not applicabla,” or "NA”,

Line Title of Schedule Reference Page No. Remarks
No. (a} (b) {€)
Idemtification i
List of Schedules 2
1 General Information 101
2 Centrol Over Respondent 102
3 Corporations Controlled by Respondent 103 N/A
4 o) 104
5 Directors 105
] Information on Formula Rates 108
7 Important Ghangeg During the Year 108
2 Comperative Balance Shaet 110
9 Statement of Income for the Year 114
10 Statement of Refained Earnings for the Year us
12 Statement of Cash Flows 120
12 Nates to Financial Stalements 122
13 Stalemezlll of Accum O*he‘r‘Cornp Enf:ume,_Cump 1223
... Income, and Hedging Activities
1" Summary aof Uiif’iity Plant & Accumufated Provisions 200
. ....forDep Amort&Dep
15 Nucloar Fuel Materials 202 NiA
18 Elgctric Plant in Service 204
7 Electric Plant Leased to Others 213 NiA
18 Electric Plant Held for Future Use 214 N/A
18 | Gonstruction Work in Progress-Electric 21§
I B i e
21 investment of Subsidiary Companies 224 N/A
22 Materials and Supplies 227
23 Allowances 228
2 Extracrdinary Properiy Lasses 230a N/A
25 Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 230b N/A




KyPSC Case Na. 2024-00354
FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC Form 1
Page § of 201

26

Transmission Service and Generation
_.Interconriection Study Costs

N/A

27

Giher Regulatory Assets

28

Migceflaneous Defarred Debits

29

Accumulated Deferred ncome Taxes

a0

Capital Stock

3

Other Paid-in Capital

32

Capital Stock Expense

N/A

Long-Term Debt

3

Recoriciliation of Reported Net Income with Taxabie
_.Ing for Fe ’

35

Taxes Accrued, Prepaid and Charged During the Year

36

Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits

37

38

Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes-Acceferated
Amortization Property

39

‘Accumnulated Daferred Income Taxes-Other Property

B R |BIBIR|E|BIE|IBIBEIER B

40

]
the]
(']

41

Other Regulatery Liabilitios

42

Electric Qperating Revenues

BlE|

43

Regional Transmisslon Service Revenuas {Account
LAsT

5

44

Safes of Electricily by Rate Schedulas

45

Sales for Resale

46

47

Purchased Power

43

Transmission of Electricity for Others.

49

Transmission of Electricity by [SO/RTOs

N/A

50

Transmission of Electricity by Others

51

Miscellaneous Ganeral Expenses-Electric

B BIE|BIS BEBIE

52

Depreciation and Amortization of Electric Piant
{Account 403, 404, 405)

=

53

Regulatory Commission Expenges

Research, Development and Demonstration Activities

k| E

85

Distribution of Salaries and Wages

il
N
=

88

Commaon Utifity Plant and Fxpenses,

57

Amounts included in ISO/RTO Settlement Statements

a8

Purchase and Sale of Anciilary Services

59

Monthly Transmission System Peak Load

BlLE BB

NFA
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FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC Form 1
Page 9 of 201

60

Monthly IS0/RTO Transmission System Peak Load

N/A

61

Electric Energy Account

62

Monthly Peaks and Qutput

G63.

Staam Elactric Genarating Plant Statistics

84

N#A

65

Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics

NIA

66

Generating Plant Statistics Pages

N/A

g6.1

Energy Storage Operations (Large Plants)

NIA

6.2

Energy Storage Operations (Smal! Plants)

N/A

67

Transmission Line Statistics Pages

68

Transmission Lines Added During Year

69

Substations

70

Transactions with Associated (Affiliated} Companies

71

Fooingte Data

BlklBlRIBIEIEIE I RB|BIBIEIE|E

Stockholders' Reports (check appropriate box)

Stackhalders' Reporls Check appropriate box:

(3 Two coples will be submitted

O No annual report to stockhiclders is preparad

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12:96)

Page 2




KyPSC Case No,2024-00354
FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC: Form 1

Page 10 of 211
This report is:
Name of Respondent: ‘& an origi Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (1) b An Qriginal 04/16/2024 End of: 2023/ Q4
(2} Oa Resubmission
CENERAL INFORMATION

1. Provide name and fitle of officer having custody of the general corporate books af account and address of office where the general corporate books
are kept, and address of office where any olher corporate-boaks of accountare kept, if different fram that where the géneral corporale books are kapt.

| -Cynthia 5. Les
Vice President, Chief Aceounting Officer and Contrafler

525 S, Tryen Street, Charlotte, NG 28202

-2, Provide the name of the State under the laws. of which respondent is incorporated; and date of incorporation, If incorporated under a special law, give
reference to such law. if notincorporated, state that fact and give the type of organizaticn and the date organized.

State of Incorporation: KY
Date of incorporation: 1801-03-20

Incarporated Under Special Law:

3, If at-any time during the year the propetty of respondent was held by a receiver or trustee, give {a) nama of receiver or frustes, (b) date such raceiver’
or trustae took possession, {¢) the authority by which the receivership or trusteaship was created, and {d) date when possession by receiver or trustee
ceased.

{a} Name of Receiver or Truslee Holding Property of the Respondent: N/A

(b} Date Receiver taok Possession of Respondent Property:

{c} Authority by which the Receivership or Trusieeship was created: N/A

{d) Date when possession by receiver ar trustee ceased:

4, State the classes or utility and other services furnished by respondent during the year in each State in which the respondent operated,

Kentucky - Gas and Electric

5. Have you engaged as the principal accountant to audit your financial statements an accountantwho is not the principal accountant for your previous
year's cerified financial slatemenis?

(130 ves

2y No

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-87)
Page 101
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FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC Form 1

Page 11 0f 201

Nams of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.

This report is:
: i Date of Report:
(1) B4 An Original 04/15/2024

{2) [] A Resubmission

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2023/ Q4

CONTROL OVER RESPONDENT

1. if any corporation, business trust, or similar organization or a combination of such organizations jointly held control cver the respandent at the end of
thi-year, stataname of contrailing corporalion or organization, manner in which conirol was held, and extent of controf, if control was in a holding
company organization, show the chain of ownership or control to the main parent company or organization. If control was held by B trustee(s), slate

name of trustee{s}, name-of beneficiary or beneficiaries for whom trus{ was maintained, and purpose of the trust,

Dukeé Energy Kentucky, inc is a whofly ewned subsidiary of Duke Energy Ohie, Inc. Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. is 2 wholly ewned subsidiary of Cinergy Corp, , which s a whiily owned subsidiary of Duke

Energy Congoration,

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page-102
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FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC Form 1

Page 12 of 201

Name of Respandent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(1) ] An Original
2) [ A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04r15/2024

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2023/ Q4

CORPORATIONS CONTROLLED BY RESPONDENT

1.

2. Direct control is thal which is exercised without interpasition of an intermediary.

3. Indirect controtis that which is exercised by the interposition of an intermediary which exercises direct control.

4, Joint control is that in which neither interest can effectively control or direct action witholt the consent of the other, as where the voting control is
equally divided belween two holders, or.each party holds a veto power aver the other. Joint contral may exist-by mutual agreement or

understanding between two ar mare parties who together have contro! within the meaning of ihe definition of control in the. Uniform Systemn of

1. Repart below the namas of alt corporations, business trusts, and similar organizations, controlied directly or indirectly by respondent al any time

during the year. If contral ceased.prior fo end of year, give particulars (details) in a footnots.

intermediaries invelved,

Definitions

See the Uniform System of Accounts for a definition of conlrol,

Accounts, regardless gf the relative voting rights of sach party.

2, If controf was by other means than a direct holding of vating rights, state in a footnote the manner in which control was held, naming any

3. if control was held joinily with one or mare other interests, state the fact in a footnate and name the other interests.

Percent
Line Name of Company Controlied Kind of Business Voting Stack Footnote Ref,
No. {a) b} . Owned (&
()
1 N/A

FERC FORM No.1 {ED. 12-96}

Page 103
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Page 13 0201

Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kenfucky, Inc.

This report is:
1) B4 An Original

(2) Oa Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/15/2024

Year/Period of Report
End of: 20237 G4

OFFICERS

1, Repart befow the name, lille and salary for each executive officer whose galary is $50,000 or more. An “execative officer” of a respondent inciudas
its president, sécretary, {reasurer, and vice president in charge of a principal business unit, division ar function {such as sales, administration or
finance}, and any other person who perfarms similar policy making functions.

2, If a change was made during the year in the incumbent of any position, show name and total remuneration of the previous incumbent, and the
daie the change. in incumbency was made.

Operational Excellence

Line Title Name of Officer Salary for Year Datepstgﬁ:d in Dat;EQd;d in
Noa. a)” Ty T T ey T B 1L~ renog,
‘ (d) (e}
Exgcutive Vice President, Chief ;
1 Legai Officer and Corparate Kodwo Ghartey-Tagoe
Secretary
2 Senior Vice President R. Alexander Glenn 2023-03-01
3 Executive Vice President R. Alexanter Glenn 2023-03-01
4 Chief Executive Officer Lynn J. Good
5 Executgve‘V;cePresident and Chief Dhiaa M. Jami! 2023-06-30
Operating Qfficer :
g Executive Vice President Julie S, Janson
Vice President, Chief A¢counting .
7 Officer and Controlter Cynthia S. Lee
Senior Vice President, Corporate i
8 Development and Treasurar Karl W. Newlin
Senior Vice President and Chief .- ;
9 Human Resaurges Officer Ranald R. Reising 2023-03-01
: Executive Vice President and Chief - . .
10 Human Resources Oficer Ronald R. Reising 2023-03-01 2023-12-31
Senior Vice President, External . ,
1 Affairs and Communlc;atiuns Lauis E. Renjel 2023-03-01
Executive Vice President, External . ,
2 Affairs and Communications Louis E. Renjel 2023-03-01
« Execufive Vice President and Chief i ,
13 Financial Officer Brian D. Savoy
Exacutive Vice-President,
14 Customer Experience, Salutions, Harry K. Sideris
and Servicas
15 President Amy B. Spiller
Executive Vice President and Chief
16 Commercial Officer Staven K. Young
Executive Vice President, Chief
17 Generation Officer and Enterprise T. Preston Gillespie Jr. 2023-01-01

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-86)

Paga 104
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FR 16(7)(k) Attachment - FERC Form 1

Page 14 of 201

Name af Respandent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, fnc.

This reparl is7
(13 ] An Qriginat
{2) [ A Resubmission

Date of Report:
04/1542024

Year/Period of Repari,
End of: 2023/ Q4

DIRECTORS

1. Report below the information ealled for conceming each director of the respandent who held office at any time during the year. Include in column (a),
name and abbreviated tilles of the directors who are officers of the respandent. '
2. Provide the principle place of business in calumn (b}, designate members of the Executive Commitiee in column {c), and the Chairman of the
Executive Cammittee in calumn (d}.

Member of the Executive

Chairman of the Executive

and Corporate Secretary

28202

Line | Name {and Titie) of Director Principal Business Address Committee Committee
No. {ay (b) S e e o ( ci‘)m vt s
1 R. Alexander Glenn, Executive 525 8. Tryon Street, Charlotie, NC trus
Vice President 28202 u
2 Lynn-J. Good, Chief Exscutive 525 S. Tryon Street, Charlotte, NC true
Dfficer 28202 '”
Kodwa Ghaney-Tagoe, Executive :
3 Vice President, Chief Legal Officer 526 8. Tryen Street, Charlolte, NG true

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-95)

Page 105
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‘Name of Respondent:

Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This report is:
(13 M1 an Original
(2) O AResubmission

04/15/2024

Date of Raporl:

Year/Period of Reporl
End of. 2023/ Q4

INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES

Does the respondent hava fermufa.rates?

[ ves

& No

1. Please list the Cormmission accepied formula rates including FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number and FERGC proceeding {i.e. Docket No)

accepting the rate(s) or changes in the accepted rate.

Line
No..

FERC Rate Schedule ar Taritf Number-
B {a}

EERC Proceeding
{b}

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
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Page 16 of201

24

29

30

3

32

33

34

as

36

a7

38

39

a0

a1

FERC FORM No. 1 (NEW, 12.08)

Page 106
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Page 17 01201

Name of Respondent:

Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.

This raport is:

(13 ] An-Original
(2) [1 A Resubmission

Date of Repaort:
04/15/2024

Year/Period of Report
Endof: 2023/ Q4

INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES - FERC Rate Schedule/Tariff Number FERC Progeeding

Does the respondent file with 1he ‘
Commission annual {or mare frequent)

filings containing the inputs to the formuta

rate(s)?

Yes

O Mo

if yes, provide a listing of such fiings as cantained on the Commission's alibrary ‘websgite,

Formula Rate FERC Rate
Line | Accession | Document Date Docket No. Description Schedule Number or Tarlf
No. Fitad Date oozttt \bretd faritegorteieil ikt
{a) (b} B S
(e)
1 20120515- 05/15/2012 ER12-51-000 Formuia Rate Anriua! Updat PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
5344 J .01- ormula Rate Anriual Update ATT, Attachment H-
o | 20130129 01202013 | ER12-91-000 Formuia Rate Annual Lpdata PUM OATT, Attachment H-22A
B070 Cormrecled
20130515~ . ; . .
3 o 05/15/2013 ER12-61-000 Farmula Rate Annuai Update PUM OATT, Attachment H-22A
. 20440515- < :
4 5149 05/15r2014 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Atachment H-22A
5 20150515~ 05A5/2015 ER2-91-000 Formuld Rate Annual Update PUM OATT, Atachment H-22A
5244 -9 ormula Rate Annual Upda , Atachment H-:
5 20155.105521 7- 06/17/2015 ER15-1932-000 Section 205 PJM QATT, Attachment H-224
20160513~ : S
7 5002 05/13/2016 ER12-81-000 Farmula Rate Annual Update PJM QATT, Attachment H-22A
8 20161130- 11/302018 ER12-81-000 Formufa Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
5416 Comected
20170509~ : - -
9 Pl 05/09/2017 ER12.91-000 Formuia Rate Annuat Update Pt OATT, Attachment H-22A
20180125 Farmuia Rate Annual Update s
10 5ol 01/29/2018 ER12:81-000 i) PJIM OATT, Attachment H-22A
20180402~ . PJM QATT, Attachmant H-22A
1 s 04/02/2018 ER18-1274-000 Saction 205 EHoom
20180515 , . ,
12 e £5/15/2018 ER12-61-000 Formuta Rate Ahnual Update PN OATT, Attachmant H-22A
20181214~ : ! . ,
13 oo 1214/2048 ER19-555-000 Sartion 205 PJM OATT, Altachment H-22A
14 | A0z 03/28/2019 ER19-1483-000 Section 205 PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
, 20150515- ;
15 v 05/15/2019 ER12-81-000 Formula Rate Annuat Update: PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
20200207~ Formula Rate Annual Update -
16 Ay 02/07/2020 ER$2-91-000 o PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
. 203200515~ . . - : .
17 5123 (8/15/2020 ER20-1B32-000 Order No, 864 Caompliance Filing PJM QATT, Attachment H-22A
18 MS%%TS' 051152020 ER12-91-000 Formuta Rate Annual Update PJM QATT, Atiachment H-22A
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19 | 20000 01/45/2021 ER20-1832-001 Ortler No. 854 Compliance Filing | PJM OATT, Aftachment H-22A
: 20210121~ — Formula Rafe Annual Update . " ;
20 i 01/21/2021 ER12-91-000 L PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
21 | 20210316 03/16/2021 ER21-1450-000 Section 205 PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
20210517~ ) ! . .
22, 5120 05/17/2021 ER+2-91-000 Formula. Rale Annual Update PUM OATT, Attachment H-224
20220118~ : ] Forrnula Rate Annua} Update
23 5334 0171872022 ER12-91-000 Correctad PJM QATT, Altachment H-22A
20 | 20220315 03/15/2022 ER-22-1338-000 Section 205 PIM OATT, Attachment H-22A
20220321- . . . \ , )
25 5144 03/21/2022 ER20-1832-002 Qrder No. 864 Compliance Fifing PJM QATT, Attachment H-22A
20220516- , A , ,
26 5130 05/16/2022 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
20221121- ; .
27 5093 11/21/2022 ER23-470-000 Section 205 FJM OATT, Attachment H-22A
20230321~ . | . .
28 3075 03/21/2023 ER23-1045-000. Section 205 PJM OATT, Altachmeni{ H-22A
| 20230515 : , ‘
29 5331 05/15/2023 ER12-91-000 Formula Rate Annual Update PJdM QATT, Attachment H-22A

FERC FORM NO. 1 (NEW. 12-08)

Page 106a
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Nams of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc.

This reparl is;
t1) ¥ An Qriginat
{2) [J a Resubmissian

Date of Repor:
04/15/2024

Year/Period of Repart
End of: 2023/ Q4

[NFORMATEON ON FORMULA RATES - Formula Rate Variances,

1. If a respondent does not submit such filings ithen indicate in a footnote to the applicable Form 1 schadule whare formula rate inputs differ from
amounts reported in the Form 1.

2. The footnote should provide a narrlive description explaining how the "rate” {or biling} was derived if different from the reparted amaountin the

Form 1.

3. The faotnote should explain amounts excluded from the ratebase or where labor or other allocation factors, operating expenses, or other fems

impacting formula rate inputs differ from amounts reperied in Form 1 schedule amounts.

4. Where the Commissicn has pravided guidance on formula rate inputs, the spacific praceeding should be noted in the foolncte.

Line
No.

Fage No(s},
{a}

Schedule
(&)

! Line
Galumn Ne

(<) o

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

7

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
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28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

3g

7

kL]

ag

40

41

42

43

44

FERC FORM No. 1 {NEW. 12-08)
Page 106b
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This report is.
Name of Respandent; i Date of Repdrt: Yeat/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kenlusky, thic. (1)1 an Original 04/15/2024 End of: 2023/ Q4.

{2) [ A Resubmjssion

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR

Gjve particutars '(detads) concerning the matters indicated belaw. Make the statsmenls explicit and precise, and number them in accordance with the
inquiriés. Each inquiry should.be answered. Enter “nong,” "nat applicable,” or "NA" where applicable. 1finfan’natmn which answers-an inquiry is gwan
elsewhere in the repon, make a reference ta the schedulé in which it appears..

1. Changes in and important additions to franchise righfs: Describe the actual consideration givan therefors and state from whom the franchise rights
were acquired. If acqu;red without the paymnnt of cansideration, siate that fact,

2, Acquisition of ownership in ather companies by reorganizafion, merger, or consolidation with other companies: Give names of companies
involved, particulars concerning the transacfions, name of the Commission authorizing the fransaction, and reference to Commission
autharization.

3, Purchase or sale of an apérating unit.or system: Give. a brief description of the property, and of the tranaactions relating thereta, and referencato
Commisslon authorization, if any was required. Give date journat entries called for by the Uniform System of Accounts were submitted to the
Commission. '

4. important leaseholds (other ihan (easeholds for natural gas fands) that have been acquired or given, assignad or surrenderad: Give effective
datas, lengths of terms, namas of parties, rents, and other condition. State name of Commission authorizing lease and gtve reference ta such
authorizalion.

5. Impurlant ‘extension or reduction of iransmission or dislibution systerm: State territory added or refinquished and date operations began or ¢eased
and give reference to Commissian authorization, if any was required. State alao the approximate number of customers added or lost and
approximate annuat revenues.of each dass of service. Each natural gas campany must also stala major new continuing sources of gas made
avallable to it from purchases, development, purchase contract or-otherwise, giving location and approximate teiat gas voiumes avaitable, period
of conlracts, and other parties to any such arangements, elc.

6. Obligations fncurred a5 a resuft of issuance of securities or assumption of fiabiliies or guarantees including issuance of short-term deht and
commercial paper having a maturity of one year or less. Give reference to FERC or State Commission authorization, as appropriate, and the

. amount of obiigation or guarantes.

7. Changes in articles of inconporation or amendments to charler: Explain the nature and purpose of such changes or amendmants.

8. State the estimated annual effect and nature of any important wage scale changes.during the year,

‘9, State bneﬁy the status of any materially important tegat proceedings pending at:the end of the year, and the resulis.of any such proceedi ngs-
culminated during the year.

10. Describe briefly- any materlaily important transactions of the respandent not discloséd elsewhete in this report in which an officer, director, security
holder reported on Pages 104 or 105 of the Annuat Report Farm No. 1, voting trustee, assaciated company or known assaciate of any of these
persons was a party or in which any such person-had a materiaf interest.

11, {Reserved.)

“12, if the important changes during the year refating fo the respondent company appearing in the.annual report to stockholders are applicable in every
respact and furnish the data required by insiructions 1 fo 11 above, such notes may be included on this page.

*13; Describe fuliy any changes in officers, directors, majar security holders and vollng powers of the raspondsnt that may have occurred during the
reporting period.

14.In the evenl thal the respondent participates in.a cash management program{s) and its proprietary capitai ratio is less than 30 percent pleasa
desaribe the significant events or transactions causing the propriefary capilal ralio to beless than 30.percent, and the extent to which the
respandent has amounts loaned or money advanced {o its parent, subsidiary, or affiiated companies through a cash management programis).
Additionally, please describe plens, if:any to regain at least a 30 percert proprietary ratio,

Ncne

See Notes ta Financial Statements, Note 1, "Summary of Significant Accounting Poficies”

See Ngiles ta Financial Statements, Nate 2, "Regulaicry Matters®

None

There are no changes fo report during the fourlh quarter 2023,
There ac& no changes toteport during the third quarter 2023,
During the second quarter 2023, Project 138 KV F23383 Waodspoint fo Aero was.complefed, in-service date of April 26, 2023,

There are no chenges o raport durirg the first guarier 2023,

See Notes ta Financial Statements, Note'S, "Oebt and Credit Faciities™

None

Duririg the fourth quanier 2023, there were na large scale wage cthanges to reparl,

During the third quarter 2023, there wers no jarge scale wage changes to reporl.

During the second quarter 2023, there were no Jarge stale wage changas o report,
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See Notes to Financial Sidtemnants, Note 2, "Regulatory Matters” and Note 3,"Commfiménts and Contingencies™

Nene

Mane

There ars;ho ¢hanges ko major security‘holyders ahd veting powers of Duke Energy. Kentucky, inc. that pecurred during the fourth quarier 2023,

The-changes in officers and directors for Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. that occuered during'the fourth quaiter:2023 are as follows:

Resignations effective-12/31/2023
Lafry E, Haicher

Ronzld R. Re_Esin_g
Reaignations effective 10/24/2023

"Christopher M. Falien
Appnintmmts effactive 10/03/2023

Melisa £, Johas
Resignations.effective 10/03/2023

Melfise B. Johre

Senior Vide President, Customer Experiénce and Setvices.
Exscutive Vica Prasident.and Clilef Human Resources
Officer

Senior Vice President and Frasident, Duke Energy
Bustaineble Sohutions

Vice Prasident, Renewables Davelopment

Vice Presidant, Dislibuted Epergy Solutions and
Requlaled Renewabies

The changas im officers and directars for Duke Energy Kentucky, ine. thet accurrad during the third quarter 2023 are as failows:

Appointments effective 09/16/2023
Rounetle K. Nader

Reaignations eHfeclive 071512021
James Walls

Resignations efective 07/01/2D23
Thomag SHinski-

Vics Pregident, New Nuclaar Generalicn end Licahse
Renewal

Vice Plesident, New Noclear Genaration

Yica President, Human Resourcas, Tatal Rewsida & HR Operaticni

The changes in afficers and directors.far Duke Encrgy Kentucky, fnc. that occurred during the second quarler 2023 ara as follaws:

Appointments efective D6/39/2023
Kodwa Gharley-Tagea
Rasignations effective 06/30/2023
Dhiaa M, Jamii -

Dhiaa M. Jamil

Appointments sflective 0516/2023
Dscar Suris

Appainiments effective 05/0172023
Renea H, Melzier

Resignations effective 05/01i2023
Rensa H, Melzler
Resignations-a{active 04/30i202)
Catherina 8. Stancombe -

Direcior.

Director
Exgcutive Vice President and Chdef Operaling Oficer

Senior Vize Presidart and Chief Communiéations Officer
Vice President, Total Rewards and Human Resoucces Operations
Managing Director; Tolat Rewards

Senlor Vice President, Enterprise Operationel Excellenca

The-changes In officers and directars for Duka Energy Mentucky, Inc. that eccurred during the first quarter 2023 are as {ollows:

Resignations effectiye 033112023
M. Selim Bingol

Appaintmants effectiva 03/16/2023
Donna T, Council

Resignetions sifective 0771642023
Donita T, Council

Appointments affective D1/01/2023
R. Alaxander Glenn

Ronald R. Reising

Louis E. Rémjet

Resignations effective 03/01/2023
R. Alexander Glenn:

Ronajd R, Raizing

Senior Vice Presidant and Ghief Commiunications ONicer

Senior Vies Pregident, Carporate Real Estals; Aviation and Dusinass Sarvicea
Senjor Vice President, Adminiairative Sarvices

Executive Vice President

Executive Vice Fresident and Chief Human Resources Officer

Exntutive Vice President, External Affairs and Communications

Senior Vice President’
Sanilor Vica President and Chief Human Resources Officer
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Louis E. Renjel Senicr Vice President, Extemnal Aflairs and Communications

Appointments effsctive 01/01/2023

T. Prestar Gifiespie Je Executive Vice Prasident, Chief Genaration Officer and Enterprise Operaticnal Exceflence
Zachary 5. Hall Vice President, Enviranmental, Heaith and Safely Frograms

James Wells: Vice Prasident, New Nuclear Generation

Jason 5. Willlams Senior Vice Presidemt, Transmission Maintenanca and Construction

Resignations effective 01/01/2023

T. Preaton Gilespie Jr. Senior Vice Fresident and Chief Genaration Officer

James Wells Viee President, Envirenmiental, Health and Safely Programs and Emvirenmerital Sciences
NFA

FERG FORM No, 1 (ED. 12-96} o
Page 10841093
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This report is:
o of eonantart e ()3 n rignl Bt et v Sy
(23 J A Resubmission
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET {ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS}
RotPageno, | SurenyowEndof | PriorYea: b Galimce
o. @) o] fe) i)
1
2 Utility Plant (101106, 114) 200 3,303,112,539 3,141,482,103
3 Construction Work in Progress (107) 200 96,665,887 96,808,176
4 TOTAL Utility Plant (Enter Total of ines 2 and 3) 3,399,776,226 3,238,290,279
N T S I
6 {Enler Tola] o "2,274,587.017 2,170,797 565
7 Nuciear Fuel in Process of Ref., Conv., Enrich;, and 202
8 Nuclear Fuel Materials and Assembiies-Stock
Accourt {120.2) e e
8 Nuclear Fuel Assembii eactor (120.3)
10 | SpentNuclear Fuel (120.4)
" Nuclear Fuel Under Capltal Leases (120.8)
12 {Less) Accum. Prov. for Amart. of Nigl. Fuel 202
Assemblies (120.5) o,
13- | NetNuglgar Fuef {Enter Total of lines 7-11 less 12)
14 Net Utility Plant {Enter Total of linas 6 and 13) 2,274,587.017 2,170,797.565
15 Utlity Plant Adjustments (116}
16 | Gas Stored Underground - Noncurrent {117}
v OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS'
18 Nonutility Property {121) 1,311,314 1,267,876
19 {L.ess) Accum, Prov, for Depr, and Amort, (122) 3,014
20 investments.in Associated Companies {123)
21 Investment in Subsidiary Companies (123.1) 224
23 | Noncurrent Porlion of Ajlgwances 228
2 Other Investments (124) 1,500 1,500
25 Sinking Funds (125}
26 Deprecialian Fund {126)
27 Amorfization Fund - Federal {127)
28 18,344,727 16,155,189
28
30 B5,796
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3

Long-Term Partion of Derivative Assets - Hedges
LT B

32

TOTAL Gther Property and Investments (Lines 18-21
and 2331y

18,740,323 17,424,565

33

CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS

Cash-and Warking Funds (Nor-major Only} {130}

a5

Cash (131)

3,067,382 3,326,498

36

Specia} Depasits {132-134}

37

Warking Fund {135}

38

Temporary Gash Investments {138)

39

Notes Receivable {141)

40

Customer Accounts Receivable {142}

18,800,922 25,967,928

41

Other Aceounts Recelvable (143)

1,918,271 1,622,091

42

{Less) Accum, Prov., for Uncellaciible Acct.-Credit
(G

745,575 530,729,

43

33,756,872 53,343,537

44

Accaunts Receivable from Asscc. Companies (146}

54,654,163 2,175,358

45

Fust Stack {151)

227

39,838,611 ‘38,881,864

48

Fus! Stock Expénses Undistributed (152}

22T

47

Regiduals (Elec) and Extracted Products (153}

227

48

Plant Materials and Operating Supplies {154)

227

25454 519 17,815,828

49

Merchandise (155)

227

20

Other Materials and Supplies {156)

227

51

Nuclear Materials Held for Sale {157}

202227

52

Allowances (158.1 and 158.2)

228

18,470 18,470

{Less) Nancurrent Portion of Allowances

228

‘54

Stores Expens

ted (163)

227

1 851,053 1,478,647

55

Gas Stored Undergreund - Current (164.1}

Liquefied Natyral Gas Stored and Held far
Processing (164,2-164.3)

S A

57

Prepaymants (165)

415,920 340,112

58

-Advances for Gas (166-157)

59

interest and Dividends Receivable {171}

B0

73

4,255 29,779

61

Accrued Uifity Ravanues.{173)

62

Miscellaneous Current and Accrued-Assets (174)

15,093,617 26,035,509

63

Derivative instrumesnt Assets {175}

1,790,358 4,801,453

64

{Less) Long-Term Porticn of Derivative [nstrument
Assels (175) . .. .

85,796
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65

Derivativa Instrument Assets - Hedges (176)

66

{Less) Lang-Term Portian of Derivative instrument
Assets-Hedges (176) . ...

67

Total Currert and Acorued Assets {Lines 34 through
56) :

196,833,042

175,396,344

DEFERREL DEBITS

69

2,449,519

2,838,745

70

Extraprdinary Property Losses (182.1)

230a

71

Unrecovered Plant and Reguiatary Study Costs

230b

72

Other Regulatory Assuts {182.3)

232

116,599,400

103,143,714

73

Prelim. Survey and Investigation Charges {Electric)
(183)

1,147,081

500,583

74

Prefiminary Natural Gas Survey and Investigation
Charges 183.1

75

Othar Preliminary Survey-and investigation Gharges

76

Glearing Accounts (184}

50

77

Temporary Facilities {185)

78

Miscellansous Deferred Debits (186)

233

2 735310

N2 377,047

79

Def. Losses from Disposition of Ulllity PIt. (187)

a0

Research, Devel. and Demanstration Expend. (188)

352

81

Unamonrtized Loss on Reaquired Debt (169)

154,181

272,341

a2

Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (190}

234

74,710,350

74,456,012

83

Unrecavered Purchased Ges Costs (191)

(2,812,674}

1,082,583

a4

Total Deferred Debits (fines 69 through 83)

194,983,217

184,671,025

85

TOTAL ASSETS flines 14-16, 32, 67, and 84)

2,686,143,584

2,548,289,499

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 12-03)

Page 110-111
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This report is:
Name of Respondent - Date of Repart: Year/Poriod of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc. o 4] An Originl 04/15/2024 End of; 2023/ Q4

{2} [ A Resutmission

FOOTNOTE DATA

_(g) Concept: StoresExpenselndistiibuted

Account 163 - Functionalized for use with PJM Attachments H-12A: Transmission portion of %29 is -caleulated by multiplying Account 163 balance by ratic
lof Transmission MES balance including Assipred To Construction and Transmission Plant, tea Total M&S balance,

(b} Concept: MisceilansousDefarredDebils

Daferrad Regulatory Comm, Expenses (See pages 356-351) is presented within page 233 by accounts.
{c) Cancept: StoresExpenselndistributed

Arcount 163 - Functionalized for use with PIM Attachmerts H-22A: Transmission portion of $233 is calculated by multiplying Accoumt 163 balan<e by ratio
of Transmission M&S balance including. Assigned Yo Construciion and Traasmission Plant to Toral MRS balanca,

{d) Concept: MiscellanecusDeaferredDebits

peferred Hegilatory Comn. -Expenses {See pages 358-351) i3 presented within page 233 by acoounts,
FERC FORM No. 1 (REV, 12-03)

Page 110-111
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This report is:
i A (1 Bn orgina Ay pinetsSilvias
(23 [ A Resubmission
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
I;‘ine Title of Accouni Ref. Page No. ;J‘;i":}gﬁrgﬂ';:ni Prior Yea: ;;f Balancs
Q. {a) (b} {c) td)
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Common Stack Issued (201) 250 8,774,995 8,775,995
3 Prejerred Stock Issued (204) 250,
4 Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205}
5 Stock Liability for Conversian (203, 206)
6 Premium on Capital Stock (207) 18,838,946 18,838,948
7 Other Paid-In Capilal (208211} 253 458,655,189 273,855,189
8 Instaimants Recaived on Capital Stack (212) 252
9 {Less) Discount on Capital Siock (213) 254
10 {Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254h
n Retained Eamings (215, 2151, 216} 118 644,082,572 578,920,356
12 Unappropn‘ated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings 8
13 (Less) Reacquired Capital Stock (217} 250
14 | Nencorporate Proprietorship (Non-major only) (218)
i5 | Accumulated Qther Comprehensive Income (219) 122{a)ib}
16 Total Proprietary Capital flines 2 through 15) 1,130,356,702 880,194,486
17 LONG-TERM DEBT
18 Bonds{221) 255
19 [Less) Re 256
20 Advances fram Associated Companies (223) 258 25,000,000 .25,000,000
21 Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256 81,720,000 756,720,000
22 | Unamorized Premium on Long-Term Debt(225)
24 Total Long-Term Debt {lines 18 through 23) 706,570,489 781,556,225
25 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
26 Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (227) 7,490,743 8034225
27 Accumulated Provision for Preperly Insuranca
2
| fag o ot e Bameges (158424 (126,558)
29 E\zl:zc;%ulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits 26,005,306 27,056,733
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ag Accumutated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions
i FE‘EH[!TL':‘?Q&@“EE!’E_VI,SEEEJ‘?[ Rate Refunds (229)

32 Long-Term Portlon of Dersivative Instrument Liabilities: 1,386,272 1,547,835
a3 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities

¥ | Asset Retirement Chbligations {230) 88,018,039 107,821,238
35 'g?éai Cther ljlum:urTen! LEébiIiUes {ines 26 through 123,642,516 144,371,535
86 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

37 | Notes Payable {231}

£l Accounis Payable (232) 1,721,708 66,496,003

-39 Notes Payable (o Aasociateq Companies {233) 92,903,000 81,232,000
40 ﬁpgt{:unts_,?gyable’ iq\ﬁﬁoﬁg‘md Companies '(2’;‘135-}‘ 16,797,299 203525,341
H Custgmer Deposits (235) 8,476,056 9,144,474
42 | Taxes Accrued (236) 262 188,672 39,215,893
43 Infeest Accrued (237) 7,622,927 7,768,371
44 Dividends Declared (238)

45 Matured Long-Terrn Debi (239)
45 Matured interest (240}

47 Tax Cofledtions Payable (241) 3,821,514 4,240,452
48 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabillies (242). 7,654,560 17,783,558
49 Chligatians Under Capital Loases-Current (243} 383,730 844,278
50 Derivative Instrument Liabifities (244) 1,748,894 1,956,185
| g e Derhathe sument
52 Derivative Insirumient Liabilijes - Hedges (245)

53 '(l:es’s)‘Lonngerm Porfion of Dervative Inslrument

Linbiitles Hedges . ...
B e et
&5 DEFERRED CREDITS
56 Customer Advances for Construction (252} 2,520,782 2,520,849
57 | Accumulated Deferred investment Tax Credits (255) 266 5,120,973 3,384,566
58 Beterred Gains from Disposition of Uity Plant (256}
58 Other Deferred Credits (253 269 14,354,084 14,807,673
60 Other Regulatory Liabilflies (254) 278 120,050,570 124.170,465
61 | Unamortized Gain on Reasquired Debi (257)
62 Accurn. Deferred Income Taxes-Accel, Amort.(281) 272
63 Aceum, Deferred income Taxas-Other Property (282} 363,080,715 327,209,898
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64 1 Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other {263} 30,524,683, 23,962,912

65 Ig}taal Defer[ed Credits (lines 56 -th(gggﬁﬁﬁ)v 525,681,807 496,036,463
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHGLDER EQUITY

% | (ines 16,24,35,54endes) 2,688,143,509 2548,269,420

FERC FORM No. 1 {REV. 12-03)
Page 1124113
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Name of Respondent:
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.

This reportdis:
(1} M An Original
{2} [ A Resubmission

Dateof Report:

1 Year/Period of Reporl
04/15/2024

End of: 2023/ Q4

STATEMENT OF INCOME

Quartsrty

1.

2.
3. Report in column (g) the quarter to date amounits for electric utifity function; in:column (i} the quarter to date amounts for gas ulility, and in column {k}

4.
5.

Report in column {(cj the currenl-year to date balanca, Column (c) equals the total of adding-the data in column {g) plus the data in column (i) plus the
Report in column {d} similar data for the previous year. This. information is reported in the annual filing only,
Enter in column {&] the balance for the reporting quarter and in column (f} the balance forthe same three month perfod for the prior year.

amounts for other utility function far the current year quarter. )

Report in column (h) the quarter to date amounts for efectric utility function; in column (§) the quarter to date amounts for gas ulility, and in column (i} 1
amounts for ether utitity function for the prior year quarter. )
If additighal columns' are needad, place them.In a footnote.

Annual or Quartery I appiicable

Do not repert fourth quarter data in eolumns (a} and (f}

Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenues and Expenses from Ulility Plant Leesed Ic Others, in another utility columrr in a simflar manner
depariment, Spread the armount(s) over Lines 2 hru 25-as appropriate, inciude these amounts in columns (¢} and {d) totals.

Repart amounts in account 414, Other Utility Operating Incoma, In the'same manner as accounts 412 and 413 abova,

Use page 122 for important notes regard ng the statement of income for any account thereof.

Give concise explanations concammg unsettlad rate proceedings where a contingency exists such that refunds of a material ampunt may need to be
custamisrs‘or which may result in materiat refund to the Utility with respect to power or gas purchases. State for each year effeclad the gross revenue:
contingency relates and the tax effects logether with an explanation of the major factors which affect the rights of the- utility to retain such revenuss or
paid with respect to pawer-or gas purchases.

Glve concise explanations cancerning significant amounts of any refunds made or received during the year resuiting from seftiement of any rate proct
revenues received or costs incurred for power or gas purchases, and a summary of the adjustments made to baldnce sheet, income, and expense ac
If any notes appearing in 1he report to slockholders are applicable to the Staternant of incame, such nates may be included at page 122,

Enter on page 122 a concise explanation of only those changes in accounting methods made dusing the yearwhich had an effect on net income, incls
eflocations and apportionments from those used in the preceding year, Alsg, give the approp;iate dollar sffect of such changes.

Explain in-a footnote if the previcus year's/quartet's figures are different from that reported in prior reporis.

If the columns are insufficient for reporiing ‘additional utility departments, supply the appropriate account titles repor the infarmatian in a footnote to'th

Current 3 Prior 3 ; .
Total TotatPrior | Months | Monmms | Flsdiric ES:S:{’“ Gas Utiity | Gas Utility
" {Ref.) | Current Year " Ended - Ended - Uulity ity Current Previous
. Title of Year to Date Current Previcus
Line Page to Date Quartarly | Quarterly X Year ta Yearto
o Account Balance for , . Year to Year to .
No. (a) No. Balance far Quarter/Year Only - No | Only -No Date (in Date {in Date (in Date {in
{b} : QuarterfYear () Hh 4th dollars) daliars) dollars) dollars)
(c} Quarter Quarter (@ ) {n (i}
(e} N g
UTILITY
1 OPERATING
INCOME |
QOperating
2 Revenues 30a 585,038,544 671,899,503 453,317,918 | 515,342,766 | 139,720,626 | 156,556,737
(4e0)
3 QOperating
Expenses
Gperation
4 Expenses 320 314,264,497 | 419,645,772 249,650,948 | 329,769,085 | 64,713,548 | 89,877,677
[ S ' ‘
Maihtenance 7 )
5 Expenses 320 33,333,930 34,590,833 30,988,699 32,244.328 2,345,231 2,346,505
@
-Depraciation ; . - )
6 Expense(4p3} 336 71,219,848 66,082,094 53,727,825 48,783,713 17,492,023 §{ 16,298,381
Drepreciation
Expense for
7 Asset. 336 1,527 1527
Retirement
Costs (403.1)
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Amort, & Depl,
of Utdlity Plant
(404-405)

336

8,864,753

8,632,951

4,743,185

4,314,108

4,221,608

4,318,843

Amart, of Utility
Plant Acg. Ad].
{406)

336

10

Amort.
Property
Losses,
Unrecov Flant
and Regulatory
Study Costs
(@on). ...

11

Amert, of
Conversion

Expenses
407.2) .

12

Regulatory
Datits (407.3).

29,047,623

20,189,089

27,603,783

18,961,249

1,353,840

1,227,840

13

{Less)
Regqulatory
Credits (407.9)

999,040

1,158,927

919,562

1,067,661

79458

91,266

14

- Taxes (108.1)

Taxes Other
Than income

262

15,517,515

22,423,684

11,785,321

17,452,041

3,732,194

4,971,643

15

income Taxes -
Federal
(e

262

1,773,250

9,255,847

9,069,527

8,497,247

(7,296,277

758,600

16

Income Taxes -
Other (409.1}

262

(1,740,017)

1,330,719

535,181

1,145,949

(2,275,198)

184,770

17

Provision for
Deferred
fncoms Taxes

@n

234,
272

82,456,649

59,485,831

44,373.893

43,299,864

‘38,082,751

16,185,967

18

{Less)
Frovision far
Deferred
income Taxes-

234,
272

67,803,131

56,362,309

45,923 485.

45,269,083

21,879,648

11,003,226

19

Investment Tax
Credit Ad]. -
Net{d114)

266

{143,719)

(195.412)

77

{143,719y

(195,488}

20

{Less) Gains
from Disp. of
Uity Plant
ane .

21

Losses from
Disp. of Utility
Plantga11.7)

22

{Less) Gains
fram
Disposition of
Allowances
@ne

686,671

5,004,724

586,671

5,004,724

23

Lasses fram
Disposition of
Allowances
g
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24

Accretion
Expense
{411.18)

2,370

2,370

25

TOTAL Utility
Operaiing
Expensas
{Enler Total of

lines 4 thru 24)

485,209,424

578,916,448 384,842,526 | 454,126,203 | 100,266,698 | 124,790,245

27

Net Ut Oper
inc {Enter Tat

line 2 less 25

93,829,120

62,083,055 £8,375,392 | 61,216,583 | 31,453,728 | 31,766,492

28

Other Incoma
and
Deductions

29-

Other Income

3¢

Nonutilty
Cperating

31

Revenues
From
Merchandising,
Jobbing and
Contract Wark
(a1s) .

2,824,752

1,308,488

32

{Less} Cosls
and Exp. of
Merchandising,
Job, &
Confract Wark
@e

97,084

82,509

Revenues
From Nonutiity
Operations

EAT)

10,621

34

{Legs)
Expenses of
Noutility
Operations
300 N

78,445

75,829

35

Nanoperating
Rental Income
@18) e

{3,014}

Equity in
Eamings of
Subsidiary’
Companies
@en .

119

37

Interest and
Dividend
Income (419),

5,220,033

2,871,690

Allowance far
Qther Funds
Used During
Construction
LR P I

1,057,491

1,249,377

39

Miscellaneous
Nonoperating

Income (421}

834373

888,030

40

Gain on
Disposition of
Property
@2

83,825

192,167
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41

TOTAL Other
income {Enier
Total of lines
thua)

9,841,637

6,362,045

42

Gther Income
Deductions

43

Loss on
Dispositian cf

52,847

121,978

44

Miscellaneous

-Amoftization

(425

45

Donations
weeny

500,957

558,067

46

L¥e Insurance
4282y .

(9,559)

47

Penalties
(426

Exp. for
Certain Civic,
Political &
Related
Aciivities.

(@284

751,665

579,668

49

Other
Deductions
@265

6,642,455

11,073,319

50

TOTAL Other
fricame
Deductions
{Total of lines
ABthrudg

7,947 844

12,324.477

51

Taxes Applic.
to Other
Incarria and
Dedyctions

52

Taxes Other
Than Incame
Taxes (408.2]

262

(4,979}

3621

53

Income Taxes-
Federal
4082y

262

(10,233,448}

238,262

Incomea Taxes-
Other {409.2)

262

(2,549,265}

59,303

55

Pravision far
Deferred inc.
Taxes (410.2)

234,
272

13,582,055

1,785,006

56

{Less)
Fravision for
Deferred
Income Taxes-
.ty

234,
272

10,267

3,891,480

57

Investmant Tax
Credit Adi.-Net

ans

58

{Less) )
Investment Tax
Credits (420
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TQTAL Taxes
an Other
tncome and
Deductions
(Total of fines

52-98)

778,096

{1,505,208)

60

Net Other
tncome and
Deducticng
{Total of lines
41,50, 59y

1,115 597

{4,457,224)

B1

Interest
Charges

62

interesl an
Long-Term
Debi (427}

-30,038,749

27,687,076

63

Amort, of Debt
Disc.and
Expense (428}

465,836

421,127

Amorlization of
Loss on
Reaquired
Debt (428.1)

118,180

122,144

&5

{Less) Amort.
of Premium on
Deabf-Credit

[ E)

515

(Less}
Amoartization of
Gain an
Reaquired
Debt-Credit
@28. ..

67

intersst on
Debtto Assac.
Companles
@y

£,162,745

1.480,518

88

Other interest
Expepse (431)

2,214,513

1,374,574

59

{Less}
Allowance for
Borrowed
Funds Used
During
Conslruction-

cr.id32y

4,117,502

1,112,022

70

Net interest
Charges {Total
oflines 62'thru

fc) S

35,762,501

28,973,813

71

Income Before
Extraordinary
ftems (Total of
fines 27, 60
and70)

65,162,216

58,552,018

72

Extraordinary
fems

T3

Extracrdinary
Income (43d)
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T4

{Less)
Extraordinary
Deductions
(435)

75

Net
Exiraordinary
items {Total of
line 73 less

fne7d)

76

income Taxes-
Federal and

Qther (409,3}

262

77

Exiraordinary
Items After

Taxas (ling 75
fess line 76)

78.

Net Income
{Total of line 71

66,162,218

58,562,018

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 02-0)

Page 114-117
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This report is:

Name of Respondent:

Duke Energy Kentutky, inc.

{13 ¥ An Onginal
(23 [J A Resubmission

Date of Reporl:
04/15/2024

Year/Period of Reporl

End of: 2023/ Q4

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

1. Do not report Lines 43-53 onthe quarlery reporl,
2. Reporl alf changes in appropriated retained eamings, unapprapriated retained eamings, ard unappropriated undistributed subsidfary earnings for

{he year,

3. Each credit and debit during the year shiouid be identified as lo the retzined eamings account in which recorded {Accounts 433, 436:439
inclusive). Show the conira primary accouni affected in golumn' {b),

4, 5iate the purposée and amount for each reservalion or appropriafion of retained earnings.
5, List first Accourtt 439, Adjustments to'Retained Earnings, reflecting adjustmants to the upening balance of retained earnings. Follow by credi,

{hen debit items, in hat order.
6. Shaw dividends for sach class and series of capital stock,

7. Show separately the Stata and Féderal income tax effect of lems-shown for Account 439, Adjusiments to Retained Earnings.
8. Explain in a focinote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropr:ated i such reservation or appropriation is to be recurrent, state

the number and annual amounts fo be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals eventually 1o be accumulated.

9. if any notes appearing in the reperl {o stockheiders are-applicable 1o this statement, attach them at page 122.

Line ftem Gontra Primary Current Quarter/Year Year to Previqus Quarter/Year Year
‘No. {2) Account Affacted Date Balance to Date Balance
{b (&) {a)
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS
(Account 216) e e e

1 Balarice-Beginning of Period 575,920,368 520,369,338
2 Changes

3

4 Adjustments to Retained Eamings Credit

4.1 | Current Expected Credit Losses (CECL) adjustments 283
4.2 Current Expected Credit Losses (CECL) adjusiments 190

43

4.4

9 TOTAL Credits to Retained Eamings {Acct, 439)

10 Adjustments ta Retained Eamings Debit

10.1

10.2 .

103 | Current Expected Credit Losses {CECL) adjusiments 186

10.4 | Cument Expecled Credit Losses (CECL) adjustments 144

15 | TOTAL Debils fo Retained Eamings {Acct. 439)

o | B gt e e e
17 Approprialions of Ratained Earnings (Acct 438}

22 I:?JAL Appropriations of Retalned Earhings (Acct,

23 | Dividends Declared-Prsferred Stock {Account 437)

29 IéJTAL Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock {Acct,

30 l?i,v;igepﬁgl?5-*,@l.@resifcgmm@ﬂ%«a@ﬁrﬁ@@eﬂtﬁ@ﬁ)
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30.1 | Cash Dividend ta Parent

TOTAL Dividends Declared-Cormmon Stock {Acct,

36 4)

a7 Transfers from Acct 216.1, Unapprop. Undisirib.
Subsidiary Barnings

Balarice ~ End of Period {Totat
8 1915,1622293637) . . 644,082,572 578,920,356

39 | APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account

a5 TOTAL Appropriated Relained Earnings {Account

APPROP. RETAINED EARNINGS - AMORT.
Reserve, Federal (Account2156.1)

46 TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings-Amort. Reserve,
Federal{Acct. 2150y

TOTAL Approp, Retained Eamings (Acct‘ 215,

M| 215.1) (Total 4545)

48 TOTAL Retained Earnings {Acct. 215, 215:1, 218)

(Total 38, 47) (216.1) 644,082,572 578,920,356

UNAPPROPRIATED UNDISTRIBUTED ‘
SUBSIDIARY EARNINGS {(Account Raport only on
anAnnual Basis, no Quarterly)

o Sy —

49 | Balance-Beginning of Year (Debit ar Credit)
50 Equity in Eamings for Year (Credit) (Account 418.1)

51 {Less) Dividends Received (Debit)

TOTAL ather Changes in unappropriated
52 :
he
521 Transfers from Unappropriated Retained Earnings

(Account 216)

53 Bafance-End of Year (Total lines 43 thru 52)

FERC FORM No. 1 {REV. 02-04}
Page 118-119
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This repaort is:

Name of Respondent: iai Date of Report: Year/Feriod of Report,
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. m .‘ An Original 04/45/2024 End of: 2023/ Q4
{2y ] A Resubmission
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. Codes 1o be used:{a} Net Procesds or Payments;(bjBonds, debentures and other long-term debt; (¢} Include commercial paper; and {d) identify
separately such iems as investments, fieed assets, intangibles, ato.

2. information about noncash investing and financing aclivities must be provided in the Notes to the Financial statemenls. Also provide a
reconciliation between "Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period" with relaled amoumts ‘on the Balance Sheet.

3. Operaitng ‘Activities - Other: Include gains and fosses perlaining to opetating dctivites only. Gains and fosses pertaining to investing and financing
aclivities should be reported in those actvities. Show in the Notes % the Financials the amounts of interest paid {net of amount capitalized} and

income faxes pald.

4, Investing Activities: Include at Other {iine 31) net cash outflaw ta acguire vther campanies. Provide a reconciliation of assets acquired with
Habtlities assumed in the Nates to the Financial Statements, Do not indlude on this statement the doliar amount of feases capitaiized per the
UScfA Ganeral instruction 20; instsad pravide a reconciliation of the doliar amount of leases capitafized with the plant cost.

Line

Description (See {nstructions No.1 for explanation of

Current Year to Date Quarter/Year

Pravious-Year to Date

No. co(t;t)as) (b} Quariz;!Y ear
1 Wet.Cash Flow from Operating Activities
2 Net income (Line 78{c) on page 117) 65,162,216 158,552,078
3 Noncash Gharges {Credits} to Income:
4 Deprecialian and Depletion 71,221,375 66,062,004
5 Amortization of (Specify) {foctnote details)
51 uctear Fuel
5.2 Plant itemns 8,964,793 8,532,851
o gsg; Discount, Eraﬁium, Expense, and Loss on Reacquired 583,096 543,267
8 Deferted Income Taxes (Net) 28,225,308 1317,128 |
9 fnvestment Tax Credit Adjustment (Nety {143719) {185,412)
10 Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables (46,377,607) 2,885,225
1 Net {Increase) Decrease In nveritary {8,415,150) (8.742,735)
12 Net {Increase) Decrease in Allawances Inventory 719
13 Net Increase {Dacrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses {49,801,451) 50,278,727
14 Net {Increase) Decrease in Qther Regulafary Assets 19,201,307 33,520,858
15 Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Regulatory Liabiitles GER:AL 684,996
18 {Less) Nl@r.!?_r!ﬁ?;fwﬁquer Funds Used During Consfruction 1,057,191 1,248,377
17 {Less) Undistributed Earnings from Subsidiary Companias
18 Other {pravide details In foctnote);
184 Other {pravide detals infootnote}:
18.2 Spacial funds {2,104,057) {1,462,478)
18,3 Prepayr {75,808} 74 GBI
184 | Miscallaneous Current and Accrued Assels 5,241,307 (1.307,047)
185 | Preliminary Survay and Investigation Charges (646,498) {110,644
186 | Clearing Accounts

(50 6
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18.7

18.8

Miscellaneous Deferred Debits

{354,263) {161,358}

18.9

‘Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs

3,895,257 45,809

18.10

Accumulated Other Gomprehensive Income

18.11

Qbligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent

(543,482} (344,278}

1812

Accumulated Provisions

1,001,027 1,700,257

18.13

Accumutated Provision for Raie Refund

18.14

Contribution to Fension Plan

(1,508,640) {852,924)

18.15

Customer Advances for Construtlion

(167} 354,198

18.16

Other Defetred Credits

{906,285) 561,189

1817

Deri

live Instruments

{332,505) (672,243)

18.18

et Utiity Plant and Nonulility Property

{8,406,529) {34,901,051}

18.19

Delt Expenses

(11,971) (3,500

18.20

Deferred Income Taxes

224 545 3N

Net-Cash Provided by {Used in) Operating Activities (Total of
Lines 2 thru21)

85,874,264 175,556,925

24

Gash Flows from Invesiment Activitias:

25

Construction and Acquisition of Plant (including fand):

26

Gross Additions tg Utility Plant {less nuslear fuef)

(222,275,933} {172,649,698)

27

Gross Additions 1o Nuclear Fuel

28

Gross Additions 1a Common Utility Plant

(6,119,928} (3,425,677}

29

Gross Additions 10 Nonutility Plant

30

{Less) Allawance for Other Funds Used During Gonstruction

{1,057,181) (1,249,377

#

Olher {provide details in footnata):

311

Other {provide dstails in footnate);

34

Cash Outflows far Plant (Total of tines 26 thru 33)

{227.338,670) (174,875,998

36

Acquisii

n of Other Noncurre

ts {d)

37

Praceeds from Disposat of Noncurrent Assels (d)

39

Investments in and Advances fo Assoc. and Subsidiary
Compamies .

40

Contributions and Advances from Assog, and Subsidiary
Companies

41

Disposition of Investments in (and Advances to}

42

Disposition of lnvestments in {and Advances ta} Associated
and Subsidisry Campanies

44

Purchase of Investment Sacurities (a)

45

Proceeds from Sates of Investment: Securities (a)

45

Loans Made

aséed
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a7

Callactions on Loans

49

Net (Increase) Decreaso in Receivables

19,586,665 {30,947,024)

Nat {Increase) Decraase in Inventory

51

Net {increase) Dacreage in Allowances Held for Specufation

52

Net Increase {Decrease} in Payables and Accrued Expenses

53

QOther {provide details in foslnote):

531

Cost of Remaval net of salvage

53.2

Other (provide details in foatnots):

53.3

53.4

Withdrawais, issuances, and redemptions of resiricled funds
heldinfrust

57

Net Cash Provided by {Used in} Investing Activilies (Tolal o
lines 34 thru 55)

(207,752,005} (205,823,032,

59

Cash Fiows fram Financing Activities:

(1]

Proceeds from Jssuance of:

61

Long-Teom Debt (b)

25.000,000 50,000,000

62

Preferred Stock

63

Common Stack

Other (provide details in footnote):

Qther {provide details in foctnate):

Notes Payable loAssosiated Companies

Other Financing Activities (provide details in factnote):

&6

Net Increase in Short-Term Debt (c)

67

Other (provige defalls In faatnote):

B7.4

Other {provide detsils in footnate):

67.2

Contsibytiun from Parent

185,000,000

70

Cash Provided by Outside Sources (Total 61 thru 65}

210,000,000 50,080,000

T2

Payments for Retirement of,

73

Long-term Debt {b).

(99,943,776} (380,026}

74

Preferred Stock

75

Comrich Stock

e

Other {provide detafls in foctnote):

76.1

Other {provide delails in foctnote}:

78.2

Intercompany Notes Payable MoneyPoal

11,671,000 (21,364,001}

Premium payments and fees on deferrad debt

{108,597) {145,915}

764

Fair market value adjusiment

76.5

Bund lssuance Cosls
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78 Net Decrease in Short-Term Dabt (c)
80 Dividends on Preferrad Stack
&1 Dividends on Common Stock

Met Cash Provided by {Used in} Financing Activities (Total of
8 | lines 70 thu 81) 121,618,625 28,110,058
85 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net lncrease (Decreasa) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (Total A
B iofine22,57andB3, T (259,116) (2:156,049)
88 Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 3,326,498 5482547
80 Cash and Cash Equivatents at End of Period #3,067,382 3,326,488

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 120-121
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This report is:.
Name of Respondent: 9 An Origi Date of Repart: Year/Period of Report
p n Original o }
Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. ) 9 04/15/2024 End of, 2023/ Q4
t2) L] A Resubmission
FOOTNOTE DATA
{a) Concept: CashAndCashEguivalents
YTD December 2023 YTD December 2022
Suppiemental Disclosures {in thausands}
Cash paid for intereat, net of amount Capitaf $ 34,318 & 28,005
Cash palid / {refunded) for income taxas 3 25,502 § {11,154}
Significant non-cash transactions {in thousands}
AFUDC - equily campaonent 3 1,057 § 1,249
Accrued capial expendliures K 30968 § 30,310
Cash and Gagh Equivalents at End of period:
Cash{131) $ 3,067,383 § 3,226,498
‘Working Funds {135} $0 50
Temparary Gash [nvestments {136} $0 50
$ F,067,383 $ 3,326,498

FERG FORM No, 1 (ED. 12-06)

Page 120121
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This raport is:
Name.of Respondent; (i Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Duke Energy Kentucky, inc. 1312 An original 04/15/2024 End of; 2023/ Q4

{2 ] A Resubmission

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Use ihe spaca below far imporant notes regarding the Balance Sheet, Statement of Income for the year, Statement of Refained Eamings for the
year, and Statement of Cash Fiows, orany account ihereof. Classify fhe notes accarding ta each basic statement, praviding a subheading for
each statemant except where a note is applicable to more than ane statement.

2. Furnish particulars {detais} as io any significant contingent assets or liabifities. exssung at end of year, including a brief explanation of any-acljan
initiated by the Internal Revenue Service involving possible assessment of addifional income. taxes af material amount, or of & claim for refund-of
income taxes of a materlat smount inftiated by the uiflity. Give also a brief explanation of any dividends in arrears on cumuiative preferred stock.

3. Far Account 116, Ut;llly Plant Adiusbments, explain the ongin of such amount, debits and credits during the year, and plan of disposition
contemplated, giving references to Commission orders or other autharizations respecting classification of amounts as plant adiustments and
requirements as to disposition thereof.

4. Where Accounts 189, Unamontized Laoss.on Reacquired Debt, and 257, Unamomzed Gain on Reacquired Debt, are not used, g;ve an explanatmn,
providing the rate tresiment given these items. See Genaral {nstruction 17 af the Uniform System of Accounts:

5, Give a contise explanafion of any retained earnings restrictions and state the amount of retained earnings affacted by such restrictions.

6. !f the notes to financial statemenls relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report 1o the stockholders are applicabie and
turnish the data required by Instructions.above and on pages 114-121, such notes-may be Included herein. '

7. For the 3Q disdlosures, respondeni must provide in the noies sufficient disclosures so as to make Lhe intefim information not misleading.
Disclosyres which would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in the mast recent FERC Annual Report may be omitted.

8. For the 3Q disclosures, the disclosures shall be provided where evienls subsequent fa the end of the mostrecent year have occured which have
a material effect onthe respondent. Respondent must include in the notes significant changes since the most recently completed year in such
ftems as; accounting principles and practices; esfimates inherent in the preparation of the financial statements; sfatus of long-term cantragts;
capitalization including Significant new bomowings or madifications of axisting financing agreements; and changes resuiting from business
combinations or disposiﬁuns, However were material conlingencies exist, the disclosure of such matters shall be provided aven though a
significant change since year.end may not have occurred.

9. Finally, if the notes to the financial staternents relafing to the respondem appearing In the annual repon to the stockholders are applicable:and
furnish the data required by the above instructions, such nates may be included herein.

This Federal Energy Regulatory Commission {(FERC} Form 1 has bzem prepared in conjformity with the requiremants of lhe FERC as sei forih in #s applitable Upiform Systam of
Accounts and published accolinting rejeases, which is a comprehensive basis of accaunting cther than Generaily Accepted Accounting Principles in the Uniled Staies of America
{GAAP). The foilowing areas represent the significant différences befween the Unitorm System of Accounts.and GAAP

+  GMAP requires (hat public business enterprises repari cerlain mformation about operaling segments in compiete sets of financiat siatements ¢f the enterprise and cerlain
informalion 2bout thelr products and services, which are not requiréd for FERC reperiing purpases.

+ GAAR requites that mejorty-ownad subsidiaries ba consolidated for inancist reporiing purposas. FERC requises that majonity-owned subsidianies be separately reporied &5
[nvestment in Subsidiary Campanies, Linless an appropriate waver has been granted by the FERC.

= FERC raquires lhat ncome ar losses of an unusua! nature and infiequent octurrence, which wandd significantly distort the curment year's income, bo recorded as
extraordinary imcoma af deductions, respeciively.

= GAAP requises-thal removal end nuclear decommissioning cosis for property that does:not have an asscoiated legal fefirement: abligation be presenied as 2 regutalory
liabiiity on the-Bajance Sheét, These casts are presentad as accumulated dapreciation.on Ihe Balance Shedt for FERC reparting purposes.

»  GAAF requires the regLialory assets znd liabjfitins mesutting ram Lhe imiplemsntation cf ASG T40-10 (formarly SFAS No. 109} be presentad as a net amount on the balance

sheet. For FERC reporling fufposes, these aasals and fabilities are presented separalely end armincluded in the Other Regulatory Asset and Other Regulaiory Lisbility fne
items,

»  GAAP requites that the cument pottion of regulalory assels and reguiatory Fabilitiés be reparled as cament assets and cumrent Jiabilities, raspectively, on the:Bslance Sheet.

FERE requires lhat Ihe curent portion of regulatory assets and iebiitles be reporied as Regulatory Aseets within Deferred Debils and Reguiatory Liabiifies within Deferred
Crediis, respeclively,

»  GAAP reguiresihalihe current portion of long-temm debt and preferred stock be raparied-as.a current liabifity on the Balange Sheet. FEREC raquires that the current partion of
Jong-term ratt and proferred stock be repotied as Long-term Debt and Propretary Capital.

»  GAAP requires that any deferred costs assogiated with o spesilic debt isseance be presented as aretuction to'debt on the Balance E.i]aai; FERC requires any Unamortized
Debt Expense to be separalely steted es a Defarrad Debit or the Balange Shest.

»  GAAP fequires thal cerlain account balances within financial stalement line items Wwhich arc not in'the raiural pasition for thet ine ftem {e.g. an account within Accouhis
Receivable with a credit balance) be reclassed to the appropriete side of the Balance Sheel FERC dbes not raquire cerlain aécounts which are not in a natural pasition for
their sespaclive iing itom & be reclassad, as lang as the lina flem in folak is in is naturat position.

- BGAAP requires that reguiated assets thel ere abandched or retired early, Inciuding the cost of the assel'and ils assotiated accumulated depreciation, be reclasgifiod ta a

separate regulatory asset on the Balance Sheet, For FERC teporling purposes; thase assels which have been-abandoned but are siili operaling are mai intained i their
original balance sheet acacunts.

*  GAAP fequires that the current porion of Asset Retirethent Obligations ba repoded as curent liabilities on the Balance Sheel For FERG reporting purposes, these liabfitles
are not reporied separately and are reflectad as Assel Retrement Obligations within the Other Noncurrent Liabiities section of the Dalance Sheet,

~ GAAP requires service cosl related o pensions and Post-Retiremaent Benefits Other Than Pensions (PEOP) b ba reparted with othar compensation costs arising fmm
services rendered by smployees during the perled and 4 insfuded in a subtolal of intoma frofmi aperations.on the income stalament. Norr-sarvice cost componenls are
presenieu separately oulsida the subiotal of income from operatians an the incoms statemeni. For FERT reporling puipdses, cosls related to pensions and PROP is included
in tha Net Uity Cperaiing insame of the incame statement.

Guke Energy Kentucky's notes to the financial siatements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP. Actordingly, cerain fooinates era not reflective of Duke Enargy Kentucky's
financial statements contained herain, Management hizs evaluated the-impact of events ocoursing afler December 31, 2023 up'to March 12, 2024, the date that Duke Energy
Kentuicky's U.S, GAAP financiad statements wers (ssued,

Maragement has evaluated the impact of events oncuring after Cacember 31, 2023 up to February 23, 2024 (March 12, 2024 for DE Kentucky), tha date that the Commany’s U.S,
GAAM fnancia) statemenls were lssued and has updated such evaluation for disclosure purposes theough Aprit 15, 2024 These fnancial statements inclide 2% necessary
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adjustments and disdosures rasd}ing from these evaluations.

1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Due Energy Karngucky jaa combination electie aml nakral gas reguialed prblic uilty company that ‘pigvides service i nochem Keotucky. Duke Enemy Kentucky's princiga: lnes of businesy fndude
disidoution anl sale ule]amiul' as well s lhe ransporiation and sale of nakeraj gag, Puke Energy. Konlm:ky Is gubjeet in the regu!aﬁw praviskons of 1ha XPSC and the FERC. Duke Energy Kenlirtky's mrnrmn stoek i wholly
swned by Dike Engigy Ohio, ., B0 indirect whilly owned subisifiary of Duke Energy.

Cartaln gier year amourds have been recisseifiad 1 conferm ko Uhe zurier! yaar pregentation.
Other Current Assels and Liabikties

Tha folfowing tabte provides 4 descripdon af amauris incuused n Other within Current Assots of Gument Libitiies that oxpéed BY of talal Current Assels or Current Liabiities on th Duke Enevgy Remuicky Balarcs Sheets ot
eilher Desemier 31, 2023, or 2022,

Decamber 31,
{im thousandsh Locatian 7023 2522
ncame Tzxes Recelvabla Carrent Aagels % 19,288 5 -
- Collaterai Assets Currsat Assels 41,458 14,508
SGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Lise of Estimiztes
10 prepating finansial stiements that eonfarm to GAAR Duke Enégy Kemucky must maka estimates and nssimptions that alfact ke reportad amcunts af sssets'and hisbilies, tha reported of 25 apd

and the distiosurs of contngent assots and Batifiios 21 ha dats of he krancial statemwints Actual reeults could difler fom thosa estimates.,
Regulatory Agcounting

The majority of Duke Emvergy Kéntucky's operaiions are subject lo prize regulation for he ale of elect riai\f and natural gas by e KPSC ot FERG. Wher prives are sst on the basis of specilis towls. of P regulaled operations
and an effective franchiss st vlacs’sues fhat sulidant naturs] gas or eléculs snrvices can e sald e rerover thoss coxts, Duka Enprgy Kerwcky applias reguimwy amunbﬂg Raguislary scopUatng rhannes the liming ofthe
resogrilion of Casls of reversies ralalive o a company that does not apoly wegulatory sccoumtng, As & rasult ragulatory assels and reguislory isbiRlies are recagrizes on the Bslance Sheels and ore amostized tonslsient wih
the: Tetiment Of the relatsd cost i the tatemakbeg pracess, Ragilatary 9556l xte eviewsd for tatoverabilily each reporing paod, I 8 regulsiory asset s 1o langer diemed pratable of recovery, ihe deleires cast e chrged ta
Eamirigs. Sen Holo 2 for Rerlher infarmation,

Ouke Energy Kantucky utfizer, mst«lmd-}ng mechanigms, commcriy roferred i 25 fusl afjustiment slauses or purchased gas. adiusimant clavses., Thase clauses allow for tha récovery of fuel and fuetelaled tosls, portions of
mrchasad powo, natural gas ¢ and hedging oosts Pucugh surdiames ot elistomer raias. The giference beheon il casts miumed and thi SurchAnge révenuds is recorded éiber a5 an adjusmment to Opereling Ravenues,
‘Operating Expanses ~ Fusk ¢4 ¢ i slechie ganeratien and puzchased power of Oparating Expenses - Cost of natural gas 01 the Stalemerts of Dperadians wilh an off- satﬁng impacl on sagulatory assets of regulatory fablitles.

cm and Cash Equivalants

Alt highly fiquid invdatments wilh maturitics of thres months or [esy af the dato of acquisition ars comrsidered cach cquivafents.

fnwéniory

trveniory reloted to reguieted operations is vahied.t Nsioricel tast. Invenlory is eharged o expense or mpllu.h:en 1o property, plant end equipment when issued, pnmenly umu Iheaﬂemgse cosh melnod. Exoess of ohsoleie
Inwsntory s writtan-down 1o the lower of mat or aet realkzalie value. Onoe invertory has heen wriltsr—down, it centes B new cost basis for the iny Y (hat is nal sibsey en-up. Prayi: Ty eite-oRd wers
.not material &l Decamber 31, 2628, and 2022, The nts of invenlary an in tha.tabla beiow.

Beacermber 3%,

{ln thousards) 2023 2022
Materials and suppiies $ 27,306 % 19,385
Coal . 28,951 33,706
Matiral gas, of and oiney 11,885 5175
Totalinveniry (] 67,34 3. 58,278
Long-ivad Assel impaiments

Drgkg Energy hetes Yom-lived asssts for img. A1 When G ees indiele the camyng valog of Biose gssets may nof bz recoverble; An'imgatmen exsly when a fong-ived asget’s camying value excoeds’

tha elimatad whdiscountod ash Rows Txpecied W mull frons the use and evertial dispesition of the asset, The aslimaled casti fiovws miay be Dassd9n alibmalive exporied Sukames that ara Nrobability weighied, i he ramying
value of the. lnn;r»lmn auyelis nol leeoverable based oni ihese edtimated frlure undiscotnited cash flows, (ha camying valss of the gaselis wider-down ia &3 thenrcument estimaied fair valum and an impairment eharpe s
‘reconkaed

Duke Energy Kantucky 25sesses he kit valus of long-fiver astats sing various melnods, induting reeen somparably Iid-pany sdles, inlemaly. developed discalnied cagh law analytis and anakysis from autsis advisors,
Triggering averis o reassacs cagh fows may include, bt 2re rot miled 1o, <ignificant £2anges In commogty pricés, the condifion; of Bn sssat of management’s inferest in seling fhe Assel,

Properly, Plant and Equipment

Property, plent.and squipment arq suated o tha lower of dapracisted histarivel ot nel of any disaiowances or fair valsa, fFimpeired, Duke Enargy Kentucky caphalizas afl consbugtion-ralaled dire ct iabor and materal cosls, zs
wel asindireat cons ruséon'cos’s such a4 gonerai erginesding, taxea and fina nelng costs, See Alowanca for Funds Used Durng Consiruelion’ and Smerest Capialized” balow for informaifon on <apitalized tirlanciny coais. Coals

of ronewsls arnd be‘lsimem thiat extend e useful e of property, p'lant 1 eqmpmsnl ane aisy copilalized, The cost of repaits, Tepl and majoc T prajects, Wwhith e0 not extend U ceetul e or ngease the
expecled outpul of lhe asset, are expenaed as Micumed, Depredalion Is sted nveas Me esd wseli Me of tha 23set using e Laight-iti method, O iatioh sludiss are condueied pefodically o
updale’'composite 1ates and are spproved by thie KPSC andior the FERE when required.The g average deprectation rmie was 2.5% and 2,4% for the.yeer unded Desembar T3, 2023, and 2022, respecively,.

in genpraf, when Duke Energy Kentucky retires lis regulated property, Hant and equipmenl, the griginel cost pis 1o tost of egtitamant; lest salvage value and amy depreciatioh sPEady rotognized 45 chamed ta accumfaled
depretisgon. Hawever, when it besamas probable a regulated asset will be retired substantally in advarce of its onginal enpectsd Laeful ik or wilf by ahandanad, Ihe costef the Bssel and the vomrasponding accumieted
depeetiation i recoynized o5 4 separate agsel, If the pesef 33 =0 In operabos, the ol amount is faxiifiod as Faclilies lo be retired, gl on the Ed.a;m Sheels, ifthe 2556t ja no lorger operaiing, the net amountis classified in
Regulamy masets on the Balanca Sheets § deemed reciveratia {seo discussion of long-fivad assat fmpaiThents abovel. Tho canying vals of the 85461 o Baasd on histirieal coed ¥ Duka Energy Kentucky is siicwed o recover
thie regaiieng net book valwe and 2 Tefum equatl Io'at jeast tha incremantal bamowing rate, l act, an impatmmend s mmgmnd {0 the axtent the il bosk vilus of the aveat xcends the prasant valua of iullra revesyes discounled
at the Feremental borsawing rate.

Wéner Uuke Enegy Kenlucky selly entire reguiated operating units, the oginal cest and acovmulated depr and ; ; are gamgved fram Proparly, Plant and Equipmen! o lhe Balance Shegls. Any gain or
jovs fs recanded in damings, unless Sthemise reduired by the KPSC endiot tha FERC. Sse Note 7 foe funther information. :

Loases

Dwie Energy, Kentocky d it an 1gement ia 3 Jedse 3} conbracl incepton bésed on whelher the amangement itvohes e wse of a phystﬂily dIstinal ideniifed asset and wheMher Ouka Enargy Kertuaty has:tha g Lo

ohtain substardiaily 2l nfﬂwe ecoramic banakts Iram [hg usa of the aseat thrgheut e percd as wel B the Aght s tirstt Lse 41t asset, As 3 policy elsction, Duke Energy Kentueky Goas net pwaluate arangémanis wih
\nital coatct torms of tess Ivan ane yoar 2s leases.

Operaing leases ate indirdsd in Dperaling lease ROU astots, Net, Other cument ol fibes and Dperating leade Tishillies o4 Lhe Balanca Shesls.

Fn; fesuew and lessor’ nvmngernmta Duko Energy Konticky has glocted a mdicy 10 nat scnr.ratc Ii\!si and nondeage componenls far &l agset clasaes, For lesscr arrangements, lease and con-loase’ coMBGRENS & e anly
combined under ane nrrangemnnland Bcenunlid for Lrdos b foasa i the ara not Me predominant compenent af Lha arangamant and tha {ease comparsent would be cassifisd as
an dparating lease.
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" Rilowance for Funds Used Dusing Conafruction and Interest Capitalized

For ragulatad nparations, the debl and equity costs of financng the corsuuclon of propadty. plam snd ipmert ara d a5 AFUDC ang eapt! asa Ll the cost of | progerty, plant and equlpmens AFLUDG
equily is reparted on tha Siatements of Operaiions Fy hon-cast income iy Giker income and E&pemas nel, AFUDKC dent is reporied as a non-cash ofisel W fnleresi Expense on the Slaternenta of Cparatiors, Aller congtriction
i3 completed. Dike Energy Kentucky i permmited Lo (ecover ihese cosls brough hetr induston in 7ate base and the comespanding wbaequem dapraciaticn or amadization of nose regulaled aesets,

AFUDE equety, a permanent difterence for income Laes. mouces the effecive Lax raks when,capilalized and ingieases ta effectiva a3 rale whan gopreciated dr emartizad, Spe Note' 16 for adational information.

Agset Retireeent Oblinations

ARG are secoghized for legal obligations asscciated wih the retremerd of praperty, piant and 2quipmeniL. When reco/ting an AR, the present value of s projected kasiity is zecognlzed in the gedcd In which i 19 incerred, i @
reasanable estimatg of falr vaiug can be made, The labiity is acereted ever fima; Far vperating glars, the present wallug of tha Babiliky is added to the cost.of (he a.sscaated asset ang, depraciatad over the yemaining ife of the
-assel. Foreedired plents, fha present vifue of tie iabiity & Teconded a5 a regulalory asset unliess defermined not la be probablé of recovery.

Tha present villis of tha initisl abligation and subsanuent updates are Eased on dincounted cash fiows, which Incuda estmates regarding iiming of future eash Rows, selecina of discount rates and oost sscalatlon mtas, among
“other factors. Thess eiimates are subjact ie change. Depreclatcn oxpense is sdjusted pmsn:cwe}y far any ma.nges 0 1k wETyng ameunt of the nssociated aaseLDulae Eneegy Ken'ucxy recenres amaunis 0 lund the costof
tha ARQ fipm maulated fevenuues, As 2 rasult, smounts racovered in mquialed , SECTEHDR B jalipn of thé associalad asset are yetled and daferred as a tegufatary Raset or ragulatony 3!;1},“3:,

Cbligations for dlasure of ash basins arg based upon discountsd cash flows of estimaiad cos for sts-apacfic plana, it Known, o7 probebility welghtivigs of the pintential closure methods i the dosure | ‘plans are. under development
and mullidle closiire eptiens are being consideset and eval uaked on a sie-by-Site basis. S¢8 Mote § for further information,

Ascounts Payable

Duka Erwrgy has s voluntary supply ehaly firance programs gthe “program’) witva glabst financial institution. Cuke Enangy Kenluoky is @ participant in s enterpse-wide program affered I supplicrs, Tho progeam allvws Duke
Energy Kanlur.ky suppfiers..at telr scle dm:letvr& 1o seit thole mc&lm}es from [iuke Eeeigy Kmluoky fo the finandal ingtitulion a! & rate thet levesages Duke Energy Kenlichky's uﬁdlﬁ ratig and, which may result in favorable
terms compared lo the rate avaltzble 1o the supplist on Teir awn tredt Tating. Supplers patticipating in the pregrac; detetming at fheit scle discretion which invoices they Wil sell i the financial inzlilutios. Suppliers’ decisioms on
which invoices are sobl do ot Ifnpact Duke Erergy Kentucky's gaymsnﬁ,erms which arg bused on commercial lerms negolisted betwoes Dujke Enargy Menucry and Lhe suppfir regardiess of program parkeipation, The
commsiciat termy negotialed hebwaen Duke Enargy j(esnme:'ky and It are dlpss af whethar the supplier s!ed.s to participata in tha prograim. Dike Ensrgy Kenfurky Soes nol issue eny guarantess with
resgied o lha program and does nol parich o, between ¢ figrs and i faairdal insfluton. Duke Exergy Kentucky doss nat hase S escnomic bierestin tha suppher's decsion © participata m 8o pragrem
and receives o inferest, fens or other banefR fiim tha Gandial msttution bassd an supplsr pant mﬂm in the progeam.

Suppliers invoices seid  Lhe financlal insdiutan imder ihe program wom immaterial fr tha years ended Detember H, 2023, and 2032, respectively, for Duke Energy Kentucky. All activity related 1o amounts dus o suppliers”
who efecleet to participatg i the prograi ave inchided wiikin Nat cash provided by operating acliviiies on the Statsmants of Cash Flews

Revenin: Resganitian

Duke Enamy Kenhucky recognbzes revamia 45 cuslumers obtain conwol of promisad goods end sendees in an amaunt ihat raflacts éonsi d in exch for hese gocds orservices, ‘Generally, the dalf‘my of

- eledm:lly and natyral gér resublz n Mg trarsfor of conlrd f Cuslgmevs ni thg lime tha ctmmadity ig deliverad g Ihe armount of revenie wu,\gnm \s sgqual to the amount hiked v eack cusiomer, anciudmg eabimated wolumes
delivered when bilings hve not yit occurmd, Sae Note- 13 fof urlher informatian,

Darivatives and Hedging

Denval\vu instrumends may I:e used In Eomrection with com madity prics and iftenzal rai activliss, including swaps, kiwres. forwards and cptions, AR derfvative Instryments, excapt Lhase that quality for the noimal
purd sale am on he Balance Sheets al fair yaive, For acimi'j subacl o regutatory acoounting, gaing and lissas on deivaiive conlmels s roflscled as regulilory aisets of ogulalory Fabiktes
and nat as ather wmprehenslva income or curent periad income. A ‘a tesult, changes in (air valun of Mesa dédvatives have no immedlats samings impart, Seb Nete 10 for hveher tnformation

Loss Conth {ce and Envia X abifitles

:unm;enlhspaa are meorded whien 1 38 bi= a lngy has € d ahd £an te 1) Whon a range of tho probable loss exista: and no; amnun? M.lhm the range i a batler estimato Manany othar ameurt, e
mipimum Bmount In e Fanga s rearidad, Unlass olherwise required by GAAR, fegai fees are axpensed as incured.

Emironmental §abilizs ars recnrded an an undis: d basis when diation ar othas fisbities become wabatse and can be h i . Ervi 3 diiires related ta pas( o iarg thal

45 not genaralz current or futue fevenues ars expenssd, | difures rélated 10 ‘thal ganesate curant or huturp ravenuas are expensed cF captzlized, &g appmpnaie‘ Certain environmanla

expendihines moeiva regulatory acconmting teatméntand are remrde:\ s regolatary assets Sow Motes 2 aad 3 {or fuither nfermalion.
Soverancs and Sposlal Tenmination Benefits

Dike Ensaqy Wazty chey :}ad!dpaiﬁs Ip seyaranee pléng fr Lhe gaﬁbfai empicym poptiatien undarwhich, in gacess Ihn {erger a terminatad ernplﬁyqo mﬁe& prier ic terminatian the g;ealed' lhe amourit af severance henelis

parrmdad A Babilly R i vuerdad ares ah i pinis 0.ty Rk anm p le ingt can be i.Far hunt ,mvefance
[ | o s ongaing phan hengfits, the fair valus of m:mﬁgatmas expewssm at T comniunication date ¥ there are mfum serdca ;equinmenis oraver the requ red fule sevice ;m-od Dum
Energy Kantucky aksd affers special i berehts under r g Spech i hmvzr.'ssm (eehrded gpoly absent & 7t

the coat is recofdad ovar tha rafaining sendce period. Employea o y beneﬁts iz d by s gement based on the (ecty and cirum Sisnces ¢f he banefits huing :;r?greﬁ Bee ?(me i fur

furlhee information.
incoma Tanea

Thdie Coergy ond its subsidiaries flo & consfidaled federsl Income te return and othec slate and forgign jurtsdicional retuins. Duks Energy Keniucky hag a lax-shadng agreement with Duke Enargy, and income texes recarded
represent amourts Duke Energy Kenteky weculd | frzue as & separaie QCumunhm Celered incosne (axes have been provided for temporery différences belween GAAP and fas bases ot assols and [iabiities bacause e
differonces crogte faxabic or tax-goductitle amwnis for fuluiie periogs, | o tam credie igted with regul apertions A dederred and ized aE a gd! of incgme fax, expr ver tho, esli Lizefif
s#ves of the related prapenties.

Aocumulated deforred Ncoms 16 i valoed using the zaacted lex rte exoetied I apply bt taasble incoime in. he petiods it which the Jufarmd tax wsset Oﬂjibilﬂ\‘ It oxpacted ko besetlen or realized. tn the tvent of a change.ir
Lax ratss, deferred 13w aseels Znd Gabilities 2w remensured as of the enaément dme of ta new mle, To e extent that the dnnge in he value of the detamed fax represens an obligatan (o mstnners the imgactof e
reméasuremant i defened k = reguiatory habifity. Hemaining impacts and résrded In intame from continuing ogevations. i Duka Erergy Mémitky's estimabe of tha tix afgsf of reversing tamp i not reflective of
actual gutcemes. is madified to refiect aew developments.ar inlerprelations of the (ax baw, is revised 1o incorporsta new scouuring prindples, or changss in \he gagécted tring or madter of the: naversaé en Oike Energy
Kentueky's results of eparmtions sould be impacted.

Tax-relted inlsrest ang panatios sre wecoided I Inisrast Expenss and Qther knoome and Expansos, nod, in the Slaterronts of Oporstions, Seo Molé 16 for Ather infomaatich,

Dividend Restriclions

Duki Encrgy Kertucky i requied to pay disideids sclely 2it o relainod samings ond o malitain a minkmum of 35% equity iy is eapilal siuclrs..

Maw Aocguniing Standards

Thém wefe ro Accounting Standard Ligdates adopled for 2023 and 2022 thal had a materisd impact on the presematicn or seswits ol eperations; cash fows or Ananeal posilion &f Duke Erergy Kermuciy,
2. REGULATORY MATFERS

REGULATORY. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Duke Erergy Kentucky recorde feguialary assels and #abifities that resull fram \hiz ralemaking procase, See Mom 1 for furher informética,

The following kable regressnis the fegultory assats and kabiites on the Belance Shesls.

Degember 31, £ 1y Recover
{in thousands} 1023 2071 a Raturn Pariad Ends
Regulatory Asssts™
EasLRa0d defenals E 28,451 32.51% X {ci
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Acced pension and other post-etireTiant banafils 25,833 27144 {b?
‘COR reguistory assst 27,102 o X (3
ARCs - coa) ash 16,674 o x 18Kg}
Enst Dend aulage normalization 11,672 5,857 08
Defarred fued and purchased gas costs 5.359 13422 {d}a2024
ESWMDaferral 4905 45t tdienzd
Deferiad Forced Oulaga Purchnsed Pawar 9424 5,650 20le
Adsanced Mulering infrastaichue 2761 3,190 2033
Ueforrad gas integrity costy 1,5‘71 4,549 x 2028
Hedge eosis and ofner deforsis 1,386 1548 o))
Varaticn accrual 412 1,424 w24
LCarbon fanagement msearch grani L 1,067 2926
Stom covtelstamsls 280 818 [
Deferred debk exponse 154 a7z 2036
Demant sidé maiagemenVEn ey Eficisncy costs — 1438 {cid}
Cither 2020 i1 T}
Tetal reguiatary assels. 132,548 105,030

Less: ciirrent poiiion 2018 34488

Tolal naneyrrent wagulsiony assets 3 109,310 % 10543

Regulstory Lisbifities ) .
N ceguitory iabiity related ko incoms laxes ] 108,250 10,866 i}
Accrued pension and oher postrelremsnt banefils - 5245 5838 [
Deformed et and purchised gas cosla 4,764 1817 (a0
Demend side menagamantEnergy sNconcy coss 277 1.995 {eHay
Hedga errls and alher defomals 2 3,328 18
Profit sharing mechanism - 2,007

Conts of remeal - (5:503) )
Other 542 182 [GICH
Tored reguialeny Eaiities 114,131 120,005

Less aurront partion 14,554 25 644

Tl noncument reguiatory Habiktes 5 103597 $ 103,361

{n} Regulatory assais ahd labilitey.ore exciudad from rote base uniege oihorese noted.

{tr} Reccvered primanly ever the average remaining service periods or file expectzncies of amployess cavered bry Ihe benefit pians. See Note 15 for further Information.

{6} Thu expéttad redovary or fefind peritd varies orhas ot boen determined,

{di] Daferrad costz are threugh a rider

{g) Soma amaun‘.s relate 1o vnrealized gaing and kessew on dedvalives recorded as & ne;uiafor.- szt or liability, réspectively. um& the cantracts are ssilled.

{1} Reproannts fands received om suslomers 1o cover fulure remave! of property, plant afd i rebieed or abandonerd sites as properly is /etred. Induded Inrata base and recoverad pver the kfe of nsz}(:ared assels.
{9} Carialh amounis ire tenmvered Lhmugh ralas.

RATE RELATED INFORMATION

Tho KPSC approves | rates for retsl] efecidc ami nazural pas sorvices within the Commarmvealth of Kentucky, The FERC approves rates for elocuic satos lo fasate { = servad under cost-based mlos, as weif ar saies of

transmizsjcn senvica,
‘Puke Energy Aentuchy Efeciric Sase Rate Case

Ga Decegmiber 1, 2022, Huke Energy Kertutky Bied o mis cass wilh Lie KPSC requesiing an anauaiized inorease in elecina bass rates of approximately $75 ailiion, The fequest fer rate zm:feaselz Crven by r.ams Investments
tn strengthen the eiecrlcily géneration and defvery sys!em: olong with adiusted depreciation retes Tor tis East Band aod Woodsdate generaticn siutions i Suppert the anergy transiton, Duke Enengy Kertuciy alsa nequasked
frew programa and tanf updstes, inchiding # voluntary cmnmum\y-bssad Fanswabla substrplion program and two £V ch.argmg programs, The KPSC 153uéd an oidef an Orleder 32, 2023, Mcluding a $40 miltan Inzrease T basa
revernzes, art ROE of 0,75% for elecin base rafes and 9.55% far slectric vders and an equily ralo of §2.445%. New rales wont Inty efect Ortoher 13, 2023. The cormpany's regUest ta atgn the depreclation rmles of Exst Bend
wil 3 2035 relirament dato ¥os denied and e KPSC orderdd dopracialion 3

alos with A 208 ¢ retiiarment date foribe unit. The KPSC dd #pgrove the retpast o elign e foni raled of CTyilh a 2047 reb: et and dedied the voluntary communily-basad ranewatba fshscripbon
program and the twa 'sleatric vahitle charging pregrama, '

Cn Novembar 1, 2423, Dike Energy Kenkgicy Wad for mhearhg reguosling conain matlons be recoensidernd by the MPSC. On Movermber 21, 2023, KPSC grostted in gart and deniad In padl U CCrapany's, (oqust luneheaﬂ‘!u
Oh Febniary 15, 2024, the KPSC issued a bilefing schedife Jor the feledring pracess. Simulancous briefs are dua oo Marth 13, 2024, sinultaneous reply briets arg due on April 1, 2024, and the matter shali stand aubmmd o
Aprl 2, 2024. Gn Decamber 14; 2223, Dukp Energy Kanhehy fled an'appen) with Ure Feankin County Cireui, CouA on eerloin mafters ior which the KPSC denied rof . &P y 23 relales o inc}

eosie if depreciaiion rates kor East Bend ond Waodsdale, On Jaruary B, 2024, answers o te appeai wera filea by the )PSC, Ken.ucl‘jmwmzy General, and the Ki tucky band 4 Cable A tion, Duke Emengy
Kertucky cannat predict the aulcoma of Tis mattor,

Widwest Propan Cayarn

uuks Energy Kenbucky used propane stred int o cavem fameat peak demand during wintr for sevaral denades. Duks Energy. Onio instaited a new nalursl gas pipeing (he Cantral Gondar Projaet} in ta Ohia zeryice temitoTy
ingreane sysem religkiliy and enabie the relirement of dider Inkastuciure, Dnee the Géniral Conidor Project was camplets and placed in service, the propane peaking fastity was A fonger necessary and was retiead. Oa
Catoter 7, 2021, and Novernber 4, 2024, Duks Energy Ghin and Dyke Enacgy Keniueky, rsspectively, filed mgussts with ifig Public Uity Somrissfon of Ohig and the KPEL io eslablich 3 ragu!atnry asset for thelr shane ot
expengss ncurred related b the miimmant of the prapane siorage cavem and associsled propane-sir Taciilios. On Jaauery 31, 2022, the KPSC Jssueid an orler donying Duke Enermy Kenhirky's raquest As a rasuit of the KFSEC
arder, ke Encrgy Kennieky fecorded 7 36. 7 milfioh charge fo Imrmrment af assets and olhor charges on Mhuke Encryy Kemycky's werd of O and Camp Tnogme in 2022,

3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

GENERAL IWFURANCE

Duke Energy K ¥ has ind andfor rein gn either directly, or ihvough indemyificalion frem Duake Energy's captive imsurance company, Bisan Insurance Comp.my Limited, ahd iis efffistes, oonsistont with
i i iy simifar sl e yith wmarim wopetian, Dake Energy Keiuoky's eoverage indudes {f cominercial general liakdity coverage Tor finbifites arsing @ tisd partivy for Bodily injary and
Erapaty {E) wweiyers’ iy ta fatiily ge; #nd (v} property coverage for, all real and perganay property damage, Raal and perserl property daiage covinage excludes wlaztric arisrission
ek d-wnbaeon fine 3 but Inchidss damages adsing from baer and mach ks, tiood gamage and salia expense, but sl sutiige Os‘iéptmmsﬂl poweT omaragmM caverage is subject Io certmin

mxcluslons, tarng and conditions cr}m-r*vzf ' maﬂes with sumaz tyﬁs:s of e, Duke Energy ) if-insirsy s electnc ransmi i iines against inss due 1
starm aamaqs andd olhet nalaral disasiars, . -

Tha cost of Duke Enprgy Kerdlsky's caverags can Sustiale year o yearneffocting chaims hstory 4nd conditions of iha insurania and minsbrarice markets:

I tha evant of a [oss, tefms 4N amaunty of inswrenes and reingira mighl ol bé aé fo eover coims and ofher expanaes mourmed . Uninsured losses and offisr axpanass, 1o the extos | ol meoveres by oder
BOURCEE, muld have & malarial slect an Duka Eaenry Kmmys resuls of oparatidag, nash flowes ry fimancial position, Duka Enemy Kantucky is responsible © lhe exant loszes may be excluded of exceed Kecits of the eoverage
evaifaole,

ENVIROKMENTAL

Duka Energy Kenlicky is subject to féderef, slate and local roquiations regarding alr and waier quelity, hazardous and sohd waste GEW$31 voxl ash and oher erwimnments mafacs, These regulations can bo changed Trom tima
0 ime, impasing few dlligations on Duke Energy Kenkucky.

Remediation Activitkes

in additian 1o tha AROs diseussed it Nets 8, Qukie Enengy Kenhicky is responsbhe for anv taf resm & tion at var’aus sifea. These Inélude cortain pitpeilics that ans porlef onguing operations and siles Formerly swned or
used by Duka Energy Kanusiy, "I‘nasa thes 228 In varioys slages of k diation and maninriag, M d in eomjunation with relevant faderal, suits and laesl anencias, remedation actvities vary based Lpen sim

6o and kealion, and sharing of tesponsitilty, It ratnediation actvibes invabe jorl and S2veral iabilty provislons, stricl kabilty, of st recovary or contdtution aclions, Quks Energy
Nemucky could frotentiatly be held fedponsitin for envirenments! impavia causae by odhet potsitially respandibho porties, end Amy atso anel fram insurance policies o conlraciual pnaemnmea had eover some o all céeanup
cels, Liabiibes o6 rncarded wihan lossun became pmhable and pre rexsonably estimable, The bolal ensly that may ha incurid zaanot ‘ba eslmated hacauso \ha exignt af grv | Impact, alforation amang
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responiihle parties, ( Al andlor regulalony decisions have not ye! Deen détemined, Additiénal cosis assaciated will Teme dialion activiies are Rl 1o b incusted in the fture and could be signiicant. Costs
a5e typleaty’ nged ag Operafion, mal and ather on the Sta%ments of Operations unless mgulatary sacosery of the tosls i3 dpamad probatia.
Duke Energy Kerfucky nas accrued 618 Ihousand of probablo and i conts refatedt o #3 vorigus anviconmental sdes in Glhoe willin Oher Noncusreed Listiities on the Balonce Sheets s of December 31,

2023, and 2022, Addtion! Issas In exsnss of reconied reserves am expecied o be inmaderial for the stages of investigedon, remadiaton and menibwing ke the eivironmenia! siles that have beer svaluated. The maimum -
amountof (he rangs for a7t stages of DuKs Encigy Kcn!‘,)rxy s envirormantal sites cort e dutermined at this Time.

LITIGATION

Duka Energy Kenluiky is bvohei In othar iegal, 12k and regulatyry procsedings arising in the sroinary course af nisiness, somea ofwich Invelva signficant amcunts, Duke Enemy Keniucky boflevas the final dlspasition of thask
‘procsedings wifl ot have 4 malenal efecd en ils rasuls of eperabiona, cash faws of financial pasttion, Duke Enargy K&n‘ucky axpensés jegal cosls related to the defersa of bogs contingencies ar nourred,

OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENGIES

Generd
AS pan of 5 narmal husinﬁs, Guke Energy Kentucky is pany 10 varaus financial ¢ ard olkey 2l LOMMILDEnS % éxternd guarantees of credt and olher.assistance to vanous thind
nargag. Thess g mvehvr afer pe \anoes mnd areci isk, which 2 pat indided om 1he Balance Sheat, Tho passibifty of Duka Ensrgy Kenuicky having to haaor its contingencias i lamsty deperdsnt upan

futuré operatonis of vaitous third pariies o he occumence of cerain future gvenis,
Purchose Obligations
Pipoflng 4nd Sterage Capacity Contracts

Duke Energy Kamucky Briers inio pipaline and siarage capatily contradls (hat cemint Arturs cash fows o scqulre setvives rsaded inits buslness. Cosls arsing fom capacily commifiments are recovérerd vin the ‘Bas Cost
Adjusumeni Claoas in Kentucky, The time period Tt ficed payments under lhesa p peine and sinrape FEpacily conlracts i up t 20 yeats.

Cenain slc:age and p.ualme eapacity eoatracts requim the: paymind of demand charges that em based on mles approved by the FERC in orer to maatain rights fo atcess the natuwsl gss siorage or pipeiing capecity on & fm
basig during the coriract tami, Tha demand charges thal are mu.irred in gach pariad ara cecogrized In (he Slatements of Gpe!auuﬂa as parl of naturaf ; 28 purchausmd are rcluded in Cost of netural gas.

The kllraring tablé presents fuarve urcondTional purchase obfigaiions under thase contees.

{in (noysands} December 41, 2023

2024 5 22,287
2028 15,799
2028 13,327
piiid 12,932
2028 13332
Theraatter 182,112
Tatal $ -258,338
4, LEASES

Ax part of #ts pparalions, Duke Erergy Kantucky leases space on communication Iowers, metary and office space Lnder various ferms and expm?inn dafes. Cerlain Duke Endigy Kerucky Joase egeements inciuds ofifions for
renewal and party termiriation, The inien fa renew a leane varies deperding on tha léase type and asset. Renews ontions that aro reasonably certain 1o be axemised are inciudad in tha la3sE moasurements, Thie desision 16
lerminate & leasa earty Is dep 1t 1T wBrious facinm. Mo ion eptians have Beet includad in any of e loage measumm s,

Thuke Energy Kenlucky has cedoin lease agreemicnls; which indude varale leasc fryments ihal are besad on the usage of an asset. These variable feass pryments are nat inclided in The measurement of the ROU awvels or
dparating lease liabditas cn the Balance Shests.

Ther Rliawing Ltda présanits the soMponenta of lease expenss and am incuded in Operators, maintenancs and Sther on (he Siatements of Opmzations:

Years Ended Dacambar 33,
{in thousanda} 2023 2022
Dperating laase sxgense H 1,879 § 4,76R
Shari-term fease expense — 53
Vatiabie 1sa3e experns 42 45
Tots] lease expensa H 1,922 5 1,855

Tha following iable pire sents oparaling lease maturilles and a feconcitialian of te undiscounted cash ows Lo operaling lease fiabilles.

{in ousands) Decamber 31, 2022
pirey 2 696
2028 T
2026 123
207 a7
205 52
Thereafter 8,943
Towal operating leasa payments 10,560
i sy presen vajue discounl (2,703)
Tolp operaling leasa Fatilles ™ 3 7,855
{8} Cerlain oparating lzase payments indlude renewal opllone Wat are regsonably certain fo ba sxercsed.
“The fcllowing tablag contain addiliana infaayiation related to lamges.

Detamber 31;

{in thousands} Clasafication . 2023 2022
Assels .
‘Oporating Opdraling weeg ROU assuls, nel 3 7430 § 8018
T ad lease agsals % 7,420 § _BMe

Labifies
‘Clrrert

Operatng Cther cument liabifties H 964 § 364
Moneunsnt .

Opesaling Operoting lease kabdilies. 7491 8,034,
Tetd feasn fabilldes 5 T.A55 § 8,378

Yoars endsd December 31,

{in theusands} ‘2023 022
Coeh pald for amcunis Included Inthe meagurement of kase Nobdl; !ios""

[)pemﬂng cash (laws from operating lsases 3 BaT S [F::]

{81 Mo amo.nis were cissfiod A5 ineesting cash fows fmm oparating feases for e yeam ended Dptember 31, 2023, e 2022,
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Dacember 31,
2023 nNa
Weighle d-average remaining bease term fygars]
Opnmﬁng fanses 12 15
Welghted-average discount reta
Opezatiriy leases 4% 4.4%

{3) The discount rateis calculated ysing ihe yatg kmplicit irf 2 lease 1} Is readily detarminable, Generally, the rals used by e fesor js ndt provided 10 Duke Ensrgy Kantucky and inthese cases he Incrementa bomgwsing sate i§
usedt, Duka Energy Kentucky will typicaly use N Tully collaterpiized Ingrermental borrawing miti a3 ol the commencoient dats 10 caliutats amd m:urd Ihe {eaze. The incramental Eorrawing rale is influenced by the
ieskas’s credi rabfy dnd loese femmand as sueh may 0for for ndividias! leaves, embeddad leases of pertcliny of feased suals.

5. DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES
SUMMARY OF DEBT AND RELATED TERMS

The Edlowing) Table summanzas outsianding datl

Decomber 31,
{in thousands} Welghted Average
Irderest Rata Year Bug 2023 2021

Unaecured debt A01% 0752057 1 4 605 GO0 8 680,000
Tax-exewpl bonds™ 2175% 2027 76,720 78,720
Money pott barrowings® e 526% 2028 157,003 106,232
Unamonized debl discount and premium. net {150 161}
Unamartized dob lasyance cos(s ] 2402}
Totsl debi -4,48% L4 787,465 3 BG0,389
Bharterm maney poud horowings 132,503) 84,2323
Lumenl malurfties of iong-lem debt . {74,580}
Toual longelerm debt 3 704,564 3 .77

(a}Inclvdes $27 milion that s secured by a bilateral Jetter of cred aqmemeﬂl atDecember 31, 2073, and 2022,

{in} Finating-rate deln, A1 Decemher 21, 2022, the weighlod average interadt rate wad 2725 and 4.3 1% far tax-snampt taowds arm manay poo) horrowings, respectival

{5) ncludes $25 mifan dassified ms Lang-Term Debt Payatie 1w Afliated Companies on the Halanco Sheols at Decermher 34, 2023, and 2024,
WATURITIES ANO CALL OPTIONS
The foliwing Lahle shows the annvet maturities of lang-lerm detil for the nex five yeam =0 tnereafler, Amaunts presamted exclude shor-tom figkes payabie,
{in Mautands} December 3%, 2023
2024 3 —
2Ws 95,000
2028 85000
2027 78,120
2028 63,000
Thurgafler 425,000
Totes fongelem debl, incloding cument matitos s 706,720

Dk finergy Kenhacky has the abilty under rerivin dekt facfites 1 clf and repay thee olfigation prios W s schadulod matusity, T hereiars, S1e ackial timing of futwre cach repnyments could ba matarially dferant fhan ss.
‘presentsd #nave.

SHORT-TEAM OBLIGATIONS CLAS SIFIED AS LONG-TERM DEET

Cariaif tax-exampt bonds thatinay b put 4o Duke Ecrgy Kaplcky at tha apiion of \he hedder and maney 2001 bomuwangs, which are-shotterm otBgalons by naluse. are dassitad o5 fang-tarm s b Duke Energy Keriucky's
intent g abifly To uiilize such boruwings Bs long-lerm financing. As Dyia Erergy’s Master Grecit Fam}%:y and Duke Energy Knntuﬂ(y‘tmr bilatera! latler of @adit agreemunls have non-cancelabie Terms LY excass of one year

an ol the balance sheet dite, NUE Enery Kentuaky has the ability e refintncs hese shanderm 15 0N A kong-teim basis. Seé “Availabla Credit Faclilen” batow for sdditionsl infonmabien.
At Docember 32,3823, and 2022, 527 milllen of tax-sxempd bonds and $25 wiflion of money pol 98 wers clagsiind as Long-Tesm Dt and Long-Tanm Deiil Fayabls & Allliated Comparies, tespstivoly, o he Balanca
Shests, '

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT DERT |SSUANCES

1n June 2022; Duke Energy Kentucky ciosed of a $30 migian S-year fxpd-lo-maturity boexempd band with a.3,7% ctupon mutnting In August 2027, The THUCasds werg used i provlde furds 1a refund ihe prio: bonds previcusly
issued &y haiscaser, which war loaned ta refinanca cortain s and watet polkiion congol fatdites and s6ld waska diggosal faciflses.

AVAILABLE QREDMT FAGIITIES
-Masler Cradit Facility

1n March 2023, Duke Enangy amondet N axlsting Mastar Cregit Faciily of §8 bitlion ' adend the tormunatian date o March 2020, Duks E’.nergy Kentizeky has boarowing capacily under the Magter Cradil Facllyupto a specified
sublimit, Duke Enurgy has the anitsleral ahiliy af any time to incroase gr docrense Duke Enengy Kenluclors borowing sublimil, subjoct 'y subfmil. The emount e b Dk Eneriry Kentutky under tha Master
Cregiit Fagility may Do seduced due lo b::ckslap Issvances of commercizl paparn, Al Cecember 31, 202X, Duks Enemy Kenlugky had a bnrmmg sublimst of $225 mifian and mvaliabla capacity of § 107 miitan under Duxe Enormy’s
Masler Cradi Faciity.

Dake Encmy Keaiucky and tuke Energy Indiana, LLC a subgidlary o Dyke Er,ergy, cdfenimar have a 3158 milion bilaleral {etlar of credd agreement with a termination dats of Febuary 2028, Duke-Enargy Kentucky may
fequest tha fasuance of lallers of sreditup to $27 milion on IS benalt {0 Suppert vantus serés of 12x-examnt honds. This credi fagkily may nol be usad for 2y pUmpesa other than to fupport the Yan-exempt honds:

TBITI Loan Fn:illly
in Oetoler 2021, DUk Energy Xertnexy enderéd imo 8 twik-yoar e Loon fasility wilh coPumitmarnts olaing $50 million. The hem loan frcilily was tully deswn 2t iho Gine of chsing. I Qetober 2025, Duke Erergy Kentucky's §20

Prition twio-ymar term kaon facility was increased to %75 million andits manuity was extanded to Aol 2024, The 525 milan in l!}c.femunmfbomlms undsr the facilty wera fully 2w ot the Gma of nhushg ard vziag 10 pay down
short-tasm debt end for gehoral corporate purpese. fn Decembper 2023, Duke Energy Kenturky rapaid the 575 miliicn 'outstanding on the tern kar and Lenrinated the fcifly.

OTHER DEBT MATTERS

Money Poal

Divka Eneray KenRucky recelves suppor for is sharfterm bonowing needs fraugh pasticipation Wik Duke Energy and cedain of fls subsiiafies i maney pod ariang Under ihs amang , ise campaniss Wi
shant-Emm unds may provide shor-ferm any t afiisles pnru:manm unﬂev $his arargement The moray pool Is stnuctuned such that Duke Enemgy Keriucky separsiely manages s cash necds’ “and wumnq :awai
requiremenls. Amondi '-gip thare isno net ol ad pay belwesn money pod partcipanis. Duke Energy may loam funds to #= perGopating subsidiaries. bul may ot berrove funds threugh fhe money
pash.

Konay pool receivable batances ars mflscted within Notes bie from affi ated eomipanios on he Balanoo-Shests, Maney poo paytbis baances are roflerted within eiter Notes ayabie 1o aifiatsd companies ar Long-

Term Dot Payable (o Affllaled Companies on the Balance Shests.

Restictive Bebt Covenants
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Duke Eremy Kentuoky's debt and credit agreemenis contain variows finzndiat gna olher covenaniy, Dule  Encigy's Master Credi F-c:ﬂv mntains a cwenant rFequifing he debi-io-teia) cagitalization ratio not to exceed 95 for
-mach borrmwey, Faliun: 12 meet thass cavenanls beyood spplicatle graca perlods cotld tesult in ar.ns!a!alad due datey Brd‘or 5. As of T L] 31 :!ﬂ?a ane Enargy Kentucky was la compiiance
wilh alf covenants refated o ita debt agraemmenis, in sadilion, some treti agrecments may allow for h of p i nr iy s due 1 Ranpay , ar ion &f glhet =i

idebladncss of Ihe borrowns o1 some of il subsltieres. Noro of Ihe débl o cred agreemanis zontain material aedverae channa dansen,

G, ASSET RETIREMENT OELIGATIONS

Duke Enengy Kemucky reenrds an ARD whert i has a legal ohiigation 10 incur fel ongts ! wilh the retl o1 8 lotwg-ved Btset and e chijgation car be by esti Cartain assets have zn
Indeterminata kife, and lhes tho fair value of e relremend cblipalon is mol ressonatly oslUmatin, A iaahmy for-thasa ARQI Wil he recamsd when A fair valisa s daterminatie.

Duke Energy Kentutky's elacyic and neural gas juns acoiue cuals of femavat for pronerty U d6es gt ave an {gted fegal cigation Based on reg y oiders fmm e KPSE.
Thess costs oliamma! e recorded as a mlEa\cry FabiBly I accendance wilh regultony acceunting lrgaiment. See Noie 2 for the u’umaleu 0%t of reoual for assets without an associated tegad ;ellremerquﬁgwm ‘whigh
e inclyded in Rewhlﬂrv(mﬂm on the Balano? Sheel® az of Deeamber 31, 2023, and 2072,

Tuke Eriergy Kentueky |s subject o state-and federal requiations covaning the ciature of ooal s3h impcundments; Intiuring the. E24 Gazi Combustion Resituals (COR) Rulz, ARG recorded oh 150 Baianca Sheats indue the
Tegu Shgaty i for the: Wisposal of CCR, which is based upon estimated dosura c:s\siwﬂmpuaed ash impoundmens. The amaunt recorded represeats e dscounted cash Tows for as\lrnateﬂ elesure costs based upon specific
dlosurs Blizns, Achusk easts o ba incurred witl ha dependent sipon fackors that vary From sité To sile; The most significer taclors a7e the meihod and tre fraine of closure al ihe iﬁdeua.! sites. Clgsune methods vonisiéerad
inclids rmoving the waler fram ash basins, lidating materal an nate ¢ and capping (e ash with a syrbelic baier, ing ehd red e ashtg a baed landfii or resyding [ha ash for concrete b same ather
penefisial yse, The ultimate method and timetable for ciosure Wil bein compliance with slendards sat by fedemd and slate reguiations and asher agreementa. Tha ARG amount wilf be adjusied aa pogilionl information & gained
hradigh the edostiie and post-dosre process. mchiding acceptance ard approval of tormpliance approaches, whidh may shange nmmgement assumpticns, and may resylt in @ material change io the balance, Asset retrément
sl asseeated wih coal ash ARDs at the Ensl Beexd Siafion arp included within Fropatly, Plant acd Equipmun! an ha Balance Sheets.

In addilion iz the coal ash ARUs, (uke Energy Konw iy alse has tegal ob relalid Lo ha of gas mains and ashostds remsdiation.

The following lakie presents ihe changas in ihe Esbity assoclaied with AROS.

Years Endsd December 31,
{in thousands) 2028 Zoz2
Hatance A beginning of pored E § 107,824 5 93.262
Acrrebon axpenset ik 3.590
Ugbiities soiied® {15099} (134205
Uinbifte Incurred n The cumzat year 444z —
Revision {a estimaios of cash Jows™ {10,558} Py
Balance at ond of periad $ LLEE 5 07,521

{a) Aceralion experss. relates o Duka Exery Nentusky's Maoutalod operations 8nd has Deon deferfed in accordsnte wih redilatory asminfing ledtmand for the y9ixs erwled Decamber 34, 2029, end 2022,
{b} Lianflitkes satlled ralate 2 26h basin snd lancfll closure cosis &t 1A Exst Berd Statkon,
(£} Revislong io astimales of cash flows represar; the discouniad cash flows for estmated dasure sosls. The smeunts zalate to changes in routine main(erance cost edfimates for ash impoundments.

7. PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Trw: foliewing tehie’ summarizes praperty, pland and equipmpl.

“Aywrage Remaliing Useful Lifa Decembgnr 31,
{in tiousandst {Yearn) FEE) 02
Land % 52,430 s 51,300
Fiant
Efectiic. ion; diss and trangmiiss); 39 2,204,173 2,148,022
Nalured gas wpasmission and disliaufion 58 E79,15¢ 797,822
Omer bulldings and improverments 28 22,738 14 7B
Equipment 13 54,182 2811
Constudig in ffossss a8,a06 98,407
Dther 14 82,508 77.810
Totat propery, phant and equigment. 3,393,659 3,231,542
Joted dep and i 14,138,534} {1.088,422)
Nt progetly, plant 5 bapmisnia) [] 2255994 T 2, 62422

{a) Tha debi component of AFUDC fnialed 34,1 million and $1,7 million a1 December a1, 2023, and 2022, respectively,

8. OTHER WHCOME AND EXFENSES, NET

The companents of (her koome and Exp _nel an Tha | " of Oparatinns ara as folaws.

Years Ended December 3,
“{in thounands) 2023 522
Incomel(Expenag):
Interestincon ¥ 6,220 5 2872
AFUDG equily 1,037 %243
Cihar 2524 {265}
Oiher Jncome and Expanses, nat 5 8,804 3 A,858

& RELATED PARTY TRAHSACTIONS

Tuke Enemy Kentucky engagas in relatelt party Uanzactions, which ars generally parfc;mm at msi anain am:m'eam,ﬂ with KP5C and FERC ragulations. Reler o e alanca Shonts for balances Bus lo'dr from selated padies,

Materisl amcunds related o transacions wih sefoied parties dchuded ia ha 3 of O aap in the fobawing Lable,

Years Ended Décamber 31,
{in thousands} 2023 022
Carporale novemance and shaved service expansesty [ 75,548 5 85,315,

{a} Cuke Erergy Kentucky s cherged s umuanannah snare ol chsls, primarly zelaied to human rascurces, smptyes benefis, infarnatinn technolagy, legal and adcounting fees, as well a5 ather-Third-party mets, frem &
cunsoiidated amiiat of Duke Energy. These amounts aie mmmg [y Dncra!im maintenarce and ather within Dperaticg Exaarsuson ther Statements of Operatinms.

in addion ta Bre emounts gresented abeve, Duke Energy Kentucky has othdr sRiiata tansackons; nduding certain indemnification covéragas thawgh Duke Enérgy’s whally Bwned captive Insussnes subsidary, rental of sfiice
spacs, pariicipaiion In a money pool all‘ll‘g!mel!’
with Dute Energy and carlai of its sib . Pher op t &nS and ity

POr share of tetsln charged oapertes. Sea Note &% ooty iommelion regerding the money good.

Lenalr, rada recsivaulys frave been sold iy Cuke Energy Mertucky.ta CRC, an unt d entity formiad by a subsldiary of Guka Enargy, Tha procepds nibtained fom Ihe sales of receivables are la-gely cash but doTnclude
a subomdinated nole from ARG for & portion of the purchase price, Seu Nota 12 tor further infermaton related 1o he salea of thass recaivables.

imercompany Incame Taxss

‘Duké Ersimy arid iis subsidiriss file a eonspfidated fedoral inenme (@x mtum and oiker staie and jurisdieional retums. Duke Energy Kentucky hias a tax sharng agraement with Duke Energy £ the aligeabon of cansafidatan ax
Babitiss and benehia, trefe takis rrtorted rprasent amotents Duke Enary Kentucky wawd incur as 2 sepsratu C-Corporation. Die Energy Kantucky had an Interoorppany tax ecokabia balance of 525 milon ard $13
rilfort 8t Déetember 37, 2023, and 2022, respeciively. These amounts are neluded in Citret currant 4$9eta on e Ba]am:e Sheels.
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10, DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING

COMMANITY PRICE RISK

Duke Energy Kentucky has fimjlet axposdre fo harket prige. changee of fued and amissfn Bowance costs mc‘.mau for it retall rustomars duo by INe use of cast togking and recavery mecharisms. Duke Energy Hestucky daes
have exposurs to the kmpact of markel fuchuations in the prices of glecircily, Kel and enmizsh with s g ion dutgndt net ubifized 1c %8s (13l aparatons ar eommzled lad offsysiem, whotesale
psrwer sabes]. Duke Energy Kentucky s autstaniting sammcdity dervatives, FTHs, had & netional volume of 3. 518 gigawatt-hours andl 1.820 gegowait-fiours 2t Dpamber 31, 2023, ard 2022, respectivaly.

See Ngla 11 fof addtional miofmation on the fai sulue of commedity derfvatives.
JNTEREST RATE RISK

Duko Energy Kantucky % expesed o changss in interest rufes 25 3 restitof s jssuance ot Ancha:ed issuznca of variatie-rato and fixed-mmte debl. intarest ratp sk is managed hy fimiting variablesals axpisure tn 3 percentage
of total debst and try motiftoring cinges in interest ks, To manmgs risk associaled with changes in intorast tates, Duka Encrgy Kentuchy may snter inth financial contracts lnciudmg interest mile swaps and ULS. TWeasury kek
ma-real& ‘Tha otiorsal arnount of ftersst rete swaps oulstanding was $26. 7 mifion 21 Dwembar 51,2073, am; 24472, Financiaf contracts erigiad Inm by Cuka Frierqy Kentisciy are rot designales a4 3 hadga bagause they
ara ateounted tar under regulatory atgounting. Wah tegul sating, the fmark { gaders of lossas ats defened as ragllatiny Fabites or assals, fespectvely, Requlalsry assels and ragldslary liabiites are amarized
“consialent wilh the tealment of ralated tosts in the rslemnkmg pmcau The ascrual of Miarest on Swaps 1S Tanarded as [nlerest Expense o1 the Sial taments of Operations.

See Note 41 for BdSHal infammatidn e the faic valus of inMerest rate dervatives,

CREDIT RI3K

Duke Enesgy Kenucky analyzes b Snansiel condiion of countemarlies prist to enjefing ino. agreemams and eslablishes credi Smils and monliors the appropristeness of thidsa Kmits on 80 engeing basis. Credi fimits and
cointeral cequiremients, for relal] sleciric cysipmes are eslablished by tha KPSC, o :

Die Enofgy Kadutky's industy fas historicatly operaled under negoliatad tredit fines for physieal defivery conlracis. Duks Energy Kentucky may use master caliataral a) greamenly io miligate caramn cradif exposures, Thi
coltalarsl agréements tequine cenain oUnterparties f post Cash of iettem of credit far the ‘amauht of BRSNS i ucass ' of s eatablished timshal. The (hrashold ameint reiesents an unsecirsd cradi berlt detaimired in
adwardente with e corporate eiadit oy, Coflateral agroements elso provide ihef e inability to post. is iznt causk o i and fquidaie alt positions.

Duke Enalgv Kerucky s ol)iams cas.h o hmar: of credls !mn customers to provide eredit support aside of cofateral agreements. whers spprapriate, basst on ifa finantiat analyais of the ‘customar and the reguiatory or
chuat {wms and tc each

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS'

Faif velin it the exahangs price 16 sell an 2550t or iansfor 3 Hablity in zn orderly transaction betwasin markef padiclpants st tha measurament dats, The fairvalud definition focuses on 2n ext prca versus tha scqiisiton cost
Fair valuz messurements be market 0ald or aswumpliang marnke! parbeipants wuuld usa in pricing the esset or Bability, inchuding assumplions ahowt sk wril ine risks. mhemm inthe inguts 1o tha valuation technigue, These
inputs may ba raadiy obgaevatie, copmaborsisd by market dala or generally unobsénvatde. Valuatitn techniques imize the usa of abservabic inputs 2nd minfwios tse of unohaervable inputs. Amidmarket pricing sonvention
(e ridpoint price batwoen Bid and ask picas) 1§ perniilad for use a3 pr‘acﬂcaﬁ expediant, Fair value measurem ents are classified in three lovils tased on the fair value hierarchy as delined Dy GAAP,

Fair valtio secounting guidante permits enfites 10 slett Iy measure cenaln Mandal instruments that acs not required %o e aceounled for 3 6k valle, such ag oquity method vestments o the company's own debl, af fair value.
Duka Engrgy Kenhucky has ok slacted ta rerord any of these e ms at feif value.

Commodity derdvafives

1f torwalif prica Gurves are nol chservable for the fuli ferm of the cantrael and the unosemvabia peelmf Tract imare than an nsigrificant inpact on e valuat o0, the, commodty derivalive (s Biassified =8 Lavei 3. The valuation
séchrigue and unobservabie input for 2n FTR is regiomal iransmicsion arganization aticlion pricing and FTR price - pOr megawati-hsur, respeclively,

Interest rate derivailves

Al ovgr-the-countér intefest zale coniract derivalives an vakied usiny financial medel that utifize ols Brvahia inpuils for, slmﬂar nsbu men ts and ate classHled as Level 2. Irpuis inetude forwatd interast rafl agives, nolaaal
#mioums; inledoat Rales and eredit quatity oftve Colatarpariss:

IJUANTI'I'ATI’VE DISCLOSURES

'ihe fodloadng taliias provide recowded balances for assely and ¥abitins measdred at fair yalue ona recuing basis an the Balance Sheets. Dorivativa amsunta in the lable below extlude cash collatersl.

Decamber 31, 2623

Tuial Fair
{in thousands) Value Laval 7 Lavel 3
Clerative: asagts 5 1,510 ) — s 1510
Derhvafive labidties™ (1,749) {1,743} -
Nel azsets (Rabiitias’ [3 239) ) {1,749} ] 1510
December 31, 2022
Tatad Fair
{in thousands} Value Léwel 2 Lovefa
‘Denvalve assels™ $ 4,560 5 —_ 4 4,560
Diervative Tabiiias ! (1,098} {1,966} —
tlel (inbRESE) asscls 3 2504 3 i1,996} % 4,580

{2} Induded i Diher within Giiment Assets and Olher within Olher Hunsurfen!]-\ssols ©n the Beddnce Shaals. The amounls dassifiad a5 Lewel 3 relats lo FTRs:
{b) Ingiuded in Otner wirn Current Llabitllos and Oiner within Gther Noncunent Liab#ites on the Balance Sheeis, The amaums dasalfied as Level 2 miate b intorest rne swaps,

“The fodiawing latée provides 3 vecenciiation of beginaing and ending balancés of asaely and Sabittles measured aifair value o a recuring biasis where ihe determindtion of fair valus Indudss significant unabsenshis inputs
(Level 31

Dervalives {nat}
Yaars Ended Dacamber 31,

{in thousands)

2023 7022
Eglanza al baginning of parod $ 4,560 5 1,636
f 3 sales, i 5 v setioment

Piirchasas 4,847 38685
Setllemanis {3.780} 3,B00%
Total gaing Incjuted an the Salance Sheels ag regulawry nasels o liablites {4113 e
Batance al'end of periad % 1510 8 4,560

OTHER FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

The fait velue o Tongterms debt, nefiding et madurlied, 'S summanizid by e following Wablo. Judgment is required in m!arpiaﬁmg maxke«:z!etaw devafop tha astimates of fsrwaha Acconfingly, the erlimates delenmined ame

ot necaszarly indicative of the amroums Duke Energy Kentucky could have séfled in curent markets. Tha fair value of long-tenm debtis uging Lavel 2
Begember 3%, 2023 Detembor 31, 2022
{in thousands) Baok volua Faly valie Book waliie Falr value

Long=Tohn debt. inchuting currént maturtios $ 704,562 5 63530 F 779,187 ¥ 683325
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A1 December 3, 2023, srid 2022, e fai vafue of cash and cash equimnté, acemunis And rotes Rcedle. and accaunts and noles pavatle e not materialy different from Weir camying arepucls becatsd of e’ shorttem
natwe of these nsraments andlor becaus o the Rated rales approximate markst rales.

12.VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

A vadabls interdst entity {VIE} s an enfity hat is evalusted far mnsmidxmnuﬁing mare than 2 simple analsis of vorting soniral. T he aralysis fo deterriine whethsr an eAlity i5'a VIE cansidess confracts with-an onlity, eredil
"suppor for an ey, ther ad&s;uaey of the equity investment of an grbity and the refatinnship of wilng poewer to the amount of aquity invested in an enfiy. This analysis e perfommed either upon ine création of a legat'endly ar upon
lhe ergyirence of an euer rgwiing reavaluaton. such 223 significant change in zr enlity's 23ssts or esliviies. A qualitatve saelysis of contral cetermines the party thal consclidates a VIE. Thig astossment i basad on [f whal
party has Iha powet tg dinect {ba activites of o VIE hat most sigmf’mnﬂy in’-pasq its esanorie performance and (T} whal pay has rights 1o tecelve kenafils of Is phiigatad b absortyibasos that rovid poisntially be sigrificant 1o,

‘the VIE, The analysis of the pary that i aviE is a o

Clnergly Ricolvables Company

CRC is 4 banknpicy romake, special purpoe entity that 1% an 2filtate of Duke Energy Kentusky, As discussed below, Teke Enargy Xenhigiy dnes. et consolidate CRG 33 i 15 nat the. piimary hencfidary, Cr a mm!vmg bass,
CRE buys congin accauns reccivable arising from \he sale of eleciricty, mawre! gas and related services flom Duke Enerny Karlucky, CRC barrgws amourts tnder & crei fagikly o buy.ihe receivebles fram wks Energy
Kenfucky. Borrowing availzbilly from the credit fachity is limiled ta tha amount of qualified tecaivables 564 o CRC which generally sxchido receivabies past due mora than s predetemningd humber of days and ressnvas for
expeciad pest gute Dalances. The Sote seurol of hinds to salisly ihe related debs ohligation is cash collectionn from tha seceivables. Amounts hotrawed undet ihe credit faclity are reflected on the Bakince Shests as Long-Tarm
Dbt

‘THe pracesds Duke Enargy Kentutky recelves from tha sele of reesivablas to CRE arm approximataly T5% cash and 25% nthe fomefa subordnaled nele from CRC. Ths subardinated rote is e miamed mtemm i the
cecervablcs sold, Dukd Enangy Kenlicky had receivables of 333.8 riflion @il $53.3 midlan ffom CRC at Deasmber 31, 2023, and 2072; saspectivaly, Thasn balaneas am included in Festaklies from affi on the
Bulanci Sheets and refect Duke Enengy Kantucky's relained Iitrest in retsvables sold o GRC,

CRCIs contdared o' VIE because {J} eauily capitai J ficlent {0 sUppoi s jons; §) power (o diest b iigs that most significantly Impagt the e ot of fhve ety is a0l held by the equity
holder and {iil} deficmmes in nei worlh of CIRC are !wdeﬂ by Duke Erergy. The mast sgnificart aclivifes Ihat fmpact the scoromic Krechrmange = CRCare derisiors. .rnade tamanage definguent ceceivablas, Duke Ereigy is
ha primany b y and of 3 i CRC'as # makas thesa decsionas, (uke Energy Kenucky dods not consolidate CRE.

The suborinoted nela Held Dy Duks Eitergy Kontlicky H stted st e vahas, Canrying valuss of Talalned imerests are detenmined by alacating catrying value of i tecelvabiios betwaen assets sohd and interosts refained based
o relativo fair value, The basis of tha st Tols 18 not latly differentthan the face valus becaues {f) the racelvables generatly tumover, iy less than twa months, (i credit losses are reascnably predicabie
dug b the bread eislomey base and Teck of significant pencenimation snd {il} he sqully IFCRC i Sublordinate 1o°all wiained irorests and Hws would ahserb fosses st The sypothetical effect on falrvakie ef ihe retained
“Tnteresty Jabuftting both & >10%-25 2 20% unfavnrsble varation i tredit Togsas or discaint rated 1 ot malartal diie o the shart iumovar of recaivables and histodsaly iow era 6 KoTs history. jalerest actnees ta Dike Enamy
Renkucky on [he relained interests using s acteplabic yiels methes: This method geﬂ@raﬁy apemx)matts e slated rate on e Note Sinse the allocaled basis and the face vahue are nedly equivalent. An impaiment charge s

recurded againg e cartying vatue of bom retained inleresis ant g itiy rvived thal en nmard?mn—lmoa:uwimpahnwthﬁ acoured, Duke Enery Kenlucﬁq{ﬁ e expasie o
loss does not expeed the calrying value,

ey assumation$ used b estinaling feir value acs detelied in e folawing 1atie.

B Thed
An_lidpa}ed credit o5 ratio 0.E% 0%
Discount rate sa% 2
Receivakles wmaver rzle, TRTY 1A%
The fni?w"ing table presents gross and nel eceivables sold.

. Dezambar 31,

fin thousands) Tz 2022
Retelnbies sold g 1,182 F 102,233
Less: Ketained Dleresty 13,757 5394
Nzt ecalyvables scid s 41,429 3 43 a9

Tha futiewing table shows $8708 and cash fows miated to revaivables 934,

Years Ended Dacomber 31,

{n theusands) dox3 2022

Sales .

Recevatie sold s 81,40 5 671,672

Loes racognized on Sale A48 3,643

Cash ﬂm;u

Cish protesds Fam recs valiles uid [ 826,127 H 817,042

‘Colecton feos ractived 307 138

. Retun pacedved o relainec intarests 4,374 2,835

Cash flows fram salas of recevahles ara vellasted within Cash Fiows trém Operating Acvities and Gash Flows fram ing Activifies on the. s Of Cash Flows.

Colfection fees recetved in tonnetton wWih the Serficing of transfeired accouals recoivable ame induded | in Qperaticn, mairianamce and et on e af Cporats The boss ropognized on sales of ieivakies is
Jenilated marthy Dy mu plyl sald during tha manih by the requirsd . discaunl, The requirmd discount is defied meatly wiliziog a \hrae-yaar weightad average farmula that considans chare-ofl kistary, lata chage

history and umaves hislory 0:1 lhe sold receivables, av wel a6 g compenent for the fime value of money, 7 ‘The diseount tate, 6r component fo the tima vidus i money, is the priormonth-end Dafly Sampte Setired Ovemight
Finencirg Rate (SOFR) plas a fixed rate af 1O00%.

13, REVENUE

Ouke Engrgy Kend revens i wiih emounts tilled under 1anifl offsrings e at conlraclually agreed upan rales based op actunl physical delivery of eteciric or natural gas service, including estfmated
valupes.delivered wHan bilings have ot yel sccurred. As such, the realorily of Duke Energy Rentucky's revenues have fived pricing based o lhe contrachual fefms of the pubfished Larifs, wilh varfabllity i1 axpacted cash fows
aittbubatle f the custoner’s volemelic demand and Liimate qupntities of energy or natarel gas suppiied and used during the tiling perod. The stand-along stiling price of related sales. are desigred &0 SUPPON recovery of
pradentiy incuned costs and 20 appropriate refan on invested 532l end pre primarily govemed by pullished tadif mlas or contractual agresments approved by relevant requiaiory bodies; Cerlain mcise texas and Tanthlie
fees taviedt Gy satd or lasal gaveminerils ate wquitet lo bo paid evan if nal coiletied from $i Cistmon Thess takes ars (rengnited of 2 gross tasis as part of sevenues. Puke Energy’ Kanturky cects o acaount for af ohér
wss net of ravanues.

Parformanee lligations are satisfiod aver ine s energy or natural gas is delivered snd congumed with bilings generally oomuring monthly snd reimed payments due within 30 days, dep 19 &N requiatony requi n
na geant dgay the liring betasar payrient and delivary of the gonds and servicas exceerl ane year, Using this: oltput melhod for revanie, recngnEUun pmddm & laftht) depiction of e tramsler of efaolit and nalral gas sevicn
a5 castgmars alitain contod of ha coprmodity and benakt fam s ez at duivary, Acditianalfy, Duks Encrgy K ity has ani le gt ta o {or energy or aatural g2z delivemd at ony discrate mr\i in ime and
Wl rRGOgNiZe 1QvEnUS ai an amown] fhat rafhects the considersziion 1o whish Duke Energy Kenfacky Is antiled %o me energy of nawral ges defvered,

A3 desttibid ahovs, fhe rajority of Duke By Kéntucky's Larif revenues ans ofswil ant ss such, refated o with \imve an gikpected duration of ooe year or less and wifl nof have fubure parformance
ubligitoms for disclosure.

Ouka Energy Kentueky erms substargaliy el of its 7evenwes hrough the sale of slecticity and nawral gas,
Electricity Sales

Eleatris saliss revenses are eamid pﬂr'\ariy thm.gh fetail and whaldsitie efockic servicn thraugh bha feneration, fransmiosian, distibition i sale of eleoticty. Duke Edngy Kenuicky generally provides el electnit senice
sistomens with Molr lul elecire ad requirements and sells whelessie block salas of elecirizity inta tha markat,

Retai elecinic semce is gengally ir hout Duke Energy Kemlicky's eisctric seicE Lemirory Ihrough stand ard serdce gifess, The standant service offers noe Mrouph larifs detenmined by the KPSC. Each laril, wiich
ig o based anc er glass, has rru!'\ylu camipenents such a an energy sharge, cualemet charge, demand chavge and spplicabie rders, Duke Energyl@nhu;ly considers each of lhere cimpanenis \o e
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infg a singla g elecuicsenvice. Eleclrishy is cansidered a single parfommance ‘obiigation satsTizd over fme i Wil 16 seies QU and is pi 20, and 6d avay
the bifing pariag, genaraily nne month. Relaf dectﬂc iorvir.e ia typlealy prowldad Yo atwi Gusiomens wha Gan cacet -..-arvica ai any ime. vnmnm a substanive penaky. Additioraly; Duks Energy Ke cky adherés i appiicable
reguiaiony requirements fo ensufe the collecisbiity of amounts bifed and !
appropriate miligadag poced wes umfcllmled whe:n necessaTy. As such, rewiue fom cantmacts wilh cusiomes is equivalzit ko the elecinicily suppﬁed B Billed i that period {iscluding urbitled €stimales).

“Whalesala gloctrie servico 2 fronvicend Errough btk siles of Soctirity. Reverss for tlock sales ara raesgaized munfty as encrgy is dekverod bnd stwd Tdady sonics s prove Vi with Inveicad and unbiied
estimales, :

Natural Gas Sales

Nolural gay sales cavenues are earped through retsil rzbural gas sepce hyouph the tansportation, dlstabution ard $ate of namural gas ke Enemy Kantugky genarafly proddes naral gas service cugtomers wiin al natural
gas load requiemenis. Addiionaliy. wmla nstural gas can be stored, substaniiaby aif natural gas rovided by Duke Enerqy Yy i simultaneausly with seceiot of defivery,

Aelali nalural sas service Is marketed ihrougheut Duke Energy Kenhiclky's e2lral gas servics tanfiary usng published ‘el ratze. The Wafl rotes are sstalished by the KPSC. Each t2eif, whfcﬂ fs asslgned o rustomens based
wl cuxl.m'aev slass, hag iy it £ suchas a dity Charge, cus: ar monttfy- dhrge and ransportaticn costs, Duke Energy Kenbucky i epohs of feso e s i be dinke » single

3¢ for u natural gas service. For toslraats where Duke Energy Kentutky mrovidas all of the customer’s nalura} gas weetss, tis defvery of eptural gas is cansidered @ sirxg}e Essforrnancs ohligation
salished ovar Ume, and revenue i cecopized monthly bated on bifings and unbitled a8 servica is provided znd ) g avef the Bling petiod, Additicnally. natwal gas serviee is typically sbvill and
symiamers can sanre] servies at agy e, withowt a subniamive panalty. Duks Energy Kerducky afsa 2dneces to e Ty regul 10 dnaure the eellerlabilily of arpounts billed and recelvabile and spprapiiste
witigaling procadires at isfowed when qecdssan.

Disaggragated Revenies

Fur slecvic and naturat gas asfas, revenug by custornsr class is most mesninglul 1o Duke Energy Kentucky as 03ch respective cuslomel class mﬂecmewwpwmnm urdeu guslomar expectationy of Bendca, geratally has

different anesgy and démand rnqu&emmu and oparales undar lilored; reguialary poproved pricng strucilres. Addig sach a7 Clsss is efifatanily by Westher and & varlaty of ecamaic fsclors indluding the
et af Aali gmwm. Il tievels and latory asirities. As such, Bnalying reveouss disapgregeted by custamer chiss aftaws Buke Exergy Kentucky 1o understand th nalirs, afount,
uming and unceainty of myenue anu mr.h ﬂmnansmg from oorlraces with customEens,

D ' ey ane presented as foflows:

{in thougands} Wears Ended D bey 31,

By markat or fype af cusfomer 2823 2022
Elatticty Sakes

Ressniial H 171,241 § 200,15¢
Beneral 178,078 145,987
bhusivial 8584k 72,546
Wiglesale!*f 16,565. §3,207
Ottrer fevenues 21,995 (a02y
Teral Electriclty Bales reventis from contracts wilh eustomens s 434,126 % 513,889
Nalural Gas Sales

Residental $ 84,37 § 100,198
Comimercist 38,435 56,546
{qusiial B,265 661D
Olfiat favenues 2,579 3,108
Tousd Natorgl Gas Sales revanug fmm conitracts widh casterpers 3 131,146 & 156,555
Tetal revenus fom caniracts with customens ] 558,272 3 668 444
Ciher revenus souroes™ 448 -4.084
Tolat revenues % 535680 3 666,129

{8) Dk Enaigy Kerueky nals wholasale slectric sales 21 purchases o an houdy hasis, As s, the pet pasition may resuk in Rustustions Detween pnsmo &nd negative net reve nues at e et of a réporing perpL
{0} Olher pevenus sourcas incyde revenues fram derivatives, leases and akemsiive revenue progrms fat are rot considered ravares rom centracts with cusiemers.

“Tho following table presents the reerve for aedd sses ot tade and olhey fecéivabies,

{in thousands}

Balance at December 31, 2021 3 S35

Wekeils {8y
Cridit Logs Edpense 222

Balance 2t Decembar 31, 2022 $ 531

CredH Loss Expense 218

Balarea at Deaambar 31, 2023 $ TAG

Trade =nd clber recatvables are avaluated bagedtm an sstimale of the risk of Joas vver the fe of the reseivable and curent and historicat conditons using 2upperiabis assumetions. Managvmen’ evaiuates the rak of boss lor
Yrade and ofber ruceivaties by comparing the Msterical wite=off smounts. 15 total revenig overa spedified periog, Historical kss rates are asjusted due ty Lhe impect of curént condiions, 23 Wwell as forecasted conditens over a
reasonatis tme porod. The ealcuoled writa-of rate $an by applied i the [Reeivable balante for which on eslablisned reserve dass Tat Blready dxisl. Managament réviews o assumptions and risk of kiss periodicafiy for yade
and other meaivables;

The aging cf rade eceivablas is presentod in the table bejow,

